
1 

AGENDA 
MEETING OF THE 

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY* 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 15, 2022 
10:00 A.M. 

AGENCY HEADQUARTERS 
BOARD ROOM 

6075 KIMBALL AVENUE, BUILDING A 
 CHINO, CALIFORNIA 91708 

VIEW THE MEETING LIVE ONLINE AT IEUA.ORG 

TELEPHONE ACCESS: (415) 856-9169 / Conf Code: 885 499 122# 

PURSUANT TO AB361 AND RESOLUTION NO. 2022-5-6, ADOPTED BY THE IEUA BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS ON MAY 18, 2022, IEUA BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS WILL CONTINUE TO BE 
CONDUCTED THROUGH TELECONFERENCE IN AN EFFORT TO PROTECT PUBLIC HEALTH AND 
PREVENT THE SPREAD OF COVID-19. THERE WILL BE NO PUBLIC LOCATION AVAILABLE FOR 

ATTENDING THE MEETING IN PERSON. 

The public may participate and provide public comment during the meeting by dialing the number 
provided above.   Comments may also be submitted by email to the Board Secretary/Office Manager 
Denise Garzaro at dgarzaro@ieua.org prior to the completion of the Public Comment section of the 

meeting. Comments will be distributed to the Board of Directors. 

CALL TO ORDER OF THE INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS MEETING 

FLAG SALUTE 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Members of the public may address the Board on any item that is within the jurisdiction of the Board; 
however, no action may be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by Subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2 of the Government Code.  Those persons 
wishing to address the Board on any matter, whether or not it appears on the agenda, are requested to 
email the Board Secretary/Office Manager prior to the public comment section or request to address the 
Board during the public comments section of the meeting.  Comments will be limited to three minutes 
per speaker.  Thank you. 

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 

In accordance with Section 54954.2 of the Government Code (Brown Act), additions to the agenda 
require two-thirds vote of the legislative body, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a 
unanimous vote of those members present, that there is a need to take immediate action and that the 
need for action came to the attention of the local agency subsequent to the agenda being posted.

*A Municipal Water District

mailto:dgarzaro@ieua.org


2 

NEW, PROMOTED AND RECLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE INTRODUCTIONS 

PRESENTATION 

• RECOGNITION OF 2022 SOLAR CUP TEAMS

1. CONSENT ITEMS

NOTICE: All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and non-
controversial and will be acted upon by the Board by one motion in the form listed below.  There will be 
no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Board votes unless any Board members, 
staff or the public requests specific items be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Calendar for 
separate action. 

A. MINUTES
Approve minutes of the May 18, 2022 Board Meeting.

B. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2022-6-10, MAKING CERTAIN
FINDINGS AND DETERMINATIONS REGARDING SPECIAL RULES
FOR CONDUCTING MEETINGS THROUGH TELECONFERENCE
Staff recommends that the Board adopt Resolution No. 2022-6-10, making
certain findings and determinations regarding special rules for conducting
meetings through teleconference.

C. REPORT ON GENERAL DISBURSEMENTS (Finance & Admin)

Staff recommends that the Board approve the total disbursements for the
month of April 2022, in the amount of $17,315,824.

D. FY 2022/23 ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN (Audit)

Staff recommends that the Committee/Board:

1. Approve the FY 2022/23 Annual Audit Plan; and

2. Direct the Manager of Internal Audit to implement the FY 2022/23
Annual Audit Plan.

E. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2022-6-9, ESTABLISHING PLAN
CHECK AND INSPECTION FEES (Eng/Ops/WR) (Finance & Admin)

Staff recommends that the Board adopt Resolution No. 2022-6-9,
establishing the fee for IEUA’s services for review of applications, plans
and inspections of construction for development connections.

F. CCWRF 12KV BACKUP GENERATOR CONTROL CIRCUIT 
IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AWARD (Eng/Ops/WR) 
Staff recommends that the Board: 

1. Award a construction contract for the CCWRF 12kV Backup
Generator Control Circuit Improvements, Project No. EN17006.01, to
Southern Contracting Co. for the amount of $1,027,480; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract, subject to
non-substantive changes.



3 

G. RP-1 SOLIDS THICKENING PROJECT SKID-MOUNTED ROTARY
DRUM THICKENER PROCUREMENT (Eng/Ops/WR)

Staff recommends that the Board: 

1. Authorize the procurement of a skid-mounted rotary drum thickener
system as a single source according to the proposal dated May 6,
2022, in the amount of $712,932; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract, subject to
non-substantive changes.

H. MASTER SERVICES CONTRACT AMENDMENT FOR PROJECT
CONTROLS SERVICES (Eng/Ops/WR)

Staff recommends that the Board:

1. Approve contract amendments for the Project Control Master
Services Contracts to CAPO Projects Group and KRD Management
Consulting, LLC for an aggregate amount of $1,750,000, increasing
the contract from $1,250,000 to $3,000,000 (a 140% increase) with a
four-year term extension through June 2026; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to contract, subject to non-
substantive changes.

I. PURCHASE OF AGENCY-WIDE INSURANCE FOR FISCAL YEAR
2022/23 (Finance & Admin)

Staff recommends that the Board authorize the purchase of Agency-wide
insurance policies providing coverage through Fiscal Year 2022/23, for the
total not-to-exceed insurance budget amount of $1,862,000 for the
following policies:

a. Excess General Liability insurance (Projected $755,000);
b. Property, Boiler & Machinery insurance (Projected $930,000); and
c. Excess Workers’ Compensation insurance (Actual $109,685).

J. FISCAL YEAR 2022/23 PROPOSED BUDGET AMENDMENT AND
RATE RESOLUTIONS (Finance & Admin)

Staff recommends that the Board:

1. Approve the amendments to the FY 2022/23 Adopted Budget; and

2. Adopt Rate Resolutions Nos. 2022-6-1 through 2022-6-7.

K. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2022-6-8, ESTABLISHING THE
APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022/23 (Finance &

Admin)

Staff recommends that the Board adopt Resolution No. 2022-6-8
establishing the appropriations limit for Fiscal Year 2022/23.



4 

2. ACTION ITEMS

A. CALIFORNIA SPECIAL DISTRICTS ASSOCIATION 2022 BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS ELECTION FOR SEAT B, SOUTHERN NETWORK
Staff recommends that the Board determine the Agency’s vote for the 
California Special Districts Association 2022 Board of Directors’ election 
for Seat B, Southern Network by selecting one candidate.

B. ADOPTION OF THE FISCAL YEARS 2022/23 – 2031/32 TEN-YEAR 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN & TEN-YEAR FORECAST
Staff recommends that the Board adopt the Fiscal Years 2022/23 –
2031/32 Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan and Ten-Year Forecast.

3. INFORMATION ITEMS 

A. WATER STORAGE INVESTMENT PROGRAM/CHINO BASIN 
PROGRAM UPDATE (ORAL) 

B. CONSTRUCTION TRENDS (POWERPOINT)

RECEIVE AND FILE INFORMATION ITEMS 

C. FY 2021/22 FINANCIAL AUDIT ENGAGEMENT COMMUNICATIONS
(WRITTEN/POWERPOINT) (Audit)

D. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE OPERATIONAL AND INTERNAL CONTROL
AUDIT REPORT – REVIEW OF PROCURE TO PAY PROCESSES FOR
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES – PLANNING & RESOURCES
(WRITTEN/POWERPOINT) (Audit) 

E. INTERIM AUDIT REPORT: ACCOUNTS PAYABLE OPERATIONAL
AND INTERNAL CONTROL AUDIT REPORT – REVIEW OF PROCURE
TO PAY PROCESSESS FOR MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES
(WRITTEN/POWERPOINT) (Audit)

F. PROGRESS UPDATE FOR ALL PROCURE TO PAY AUDIT
RECOMMENDATIONS (WRITTEN/POWERPOINT) (Audit)

G. REPORT OF OPEN AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS 
(WRITTEN/POWERPOINT) (Audit) 

H. INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT
FOR JUNE 2022 (WRITTEN) (Audit)

I. FEDERAL LEGISLATIVE REPORT AND MATRIX FROM INNOVATIVE
FEDERAL STRATEGIES (WRITTEN) (Community & Leg)

J. STATE LEGISLATIVE REPORT AND MATRIX FROM WEST COAST
ADVISORS (WRITTEN) (Community & Leg)

K. PUBLIC OUTREACH AND COMMUNICATION (WRITTEN) (Community

& Leg) 



5 

L. RECYCLED WATER GROUNDWATER RECHARGE UPDATE 
(POWERPOINT) (Eng/Ops/WR) 

M. SARS-COV-2 WASTEWATER SAMPLING (POWERPOINT) 
(Eng/Ops/WR) 

N. ANNUAL REPORT OF THE PRADO BASIN HABITAT 
SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE (WRITTEN) (Eng/Ops/WR) 

O. REGIONAL WATER USE EFFICIENCY BUSINESS PLAN UPDATE
(WRITTEN/POWERPOINT) (Eng/Ops/WR)

P. FY 2022/23 ADOPTED BUDGET FOR THE INLAND EMPIRE
REGIONAL COMPOSTING AUTHORITY (WRITTEN/POWERPOINT)
(Finance & Admin)

Q. FISCAL YEAR 2021/22 THIRD QUARTER BUDGET VARIANCE,
PERFORMANCE UPDATES, AND BUDGET TRANSFERS
(WRITTEN/POWERPOINT) (Finance & Admin) 

R. TREASURER’S REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS (WRITTEN/
POWERPOINT) (Finance & Admin)

4. AGENCY REPRESENTATIVES’ REPORTS

A. SANTA ANA WATERSHED PROJECT AUTHORITY REPORT
(WRITTEN)
June 7, 2022 SAWPA Commission meeting

B. METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA
REPORT (WRITTEN)
June 14, 2022 MWD Board meeting

C. REGIONAL SEWERAGE PROGRAM POLICY COMMITTEE REPORT
(WRITTEN)
June 2, 2022 Regional Sewerage Program Policy Committee meeting

D. CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER REPORT (WRITTEN)
May 26, 2022 Chino Basin Watermaster Board meeting

E. CHINO BASIN DESALTER AUTHORITY REPORT (WRITTEN)
June 2, 2022 Special CDA Board meeting

F. INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL COMPOSTING AUTHORITY REPORT
(WRITTEN)
June 6, 2022 Special IERCA Board meeting

5. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (WRITTEN)

6. BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REQUESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS



6 

7. DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS

A. CONFERENCE REPORTS

This is the time and place for the Members of the Board to report on prescheduled Committee/District 
Representative Assignment meetings, which were held since the last regular Board meeting, and/or any 
other items of interest. 

8. CLOSED SESSION

A. PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.9(a) –
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION

1. Kaiser vs. IEUA, Case No. CIVDS 1933655

B. PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.9(d)(2)(e)1
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION

Four Cases 

ADJOURN 

Declaration of Posting 

I, Denise Garzaro, CMC, Board Secretary/Office Manager of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, a Municipal Water 
District, hereby certify that, per Government Code Section 54954.2, a copy of this agenda has been posted at the 
Agency’s main office, 6075 Kimball Avenue, Building A, Chino, CA and on the Agency’s website at www.ieua.org at 
least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the meeting date and time above.  

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the Board Secretary at (909) 993-1736 or 
dgarzaro@ieua.org, 48 hours prior to the scheduled meeting so that IEUA can make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility. 

http://www.ieua.org/
mailto:dgarzaro@ieua.org


   CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

1A 



*A Municipal Water District
1 

MINUTES  
MEETING OF THE 

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

WEDNESDAY, MAY 18, 2022 
10:00 A.M. 

DIRECTORS PRESENT: 
Steven J. Elie, President 
Michael Camacho, Vice President 
Marco Tule, Secretary/Treasurer  

DIRECTORS PRESENT via Video/Teleconference: 
Jasmin A. Hall, Director 
Paul Hofer, Director 

STAFF PRESENT: 
Shivaji Deshmukh, P.E., General Manager 
Christiana Daisy, P.E., Deputy General Manager 
Javier Chagoyen-Lazaro, Acting Assistant General Manager  
Joshua Aguilar, Senior Engineer 
Adham Almasri, P.E., Principal Engineer 
Tony Arellano, Safety Officer 
Jerry Burke, Director of Engineering 
Pietro Cambiaso, Acting Director of Planning & Resources 
Andy Campbell, Groundwater Recharge Coordinator/Hydrogeologist 
Michael Dias, Operations Supervisor 
Lucia Diaz, Manager of Facilities & Water System Programs 
Lisa Dye, Director of Human Resources 
Denise Garzaro, Board Secretary/Office Manager 
Elizabeth Hurst, Chino Basin Program Manager 
Randy Lee, Director of Operations & Maintenance 
Scott Lening, Manager of Operations 
Eddie Lin, Senior Engineer 
Liza Munoz, Senior Engineer 
Travis Sprague, Principal Engineer 
Wilson To, Technology Specialist II  
Brian Wilson, P.E., CCM, Senior Engineer 

STAFF PRESENT via Video/Teleconference: 
Andrea Carruthers, Communications Officer 
Robert Delgado, Manager of Operations & Maintenance 
Warren Green, Manager of Contracts & Procurement 
Don Hamlett, Director of Information Technology 
Jennifer Hy-Luk, Administrative Assistant II 
Nolan King, Network Administrator 



*A Municipal Water District
2 

Ryan Love, Deputy Manager of Operations 
Kanes Pantayatiwong, Manager of Information Technology 
Jesse Pompa, Manager of Grants 
Sushmitha Reddy, Manager of Laboratories 
Jeanina Romero, Executive Assistant 
Victoria Salazar, Associate Engineer 
James Simpson, Engineering Consultant 
Frank Sotomayor, Facilities Program Supervisor 
Yvonne Taylor, Administrative Assistant II 
Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit 
Jeff Ziegenbein, Manager of Regional Compost Authority 

OTHERS PRESENT: 
Chris Berch, Jurupa Community Services District 
Jean Cihigoyenetche, JC Law Firm 
Kaitlyn Dodson-Hamilton, Tom Dodson & Associates 
Tom Dodson, Tom Dodson & Associates 
Edgar Tellez Foster, Chino Basin Watermaster 
John McClendon, Leibold McClendon & Mann 

OTHERS PRESENT via Video/Teleconference: 
Alexander Bugbee, Carollo Engineers 
Scott Burton, City of Ontario 
Martin Cihigoyenetche, JC Law Firm  
Debra Dorst-Porada, City of Ontario 
Cris Fealy, Fontana Water Company 
Garrett Rapp, West Yost Associates 
Randall Reed, Cucamonga Valley Water District 
Ryan Shaw, Western Municipal Water District 
Deven Upadhyay, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 

A meeting of the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency* was held at the office 
of the Agency, 6075 Kimball Avenue, Building A, Chino, California and via video/teleconference 
on the above date. 

President Elie called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. Senior Internal Auditor Sapna Nangia led 
the Pledge of Allegiance. Board Secretary/Office Manager Denise Garzaro took roll call and 
established a quorum.    

PUBLIC COMMENT 
There were no public comments. 

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
There were no changes/additions/deletions to the agenda. 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

3 

NEW, PROMOTED AND RECLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE INTRODUCTIONS 
The following staff member from the Engineering Department was recognized: 
 

• Victoria Salazar, Senior Associate Engineer, reclassified April 17, 2022, 
Engineering 
 

The following staff member from the External & Government Affairs Department was introduced: 
 

• Nicole Slavin, External Affairs Specialist I, hired May 15, 2022, External Affairs 
 

The following staff member from the Finance Department was introduced: 
 

• Annie Wu, Financial Analyst I, hired May 16, 2022, Finance 
 

The following staff members from the Operations & Maintenance Department were hired and 
recognized: 
 

• Jeffrey Hyder, Electrical & Instrumentation Technician IV, promoted May 1, 2022, 
Maintenance 
 

• Juan Barajas, Electrical & Instrumentation Technician II, hired May 16, 2022, 
Organics Management 
 

The Board of Directors welcomed Ms. Slavin, Ms. Wu, and Mr. Barajas to the IEUA team. The 
Board of Directors congratulated Ms. Salazar and Mr. Hyder on their reclassification and 
promotion.   
 
 
President Elie stated that Action Item 3B would be taken out of order and heard first since there 
were several requests to comment on the item.  
 
 
3.  ACTION ITEM 
 

B. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2022-5-1, CERTIFYING THE FINAL CHINO 
BASIN PROGRAM ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT 
The following individuals provided oral public comment on Agenda Item No. 3B:    
Deven Upadhyay, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 
Randall Reed, Cucamonga Valley Water District  
Scott Burton, Ontario Municipal Utilities Company 
Ryan Shaw, Western Municipal Water District 
Cris Fealy, Fontana Water Company Water Resources Manager  
Debra Dorst-Porada, City of Ontario  
Chris Berch, Jurupa Community Services District 

 
Written public comments received from: 
Paul Leon, City of Ontario  
Courtney Jones, City of Ontario 
Michael R. Markus, Orange County Water District 

 
Chino Basin Program Manager Elizabeth Hurst provided the staff presentation. CEQA 
Consultant Tom Dodson provided additional details on the CEQA process and 
provided responses to the comment letter received from Orange County Water 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

4 

District (OCWD). Discussion ensued regarding the OCWD letter. CEQA Special 
Counsel John McClendon provided additional information on the CEQA process.  

 
CEQA Consultant Kaitlyn Dodson-Hamilton provided responses to the comments 
received from the City of Ontario. Discussion ensued regarding the items raised in 
the correspondence from the City of Ontario.  

 
The Board of Directors took a brief recess at 11:23 a.m. The meeting resumed at   
11:28 a.m. 

 
Discussion continued regarding the environmental impact report and the 
recommended action for the Board’s consideration.  

 
MOVED BY DIRECTOR CAMACHO, SECONDED 
BY DIRECTOR TULE, THE BOARD ADOPTED 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-5-1, CERTIFYING THE 
FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT FOR 
THE CHINO BASIN PROGRAM, ADOPTING THE 
MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING 
PLAN, ADOPTING FINDINGS OF FACT, AND 
ADOPTING STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING 
CONSIDERATIONS; AND AUTHORIZED THE 
FILING OF THE NOTICE OF DETERMINATION 
WITH THE COUNTY CLERK AND THE STATE 
CLEARINGHOUSE, GOVERNOR’S OFFICE OF 
PLANNING AND RESEARCH, SUBJECT TO NON-
SUBSTANTIVE CHANGES, BY THE FOLLOWING 
VOTE: 

 
     Ayes:   Camacho, Elie, Hall, Hofer, Tule 
 
     Noes:  None 
 
     Absent: None 
 
 
1.  PUBLIC HEARING 
 

A. CONSIDER THE ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2022-5-7, DECLARING A 
WATER SHORTAGE EMERGENCY CONDITION AND ADOPTING THE 
FRAMEWORK OF AN EMERGENCY WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM 
Senior Engineer Joshua Aguilar provided the staff presentation. The Board discussed 
the implications of the framework adopted by Metropolitan Water District (MWD). 
Deputy General Manager Christiana Daisy provided details on staff’s efforts which 
ultimately led to MWD adopting a method that provides two pathways for compliance.  
 
President Elie opened the public hearing. Hearing no public comments, President Elie 
closed the public hearing. 

 
MOVED BY DIRECTOR TULE, SECONDED BY 
DIRECTOR CAMACHO, THE BOARD ADOPTED 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-5-7, DECLARING A 
WATER SHORTAGE EMERGENCY CONDITION, 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

5 

IMPLEMENTING THE AGENCY’S WATER 
SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN AT LEVEL 3 
AND ADOPTING AN EMERGENCY WATER 
CONSERVATION PROGRAM FRAMEWORK, BY 
THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 

      
 

Ayes:   Camacho, Elie, Hall, Hofer, Tule 
 
     Noes:  None 
 
     Absent: None 

 
 

2. CONSENT ITEMS 
Director Hall requested to pull Item 2G for discussion.  
 
A. MINUTES 
 
B. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2022-5-6, MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS AND 

DETERMINATIONS REGARDING SPECIAL RULES FOR CONDUCTING 
MEETINGS THROUGH TELECONFERENCE 

 
C. REPORT ON GENERAL DISBURSEMENTS (Finance & Admin)  

 
D. ANTI-STRUVITE CHEMICAL CONTRACT AWARD (Eng, Ops & WR) 
 
E. RP-1 AND RP-4 GENERATOR RETROFITS CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 

AWARD (Eng, Ops & WR) 
 
F. CONTRACT AWARD FOR RP-3 BASINS INFILTRATION RESTORATION (Eng, Ops 

& WR)  
 

MOVED BY DIRECTOR CAMACHO, SECONDED 
BY DIRECTOR TULE, AGENDA ITEM NOS. 2A 
THROUGH 2F WERE APPROVED AS 
RECOMMENDED BELOW, BY THE FOLLOWING 
VOTE: 

 
     Ayes:   Camacho, Elie, Hall, Hofer, Tule 
 
     Noes:  None 
 
     Absent: None 

 
o Approved the minutes of the April 6 and April 20, 2022 Board Meeting.  

 
o Adopted Resolution No. 2022-5-6, making certain findings and determinations 

regarding special rules for conducting meetings through teleconference. 
 

o Approved the total disbursements for the month of March 2022, in the amount  
of $25,677,180.30. 
 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

6 

o Approved a two-year contract, with three one-year renewal options, with 
Polydyne, Inc. for the supply of anti-struvite chemical (Flosperse 30S), for a 
potential total contract term of five years; and authorized the General Manager to 
execute the contract.  

 
o Awarded a construction contract for the RP-1 and RP-4 Generator Retrofits, 

Project No. EN22034, to Big Sky Electric, Inc., in the amount of $175,100; and 
authorized the General Manager to execute the contract, subject to non-
substantive changes. 

 
o Approved the award of Contract 460003133 to Jeremy Harris Construction, Inc. 

for the RP-3 Basins Infiltration Restoration Services for a not-to-exceed amount 
of $166,733.00; and authorized the General Manager to execute the contract, 
subject to non-substantive changes. 

 
G. IEUA – METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA TERM 

SHEET FOR THE CHINO BASIN PROGRAM WATER STORAGE INVESTMENT 
PROGRAM ENVIRONMENTAL WATER EXCHANGE (Eng, Ops & WR) 
General Manager Deshmukh provided the staff report. Discussion ensued regarding 
the Chino Basin Program and associated agreements.  

 
MOVED BY DIRECTOR CAMACHO, SECONDED 
BY DIRECTOR TULE, THE BOARD APPROVED 
THE IEUA – METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT 
OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA TERM SHEET FOR 
THE CBP WSIP ENVIRONMENTAL EXCHANGE; 
AND AUTHORIZED THE GENERAL MANAGER TO 
NEGOTIATE TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
CONSISTENT WITH THE WATER EXCHANGE 
AGREEMENT TERMS FOR THE DEVELOPMENT 
OF A FINAL AGREEMENT, BY THE FOLLOWING 
VOTE: 

 
     Ayes:   Camacho, Elie, Hall, Hofer, Tule 
 
     Noes:  None 
 
     Absent: None 
 

 
3.  ACTION ITEMS (CONTINUED) 
 

A. RP-5 EXPANSION PROJECT CHANGE ORDER TO REPLACE EXISTING BURIED 
30” AIR LOW PRESSURE PIPELINE 
Senior Engineer Brian Wilson, P.E., provided the staff presentation.  
 

MOVED BY DIRECTOR CAMACHO, SECONDED 
BY DIRECTOR HOFER, THE BOARD RATIFIED A 
CONSTRUCTION CHANGE ORDER FOR THE   
RP-5 EXPANSION, PROJECT NO. EN19001 TO 
W.M. LYLES CO., FOR THE NOT-TO-EXCEED 
AMOUNT OF $614,623 INCREASING THE 
CONTRACT FROM $332,936,737 TO 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

7 

$333,551,360 (AN APPROXIMATELY 0.19% 
INCREASE); AND AUTHORIZED THE GENERAL 
MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE CHANGE ORDER, 
SUBJECT TO NON-SUBSTANTIVE CHANGES, BY 
THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 
 
Ayes:   Camacho, Elie, Hall, Hofer, Tule 

 
     Noes:  None 
 
     Absent: None 

 
 

B. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NOS. 2022-5-2 THROUGH 2022-5-5 ESTABLISHING 
REGIONAL WASTEWATER RATES AND EXTRA-TERRITORIAL SEWER 
SERVICE CHARGES FOR FY 2022/23 AND REGIONAL RECYCLED WATER 
RATES FOR FY 2022/23 THROUGH FY 2024/25 (Finance & Admin) 
Acting Assistant General Manager Javier Chagoyen-Lazaro provided the staff 
presentation.  
 

MOVED BY DIRECTOR TULE, SECONDED BY 
DIRECTOR CAMACHO, THE BOARD ADOPTED 
RESOLUTION NOS. 2022-5-2 REIMBURSEMENT 
PAYMENT PER EDU (WASTEWATER 
CONNECTION FEE) FOR FY 2022/23; 2022-5-3 
ESTABLISHING SERVICE RATES FOR 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT C (MONTHLY SEWER 
RATE) FOR FY 2022/23; 2022-5-4 EXTRA-
TERRITORIAL SEWER SERVICE CHARGES FOR 
FY 2022/23; AND 2022-5-5 ESTABLISHING 
RATES COVERING THE SALE OF RECYCLED 
WATER FOR FY 2022/23 THROUGH FY 2024/25, 
BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 

 
     Ayes:   Camacho, Elie, Hall, Hofer, Tule 
 
     Noes:  None 
 

Absent: None 
 
      
4. INFORMATION ITEMS 

The following items were received and filed by the Board.  
 

A. FY 2022/23 PROPOSED BUDGET AMENDMENT FOR ADMINISTRATIVE 
SERVICES, NON-RECLAIMABLE WASTEWATER, RECHARGE WATER, AND 
WATER RESOURCES PROGRAMS (Finance & Admin) 
 

B. ENGINEERING AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT PROJECT UPDATES (Eng, 

Ops & WR) 
 
 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

8 

C. FEDERAL LEGISLATIVE REPORT AND MATRIX FROM INNOVATIVE FEDERAL 
STRATEGIES (Comm & Leg Affairs) 
  

D. STATE LEGISLATIVE REPORT AND MATRIX FROM WEST COAST ADVISORS 
(Comm & Leg Affairs) 

 
E. PUBLIC OUTREACH AND COMMUNICATION (Comm & Leg Affairs) 
 
F. RP-5 EXPANSION PROJECT UPDATE: MAY 2022 (Eng, Ops & WR) 
 
G. TREASURER’S REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS (Finance & Admin) 
 

 
5. AGENCY REPRESENTATIVES’ REPORTS  
 

A. SANTA ANA WATERSHED PROJECT AUTHORITY REPORT 
Director Tule reported that at the May 17 Board meeting, the Commission approved 
an extension to the Middle Santa Ana River Total Maximum Daily Loads (TMDL) Task 
Force Agreement through June 2027, authorized the General Manager to submit a 
WaterSMART Applied Science Grant Application to the US Bureau of Reclamation for 
the Cloud Seeding Technology Validation Protocol, and approved the replacement of 
the manual gate at the SAWPA entrance with an automated gate.  
 

B. METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA REPORT 
Vice President Camacho reported that at the May 10 Board meeting, the MWD Board 
authorized the General Manager to express support for developing the Voluntary 
Agreement approach as an alternative in the State Board’s Bay-Delta Water Quality 
Control Plan Update. This is an important policy development in that, if successful, the 
Voluntary Agreements would provide a pathway for improving fish populations in the 
Bay-Delta with approaches other than just high flows. Lower flow requirements in the 
Bay Delta potentially offer IEUA improved State Water Project deliveries. The Board 
also adopted a Climate Action Plan (CAP), establishing a greenhouse gas (GHG) 
reduction target allowing MWD to achieve carbon neutrality (zero emissions) by 2045, 
as required by law. The CAP also includes 39 proposed GHG emissions reduction 
measures to further reduce emissions. Metropolitan’s GHG emissions have already 
declined by 71% between 1990 and 2017 despite Metropolitan’s increasing service 
population. 
 

C. REGIONAL SEWERAGE PROGRAM POLICY COMMITTEE REPORT 
Director Tule asked General Manager Deshmukh to provide the report. General 
Manager Deshmukh noted that at the May 5 Special Regional Sewerage Program 
Policy Committee meeting, the Committee approved the FY 2022/23 Proposed Budget 
Amendment for Regional Wastewater and Recycled Water Programs and Proposed 
Rates/Fees. 
 

D. CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER REPORT 
President Elie reported that there were no business items considered at the April 28 
Chino Basin Watermaster Board meeting. He added that at the May Board meeting, 
the Board is expected to discuss the next fiscal year budget and storage and recovery.  
 

E. CHINO BASIN DESALTER AUTHORITY REPORT 
The Chino Basin Desalter Authority Report was inadvertently skipped.   
 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

9 

F. INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL COMPOSTING AUTHORITY REPORT 
Director Hofer reported that at the May 2 IERCA meeting, the Board reauthorized 
holding meetings remotely under AB 361 conditions.  
 

 
6. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

General Manager Deshmukh stated that May is Internal Audit Awareness Month. He 
invited everyone to join the Internal Audit team for cake in the HQA break room to 
celebrate. 
 

7. BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REQUESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
There were no requested future agenda items. 

 
8. DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS AND CONFERENCE REPORTS 

Vice President Camacho stated he attended the ACWA Spring Conference from May 3 
through May 5. 
 
Director Hall stated she attended the 3rd Infraday California on April 26; the ACWA Spring 
Conference from May 3 through May 5; and the San Bernardino Valley Water 
Conservation District 90th Anniversary Gala on May 11. 
 
Director Tule stated he attended the RP-5 Expansion Project Tour with Monte Vista Water 
District staff and Board President Sandra Rose on April 28. Director Tule expressed his 
appreciation for the robust discussion at the Board meeting.  

 
President Elie stated that he attended the ACWA Spring Conference from May 3 through 
May 5; and the San Bernardino Valley Water Conservation District 90th Anniversary Gala 
on May 11. 
 

9. CLOSED SESSION 
 The Board recessed to Closed Session at 1:15 p.m.: 
 

A. PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.9(a) – 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 

1. Spicer vs. W.A. Rasic Construction, Case No. CIVDS 1711812 
 

B. PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.9(d)(2)(e)1 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  

Two Cases 
 

The meeting resumed at 1:47 p.m., and General Counsel Jean Cihigoyenetche stated that 
the Board did not take any reportable action in Closed Session. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
President Elie adjourned the meeting at 1:48 p.m. in memory of City of Rancho Cucamonga City 
Councilman Sam Spagnolo.  

 
 
 
______________________________ 
Marco Tule, Secretary/Treasurer 

APPROVED:  JUNE 15, 2022 



   CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

1B 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

June 15, 2022

Adopt Resolution No. 2022-6-10, Making Certain Findings and Determinations
Regarding Special Rules for Conducting Meetings through Teleconference

On March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom declared a state of emergency pursuant to Government
Code 8625 due to the COVID-19 pandemic and recommended, together with local officials,
measures for social distancing to assist in abating the spread of COVID-19; and on March 17,
2020, the Governor issued Executive Order N-29-20 which, among other things, suspended
certain Brown Act rules governing the use of teleconferencing for local agency board meetings.
Executive Order N-29-20 expired on September 30, 2021. In response to the ongoing
COVID-19 pandemic, the California legislature enacted, and the Governor signed into law, AB
361 amending portions of Government Code 54953, allowing for the continued use of
teleconferencing for local agency board meetings while suspending the conditions and
restrictions of Government Code 54953(b)(3) if the legislative body of the local agency makes
certain findings. The legislative body must make these findings every 30 days to continue the
use of teleconferencing.

Staff is recommending that the Board of Directors makes the necessary findings and
determinations and Adopt Resolution No. 2022-6-10 to continue to conduct meetings through
teleconference for a period of 30 days.

Adopt Resolution No. 2022-6-10, Making Certain Findings and Determinations Regarding
Special Rules for Conducting Meetings through Teleconference.

None.

Shivaji Deshmukh, General Manager

Y N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Adoption of a Resolution to make findings for conducting meetings through teleconference
is consistent with the IEUA's commitment to applying ethical, fiscally responsible, transparent
and environmentally sustainable principles to all aspects of business and organizational conduct.

The Board adopted Resolution No. 2021-10-1 on Oct. 6, 2021. On Oct. 2, 2021, Nov. 3, 2021,
Nov. 17, 2021, Dec. 8, 2021, Jan. 5, 2022, Feb. 2, 2022, March 2, 2022, April 6, 2022 and May
18, 2022 the Board adopted Resolution Nos. 2021-10-1, 2021-11-6, 2021-11-1, 2021-12-1,
2022-1-1, 2022-2-1, 2022-3-1, 2022-4-7, and 2022-5-6 respectively, making continued findings
and determinations regarding special rules for conducting meetings through teleconference.

 Attachment 1 - Resolution No. 2022-6-10

Not Applicable

22151



RESOLUTION NO.  2022-6-10 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE INLAND 
EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY*, SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY, 
CALIFORNIA, MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS AND DETERMINATIONS 
REGARDING SPECIAL RULES FOR CONDUCTING MEETINGS 
THROUGH TELECONFERENCE 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Inland Empire Utilities Agency (“IEUA”) is a municipal water district 
 established pursuant to Section 71000 et seq. of the California Water Code; and 
 

WHEREAS, all meetings of the Board of Directors of IEUA are conducted in open and 
 public settings in compliance with the Ralph M. Brown Act (Brown Act) so that any 
 member of the public may attend, participate and watch the Agency’s Board of Directors 
 conduct their business; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, the Governor declared a state of emergency pursuant to 
 Government Code 8625 due to the COVID-19 pandemic and has recommended, together 
 with local officials, measures for social distancing to assist in abating the spread of 
 COVID-19; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, the Governor issued Executive Order N-29-20 which, 
 among other things, suspended certain Brown Act rules governing the use of 
 teleconferencing of local agency board meetings; and 
 

WHEREAS, the California legislature has enacted, and the Governor has signed into law, 
 AB 361 amending portions of Government Code 54953, allowing for the continued use of 
 teleconferencing for local agency board meetings while suspending the conditions and 
 restrictions of Government Code 54953(b)(3) if the legislative body of the local agency 
 makes certain findings; and 

 
WHEREAS, On October 6, 2021 the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency approved Resolution 2021-10-1 making certain factual findings, and authorizing 
the continued use of teleconferencing for IEUA Board meetings for an effective period of 
30 days; and 
 
WHEREAS, On November 3, 2021 the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency approved Resolution 2021-11-6 again making certain factual findings, and 
authorizing the continued use of teleconferencing for IEUA Board meetings for an 
effective period of 30 days; and 
 



Resolution No. 2022-6-10 
Page 2 of 5 

WHEREAS, On November 17, 2021 the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency approved Resolution 2021-11-1 again making certain factual findings, and 
authorizing the continued use of teleconferencing for IEUA Board meetings for an 
effective period of 30 days; and 

WHEREAS, On December 8, 2021 the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency approved Resolution 2021-12-1 again making certain factual findings, and 
authorizing the continued use of teleconferencing for IEUA Board meetings for an 
effective period of 30 days; and 

WHEREAS, On January 5, 2022 the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency approved Resolution 2022-1-1 again making certain factual findings, and 
authorizing the continued use of teleconferencing for IEUA Board meetings for an 
effective period of 30 days; and 

WHEREAS, On February 2, 2022 the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency approved Resolution 2022-2-1 again making certain factual findings, and 
authorizing the continued use of teleconferencing for IEUA Board meetings for an 
effective period of 30 days; and 

WHEREAS, On March 2, 2022 the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency approved Resolution 2022-3-1 again making certain factual findings, and 
authorizing the continued use of teleconferencing for IEUA Board meetings for an 
effective period of 30 days; and 

WHEREAS, On April 6, 2022 the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency approved Resolution 2022-4-7 again making certain factual findings, and 
authorizing the continued use of teleconferencing for IEUA Board meetings for an 
effective period of 30 days; and 

WHEREAS, On May 18, 2022 the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire 
Utilities Agency approved Resolution 2022-5-6 again making certain factual 
findings, and authorizing the continued use of teleconferencing for IEUA Board 
meetings for an effective period of 30 days; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors must now determine whether to extend the effective 
period of Resolution No. 2022-6-10 for an additional 30 days, making the appropriate 
factual findings in support thereof; 



Resolution No. 2022-6-10 
Page 3 of 5 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Inland 
Empire Utilities Agency hereby make the following findings and determinations: 

SECTION 1.       The Governor has proclaimed a state of emergency on March 4, 2020 
which continues. 

SECTION 2.     The Governor and local officials have promoted the use of social 
distancing as a method to abate the spread of COVID-19 within the community. The Board 
of Directors finds that conducting in person meetings of the IEUA Board of Directors 
would be inimical to social distancing and would present imminent risks to the health or 
safety of the attendees and conducting meetings by teleconference would diminish that 
risk. 

SECTION 3.        The Board of Directors will continue to conduct Board meetings by 
teleconference in compliance with Government Code 54953(e) until such time as the 
Governor has terminated the state of emergency and the risk to health and safety of meeting 
attendees is sufficiently diminished or as otherwise required by law. Notice of meetings 
and posted agendas will contain information which allows members of the public to access 
the meeting and address the Board of Directors and offer public comment including an 
opportunity for all persons to attend via a call-in option or an internet-based service option.  

SECTION 4.      This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption and shall 
be effective for 30 days or until such time as the Board of Directors adopts a subsequent 
resolution in accordance with Government Code 54953(e)(3) to extend the time during 
which meetings of the Board of Directors may be conducted by teleconference without 
compliance with Government Code 54953(3)(b).  

ADOPTED this 15th day of June, 2022. 

____________________________________ 
Steven J. Elie, President of the Inland 
Empire Utilities Agency* and of the Board 
of Directors thereof  



Resolution No. 2022-6-10 
Page 4 of 5 

ATTEST: 

______________________________________ 
Marco Tule, Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland  
Empire Utilities Agency* and of the Board of  
Directors thereof 



Resolution No. 2022-6-10 
Page 5 of 5 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
) 

COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO ) 

I, Marco Tule, Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, DO 

HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution being No. 2022-6-10, was adopted at 

a regular meeting on June 15, 2022, of said Agency by the following vote: 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSTAIN:  

ABSENT: 

___________________________________ 
Marco Tule, Secretary/Treasurer of the 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency* and of the 
Board of Directors thereof 

(SEAL) 

*A Municipal Water District



   CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

1C 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

June 15, 2022

 Report on General Disbursements

Total disbursements for the month of April 2022 were $17,315,824.00. Disbursement activity
included check payments of $1,447,071.12 to vendors and $10,703.06 for worker's
compensation related costs. Electronic payments included the Automated Clearing House
(ACH) of $11,682,012.47 and wire transfers (excluding payroll) of $2,384,905.75. The total
payroll was $1,783,468.85 for employees and $7,662.75 for the Board of Directors.

Approve the total disbursements for the month of April 2022 in the amount of $17,315,824.00.

06/08/22Finance & Administration

Javier Chagoyen-Lazaro, Acting Assistant General Manager

N N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The report on general disbursements is consistent with the Agency's Business Goal of Fiscal 
Responsibility in providing financial reporting that accounts for general disbursements 
associated with operating requirements.

On May 18, 2022 the Board of Directors approved the March 2022 Report on General
Disbursements totaling $25,677,180.30.

Attachment 1 - Background
Attachment 2 - Details of General Disbursements
Attachment 3 - PowerPoint

Not Applicable

22147



Page 1 of 1

Background
Subject: Report on General Disbursements

Table 1 summarizes the disbursements detailed in each of the six attachments affixed to this letter.
Table 2 lists the disbursements in excess of an aggregated $500,000 per vendor and is presented 
in largest to smallest dollar value.

Table 1:  Disbursement Details

Attachment Payment Type Amount
2A Vendor Checks $ 1,447,071.12
2B Workers' Comp Checks $ 10,703.06
2C Vendor ACHs $ 11,682,012.47
2D Vendor Wires (excludes Payroll) $ 2,384,905.75
2E Payroll-Net Pay-Directors $ 7,662.75
2F Payroll-Net Pay-Employees $ 1,783,468.85

Total Disbursements $17,315,824.00

Table 2:  Disbursements in Excess of $500,000 per Vendor

Vendor Amount Description

WM LYLES COMPANY $ 6,224,269.31 Professional Svc’s for EN18006 RP-1 Flare Improvements; 
EN19001- RP-5 Expansion to 30 mgd.

PERS $ 1,129,632.29 04/22 Health Ins; P/R 05, 06, 07, 08 Def Comp; 2022 
Replacement Benefit Contribution; 2014 Arrears Admin Fee

INTERNAL REVENUE 
SERVICE $ 773,024.73 P#07, #08, #107, #205; Dir PP# 04 Taxes

SO CALIF EDISON $ 675,292.96 01/31/22 – 03/30/22 Electricity

CHARLES KING COMPANY 
INC $ 602,339.74 Professional Svc’s for EN19027 - NRW Pipeline Relining 

Along Cucamonga Creek

CAROLLO ENGINEERS $ 586,043.55

Professional Svc’s for EN11039 - RP-1 Disinfection Pump 
Improvements; EN17110 - RP-4 Process Improvements;
EN24001 - RP-1 Liquid Treatment Capacity Recovery;
EN24002 - RP-1 Solids Treatment Expansion; Recycled 
Water System Cost of Service Study



















































































































































IEUA’s Business Goal under Fiscal Responsibility



   CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

1D 



Budget Impact 

 
June 15, 2022

FY 2022/23 Annual Audit Plan

The Board-approved Audit Committee Charter requires the Audit Committee to approve a
flexible Annual Audit Plan of proposed audit projects and recommend the plan and periodic
updates to the Board of Directors for review and approval. The Annual Audit Plan of proposed
projects intends to objectively review and evaluate the Agency's processes and business
activities depending on the assessed risk, level of priority, and/or specific requests and make
recommendations for improvements and efficiencies.
The Internal Audit Department Charter and the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) audit
standards require that periodic risk assessments be performed to ensure information captured is
relevant, timely, and aligned with the Agency's changing environment, goals, and objectives. IA
performs the required risk assessment, prepares the Annual Audit Plan, and submits quarterly
status reports and amendments, as required. The main audit projects proposed for FY 2022/23
include: Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit, specifically the completion
of additional Procure to Pay audits, Information Technology Physical Inventory Audit and
follow-up reviews to evaluate the implementation status of prior recommendations provided.
Additionally, IA is available to assist with questions related to Agency policies, processes,
compliance, and efficiencies and to participate in various meetings, committees and discussions.

1. Approve the FY 2022/23 Annual Audit Plan; and

2. Direct the Manager of Internal Audit to implement the FY 2022/23 Annual Audit Plan.

Only when additional outside auditing or consulting services are required to provide assistance
to IA or fulfill the responsibilities of the Audit Committee for appropriate action. Additionally,
some audit projects are intended to identify opportunities for cost containment.

06/06/22Audit

Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit

N Y

Manager Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Annual Audit Plan is consistent with the Agency’s Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility,
Workplace Environment, and Business Practices by proposing for completion audits that
evaluate and promote a strong internal control and ethical environment, evaluate efficiencies and
effectiveness of processes and operations, and make recommendations to assist management in
achieving compliance with required policies to achieve organizational goals and objectives.

On December 8, 2021, the Board of Directors reconfirmed the approved Audit Committee and
the Internal Audit Department Charters. Both Charters require the Manager of IA to annually
complete and present the Annual Audit Plan.

Attachment 1 - FY 2022/23 Internal Audit Department Annual Audit Plan
Attachment 2 - PowerPoint

Not Applicable

22122



 
 

  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Submitted by:   

Teresa V. Velarde 

Manager of Internal Audit  

June 6, 2022 

 

Fiscal Year   

2022-2023 

 

The Annual Audit Plan is consistent 

with the Agency’s Business Goals of 

Fiscal Responsibility, Workplace 

Environment, and Business Practices 

by proposing for completion audits that 

evaluate and promote a strong internal 

control and ethical environment, 

evaluate efficiencies and effectiveness 

of processes and operations, and make 

recommendations to assist management 

in achieving compliance with required 

policies to achieve organizational goals 

and objectives. 



 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Department  

Annual Audit Plan 

For Fiscal Year 2022/23 

Page 2 of 13 
 

 

  

    

Table of Contents 
 

Page 

Purpose of the Internal Audit Department 3 

Mission Statement & Values 4 

Purpose of the Annual Audit Plan 5 

Annual Audit Plan Methodology 6 

FY 2022/23 Annual Audit Plan 7 

On-Going Projects 8 

Outstanding Recommendations 9 

Long Range Audit Planning – Additional Audit Areas 10 

Risk Assessment Strategy & Audit Universe 12 

Quality Assurance and Improvement Program 13 



 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Department  

Annual Audit Plan 

For Fiscal Year 2022/23 

Page 3 of 13 
 

 

According to the Board-approved Charter, the purpose of the Internal Audit Department (IA) is to 

assist the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee in fulfilling their oversight responsibilities 

for reporting, internal controls, and compliance with legal and regulatory requirements applicable 

to the Inland Empire Utilities Agency (Agency) operations.   

 

The purpose of the IA Department is also to provide objective assurance, consulting services, 

analyses, recommendations, and information concerning the operations of the Agency, as a service 

to management and as a way of adding value to improve the operations of the Agency.  IA assists 

management and staff in achieving organizational goals and objectives by providing 

recommendations and advisory services based on results of analysis of the Agency’s processes, 

procedures, governance, internal controls, financial reporting, and compliance with applicable 

laws, and regulations. 

 

The Internal Audit Department follows the guidance of the globally accepted International 

Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing (Standards) as documented in the 

International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF) and the Code of Ethics issued by the 

Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) (https://theiia.org).  This guidance is also documented in the 

Internal Audit Department Charter, and it is a requirement in the Internal Audit Department 

Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs), and all IEUA internal auditors are required to follow. 

 

The IA Department reports directly to the Board of Directors through the Audit Committee.  The 

Internal Audit Department has a dotted line reporting relationship to the General Manager (GM) 

and works in cooperation with the Leadership and Management teams to coordinate audit projects 

and resources.  As described in the Charter and according to the IIA Standards and best practices, 

Internal Audit is an independent function from Agency management, to provide objective analysis 

and recommendations, as a value-added service for the Board and Agency Management.  

Independence is essential to the effectiveness of internal auditing and is emphasized by the 

Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA).  The authority and responsibilities of the IA Department are 

specifically defined in the IA Department Charter approved each year by the Board of Directors. 

 

  

Purpose of the Internal Audit Department 

https://theiia.org/


 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Department  

Annual Audit Plan 

For Fiscal Year 2022/23 

Page 4 of 13 
 

 

 

 
 
Internal Audit Department Values 
The Internal Audit Department has adopted the following value statements that form the 
foundation for the Internal Audit Department: 
 
Independence 
As documented in the Charter, the Internal Audit Department is an independent function of the 
Agency for the purpose of providing independent, objective, unbiased reviews, and opinions.   
 
Integrity 
The Internal Audit Department staff are required to maintain the highest degree of integrity in 
handling information and conducting their audit work.   
 
Professionalism 
The IA Department will always perform its work with a high degree of professionalism and 
participate in continuing professional development to stay informed of new audit trends.  
 
Collaboration 
The IA Department will foster collaboration with all Agency personnel to promote teamwork 
within the various business units. 
 
 
  

Mission Statement 
The Internal Audit Department seeks to improve the operations of the Agency by providing 

unbiased and objective assessments to ensure Agency resources are efficiently and effectively 

managed in order to achieve Agency goals and objectives.  The Internal Audit Department 

will help the Agency achieve accountability and integrity, improve operations, and instill 

confidence among its employees and the citizens it serves by:  

 

• Promoting a sound control environment. 

• Providing independent, objective assurance, and consulting services. 

• Improving Agency risk management, control, and governance. 

• Promoting the Agency’s vision and mission with a high degree of professionalism. 



 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Department  

Annual Audit Plan 

For Fiscal Year 2022/23 

Page 5 of 13 
 

The Annual Audit Plan (Audit Plan) has been prepared in accordance with recommendations and 

best practices provided by the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA). The Audit Plan allows the 

Manager of Internal Audit to carry out the responsibilities of the IA Department by prioritizing 

projects and allocating necessary resources where audit efforts are deemed appropriate and 

necessary.  The Audit Plan is created to assist management and the Board in achieving organization 

goals and objectives.  

 

The Audit Plan is a flexible plan of internal audit activities and was developed using an appropriate 

risk-based methodology, including any risks or control concerns identified or communicated by 

Management, the Internal Audit Department, External Auditors, the Audit Committee’s 

Independent Advisor, the Audit Committee, or the Board.  Additionally, IA discussed with the 

Agency’s legal counsel information that came through the Agency’s anonymous hotline, Ethics-

Point, to determine if any of the reported items are under the responsibility and scope of IA’s 

activities or should be considered in planning audit projects. The overall objective of the Annual 

Audit Plan is to develop a plan consistent with the Agency’s goals and objectives, to address the 

highest risk areas within the Agency and to evaluate and contribute to the improvement of risk 

management, control, and governance processes, additionally the Audit Plan adds value by 

recommending opportunities for improvements to increase effectiveness and efficiency of 

operations. 

 

To provide practical guidance and an authoritative framework for the development of the Annual 

Audit Plan, the IA Department recognizes the following items:  Achieving one hundred percent 

audit coverage each year is not practical or achievable.  It should be noted that audit resources are 

limited; therefore, a system for prioritizing audits has been employed.  The Annual Audit Plan 

must be a flexible plan and should be amended periodically as deemed necessary to reprioritize 

areas that require attention.  In preparing the Annual Audit Plan, consideration is given to the work 

performed by other auditors, regulatory authorities, established rules, laws and ordinances, and the 

Agency’s system of controls.  Auditable areas are ranked by knowledge of known or perceived 

areas of risk and understanding of the systems of internal controls.  It should be noted that there 

are inherent risks, residual risks, and limitations with any methodology applied when prioritizing 

risks and ranking audit projects; risk factors exist with any system of controls.    

 

As stated in the Internal Audit Department Charter, the Manager of Internal Audit will set audit 

frequencies, select the subjects, and set objectives, determine the scope of work, and apply the 

techniques required to accomplish the audit objectives.  The Manager of Internal Audit has the 

authority to deviate from the approved annual Audit Plan, when necessary, and if warranted by 

unforeseen issues that require immediate attention.  The Manager of Internal Audit will use 

professional discretion and judgment in response to such unforeseen issues and resolve them 

according to the requirements of the Charter.  Significant changes to or deviations from the 

approved Annual Audit Plan shall be reported to the Audit Committee and to the Board at the next 

regularly scheduled Audit Committee meeting. 

Purpose of the Annual Audit Plan 



 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Department  

Annual Audit Plan 

For Fiscal Year 2022/23 

Page 6 of 13 
 

 

Both the IA Department Charter and the IIA's Code of Ethics have strict standards of ethical 

conduct for internal auditors. Internal auditors have a responsibility to maintain independence, 

ensure integrity, objectivity, confidentiality, and competency in work performed.   

 

 
In planning for the Internal Audit projects the following were also considered:  

 

• The Internal Audit Department Charter required responsibilities 

• The Audit Committee Charter required responsibilities 

• Communications with the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors 

• Communications with Leadership Team, management, and key Agency personnel 

• Communications with the External Financial Auditors 

• Communications with the Audit Committee Independent Advisor 

• Prior audit findings and recommendations 

• Assessed risks in business practices and operations 

• Agency’s goals and objectives, including activities, developments, and changes 

• Agency policies and procedures 

• Key areas that affect revenue and expenses 

• Identified opportunities to improve operations and add value  

• New audit requirements, audit trends and leading practices 

• IA Department resources 

 

For the Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Annual Audit Plan, the audits were selected based on all things 

considered as discussed above, the results of audits completed, risks identified, discussions with 

key individuals and auditor judgement.  Significant deviations and changes to the Audit Plan will 

be communicated to the Audit Committee through an Amended Audit Plan and progress 

information is provided through Quarterly Status Reports presented to the Audit Committee. 

 

  

Annual Audit Plan Methodology 



 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Department  

Annual Audit Plan 

For Fiscal Year 2022/23 

Page 7 of 13 
 

 

Fiscal Year 2022/23 Annual Audit Plan 

Accounts Payable – Operational and Internal Control Audit 

This is a large, comprehensive operational audit project that is being completed in various phases, 

evaluating different Procure to Pay (P2P) processes throughout the Agency with the goal of providing 

recommendations to improve the timeliness of vendor payments and efficiencies in the processes. To-

date, IA has completed four (4) P2P Audits and one (1) P2P audit in progress.  This operational audit 

evaluates various areas of the Accounts Payable activities, including:  
Compliance with Agency policies and department operating procedures 

Internal controls in place with regards to accounts payable activities   

Payments are issued timely and only for properly procured and approved expenditures  

Timeliness and accuracy of invoice receipt, approval, and payment processes 

Evaluate controls related to the Vendor Master List  

Evaluate implementation status of outstanding recommendations from prior audits 

Make recommendations for efficiencies in all respects of the procure to pay cycle 
 

Additional P2P evaluations planned/proposed:  
Completion of P2P – Materials & Supplies 

P2P – Laboratory Equipment and Services 

P2P – Pay Estimates 

P2P – Other Professional Services 

Information Systems Physical Inventory and Internal Controls Audit 

Evaluate compliance with policies and procedures, accountability, and inventory controls of equipment 

purchased, assigned, and stored, disposal processes and controls, financial transactions, and supporting 

documents of purchases to ensure compliance with all procurement policies. This project was planned in 

FY 2021/22; however, the P2P audits took greater priority and this project was deferred.  

Follow-up Reviews to evaluate the status of outstanding recommendations 

As required by the Charters and audit standards, IA will follow up on the status of outstanding 

recommendations to determine if corrective actions or alternate controls were implemented. As of June 

2022, 126 recommendations remain outstanding as follows:  
 

*28 relate to Procure to Pay audits; these are currently followed up and reported on quarterly basis 

*31 relate to the renegotiation of the Regional Contract,  

*20 relate to Agency policies updates, HR is working with a consultant to evaluate 

*10 related to audits completed in the previous 12 months and need additional time for implementation  

*37 recommendations are eligible for follow-up evaluation  

Internal Audit Department – Audit Software Tools  

IA is evaluating the use of, feasibility, tools, efficiencies and overall benefits and considerations of 

audit software tools to improve audit efficiencies, reports, audit techniques, and comply with audit 

workpaper retention and support requirements. 



 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Department  

Annual Audit Plan 

For Fiscal Year 2022/23 

Page 8 of 13 
 

 
❖ IA Department Quality Assurance and Improvement Program 

❖ Assist with the annual review of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) 

Review, the Single Audit, and complete the required filings to the regulatory agencies 

❖ Review and update the IA Department and the Committee Charters 

❖ Continue to assist with SAP internal control inquiries 

❖ Continue to participate on the Safety Committee  

❖ Continue to participate on the Technology/Cybersecurity Committee 

❖ Continue to participate on the Asset Management Steering Committee 

❖ Continue to participate on the Strike Team and the Strike Team PM meetings 

❖ Provide needed support related to audit topics, internal controls, Agency policies and 

procedures and compliance items as requested by Agency personnel 

❖ Further utilize capabilities of SAP to enhance IA functions 

❖ On-going required administrative reporting, such as budget, goals/objectives, staff 

appraisals, and other administrative items 

❖ Conduct special requests and/or unforeseen projects 

❖ Provide recommendations to strengthen/streamline policies and procedures  

❖ Update IA Annual Audit Plan and corresponding Risk Assessment 

❖ Continue to work with auditees to resolve outstanding recommendations 

❖ Assist with requests for internal controls questions, discussions, and evaluations 

❖ Continue to review, update, and document IA Policies and Procedures 

❖ Continuous Professional Development and education of all auditors 

❖ Plan, prepare, and coordinate Audit Committee Meetings 

❖ Utilize the IA site on AIM as an Agency-wide communication tool 

❖ Unannounced Petty Cash Audits 

❖ Provide "audit approach" presentations to requesting departments  

❖ Continue to actively participate in professional associations 

❖ Promote IA as an independent, objective, advisory Agency service 

On-Going Audit Projects  



 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Department  

Annual Audit Plan 

For Fiscal Year 2022/23 

Page 9 of 13 
 

The IA Charter requires follow-up action be taken to ensure that management has effectively 

implemented recommendations or alternate controls have been incorporated to mitigate the risks 

identified. Follow-up audit work includes detailed testing and verification by Internal Audit staff.  

Below is a table of the Outstanding Recommendations: 
 

Area Audited Report Issued Date 

No. of Recs. 

Remaining to be 

Verified by IA* 

Accounts Payable Follow-Up  

(Deferred Recommendations related to Agency Policies) 
August 29, 2013 2 

Follow-Up – IT Equipment Audit – ISS  February 29, 2016 2 

Follow-Up – IT Equipment Audit – FAD December 5, 2016 6 

2017 Petty Cash Audit & Follow-Up Review June 5, 2017 7 

Water Use Efficiency Programs Audit June 5, 2017 6 

Contracts and Procurement Follow-Up Audit August 30, 2017 1 

Payroll Operations Audit August 30, 2017 5  

Procurement Card Audit March 1, 2018 7 

Wire Transfers Audit March 1, 2018 4 

Inter-fund Transactions Audit August 30, 2018 1 

Accounts Payable Follow-Up Audit May 30, 2019 4 

Voyager Fuel Card Audit May 30, 2019 4 

Human Resources Audit: Hiring and Promotions Operations 

Review 
December 2, 2019 7 

Recycled Water Revenues Audit  May 28, 2020 3  

Human Resources: Workload Indicators Review May 29, 2020 2 

Human Resources Operational Audit: Administration of 

Employee Training and Development Programs 
August 31, 2020 5 

Agency Vehicle Operational Follow-up audit:  

Review of Vehicle Inventory Procedures 
May 27, 2021 1 

Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report 

Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Chemicals 
November 24, 2021 13 

Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit 

Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Professional Services – 
Engineering & Construction Management  

February 24, 2022 15 

Regional Contract Review – Final Audit Report (planned for full 

implementation with the renegotiation of the Regional Contract) 
December 16, 2015 31 

Total Outstanding Audit Recommendations 126 

*See the Report of Open Recommendations under separate cover. 

 

As of June 2022, 126 recommendations remain outstanding, only 37 of the 126 recommendations 

noted above are eligible for follow-up evaluation as described below: 

• 28 relate to the Procure to Pay Audits which are followed up on quarterly,  

• 31 relate to the renegotiation of the Regional Contract,  
• 20 relate to required updates to Agency policies, the Human Resources Department is 

working with a consultant to evaluate all Agency policies and changes are in progress, and 
• 47 recommendations are eligible for follow up evaluation.  

Outstanding Recommendations 



 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Department  

Annual Audit Plan 

For Fiscal Year 2022/23 

Page 10 of 13 
 

IA has identified additional audit areas.  This list has been compiled as a preliminary list of 

future and potential audit projects where audit resources and efforts can be focused. This is not a 

complete list.  If the risk/priority in any of the identified auditable areas increases, or a special 

request comes from the Audit Committee, IA would perform the required audit work.  
 

Accounts Payable Audit – Review of Agency Credit Cards  

Select a specific vendor or types of payments, for example travel credit cards, and gas credit 

cards to ensure that transactions do not bypass the required procurement processes.  

• Review financial transactions and supporting documentation  

• Evaluate internal controls related to accounts payable functions 

• Compliance with Agency policies and department procedures  
  

Electronic Payment Transactions and Disbursements Audit  

Select specific vendors or types of transactions where electronic payments were issued, and 

evaluate:  

Financial transactions have adequate supporting documentation for the disbursement 

Compliance with policies and procedures 

Payments are accurately entered in the accounting system and paid timely 

Internal controls for electronic disbursements made. 
 

Capital Projects  

The external financial auditors, have in the past, noted deficiencies with the process for closing 

completed capital projects.  Projects were left open long after the project had been completed, 

therefore, impacting the accounting value of capital assets. This audit would focus on evaluating 

when open capital projects have been completed and examining when the construction in 

progress balances are closed to capital assets.   

Various or Other Agreements  

Evaluate the variety of special and/or other types of agreements the Agency may have with other 

agencies or vendors that may or may not be formalized under an official Agency contract.  This 

audit would also evaluate whether the special agreements provide preferential treatment or 

significant discounts/credits when compared to similar agencies for similar services. 

Cybersecurity 

Cybersecurity risks are on the rise.  A review of this area would evaluate the current internal 

controls and control safeguards in place to protect the Agency and minimize/eliminate risks to 

Agency information, employee information, assets, and other vulnerabilities.   

Payroll Operations Audit 

Payroll Operations Audits were performed in 2010, 2012 and again in 2017.  This is a sensitive 

area that should be continuously monitored and evaluated.  This review would be a new audit 

focusing on any current changes in payroll requirements or Agency policy changes as well as 

test to ensure employee requested changes took effect.  This audit would also focus on any 

outstanding recommendations that resulted from prior audits.   

Long Range Audit Planning – Additional Audit Areas 



 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Department  

Annual Audit Plan 

For Fiscal Year 2022/23 

Page 11 of 13 
 

Large/Heavy Equipment Inventory and Accountability 

The Agency has approximately $3 million in heavy-duty equipment which includes large 

operations/maintenance vehicles (machinery/equipment).  An inventory and accountability 

audit has not been performed of these assets. The audit will review documentation, accounting 

records and physically verify assets.  

Asset Management  

An audit of this area would evaluate the accountability, controls and policies in place to ensure 

assets are properly recorded in the Agency’s financial records. Additionally, to determine if 

periodic inventories or other valuation processes are performed to validate the amount of assets 

reported in accounting records.  

Operations Operational Evaluations 

Facility Operations, Groundwater Recharge and Organics Management are programs under 

Operations Administration.  The audit scope of any of these areas would focus on permit 

compliance requirements, preventive maintenance of plants, staff training and staff 

certifications to operate plants/facilities, chemical and equipment use, and customer service to 

the service area, where applicable.  

Data Analytics 

Fully utilize existing technology to gather additional data and analytical information to assist 

auditing.  Explore and expand utilizing new technology and tools to build and customize 

dashboards, reports, and other analytics tools to assist with audit reviews and monitoring of 

transactions in various areas, such as payments, payroll, contract payments, etc.  

Fleetistic Use, Vehicle Maintenance and Maintenance Vendors Controls 

Evaluate the use of Fleetistic to evaluate that Fleetistic is used as intended and the goals for the 

program are achieved.  To evaluate how fleet vehicle maintenance is detected by Fleetistic or 

other method, how maintenance is planned, scheduled, approved, and completed timely or as 

needed.  Lastly, to evaluate the maintenance vendors utilized to ensure that work is issued 

according to the contract and/or follow Agency approved procurement policies and all internal 

controls are in place.   

Personal Computer Loan Program and Policy Compliance 

Review Agency policies and internal controls as they relate to the employee personal computer 

loan program and reimbursements to ensure adequate controls and that policy requirements are 

followed.   

Other Additional Audit Areas 

Additional audit areas are considered and included, when warranted and/or requested and the 

risk assessed warrants an audit evaluation and are planned and scheduled through the Board-

approved Annual Audit Plan. 

  



 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Department  

Annual Audit Plan 

For Fiscal Year 2022/23 

Page 12 of 13 
 

The IIA IPPF standard 2120 states that Internal Audit must evaluate the effectiveness and 

contribute to the improvement of risk management processes. 

 

The IIA IPPF defines Risk as follows: 

 

• Risk – The possibility of an event occurring that will have an impact on the achievement of 

objectives.  Risk is measured in terms of impact and likelihood and. 

 

• Residual Risks – As the risk remaining after management acts to reduce the impact and 

likelihood of an adverse event, including control activities in response to a risk. 

 

The risk assessment is a general assessment performed using best practice guidance, professional 

judgment, and consideration for the impact on the Agency’s operations if the targeted units fail to 

function in the most effective and efficient manner or neglect to comply with required policies.  In 

performing the Risk Assessment for this FY 2022/23 Annual Audit Plan, the following were 

considered: 

 

• Agency Policies and Procedures 

• Communication with the External Auditors  

• Communication with the Audit Committee and Board 

• Communications with key Agency personnel 

• Assessing risks and exposures that may affect the organization 

• New Agency activities, developments, and major changes 

• Key areas that affect revenue and expenses 

• Observations resulting from previous audits and reviews 

• New audit requirements and trends 

• Opportunities to improve operations  

  

Audit Planning Strategy 



 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Department  

Annual Audit Plan 

For Fiscal Year 2022/23 

Page 13 of 13 
 

The IIA PPF defines “Audit Universe” as all possible auditable areas.  For the purposes of this 

Annual Audit Plan, the universe includes all Agency Departments, operations, contracts, 

transactions, policies, processes, and activities.  Audit risk is evaluated in any of these areas and 

audits are selected based on assessed risk and level of priority keeping the achievement of Agency 

goals and objectives as the key consideration. 

 

The Institute of Internal Auditing (IIA), International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF) 

defines a Quality Assurance and Improvement Program: “A quality assurance and improvement 

Program is designed to enable an evaluation of internal audit activity’s conformance with the 

Definition of Internal Auditing and the Standards and an evaluation of whether internal auditors 

apply the Code of Ethics.  The program also assesses the efficiency and effectiveness of the internal 

audit activity and identifies opportunities for improvement.”  

 

Standard 1311 of the IPPF requires that internal assessments include ongoing monitoring of the 

performance of internal audit activity; and periodic reviews performed through self-assessments. 

 

Standard 1312 of the IPPF requires that external assessments be conducted at least once every five 

years by a qualified, independent reviewer or review team from outside the organization.    

 

As part of IA’s commitment for continued quality audit services, beginning FY 2022/23, IAD will 

perform internal assessments of the IAD.  An external assessment by an independent reviewer is 

planned for FY 2023/24. Results will be presented and discussed at the regularly scheduled Audit 

Committee meetings.  

  

 

 

The Annual Audit Plan is consistent with the Agency’s Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility, 

Workplace Environment, and Business Practices by proposing for completion audits that 

evaluate and promote a strong internal control and ethical environment, evaluate efficiencies 

and effectiveness of processes and operations, and make recommendations to assist 

management in achieving compliance with required policies to achieve organizational goals and 

objectives. 

Audit Universe 

Quality Assurance and Improvement Program 



Internal Audit Department 
Annual Audit Plan

Teresa Velarde 

Manager of Internal Audit 

June 2022



Fiscal Year 2022/23 Annual Audit Plan
Planning Considerations

2

• The Internal Audit Department Charter required responsibilities

• The Audit Committee Charter required responsibilities

• Communications with the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors

• Communications with Leadership Team, management, and key Agency personnel

• Communications with the External Financial Auditors

• Communications with the Audit Committee Independent Advisor

• Prior audit findings and recommendations

• Assessed risks in business practices and operations

• Agency’s goals and objectives, including activities, developments, and changes

• Agency policies and procedures

• Key areas that affect revenue and expenses

• Identified opportunities to improve operations and add value

• New audit requirements, audit trends and leading practices

• IA Department resources



3

Fiscal Year 2022/23 Annual Audit Plan
Proposed Projects

Accounts Payable – Operational and Internal Control Audit

Additional P2P evaluations planned/proposed: 

• Completion of P2P – Materials & Supplies

• P2P – Laboratory Equipment and Services

• P2P – Pay Estimates

• P2P – Other Professional Services

Information Systems Physical Inventory and Internal Controls Audit

Internal Audit Department –Audit Software Tools 

Follow-up Reviews to evaluate the status of outstanding recommendations



4

Fiscal Year 2022/23 Annual Audit Plan
Outstanding Audit Recommendations

• 28 relate to the P2P Audits

• 31 relate to the renegotiation of 

the Regional Contract

• 20 relate to required updates to 

Agency policies

• 47 are eligible for follow up 

review (5 are ready to be closed)



5

Fiscal Year 2022/23 Annual Audit Plan
On-Going Audit Projects

❖ IA Department Quality Assurance and Improvement Program

❖ Assist with the annual review of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

(ACFR) Review, the Single Audit, and complete the required filings to the

regulatory agencies

❖ Review and update the IA Department and the Committee Charters

❖ Continue to assist with SAP internal control inquiries

❖ Continue to participate on the Safety Committee

❖ Continue to participate on the Technology/Cybersecurity Committee

❖ Continue to participate on the Asset Management Steering Committee

❖ Continue to participate on the Strike Team and the Strike Team PM meetings

❖ Provide needed support related to audit topics, internal controls, Agency policies 

and procedures and compliance items as requested by Agency personnel

❖ Further utilize capabilities of SAP to enhance IA functions



6

Fiscal Year 2022/23 Annual Audit Plan
On-Going Audit Projects

❖ On-going required administrative reporting, such as budget, goals/objectives,

staff appraisals, and other administrative items

❖ Conduct special requests and/or unforeseen projects

❖ Provide recommendations to strengthen/streamline policies and procedures 

❖ Update IA Annual Audit Plan and corresponding Risk Assessment

❖ Continue to work with auditees to resolve outstanding recommendations

❖ Assist with requests for internal controls questions, discussions, and evaluations

❖ Continue to review, update, and document IA Policies and Procedures

❖ Continuous Professional Development and education of all auditors

❖ Plan, prepare, and coordinate Audit Committee Meetings

❖ Utilize the IA site on AIM as an Agency-wide communication tool

❖ Unannounced Petty Cash Audits

❖ Provide "audit approach" presentations to requesting departments

❖ Continue to actively participate in professional associations

❖ Promote IA as an independent, objective, advisory Agency service



Fiscal Year 2022/23 Annual Audit Plan - Additional Audit Areas

7



8

Fiscal Year 2022/23 Annual Audit Plan - Additional Audit Areas



9

Fiscal Year 2022/23 Annual Audit Plan

Staff recommends the Board: 

1. Approve the FY 2022/23 Annual Audit Plan; and 

2. Direct the Manager of Internal Audit to implement the FY 2022/23 Annual Audit Plan. 

Mission Statement

The Internal Audit Department seeks to improve the operations of the Agency by providing

unbiased and objective assessments to ensure Agency resources are efficiently and effectively

managed in order to achieve Agency goals and objectives. The Internal Audit Department

will help the Agency achieve accountability and integrity, improve operations and instill

confidence among its employees and the citizens it serves by:

• Promoting a sound control environment.

• Providing independent, objective assurance and consulting services.

• Improving Agency risk management, control and governance.

• Promoting the Agency’s vision and mission with a high degree of professionalism.



The Annual Audit Plan is consistent with the Agency’s Business Goals of Fiscal 
Responsibility, Workplace Environment, and Business Practices by proposing for 
completion audits that evaluate and promote a strong internal control and ethical 

environment, evaluate efficiencies and effectiveness of processes and operations, and 
make recommendations to assist management in achieving compliance with required 

policies to achieve organizational goals and objectives.



   CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

1E 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

June 15, 2022

Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-6-9, Establishing Plan Check and Inspection Fees

Staff currently receives plans for proposed developments that will connect to Inland Empire 
Utilities Agency (IEUA) facilities. The plans are reviewed for conformance to IEUA standards. 
After final acceptance of the plans, an IEUA inspection is provided during the connection to 
IEUA facilities. 

In August 2018, the Board implemented a plan check and inspection fee of $2,214 to recover 
the costs for staff to perform plan reviews and inspections. The current fee amount was 
established based on the average number of hours spent on previous development projects from 
2013 to 2018.  Based on the current rates, staff recommends the fee be increased to an estimated 
value of $3,715 per connection and per location. The estimate considered the average number of 
hours spent by the office engineer to review up to five sheets, the average hours needed by the 
construction inspector to oversee the connection in the field, and the administrative costs based 
on the FY 2022/23 staff burden rates. 

The resolution will also establish prorating plan checks above five sheets and require an 
additional $2,500 for plan checks that require more than three reviews.

Adopt Resolution No. 2022-6-9, Establishing the fee for IEUA's services for review 
of applications, plans, and inspections of construction for development connections.

None.

The fees collected will reimburse the staff time charged to various funds.

06/08/22
06/08/22

Engineering, Operations & Water Resources
Finance & Administration

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

Y N

Executive Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

Resolution No. 2022-6-9 is consistent with the IEUA's Business Goals of Business Practices and
Fiscal Responsibility where IEUA will be ethical, cost-effective, and apply environmentally
sustainable regional planning principles in all aspects of business and public service, and will
fund operations and capital investments by maintaining reasonable service rates and fees that
fully support the costs of service.

On August 15, 2018, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 2018-8-1, establishing a fee 
covering IEUA's services for review of applications, plans, and inspections of construction for 
development.

Attachment 1 - Comparable Fees Calculations
Attachment 2 - PowerPoint
Attachment 3 - Resolution No. 2022-6-9

Not Applicable

22129



Attachment 1 



Page 1 of 1 

Background 

Subject:  Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-6-9, Establishing Plan Check and Inspection Fees 

Below is the comparison of the plan check and inspection fees for Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) 
and member agencies. 

# Agency/City Inspection Plan Check Total Notes 

1 City of Rancho 
Cucamonga 

$1,852  $3,159  $5,011  Inspection: Hourly inspection need at the rate of 
$110.23 per hour + 7% Technology Fee.  On Avg our 
Inspector does 15.70 hours per inspection 
($110.23*15.70)7% Tech Fee =$1,851.75 

Plan Check: Flat Fee $3,159 

2 City of Chino $1,799  $3,146  $4,945  Inspection:  Minimum Fee $599, + 4.8% of the 
Estimated Value of Construction. (IEUA average 
construction cost is $25k *4.8% = $1,200) 

Plan Check: Minimum Fee of $1,991, Plus 7.7% of the 
Amount Greater than $10,000; used $15k IEUA average 
construction costs is $25k *7.7% = $1,155) 

3 City of Ontario $1,657  $2,871  $4,528  Inspection: Base fee $164 + 5.97% for construction cost 
between $1-$50k (IEUA average construction costs is 
$25k*5.97 = $1,492.50) 

Plan Check: Base fee $1,371 + 6% for construction 
costs between $1-$50k (IEUA average construction cost 
is $25k *6% = $1,500) 

4 IEUA $1,917  $1,795  $3,715  Inspection: See slide 3 for breakdown of costs Includes 
administrative fee. 

Plan Check: See slide 3 for breakdown of costs Includes 
administrative fee. Includes Plan Check and Inspection 
up to 5 sheets;  

5 CVWD $500  $690  $1,190  Inspection: $500 or 2% of improvement cost*; IEUA 
avg improvement costs $25k 

Plan Check: $240 for title sheet and first plan sheet, 
$150 for each additional sheet 



Attachment 2 



Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-6-9, 
Establishing Plan Check and Inspection 

Fees

Adham Almasri, P.E., PMP

Principal Engineer, Engineering & CM

June 2022



2

Plan Check/Inspection Cost Trend

.

$3,359
$3,046

$3,586

$0

$1,000

$2,000

$3,000

$4,000

$5,000

$6,000

FY18/19 FY19/20 FY20/21

Plan Check/Inspection Cost Trend Avg Yearly Rate

$2,214

$3,715

Current Fee

Proposed Fee



3

Proposed Fee Breakdown for Five Sheets

FY22/23  Plan Check and Inspection Costs

# of projects Hours
Avg Hours 
Per Project

Fully Burdened 
Rate

(FY22/23)

Avg $ per 
project

Inspector 10 157 15.70 $111 $1,743
Senior Engineer 19 200 10.53 $155 $1,632

Plan Check and Inspection Costs $3,375
Administrative and Accounting Staff Costs @ 10% $340

Total Costs $3,715

- For plan checks above 5 sheets, prorate the costs accordingly.

- If the Plan Check requires more than 3 reviews, the plan check will require additional fees
of $2,500.



4

Comparison of Fees

# Agency/City Inspection Plan Check Total 
1 City of Rancho Cucamonga $1,852 $3,159 $5,011 

2 City of Chino $1,799 $3,146 $4,945 

3 City of Ontario $1,657 $2,871 $4,528 

4 IEUA $1,917 $1,795 $3,715 

5 CVWD $500 $690 $1,190 



5

Recommendation

• Adopt Resolution No. 2022-6-9, establishing the fee for IEUA's services for
review of applications, plans, and inspections of construction for development
connections.

Adopting Resolution No. 2022-6-9 is consistent with IEUA’s Business Goal of Business Practices and Fiscal 
Responsibility where IEUA will fund operations and capital investments by maintaining reasonable service rates and fees 

that fully support the costs of service. 



Attachment 3 



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-6-9 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY, A MUNICIPAL 

WATER DISTRICT, IN SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY, 

CALIFORNIA, ESTABLISHING THE FEE COVERING 

IEUA'S SERVICES FOR REVIEW OF APPLICATIONS, 

PLANS, AND INSPECTIONS OF CONSTRUCTION FOR 

DEVELOPMENT 

WHEREAS, Inland Empire Utilities Agency, a Municipal Water District ("Agency ") is a municipal 

water district established pursuant to Section 71000 et seq. of the California Water Code; and 

WHEREAS, the Inland Empire Utilities Agency Board of Directors ("Board of Directors") has 

determined that it is necessary to establish a fee covering staff costs for processing applications, reviewing 

plans, and conducting inspections of development projects brought before the Agency; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors may impose these fees and charges as they are exempt from the 

voter approval requirements of articles XIII C and XIII D of the California Constitution; and 

WHEREAS, staff has evaluated and researched the costs to the Agency associated with providing these 

services to potential development. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors hereby resolves that: 

SECTION  1. ADOPTION OF FEE SCHEDULE 

The fees, charges and requirements set forth in the Inland Empire Utilities Agency fee schedule attached 

hereto as Exhibit A, and incorporated herein by reference, are hereby approved and adopted as the 

Agency 's fee schedule to be imposed as set forth therein.  

SECTION 2. AUTHORIZATION 

The Board of Directors hereby finds and determines that the existing, new, or increased fees in this 

Resolution are in an amount reasonably necessary to recover the costs of providing the service, review, 

document, facility, or commodity for which such fee is levied or authorized to be levied.  

SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE. 

The fees set forth in this Resolution shall become effective on July 1, 2022. 

SECTION 4. REFUNDS 

No refunds will be issued for fees paid to the Agency in accordance with this Resolution. 



Resolution No. 2022-6-9 

Page 2 of 4 

SECTION 5. 

That upon the effective date of this Resolution, Resolution No. 2018-8-1 is hereby rescinded in its entirety. 

ADOPTED this 15th day of June 2022 

Steven J. Elie 

President of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency* and of the Board 

of Directors thereof 

ATTEST: 

Marco Tule 

Secretary/ Treasurer of the Inland Empire 

Utilities Agency* and of the Board of  

Directors thereof 

(SEAL) 

*A Municipal Water District



Resolution No. 2022-6-9 

Page 3 of 4 

STATE OF CALIFORN IA      ) 

COUNTY OF ) SS 

SAN BERNARDINO ) 

I, Marco Tule, Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, DO 

HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution being No. 2022-6-9, was adopted at a regular 

Board Meeting on June 15, 2022, of said Agency by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

_______________________________ 

Marco Tule 

Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire 

Utilities Agency* and of the Board of  

Directors thereof 



Resolution No. 2022-6-9 

Page 4 of 4 

EXHIBIT A 

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY FEE SCHEDULE 

Engineering Department 

Application Processing, Plan Check, Inspection of Construction - 

Up to Five Plan Sheets 

$3,715* 

Application Processing, Plan Check, Inspection of Construction - 

Greater than Five Plan Sheets 

Prorated 

*This is a one-time fee for services to review a development project with a single

connection to a single IEUA facility. An additional fee of $2,500 will be assessed

for plan checks that require more than three (3) reviews.



   CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

1F 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

June 15, 2022

CCWRF 12kV Backup Generator Control Circuit Improvements Construction Contract
Award

The project was developed in response to a critical concern from Inland Empire Utilities Agency
(IEUA's) Operations & Maintenance (O&M) staff about the electrical reliability at the Carbon
Canyon Water Recycling Facility (CCWRF). In November 2020, the testing of the facility's
automatic transfer from the Southern California Edison (SCE) power to the backup generators
failed. While repairs were implemented to correct the failure, assessment revealed that the
reliability of the transfer system is very poor due to obsolescence. Being roughly thirty years
old, the system has no available service support or access to critical replacement parts. This
project will replace the old relay control logic to ensure the plant's critical treatment process is
not interrupted during a power loss from SCE. On April 26, 2021, Stantec was hired to design a
modern programmable logic controller (PLC)-based system.
On March 2, 2022, IEUA issued an invitation for bids to the under $2,000,000 prequalified
contractors. On April 19, 2022, IEUA received one construction bid from Southern Contracting
Co. in the amount of $1,027,480. The engineer's estimate is $513,000. The higher bid price was
found to be reasonable because it accounted for more recent price increases in labor, material,
supplies, and fuel; and the bidder's extended equipment rentals to complete the project as
specified.

1. Award a construction contract for the CCWRF 12kV Backup Generator Control Circuit
Improvements, Project No. EN17006.01, to Southern Contracting Co. for the amount of
$1,027,480; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract, subject to non-substantive changes.

EN17006/CCWRF 12kV Backup Generator Control Circuit Improvement

None.

1000 10900 595000 127156 EN17006

06/08/22Engineering, Operations & Water Resources

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

Y N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The CCWRF Asset Management and Improvement Project is consistent with the Agency's 
Business Goal of Wastewater Management, specifically the Water Quality objective that IEUA 
will ensure that Agency systems' are planned, constructed, and managed to protect public health, 
the environment, and meet anticipated regulatory requirements.

None.

The Facilities Master Plan Program Environmental Impact Report (SCH No. 2016061064) as
the appropriate CEQA environmental determination for the project improvements under the
CCWRF Facility Asset Management and Improvement Projects, EN17006 and EN17006.01.

Attachment 1 - PowerPoint Presentation
Attachment 2 - Construction Contract

Addendum to

22133



 

 

Attachment 1 



Carbon Canyon Water Recycling Facility (CCWRF)
12kV Backup Generator Control Circuit Improvements

Construction Contract Award

Ryan Ward, EIT
Associate Engineer

June 2022



Project Location

Carbon Canyon Water Recycling Facility 
Electrical Room

2



Project Scope

• 30-year-old power distribution system past useful life
• Replace controller and upgrade control logic

3



Contractor Selection

Only one bid was received on April 19, 2022, from a pre-qualified contractor:

Bidder’s Name Final Bid Amount
Southern Contracting Co. $1,027,480

Engineer’s Estimate $513,000

4



Description Estimated Cost

Design Services $150,860
Design Contract (actuals) $115,860
IEUA Design Services (actuals) $35,000

Construction Services $175,526
Engineering Services During Construction $125,526
IEUA Construction Management/Inspection $50,000

Construction $1,130,228
Construction Contract (this action) $1,027,480
Contingency (10%) $102,748

Total Project Cost (this Project): $1,456,614
Total Projected Cost (Parent Project): $29,138,520
Total Projected Cost (All): $30,595,134
Total Project Budget $26,803,299

Project Budget and Schedule

Contract Milestone Date

Construction Award June 2022
Construction Completion February 2023

5



Recommendation

• Award a construction contract for the Carbon Canyon Water Recycling
Facility (CCWRF) 12kV Backup Generator Control Circuit Improvements
project, to Southern Contracting Co. in the amount of $1,027,480; and

• Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract, subject to non-
substantive changes.

The Carbon Canyon Water Recycling Facility (CCWRF) 12kV Backup Generator Control Circuit Improvements Project is 
consistent with IEUA’s Business Goal of Wastewater Management, specifically the Asset Management objective that IEUA 

will ensure the Wastewater treatment plants are well maintained, upgraded to meet evolving requirements, sustainably 
managed, and can accommodate changes in regional water use to protect public health, the environment, and meet 

anticipated regulatory requirements.

6



Attachment 2 



CONTRACT 
CCWRF 12KV BACKUP GENERATOR CONTROL CIRCUIT 

IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT, EN17006.01 

Page 1 of 4 

4600003147 

Carbon Canyon Water Recycling Facility (CCWRF) 12kV Backup Generator Control Circuit 

Improvements Project, EN17006.01 

CONTRACT 

THIS CONTRACT, made and entered into this _15th _day of June , 2022, by and between 

 Southern Contracting Company, Inc.   ,  hereinafter      referred      to    as 

"Contractor," and The Inland Empire Utilities Agency, a Municipal Water District, located in San 

Bernardino County, California, hereinafter referred to as "Agency". 

WITNESSETH: 

That for and in consideration of the promises and agreements hereinafter made and exchanged, the 

Agency and the Contractor agree as follows: 

1. Contractor agrees to perform and complete in a workmanlike manner, all work required under

the bidding schedule of said Agency's specifications entitled CARBON CANYON WATER

RECYCLING FACILITY (CCWRF) 12KV BACKUP GENERATOR CONTROL CIRCUIT

IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT, EN17006.01, in accordance with the specifications and

drawings, and to furnish at their own expense, all labor, materials, equipment, tools, and

services necessary, except such materials, equipment, and services as may be stipulated in

said specifications to be furnished by said Agency, and to do everything required by this

Contract and the said specifications and drawings.

2. For furnishing all said labor, materials, equipment, tools, and services, furnishing and

removing all plant, temporary structures, tools and equipment, and doing everything required

by this Contract and said specifications and drawings; also for all loss and damage arising out

of the nature of the work aforesaid, or from the action of the elements, or from any unforeseen

difficulties which may arise during the prosecution of the work until its acceptance by said

Agency, and for all risks of every description connected with the work; also for all expenses

resulting from the suspension or discontinuance of work, except as in the said specifications

are expressly stipulated to be borne by said Agency; and for completing the work in

accordance with the requirements of said specifications and drawings, said Agency will pay

and said Contractor shall receive, in full compensation therefore, the price(s) set forth in this

Contract.

3. That the Agency will pay the Contractor progress payments and the final payment, in

accordance with the provisions of the contract documents, with warrants drawn on the

appropriate fund or funds as required, at the prices bid in the Bidding and Contract

Requirements, Section C - Bid Forms and accepted by the Agency and set forth in this below.

Total Bid Price 

$1,027,480.00 dollars (One Million Twenty-Seven Thousand Four Hundred Eighty Dollars 

and Zero Cents) 



CONTRACT 
CCWRF 12KV BACKUP GENERATOR CONTROL CIRCUIT 

IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT, EN17006.01 

Page 2 of 4 

If this is not a lump sum bid and the contract price is dependent upon the quantities 

constructed, the Agency will pay and said Contractor shall receive, in full compensation for 

the work the prices named in the Bidding and Contract Requirements, Section C - Bid Forms. 

4. The Agency hereby employs the Contractor to perform the work according to the terms of

this Contract for the above-mentioned price(s), and agrees to pay the same at the time, in the

manner, and upon the conditions stipulated in the said specifications; and the said parties for

themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns, do hereby agree to

the full performance of the covenants herein contained.

5. The Notice Inviting Bids, Instructions to Bidders, Bid Forms, Information Required of Bidder,

Performance Bond, Payment Bond, Contractors License Declaration, Specifications,

Drawings, all General Conditions and all Special Conditions, and all addenda issued by the

Agency with respect to the foregoing prior to the opening of bids, are hereby incorporated in

and made part of this Contract, as if fully set forth.

6. The Contractor agrees to commence work under this Contract on or before the date to be

specified in a written "Notice To Proceed" and to complete said work to the satisfaction of

the Agency two hundred forty (240) calendar days after award of the Contract. All work

shall be completed before final payment is made.

7. Time is of the essence on this Contract.

8. Contractor agrees that in case the work is not completed before or upon the expiration of the

contract time, damage will be sustained by the Agency, and that it is and will be impracticable

to determine the actual damage which the Agency will sustain in the event and by reason of

such delay, and it is therefore agreed that the Contractor shall pay to the Agency the amount

of five hundred ($500) dollars for each day of delay, which shall be the period between the

expiration of the contract time and the date of final acceptance by the Agency, as liquidated

damages and not as a penalty. It is further agreed that the amount stipulated for liquidated

damages per day of delay is a reasonable estimate of the damages that would be sustained by

the Agency, and the Contractor agrees to pay such liquidated damages as herein provided. In

case the liquidated damages are not paid, the Contractor agrees that the Agency may deduct

the amount thereof from any money due or that may become due to the Contractor by progress

payments or otherwise under the Contract, or if said amount is not sufficient, recover the total

amount.

In addition to the liquidated damages, which may be imposed if the Contractor fails to

complete the work within the time agreed upon, the Agency may also deduct from any sums

due or to become due the Contractor, liquidated damages in accordance with the Bidding and

Contract Requirements, Section B - Instruction to Bidders, Part 5.0 “Liquidated Damages",

for any violation of the General Conditions, Section D - Contractor’s Responsibilities, Part 8,

"Law and Regulations"; Bidding and Contract Requirements Contract Section D –Contract

and Relevant Documents, Part 1.0, Paragraphs 9 through 11; General Conditions , Section D



CONTRACT 
CCWRF 12KV BACKUP GENERATOR CONTROL CIRCUIT 

IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT, EN17006.01 

Page 3 of 4  

– Contractor’s Responsibilities, Part 4.0, "Labor, Materials and Equipment"; General 

Conditions Section D – Contractor’s Responsibilities, Part 12.0, "Safety and Protection" or 

General Conditions Section H – Legal Responsibilities, Part 8.0, "Disturbance of the Peace". 
 

9. That the Contractor will pay, and will require subcontractors to pay, employees on the work 

a salary or wage at least equal to the prevailing salary or wage established for such work as 

set forth in the wage determinations and wage standards applicable to this work, contained in 

or referenced in the contract documents. 
 

10. That, in accordance with Section 1775 of the California Labor Code, Contractor shall forfeit 

to the Agency, as a penalty, not more than Fifty ($50.00) Dollars for each day, or portion 

thereof, for each worker paid, either by the Contractor or any subcontractor, less than the 

prevailing rates as determined by the Director of the California Department of Industrial 

Relations for the work. 
 

11. That, except as provided in Section 1815 of the California Labor Code, in the performance of 

the work not more than eight (8) hours shall constitute a day's work, and not more than 

forty (40) hours shall constitute a week's work; that the Contractor shall not require more than 

eight (8) hours of labor in a day nor more than forty hours of labor in a week from any person 

employed by the Contractor or any subcontractor; that the Contractor shall conform to 

Division 2, Part 7, Chapter 1, Article 3 (Section 1810, et seq.) of the California Labor Code; 

and that the Contractor shall forfeit to the Agency, as a penalty, the sum of Twenty-Five 

($25.00) Dollars for each worker employed in the execution of the work by Contractor or any 

subcontractor for each day during which any worker is required or permitted to labor more 

than eight (8) hours in violation of said Article 3. 
 

12. That the Contractor shall carry Workers' Compensation Insurance and require all 

subcontractors to carry Workers' Compensation Insurance as required by the California Labor 

Code. 
 

13. That the Contractor shall have furnished, prior to execution of the Contract, two bonds 

approved by the Agency, one in the amount of one hundred (100) percent of the contract price, 

to guarantee the faithful performance of the work, and one in the amount of one hundred (100) 

percent of the contract price to guarantee payment of all claims for labor and materials 

furnished. 
 

14. The Contractor hereby agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and hold the Agency and its 

employees, agents, officers, directors, servants and volunteers free and harmless from any and 

all liability, claims, judgments, costs and demands, including demands arising from injuries 

or death of persons (including employees of the Agency and the Contractor) and damage to 

property, arising directly or indirectly out of the obligation herein undertaken or out of the 

operations conducted by the Contractor, its employees agents, representatives or 

subcontractors under or in connection with this Contract. 

The Contractor further agrees to investigate, handle, respond to, provide defense for and defend 

any such claims, demands or suit at the sole expense of the Contractor. 



CONTRACT 
CCWRF 12KV BACKUP GENERATOR CONTROL CIRCUIT 

IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT, EN17006.01 

Page 4 of 4 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The Contractor and the General Manager of Inland Empire Utilities 

Agency*, thereunto duly authorized, have caused the names of said parties to be affixed hereto, 

each in duplicate, the day and year first above written. 

 

 
 

 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency* Contractor 

San Bernardino County, California. 

 

 

By___________________________  By___________________________ 

 

 Shivaji Deshmukh, P.E.    Philip E. Waterman 

 General Manager     President 

 

 

*A Municipal Water District 

 



CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

1G 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

June 15, 2022

RP-1 Solids Thickening Project Skid-Mounted Rotary Drum Thickener Procurement

The Regional Water Recycling Plant No.1 (RP-1) Solids Thickening Project will improve the
processes upstream of the digesters and construct additional capacity to permit future
improvements that would increase the overall treatment capacity. The construction activities will
require existing facilities to be demolished or renovated, reducing the ability to thicken the
sludge prior to digestion. Additionally, some of the current facilities (gravity thickeners) are
undersized and under performing. The purpose of this procurement is to provide supplemental
solids thickening capacity during the planned construction to improve operational and
maintenance consistency, reliability, and flexibility.
Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA), through its design consultant, negotiated the purchase
of a portable, skid-mounted Rotary Drum Thickener (RDT) system to augment the thickening
process at RP-1 during construction. This unit is modular, portable, and will be utilized at other
facilities after construction. On May 6, 2022, IEUA received the final proposal for $765,952
(incl. sales tax to be paid directly to the State of California). Staff is recommending the
single-source purchase of the equipment from FKC Co., LLC based on Public Contract Code
§3400(c)(2), which allows for the single source purchase based on a prior competitive selection,
consistency with RP-5, and benefits to operations and maintenance activities.

1. Authorize the procurement of a skid-mounted rotary drum thickener system as a single source
according to the proposal dated May 6, 2022, in the amount of $712,932; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract, subject to non-substantive changes.

EN22044/RP-1 Solids Thickening Project

None.

1000 10900 595000 127151 EN22044

06/08/22Engineering, Operations & Water Resources

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

Y N

Executive Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The RP-1 Solids Thickening Project is consistent with IEUA’s Business Goal of Wastewater
Management, specifically the Asset Management objective that IEUA will ensure the treatment
facilities are well maintained, upgraded to meet evolving requirements, sustainability managed,
and can accommodate changes in regional water use.

None.

The project being approved falls within the scope of the previously approved Facilities Master
Plans Program EIR in accordance with the requirements of Section 15168 of the State CEQA
Guidelines.

Attachment 1 - PowerPoint Presentation
Attachment 2 - Single-Source Purchase Justification Memorandum and FKC proposal (Click to
Download)

Program Environmental Impact Report (Finding of Consistency)

22135

https://www.dropbox.com/s/wsu79mythz7kf23/22135%20RP-1%20Solids%
20Thickening%20Project%20Single%20Source%20Memorandum%
20Attachment%202%20FINAL.pdf?dl=0

https://www.dropbox.com/s/wsu79mythz7kf23/22135%20RP-1%20Solids%20Thickening%20Project%20Single%20Source%20Memorandum%20Attachment%202%20FINAL.pdf?dl=0


 

 

Attachment 1 



RP-1 Solids Thickening Project
Skid-Mounted Rotary Drum Thickener

Single Source Procurement
Project No. EN22044

Travis Sprague, P.E.
Principal Engineer

June 15, 2022



2

Project Location (City of Ontario)

CA State Route 60

E. Walnut St.

Skid-Mounted 
RDT Location

IEUA RP-1

Solids Thickening 
Project Footprint



• Thickens sludge  from < 2% to approximately 6%
• Reduces heat and energy requirements to treat
• Reduces required digester volume to achieve

desired treatment
• Augment existing processes during RP-1

construction
• Available for other facilities following construction

3

Purpose / Product



• FKC Rotary Drum Thickeners (RDTs) 
were selected for use at RP-5

• The same RDT systems are proposed 
for use at RP-1 

• Existing thickening facilities out of 
service during construction

• Existing gravity thickeners are near the 
end of their useful life

4

Background



5

Project Budget

Description Estimated Cost

Design Services $9,262,556
Design + Review Services $7,846,604
IEUA Design Support Services $650,000
Skid-Mounted RDT Trailer $765,952
Construction Services $10,000,000
Engineering Services During Construction (5%) $5,000,000
IEUA Construction Support Services (5%) $5,000,000
Construction $110,000,000
Construction Contract Estimate $100,000,000
Contingency, 10% $10,000,000
Total Project Cost: $129,262,556

Total Project Budget*: $133,080,000

Project Milestone Date

Design Contract
Procure Skid-Mounted RDT Feb. 2023
Final Design Mar. 2023
Bid + Award Jul. 2023

Construction Contract
Notice to Proceed Oct. 2023
Close-out Aug. 2026

*Total project budget in proposed TYCIP beginning FY22/23



6

Recommendation

• Authorize the procurement of a skid-mounted rotary drum 
thickener system manufactured by FKC Co., LLC, as a single 
source in the amount of $712,932; and

• Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract, subject to 
non-substantive changes. 

The RP-1 Solids Thickening Project is consistent with IEUA’s Business Goal of Wastewater Management specifically 
the Asset Management objective that IEUA will ensure the treatment facilities are well maintained, upgraded to meet 

evolving requirements, sustainability managed, and can accommodate changes in regional water use.



       CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

1H 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

June 15, 2022

 Master Services Contract Amendment for Project Controls Services

The expanded project control services program is extremely important to a successful execution
of the adopted Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan (TYCIP) and awarded Inland Empire
Utilities Agency (IEUA) construction projects. The use of a scheduler to develop project
baseline schedules, monthly updates to the schedules based on the input from IEUA Project
Managers, as well as cost estimates and constructability reviews, provides the Senior Leadership
Team and Engineering Department Managers with information necessary to assure consistency
in reporting, transparency of current project controls assignments, evaluate future assignments,
department structure, and other project controls issues that may arise.

In May 2019, IEUA entered into a three-year master service contract with KRD Management
Consulting, LLC and CAPO Projects Group for a not-to-exceed amount of $1,250,000 with
option to extend an additional four years if needed. Based on the past three year's expenditures,
staff is requesting a four-year contract extension through June 2026 for an additional
not-to-exceed amount of $1,750,000. The requested amount is the average of the current yearly
expenditures with an additional 20% to account for rate increases. This will increase the
contract from $1,250,000 to $3,000,000 (140% increase).

1. Approve contract amendments for the Project Control Master Services Contracts to CAPO
Projects Group and KRD Management Consulting, LLC for an aggregate amount of $1,750,000,
increasing the contract from $1,250,000 to $3,000,000 (140% increase) with a four-year term
extension through June 2026; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract, subject to non-substantive changes.

Multiple capital projects and department O&M budget under various program funds.

There is no direct impact on IEUA's fiscal year budget as a result of this action. These contracts
are for work which will be required on various projects and department operation and
maintenance budgets. Thus, no separate funding is needed for these contracts.

N/A

06/08/22Engineering, Operations & Water Resources

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

Y N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Project Controls Master Service Contract is consistent with the IEUA’s Business Goal of
Fiscal Responsibility, specifically IEUA is committed to safeguarding the Agency’s fiscal health
to effectively support short term and long-term needs, while providing the best value for our
customers.

On May 15, 2019, the Board of Directors awarded Project Controls Master Service Contracts to
CAPO Projects Group and KRD Management Consulting, LLC for an aggregate not-to-exceed
amount of $1,250,000.

CEQA exempts a variety of projects from compliance with the statute. This project qualifies for
a Statutory Exemption as defined in Section 15262 of the State CEQA Guidelines. When the
project will be implemented will be subject to future environmental evaluation.

Attachment 1 - PowerPoint
Attachment 2 - Master Service Contract Amendment - CAPO Projects Group
Attachment 3 - Master Service Contract Amendment - KRD Management

Statutory Exemption

22134



 

 

Attachment 1 



Project Controls
Master Services Contract Amendment

Stacey Scott, MBA 

Engineering Services Analyst 

June 2022



Scope of Services

2

• Project Scheduling
— Baseline Creation 
— Schedule Updates
— Resource Allocation
— Contractor Schedule Review

• Dashboards and Reporting
—Project Health
—Project Phase
—Level of Staffing

• Technical reviews
• Construction Estimating 
• Constructability Reviews



Contract Amendment

3

• Current Contract Expires June 2022; optional four-year term extensions
• Based on the prior year usage, Staff is requesting the optional extension through June 2026 

and an additional not-to-exceed amount of $1,750,000*.  
• This will increase the contract from $1,250,000 to $3,000,000*.

Cost to Date Cost Breakdown

Total Amount Spent To Date 
KRD $88,536

CAPO $984,020
Total $1,072,556 

Avg  Yearly Amt. ($1M/3yrs) $357,519 

Request Amt (Avg * 4yrs) $1,430,076 
20% Rate Increase $286,015 

Total Request* $1,716,091 

Original Contract $1,250,000.00 
New Contract* $2,966,089 

*Rounded to $3M & $1.75M



Recommendation

4

The Project Controls Master Service Contract is consistent with the IEUA’s Business Goal of Fiscal Responsibility, 
specifically IEUA is committed to safeguarding the Agency’s fiscal health to effectively support short term and long-term 

needs, while providing the best value for our customers.

• Approve contract amendments for the Project Control Master Services 
Contracts to CAPO Projects Group and KRD Management Consulting, LLC for 
an aggregate amount of $1,750,000, increasing the contract from $1,250,000 to 
$3,000,000 (140% increase) with a four-year term extension through June 
2026; and

• Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract, subject to non-
substantive changes. 



 

 

Attachment 2 



 

 

Contract Amendment 4600002731-002 JV                             Page 1 of 1 

5/25/2022 

 

 
MASTER SERVICES CONTRACT AMENDMENT NUMBER:  4600002731-002 

FOR  

PROJECT CONTROL SERVICES 

 
AMENDMENT NUMBER TWO is made and entered into this ___ day of _____________, 2022, by 
and between the Inland Empire Utilities Agency, a Municipal Water District, organized and existing 
in the County of San Bernardino under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California 
(hereinafter referred to as “IEUA” and “Agency”) and Capo Projects Group, LLC., with offices 
located in San Juan Capistrano, California (hereinafter referred to as “Consultant”), shall revise the 
Contract as follows:  
 
REVISE SECTION 3, TERM OF CONTRACT AND OPTION, ADDING A PARAGRAPH, TO 
READ:  With the execution of Contract Amendment Number 4600002731-002, the termination 
date of this Contract shall be extended to June 30, 2026; unless agreed to by both parties, reduced 
to writing, and amended in this Contract. 
 
REVISE SECTION 6, COMPENSATION AND CHANGES, ADDING A PARAGRAPH TO 
READ: In compensation for the work represented by this Contract Amendment, Agency shall 
pay Consultant in accordance with Consultant’s approved rate schedule, Exhibit A, which is 
attached hereto, referenced herein, and made a part hereof. The total lump sum for Contract 
4600002731 CAPO Projects Group, and 4600002730 KRD Management shall be an aggregate 
NOT-TO-EXCEED MAXIMUM of $3,000,000.00. This represents an increase of $1,750,000.00. 
 
ALL OTHER PROVISIONS OF THIS CONTRACT REMAIN UNCHANGED 
 
The parties hereto have mutually covenanted and agreed as per the above amendment item, and 
in doing so have caused this document to become incorporated into the Contract Documents. 
 
 

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY: CAPO PROJECTS GROUP, LLC.: 
           *A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

 
___________________________   ________ __________________________   ________ 

Warren T. Green  (Date) Thomas Huntington                       (Date) 

Manager of Contracts, Procurement      Partner 
& Risk Services 
   
 



 

 

Exhibit A 



ATTACHMENT A  
                  PROPOSAL RATE / FEE SCHEDULE  

  

 

 

DESCRIPTION PROPOSED                                                                                                          UNIT RATE  

  

1.         Principal-In-Charge $190/Hr 

  

2.         Project Manager $178/Hr 

  

3.         QA/QC NA 

  

4.         Electrical Engineer NA 

  

5.         Structural Engineer NA 

  

6.         Civil Engineer NA 

  

7.         Constructability Reviewer $178/Hr 

  

8.         Administrative Assistant $86/Hr 

  

9.         Estimator $167/Hr 

  

10.       Scheduler (Oracle’s Primavera P6 Software) $167/Hr 

  

11.       Att. Other - Delay Claims Analyst $190/Hr 

  

12.       Att. Other – CPMaxis Subscription (Monthly) $1200/Mo 

  

 



 

 

Attachment 3 



 

 

Contract Amendment 4600002730-001 JV                             Page 1 of 1 

5/25/2022 

 

 
MASTER SERVICES CONTRACT AMENDMENT NUMBER:  4600002730-001 

FOR  

PROJECT CONTROL SERVICES 

 
AMENDMENT NUMBER ONE is made and entered into this ___ day of _____________, 2022, by 
and between the Inland Empire Utilities Agency, a Municipal Water District, organized and existing 
in the County of San Bernardino under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California 
(hereinafter referred to as “IEUA” and “Agency”) and KRD Management Consulting, LLC., with 
offices located in Temecula, California (hereinafter referred to as “Consultant”), shall revise the 
Contract as follows:  
 
REVISE SECTION 3, TERM OF CONTRACT AND OPTION, ADDING A PARAGRAPH, TO 
READ:  With the execution of Contract Amendment Number 4600002730-001, the termination 
date of this Contract shall be extended to June 30, 2026; unless agreed to by both parties, reduced 
to writing, and amended in this Contract. 
 
REVISE SECTION 6, COMPENSATION AND CHANGES, ADDING A PARAGRAPH TO 
READ: In compensation for the work represented by this Contract Amendment, Agency shall 
pay Consultant in accordance with Consultant’s approved rate schedule, Exhibit A, which is 
attached hereto, referenced herein, and made a part hereof. The total lump sum for Contract 
4600002731 CAPO Projects Group, and 4600002730 KRD Management shall be an aggregate 
NOT-TO-EXCEED MAXIMUM of $3,000,000.00. This represents an increase of $1,750,000.00. 
 
ALL OTHER PROVISIONS OF THIS CONTRACT REMAIN UNCHANGED 
 
The parties hereto have mutually covenanted and agreed as per the above amendment item, and 
in doing so have caused this document to become incorporated into the Contract Documents. 
 
 

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY: KRD MANAGEMENT CONSULTING, LLC.: 
           *A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

 
___________________________   ________ __________________________   ________ 

Warren T. Green  (Date) Kirill Dolinskiy                               (Date) 

Manager of Contracts, Procurement      Principal-in-Charge/Project Manager 
& Risk Services 
   
 



 

 

Exhibit A 





   CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

1I 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

June 15, 2022

Purchase of Agency-wide Insurance for FY 2022/23

Each year, the Agency purchases excess insurance policies to protect the Agency and the public 
against potential liabilities related to General, Auto, Fraud, Errors & Omissions, Property, Boiler 
& Machinery, Cyber, Workers' Compensation, etc. Staff works closely with the Agency's 
insurance broker, Alliant Insurance Services, to evaluate the Agency's insurance programs and 
needs, the insurance market and various insurance programs available.
The process includes the completion of underwriter applications identifying the Agency's 
operations, exposures, operating budget, property and equipment values, loss history, as well as 
total wages. This information is compared against current market trends, industry losses and 
various insurance carriers interest in support of receiving renewal premiums or quotes. The 
insurance market continued to see significant changes in their programs. These market 
conditions, as well as increases in the Agency's payroll and operating budget reflect increases in 
premiums for the Agency.
In anticipation of the increases, staff adjusted the insurance budget in support of having 
sufficient funding for the upcoming premiums. There are no changes in the policy terms, 
conditions, self-insured retention or policy coverage limits.

Authorize the purchase of Agency-wide insurance policies providing coverage through 
Fiscal Year 2022/23, for the total not-to-exceed insurance budget amount of $1,862,000 for 
the following policies:

a. Excess General Liability insurance (Projected $755,000);
b. Property, Boiler & Machinery insurance (Projected $930,000) ; and
c. Excess Workers' Compensation (Actual $109,685).

06/08/22Finance & Administration

Javier Chagoyen-Lazaro, Acting Assistant General Manager

Y N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

:

Environmental :

Business Goal: 
The purchase of Agency-wide insurance policies support the Agency's commitment to 
safeguarding the Agency's fiscal health and effectively support the short and long term 
needs, while providing the best value to our customers. 

On July 21, 2021 the Board approved the ratification of the purchase of Agency-wide insurance 
policies for coverage during FY 2021/22 in the amounts of:

a. Excess General Liability insurance in the amount of $628,393;
b. Property, Boiler & Machinery insurance in the amount of $775,118;
c. Excess Workers' Compensation insurance in the amount of $104,933. 

Attachment 1 - PowerPoint

Not Applicable

22143





, ,000





       CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

 1J 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

June 15, 2022

Fiscal Year 2022/23 Proposed Budget Amendment and Rate Resolutions

On June 16, 2021 the Board of Directors approved the Agency’s Biennial Budget for fiscal years
(FYs) 2021/22 and 2022/23. As part of the biennial budget cycle, a review of the second budget
year is done prior to the end of the first year to determine whether any adjustments are needed to
meet changes in certain assumptions or conditions. The proposed budget amendments relate to
all Agency programs. Amendments related to the Regional Wastewater program FY 2022/23
and Ten-Year Forecast (TYF) for the FYs 2023 – 2032, along with the corresponding regional
rates and fees were reviewed by the Regional Committees and recommended for approval.

The proposed amendment represents an increase in Sources of Funds of $90.8 million and an
increase in Uses of Funds of $18.7 million, with a net impact on Agency reserves of $72.1
million for FY 2022/23. The proposed Rate Resolution Nos. 2022-6-1 through 2022-6-7 include
various charges and fees for the Non-Reclaimable pass-through charges, Imported Water,
Laboratory, and Equipment Rentals.

1. Approve the amendments to the FY 2022/23 Adopted Budget; and

2. Adopt Rate Resolution Nos. 2022-6-1 through 2022-6-7

The proposed net increase of $72.1 million to the FY 2022/23 Adopted Budget will increase
total Agency fund reserves.

06/08/22Finance & Administration

Javier Chagoyen-Lazaro, Acting Assistant General Manager

N Y

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The proposed amendment to the FY 2022/23 Adopted Budget for the Agency’s programs
continues to demonstrate the IEUA Board and staff's steadfastness to deliver reliable, high
quality, essential services to its customers in a regionally planned and cost-effective manner,
consistent with the IEUA Business Goals of fiscal responsibility, work environment, water
reliability, and wastewater management.

On June 16, 2021, the Board of Directors approved the Agency's biennial budget for FYs
2021/22 and 2022/23.

On May 18, 2022, the Board of Directors approved the FY 2022/23 rate resolutions for
Wastewater Connection Fee, Monthly EDU Sewer Rate, Recycled Water Rate and
Extra-Territorial Sewer Service

Attachment 1 - Background
Attachment 2 - Sources and Uses of Funds by Program Fund Report
Attachment 3 - PowerPoint
Attachment 4 - Resolution Nos. 2022-6-1 through 2022-6-4, Non-Reclaimable Wastewater

Service Rates
Attachment 5 - Resolution No. 2022-6-5, Establishing Imported Water Rates
Attachment 6 - Resolution No. 2022-6-6, Equipment Rental Fees
Attachment 7 - Resolution No. 2022-6-7, Laboratory Fees

Not Applicable

22142



o
o



*In November 2019, the monthly EDU rate of $20.60 and $21.22 were approved by the Board for 
FYs 2020/21 and 2021/22, respectively.  On May 6, 2020, the Board approved to defer all the user 
rate increase for FY 2020/21 and maintain the rate unchanged. 





 *Other Sources includes contract cost reimbursements, interest income, and miscellaneous 
revenue. 

Federal and State Loans and Grants:

Property Tax:

Grants:

User Charges



Capital Projects: 

Operations & Administration



Wastewater Disposal Agreement No. 4830



Fiscal Responsibility, Water Reliability, Wastewater 
Management, Environmental Stewardship, and Business Practices





















FY 2022/23 Proposed Budget Amendment, 
Rates, and Fees

Javier Chagoyen-Lazaro
Acting Assistant General Manager

June 2022



2

Budget Amendment Assumptions

Sources of funds:
Additional loan proceeds consistent with proposed Ten-Year Forecast (TYF)
Upward adjustment of property tax receipts
Rate Increase:
• Wastewater connection fee and monthly EDU Sewer rate adjustment of 3% over FY 2021/22
• New Recycled water rate: Fixed and Variable components
• Meter Equivalent Unit (MEU): $1.10 or 2% increase over FY 2021/22
• Non-Reclaimable Wastewater: 2% increase over FY 2021/22 – pending final SAWPA and LACSD 

rates

Uses of funds:
Proposed Ten Year Capital Improvement Plan (TYCIP) for FYs 2022/23 – 2031/32

• Facility expansion based on projected growth
• Asset Management:  Replacement, Repair and Improvement

Inflationary chemical cost increase 



Adopted and Proposed Fees and Rates

3

Fund Wastewater 
Operations

Wastewater 
Capital Recycled Water Water Resources

As of July, 1 Monthly 
Sewer (EDU)

Wastewater 
Connection 
Fee (EDU)

Fixed 
Cost 

Recovery 
***

Recycled 
Water 

Direct Use 
(AF)

Recycled 
Water 

Recharge 
(AF)

One Water 
Connection 
Fee (MEU)**

Meter 
Equivalent 

Units (MEU)**

RTS 
Recover

y

FY 2019/20 $20.00 $6,955 - $490 $550 $1,684 $1.04 60%

FY 2020/21* $20.00 $6,955 - $490 $550 $1,684 $1.04 75%

FY 2021/22 $21.22 $7,379 - $520 $580 $1,787 $1.08 90%

FY 2022/23 $21.86 $7,600 $1.11M $516 $616 $1,841 $1.10 100%

FY 2023/24
To be reviewed based on the 
sewer use evaluation results

$2.36M $510 $660 $1,896 $1.12 100%

FY 2024/25 $4.96M $465 $665 $1,953 $1.14 100%

*On May 6, 2020, the Board approved to defer rate increases and maintain the rates unchanged for FY 2020/21
**Rates for FYs 2020/21 through 2024/25 adopted in July 2020
*** Fixed cost recovery phased in over 3 years



4

Sources of Funds

$ Millions
FY 2022/23 

Adopted
FY 2020/21 
Proposed

Amendments

Total Sources of Funds $331.5 $422.3 $90.8

*Other Sources include contract reimbursements, JPA reimbursements, inter-fund loan repayment and interest earnings.

1.9

$17.8 

17.6

39.1

49.8

58.4

$97.8 

49.1

16.2

$18.8 

17.6

39.1

50

74

$99.5 

107.1

0 20 40 60 80 100 120

Grants

Other*

Recycled Water Sales

Connection Fees

MWD Water Sales

Property Tax

User Charge

Federal/State Loans

Amended Budget Adopted



5

Uses of Funds

$ Millions

FY 2022/23 
Adopted

FY 2023/23 
Proposed Amendments

Total Uses of Funds $392.2 $410.9 $18.7

24.8

49.8

$126.20 

191.4

$25.2 

$50.0 

$134.20 

$201.6 

0 50 100 150 200 250

Debt Service

MWD Water Purchases

Operations & Administration

Capital Projects

Amended Budget Adopted



6

FY 2022/23 Proposed Budget Amendments 
($ Millions)

Consolidated
FY 2020/21

Adopted Proposed
Amendment

Amount

Total Sources of Funds $331.5 $ 422.3 $90.8

Total Uses of Funds ($392.2) ($410.9) ($18.7)

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position ($60.7) $11.4 $72.1



• Approve amendments to the FY 2022/23 Adopted Budget; and

• Approve Rate Resolutions No. 2022-6-1 through 2022-6-7
• 2022-6-1

o 2022-6-1 Service Rates and Excessive Strength Charges for Regional or Industrial Wastewater 
Discharge 

o 2022-6-2  Service Rates on Capacity, Volumetric, Strength, Capital Improvement, and Application 
Fees for the Etiwanda Wastewater Line (EWL)

o 2022-6-3* Service Rates on Capacity, Volumetric, Strength, and Application Fees for the Non-
Reclaimable Wastewater System (NRWS)

o 2022-6-4  Service Rates on Capacity, Volumetric, Strength, Capital Improvement, and Application 
Fees for the Inland Empire Brine Line (IEBL)

o 2022-6-5 Imported Water Rates
o 2022-6-6 Equipment Rental Rates
o 2022-6-7 Laboratory Fees

7

Recommendation

*Pending budget information from LACSD and SAWPA



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-6-1 
 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE INLAND 
EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY*, SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY, 
CALIFORNIA, ESTABLISHING SERVICE RATES FOR WASTEWATER 
DISCHARGERS TO THE REGIONAL WASTEWATER SYSTEM FOR 
SEPTAGE, COMMERCIAL OR INDUSTRIAL WASTEWATERS, AND 
EXCESSIVE STRENGTH CHARGES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022/23. 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to establish service rates for processing and issuing 

permits to domestic, commercial, or industrial wastewater dischargers and wastewater 
haulers permitted by IEUA, and service rates for processing and treatment of sanitary, 
commercial or industrial wastewater deliveries to the Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
(Agency)'s Regional Wastewater System; 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to establish application fees for processing and issuing 

of wastewater discharge permits to industrial wastewater generators who discharge 
directly through pipeline connections to the Regional Sewer System;  
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, pursuant 
to Ordinance No. 97, may establish said service rates by resolution. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors hereby RESOLVES, DETERMINES, 
AND ORDERS the following to be effective July 1, 2022, and remain in effect until 
rescinded by a new resolution: 

 
 
Section 1 That Wastewater Permit Application for Domestic Wastewater 
Hauler fees is as follow: 
 
Initial Permit Application Fee $250.00 
Permit Renewal Fee $125.00 

 
 
Section 2 That wastewater volumetric fee for domestic and industrial 
wastewater hauler is as follow: 
 
For each load up to 2,000 gallons $ 82.07 
Loads in excess of 2,000 gallons $ 0.041 per one (1) gallon 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution No. 2022-6-1 

Regional Rates   

Page 2 of 5 

 

 
Section 3 That a rate schedule effective July 1, 2020, for delivery of domestic 
and industrial wastewater to regional plants with excessive biochemical oxygen 
demand and suspended solids is hereby established as follows: 
 
Quantity Rate 

Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) in excess 
of 395 mg/L 

$ 318.41 per 1,000 lb (dry weight) 

Suspended Solids (SS) in excess of 402 mg/L $ 383.89 per 1,000 lb (dry weight) 

 
 
Section 4 A Non-Compliance fee of $150.00 shall be assessed to reinstate 
elapsed or expired insurance requirements. 

 
 

Section 5 That Initial Wastewater Discharge Permit Application 
and Permit Renewal fees for wastewater generators who discharge 
directly through pipeline connection to the Regional Sewer System 
shall be: 

 

 
 

Initial Wastewater Discharge Permit Application Fees 
(Ownership Change with Process Changes included): 

 
 

 

Categorical Industrial User $4,375.00 
with Combined Waste Stream Formula, add $1,063.00 
with Production Based Standards, add $563.00 
with Multiple Categories, add $2,125.00 

Non-Categorical, Significant Industrial User $3,188.00 
Non-Categorical, Non-Significant Industrial User $2,625.00 
  

Permit Renewal Fees:  
 

 

Categorical Industrial User $3,250.00 
with Combined Waste Stream Formula, add $563.00 
with Production Based Standards, add $313.00 
with Multiple Categories, add $1,063.00 

Non-Categorical, Significant Industrial User $813.00 
Non-Categorical, Non-Significant Industrial User $563.00 

  
 

Section 6 That Initial Wastewater Discharge Permit Application, 
Ownership Change with Process Changes, and Permit Renewal fees 
for wastewater generators whose wastewater is hauled away, i.e., by 
a wastewater trucking company, and discharged into the NRWS 
sewer system shall be: 

 



Resolution No. 2022-6-1 

Regional Rates   

Page 3 of 5 

 

 
Initial Wastewater Discharge Permit Application Fees: 
 
(Ownership Change with Process Changes included)  

 

 
 

Categorical Industrial User $2,750.00 

with Combined Waste Stream Formula, add $1,063.00 

with Production Based Standards, add $563.00 

with Multiple Categories, add $2,125.00 

Non-Categorical, Significant Industrial User $1,625.00 

Non-Categorical, Non-Significant Industrial User $1,063.00 

 
 

Permit Renewal Fees:  
 

 

Categorical Industrial User $2,250.00 
with Combined Waste Stream Formula, add $563.00 
with Production Based Standards, add $313.00 
with Multiple Categories, add $1,063.00 

Non-Categorical, Significant Industrial User $813.00 
Non-Categorical, Non-Significant Industrial User $563.00  

 

Section 7 That Permit Revision or Facility Expansion fees shall 
be: 

$1,625.00 
 

 

Permit Revisions shall be required if the modification affects the 
quantity/quality of the wastewater discharge to deviate from the 
conditions in the current permit by more than 25%.  Such additions or 
modifications include, but are not limited to, the following:  
Maintenance, Monitoring, Change of Discharge Limits, Addition of 
Control Equipment, Process Changes, etc. 

 

 
 

Section 8 That for change of business name with no process 
changes shall be: 

$250.00 
 

 

That Permit Addendum fees shall be: $813.00  
 

Permit Addendum shall be required if the addition or modification 
does not affect the existing wastewater quantity/quality by more than 
25%.  Such additions or modifications include, but are not limited to, 
the following:  Maintenance, Monitoring, Change of Discharge Limits, 
Addition of Control Equipment, Ownership Change without Process 
Changes, etc. 

 

 
Section 9 That IEUA will pass on to wastewater permit holder any other charges, 
such as, but not limited to, excessive strength charges, laboratory analysis charges, 



Resolution No. 2022-6-1 

Regional Rates   

Page 4 of 5 

 

inspection activity charges, etc. 
 
Section 10 Miscellaneous processing fees that do not fall under any of the above 
sections shall be charged based on time and material of staff(s) evaluating such 
process using adopted labor rates for the current fiscal year. 
 
Section 11 That all provisions of the Regional Wastewater Ordinance and any 
amendments thereto are hereby applicable and will remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 12 That upon the effective date of this Resolution, Resolution No. 2021-
6-1 is hereby rescinded in its entirety. 

 
* * * 

 
 ADOPTED this 15th day of June 2022 

 
       
Steven J. Elie 
President of the Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency* and of the Board of Directors 
thereof 

ATTEST: 
 
       
Marco Tule 
Secretary/ Treasurer of the Inland Empire 
Utilities Agency* and of the Board of  
Directors thereof 
 
 
*A Municipal Water District 
  



Resolution No. 2022-6-1 

Regional Rates   

Page 5 of 5 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA   ) 
)SS 

COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO ) 
 

I, Marco Tule, Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, 

DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution being No. 2022-6-1 as adopted at 

a regular Board meeting on June 15, 2022, of said Agency* by the following vote: 

 
 

AYES:   
 
NOES:  

 
ABSTAIN:  

 
ABSENT:  

 
 
 
 

  ________________________________ 
       Marco Tule    
       Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
 
* A Municipal Water District 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-6-2 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE INLAND 
EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY*, SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY, 
CALIFORNIA, ESTABLISHING CAPACITY CHARGES, VOLUMETRIC 
CHARGES, STRENGTH CHARGES, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 
PROJECT (CIP) CHARGES, IEUA ADMINISTRATIVE CHARGES, 
APPLICATION AND WASTEWATER DISCHARGE PERMIT 
APPLICATION FEES FOR THE ETIWANDA WASTEWATER LINE (EWL) 
FOR FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2022/23. 
 
WHEREAS, Etiwanda Wastewater Line Disposal Agreement (Agreement) was 

entered between County Sanitation Districts of Los Angeles County (CSDLAC) and Inland 
Empire Utilities Agency (Agency);  

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to establish a rate structure for the collection of costs 

associated for the sewerage service under this Agreement; 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to allocate industries with Etiwanda Wastewater Line 

Capacity Unit (EWLCU), in order to collect such charges;   
 
WHEREAS, one EWLCU for the EWL is defined as an equalized discharge not to 

exceed a flow rate of 15 gallons per minute; 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to establish application fees for processing applications 

for Capacity Right Agreements and Wastewater Discharge Permits for the use of the 
Agency's EWL;  

 
WHEREAS, under Section 13550, et seq., of the California Water Code, a Public 

Agency may require industries to use recycled water for certain purposes, where it is 
available and at reasonable cost; 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Agency, pursuant to Ordinance No. 99, 

may establish said fees and charges by Resolution; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors hereby RESOLVES, DETERMINES, 

AND ORDERS the following to be effective July 1, 2022, and remain in effect until 
rescinded by a new resolution: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Resolution No. 2022-6-2 

EWL Rates 

Page 2 of 6 
 

Section 1 That the acquisition of capacity rights shall be as follows: 
 
(A) CAPACITY RIGHT ACQUISITION RATE  

 
That the purchase rate for the right to discharge one (1) EWLCU for the EWL 
shall be $215,000.00 per an equalized flow rate not to exceed 15 gallons per 
minute.  This charge shall be paid in full upon the execution of the Capacity Right 
Agreement. 

 
Section 2 That the monthly charges for discharge to the EWL are as follows: 
 
(A) CAPACITY CHARGES  

 
For discharge to the EWL, which reaches the jurisdiction of the CSDLAC, the 
monthly Capacity Charge is $84.00 per month per each EWLCU. 

 
(B) CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROGRAM CHARGES: 

 
The monthly Capital Improvements Program (CIP) charge for EWL is $90.00 per 
month per each EWLCU. 

 
(C) VOLUMETRIC CHARGES  

 
The Volumetric Charge for EWL is $821.16 per Million Gallons. The minimum 
Volumetric Charge for discharge of 100,000 gallons or less per each EWLCU 
per month is $82.12 per month per each EWLCU. 

 
(D) STRENGTH CHARGES  

 
That Strength Charges are for excessive Chemical Oxygen Demand (COD) and 
Total Suspended Solids (TSS) and are applicable to all discharges to the EWL.  
The rates are as follows: 
 
PARAMETER RATE 
COD   $145.05 per 1,000 pounds (dry weight) 
TSS   $410.31 per 1,000 pounds (dry weight) 
 
Strength charges for the EWL discharges are calculated from the average of all 
the samples collected during the calendar month and invoiced on a quarterly 
basis.  If there is no sample data for a given month, strength charges for that 
month shall be determined by using the average value of all available data from 
the previous 12 months. 

 
 
 
 



Resolution No. 2022-6-2 

EWL Rates 

Page 3 of 6 
 

(E) AGENCY CIP AND O&M CHARGES  
 

Agency CIP and O&M Charges of 50% shall be added to the charges of Section 
2(A), 2(C), and 2(D). 

 
(F) RECYCLED WATER USAGE CREDIT 

 
This program is for recycled water (RW) Users and shall end when funding is 
exhausted or not later than June 30, 2024, whichever comes first.  New Users 
who qualify for this program shall be given the recycled water credit in effect at 
the time of connection to the recycled water system.   
 
Recycled Water Users, including contracting agencies, shall be given a 
monetary credit based on the actual amount of RW used. The RW credit shall 
start at 50% of the IEUA’s FY 2014/15 recycled water direct sale rate and shall 
decline at 5% intervals per year through FY 2023/2024. 
 
For Fiscal Year 2022/23, the Recycled Water Usage Credit is $89.00 per million 
gallons of recycled water used. 
 
Section 3 OTHER CHARGES 
 
IEUA will pass on any other charges from CSDLAC invoiced to the Agency to 
dischargers to the EWL, such as, but not limited to, flow and strength imbalances 
charges, permit fees, inspection fees, analytical fees, etc. 

 

Section 4 That Application fees for an EWL Capacity Right 
Agreement shall be: 

$250.00 
 

 

Section 5 That Initial Wastewater Discharge Permit Application, 
Ownership Change with Process Changes, and Permit Renewal 
fees for wastewater generators who discharge directly through 
pipeline connection to the EWL sewer system shall be: 

 

  
 

Initial Wastewater Discharge Permit Application Fees: 
(Ownership Change with Process Changes included) 

 
 

 

Categorical Industrial User $4,375.00 
with Combined Waste Stream Formula, add $1,063.00 
with Production Based Standards, add $563.00 
with Multiple Categories, add $2,125.00 

Non-Categorical, Significant Industrial User $3,188.00 
Non-Categorical, Non-Significant Industrial User $2,625.00 
  

 

  



Resolution No. 2022-6-2 

EWL Rates 

Page 4 of 6 
 

Permit Renewal Fees:  
 

Categorical Industrial User $3,250.00 
with Combined Waste Stream Formula, add $563.00 
with Production Based Standards, add $313.00 
with Multiple Categories, add $1,063.00 

Non-Categorical, Significant Industrial User $813.00 
Non-Categorical, Non-Significant Industrial User $563.00 

  
Section 6 That Permit Revision or Facility Expansion fees shall 
be: 

$1,625.00 
 

 

Permit Revisions shall be required if the modification affects the 
quantity/quality of the wastewater discharge to deviate from the 
conditions in the current permit by more than 25%.  Such additions 
or modifications include, but are not limited to, the following:  
Maintenance, Monitoring, Change of Discharge Limits, Addition of 
Control Equipment, Process Changes, etc. 

 

 
 

Section 7 That for change of business name with no process 
changes shall be: 

$250.00 
 

 

That Permit Addendum fees shall be: $813.00  
 

Permit Addendum shall be required if the addition or modification 
does not affect the existing wastewater quantity/quality by more than 
25%.  Such additions or modifications include, but are not limited to, 
the following:  Maintenance, Monitoring, Change of Discharge 
Limits, Addition of Control Equipment, Ownership Change without 
Process Changes, etc. 

 

 
 

Section 8 Toxic Organic Management Plan (TOMP) Processing  No Charge 

 
Section 9 Miscellaneous processing fees that do not fall under any of the 
above sections shall be charged based on time and material of staff(s) evaluating 
such process using adopted labor rates for the current fiscal year. 
 
Section 10 That all provisions of the Etiwanda Wastewater Line Ordinance 
and any amendments thereto are hereby applicable and will remain in full force 
and effect. 
 
Section 11 That upon the effective date of this Resolution, the Resolution 
No. 2021-6-2 pertaining to the EWL is hereby rescinded in its entirety. 

 
  



Resolution No. 2022-6-2 

EWL Rates 

Page 5 of 6 
 

ADOPTED this 15th day of June 2022 
 
 
 
       
Steven J. Elie 
President of the Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency* and of the Board of Directors 
thereof 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Marco Tule 
Secretary/ Treasurer of the Inland Empire 
Utilities Agency* and of the Board of  
Directors thereof 
 
 
*A Municipal Water District 
 
 
 
  



Resolution No. 2022-6-2 

EWL Rates 

Page 6 of 6 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA   ) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO ) 
 

I, Marco Tule, Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, 

DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution being No. 2022-6-2 as adopted at 

a regular Board meeting on June 15, 2022, of said Agency* by the following vote: 

 
 

AYES:   
 

NOES:   
 

ABSTAIN:  
 

ABSENT:  
 
 

  ________________________________ 
       Marco Tule    
       Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
* A Municipal Water District 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-6-3 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE INLAND 
EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY*, SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY, 
CALIFORNIA, ESTABLISHING CAPACITY CHARGES, VOLUMETRIC 
CHARGES, STRENGTH CHARGES, AGENCY PROGRAM CHARGES, 
AND APPLICATION FEES FOR THE NON-RECLAIMABLE 
WASTEWATER SYSTEM (NRWS) FOR FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2022/23 
 
WHEREAS, NRWS Wastewater Disposal Agreement No. 4830 (Agreement) has 

been adopted between County Sanitation Districts of Los Angeles County (CSDLAC) and 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency (Agency);  

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to establish a rate structure for the collection of costs 

associated for the sewerage service under this Agreement; 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to allocate User with Non Reclaimable Wastewater 

System Capacity Unit (NRWSCU), in order to collect such charges;   
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to allocate individual Users their fractional contribution 

of the Solids Discrepancy at East End (SDEE) monitoring facility determined by the 
Fractional Solids Discrepancy (FSDi) formula;   

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to allocate individual Users their fractional contribution 

of the Volumetric, Chemical Oxygen Demand (COD), and NRWSCU discrepancies at 
East End monitoring facility as determined by the preceding fiscal year’s monitoring data; 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to establish application fees for processing applications 

for NRWSCU Allocations and Wastewater Discharge Permits for the use of the Inland 
Empire Utilities Agency (Agency)'s NRWS;  

 
WHEREAS, under Section 13550, et seq., of the California Water Code, a Public 

Agency may require industries to use recycled water for certain purposes, where it is 
available and at reasonable cost; 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Agency, pursuant to Ordinance No. 99, 

may establish said fees and charges by Resolution; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors hereby RESOLVES, DETERMINES, 

AND ORDERS the following to be effective July 1, 2022, and remain in effect until 
rescinded by a new resolution: 
 
  



Resolution No. 2022-6-3 

NRWS Rates 

Page 2 of 7 
 

Section 1 That the acquisition of wastewater discharge right shall be as follows: 
 
(A) NRWSCU ACQUISITION RATES 

 
1. A NRWSCU for the NRWS is determined by the following formula: 

 

𝑁𝑅𝑊𝑆𝐶𝑈 = (0.6513 𝑥 
𝐹𝑙𝑜𝑤𝑔𝑝𝑑

260
) + (0.1325 𝑥 

𝐶𝑂𝐷𝑝𝑝𝑑

1.22
) + (0.2162 𝑥 

𝑇𝑆𝑆𝑝𝑝𝑑

0.59
) 

 
Where: 
gpd = gallons per day 
ppd = pounds per day 
 

2. The minimum number of NRWSCU shall be 25 NRWSCU. 
 

3. The purchase rate for the right to discharge one (1) NRWSCU shall be as 
established by CSDLAC or $4,172.00 per NRWSCU.   
 

4. The optional annual lease rate for the right to discharge one (1) NRWSCU 
shall be 5% per year of the purchase rate, i.e., $208.60 per NRWSCU per 
each year.   
 
The above charges shall be paid in full upon the execution of the NRWSCU 
purchase or lease. 

 
Section 2 That the monthly charges for discharge to the NRWS are: 
 
(A) VOLUMETRIC CHARGES 

 
For discharge to the NRWS, the monthly volumetric charge is $842.08 per 
million gallons of discharge. 
 

(B) PEAK FLOW CHARGES 
 
For discharge to the NRWS, the monthly Peak Flow (PF) Charge shall be 
$330.07 per million gallons of volumetric discharge. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution No. 2022-6-3 

NRWS Rates 

Page 3 of 7 
 

(C) STRENGTH CHARGES 
 
That Strength Charges are for excessive Chemical Oxygen Demand (COD) 
and Total Suspended Solids (TSS) and are applicable to all discharges to 
the NRWS.  The rates are as follows: 
 
PARAMETER  RATE 
COD   $168.63 per 1,000 pounds (dry weight) 
TSS   $402.50 per 1,000 pounds (dry weight) 
 
Strength charges for the NRWS discharges are calculated from the average 
of all the samples collected during the calendar month and invoiced on a 
quarterly basis.  If there is no sample data for a given month, strength 
charges for that month shall be determined by using the average value of 
all available data from the previous 12 months. 
 

(D) AGENCY O&M Charge 
 
The Agency’s O&M charge shall be $22.52 per NRWSCU per month. 
 

(E) AGENCY CIP CHARGE 
 
The Agency’s capital improvement program charge shall be $9.01 per 
NRWSCU per month. 
 

(F) RECYCLED WATER USAGE CREDIT 
 
This program is for recycled water (RW) Users and shall end when funding 
is exhausted or not later than June 30, 2024, whichever comes first.  New 
Users who qualify for this program shall be given the recycled water credit 
in effect at the time of connection to the recycled water system.   
 
Recycled Water Users, including contracting agencies, shall be given a 
monetary credit based on the actual amount of RW used. The RW credit 
shall start at 50% of the IEUA’s FY 2014/15 recycled water direct sale rate 
and shall decline at 5% intervals per year through FY 2023/2024. 
 
For Fiscal Year 2022/23, the Recycled Water Usage Credit is $89.00 per 
million gallons of recycled water used. 

 
Section 3 IMBALANCE CHARGES 
 
(A) SOLIDS DISCREPANCY CHARGES for NRWS 

 
Solids Discrepancy Charge for an industry (SDCi ) shall be calculated on a 
monthly basis and invoiced on a quarterly basis.  The charge shall be 



Resolution No. 2022-6-3 

NRWS Rates 

Page 4 of 7 
 

calculated by multiplying the individual industry’s Fractional Solids 
Discrepancy (FSDi) by the Total Solids Discrepancy at East End monitoring 
facility (TSDEE) and by TSS rate: 
 

𝑆𝐷𝐶𝑖 = (𝐹𝑆𝐷𝑖)  𝑥  (𝑇𝑆𝐷𝐸𝐸) 𝑥 (𝑇𝑆𝑆 𝑟𝑎𝑡𝑒) 
 
Individual industry’s FSDi for the NRWS is determined by the FSDi formula 
to allocate the individual industry’s solids contribution to the total solids 
discrepancy, based on their contribution to the overall loading of Alkalinity, 
Biological Oxygen Demand (BOD), Dissolved Calcium, and Flow.  
 

𝐹𝑆𝐷𝑖 = 0.090 𝑥 [
𝐴𝑙𝑘𝑖

𝐴𝑙𝑘𝑇
] + 0.589 𝑥 [

𝐵𝑂𝐷𝑖

𝐵𝑂𝐷𝑇
] + 0.060 𝑥 [

𝐶𝑎𝑖

𝐶𝑎𝑇
] + 0.261 𝑥 [

𝐹𝑙𝑜𝑤𝑖

𝐹𝑙𝑜𝑤𝑇
] 

Where: 
FSDi= Fractional Solids Discrepancy for individual discharger (i) 
Alki = Individual dissolved alkalinity loading to the NRWS for discharger (i) 
AlkT = Combined dissolved alkalinity loading from all dischargers to the NRWS 
BODi = Individual BOD5 loading to the NRWS for discharger (i) 
BODT = Combined BOD5 loading from all dischargers to the NRWS 
Cai = Individual dissolved calcium loading to the NRWS for discharger (i) 
CaT = Combine dissolved calcium loading from all dischargers to the NRWS  
Flowi = Individual flow contribution to the NRWS from discharger (i) 
FlowT = Combined flow from all dischargers to the NRWS 

 
(B) OTHER IMBALANCE CHARGES 

 
IEUA will pass to NRWS dischargers any other charges from CSDLAC 
invoiced to the Agency as a result of imbalance in the NRWS, including 
volumetric, COD, and NRWSCU imbalance charges.  The charges shall be 
calculated on pro rata share for each component and invoiced on a quarterly 
basis. 

 
Section 4 OTHER CHARGES 
 
IEUA will pass on any other charges from CSDLAC invoiced to the Agency to 
dischargers to the NRWS, such as, but not limited to, permit fees, inspection fees, 
analytical fees, etc. 

 

Section 5 That Application fee for a NRWS Capacity Unit 
Purchase or Annual Lease shall be: 

$250.00 

  

Section 6 That Initial Wastewater Discharge Permit Application, 
Ownership Change with Process Changes, and Permit Renewal 
fees for wastewater generators who discharge directly through 
pipeline connection to the NRWS sewer system shall be: 

 

  



Resolution No. 2022-6-3 

NRWS Rates 

Page 5 of 7 
 

Initial Wastewater Discharge Permit Application Fees: 
(Ownership Change with Process Changes included) 

 

  

Categorical Industrial User $4,375.00 

with Combined Waste Stream Formula, add $1,063.00 

with Production Based Standards, add $563.00 

with Multiple Categories, add $2,125.00 

Non-Categorical, Significant Industrial User $3,188.00 

Non-Categorical, Non-Significant Industrial User $2,625.00 

  
 

Permit Renewal Fees:  
 

 

Categorical Industrial User $3,250.00 

with Combined Waste Stream Formula, add $563.00 

with Production Based Standards, add $313.00 

with Multiple Categories, add $1,063.00 

Non-Categorical, Significant Industrial User $813.00 

Non-Categorical, Non-Significant Industrial User $563.00 

  
Section 7 That Permit Revision or Facility Expansion fees shall 
be: 

$1,625.00 
 

 

Permit Revisions shall be required if the modification affects the 
quantity/quality of the wastewater discharge to deviate from the 
conditions in the current permit by more than 25%.  Such additions 
or modifications include, but are not limited to, the following:  
Maintenance, Monitoring, Change of Discharge Limits, Addition of 
Control Equipment, Process Changes, etc. 

 

 
 

Section 8 That for change of business name with no process 
changes shall be: 

$250.00 

  

That Permit Addendum fees shall be: $813.00 

  
Permit Addendum shall be required if the addition or modification 
does not affect the existing wastewater quantity/quality by more than 
25%.  Such additions or modifications include, but are not limited to, 
the following:  Maintenance, Monitoring, Change of Discharge 
Limits, Addition of Control Equipment, Ownership Change without 
Process Changes, etc. 

 

  

Section 9 Toxic Organic Management Plan (TOMP) Processing  No Charge  
 
 



Resolution No. 2022-6-3 

NRWS Rates 

Page 6 of 7 
 

Section 10 Miscellaneous processing fees that do not fall under any of the above 
sections shall be charged based on time and material of staff(s) evaluating such 
process using adopted labor rates for the current fiscal year. 
 
Section 11 That all provisions of the Non-Reclaimable Wastewater Ordinance 
and any amendments thereto are hereby applicable and will remain in full force 
and effect. 
 
Section 12 That upon the effective date of this Resolution, the Resolution No. 
2021-6-3 pertaining to the NRWS is hereby rescinded in its entirety. 

 
 
 
 
ADOPTED this 15th day of June 2022. 

 
 
 
       
Steven J. Elie 
President of the Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency* and of the Board of Directors 
thereof 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Marco Tule 
Secretary/ Treasurer of the Inland Empire 
Utilities Agency* and of the Board of  
Directors thereof 
 
 
*A Municipal Water District 
 
 
 
  



Resolution No. 2022-6-3 

NRWS Rates 

Page 7 of 7 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA   ) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO ) 
 

I, Marco Tule, Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, 

DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution being No. 2022-6-3 as adopted at 

a regular Board meeting on June 15, 2022, of said Agency* by the following vote: 

 
 

AYES:   
 

NOES:   
 

ABSTAIN:  
 

ABSENT:  
 
 

  ________________________________ 
       Marco Tule    
       Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
* A Municipal Water District 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-6-4 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE INLAND 
EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY*, SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY, 
CALIFORNIA, ESTABLISHING INITIAL AND MONTHLY CAPACITY 
CHARGES, VOLUMETRIC CHARGES, EXCESS STRENGTH 
CHARGES, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT (CIP) CHARGES, 
IEUA ADMINISTRATIVE CHARGES, APPLICATION AND 
WASTEWATER DISCHARGE PERMIT APPLICATION FEES FOR THE 
INLAND EMPIRE BRINE LINE (BRINE LINE) FOR FISCAL YEAR (FY) 
2022/23. 
 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to establish initial and monthly capacity charges, 

volumetric flow charges, CIP charges, trucked wastewater delivery charges and 
excessive strength charges;  

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to establish application fees for processing applications 

for Capacity Right Agreements and Wastewater Discharge Permits for the use of the 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency (Agency)'s Brine Line;  

 
WHEREAS, one Agency Capacity Unit (CU) is defined as an equalized discharge 

at the flow rate of 15 gallons per minute (GPM); 
 
WHEREAS, under Section 13550, et seq., of the California Water Code, a Public 

Agency may require industries to use recycled water for certain purposes, where it is 
available and at reasonable cost; 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Agency, pursuant to Ordinance No. 106, 

may establish said fees and charges by Resolution; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors hereby RESOLVES, DETERMINES, 

AND ORDERS the following to be effective July 1, 2022, and remain in effect until 
rescinded by a new resolution: 
 

Section 1 That the Initial Capacity Charge for the purchase of Agency Capacity 
Rights shall be set at $215,000.00 per CU. 
 
Section 2 That the monthly charges for discharge to the Brine Line are as 
follows: 
 

(A) CAPACITY CHARGES: 
 

For discharge to the Brine Line, which reaches jurisdiction of the Santa Ana 
Watershed Project Authority (SAWPA), the monthly Capacity Charge is 
$435.43 per CU. 
 



Resolution No. 2022-6-4 

IEBL Rates 

Page 2 of 7 
 

(B) CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROGRAM CHARGES: 
 
The monthly Capital Improvements Program (CIP) charge for Brine Line is 
$90.00 per CU per month. 
  
(C) VOLUMETRIC CHARGES 
 
For discharge to the Brine Line, the monthly Volumetric Charge is $1,049.00 
per Million Gallons of discharge. The minimum Volumetric Charge for 
discharge of 100,000 gallons or less per CU per month is $104.90 per CU 
per month.   
 
(D) STRENGTH CHARGES 

 
That Strength Charges are applicable to all discharges to the Brine Line, via 
pipeline or hauled by truck, for excessive Biochemical Oxygen Demand 
(BOD), and Total Suspended Solids (TSS). The rates are as follows: 
 
QUANTITY    RATE 
BOD $353.00 per 1,000 pounds (dry weight) 
TSS $520.00 per 1,000 pounds (dry weight) 
 
Strength charges for the Brine Line discharges are calculated from the 
average of all the samples collected during the calendar month and invoiced 
on a monthly basis.  If there is no sample data for a given month, strength 
charges for that month shall be determined by using the average value of 
all available data from the previous 12 months. 
 
(E) AGENCY ADMINISTRATIVE CHARGES 

 
Agency Administrative Charges of 50% shall be added to the charges of 
Section 2(A), 2(C), and 2(D). 
 
(F) RECYCLED WATER USAGE CREDIT FOR BRINE LINE 

 
This program is for recycled water (RW) Users and shall end when funding 
is exhausted or not later than June 30, 2024, whichever comes first.  New 
Users who qualify for this program shall be given the recycled water credit 
in effect at the time of connection to the recycled water system.   
 
Recycled Water Users, including contracting agencies, shall be given a 
monetary credit based on the actual amount of RW used. The RW credit 
shall start at 50% of the IEUA’s FY 2014/15 recycled water direct sale rate 
and shall decline at 5% intervals per year through FY 2023/2024. 
 
 



Resolution No. 2022-6-4 

IEBL Rates 

Page 3 of 7 
 

For FY 2022/23, the Recycled Water Usage Credit is $89.00 per million 
gallons of recycled water used. 

 
(G) Other Charges 
 
IEUA will pass on any other charges from SAWPA invoiced to the Agency 
to dischargers to the Brine Line, such as, but not limited to, flow and strength 
imbalances charges, permit fees, inspection fees, analytical fees, etc. 

 
Section 3 For trucked discharges to the Brine Line, the wastewater discharge 
rate shall be based on the applicable Tiered Schedule as established by the higher 
concentration value for BOD or TSS. The Brine Line Tiered Rate Schedule for 
Trucks is shown in Table 1.  

 
Table 1 – Brine Line Tiered Rate Schedule for Trucks 

Tiered 
Schedule 

BOD / TSS 
Concentration 

Volumetric Charge 
Up to 5,000 gallons 

Incremental Charge 
above 5,000 gallons,  
$ per one (1) gallon  

Concentrations over 100 mg/L  

BOD Charge 
$ per lb 

TSS Charge 
$ per lb 

Brine 
BOD and TSS 

Less than 100 mg/L 
$316.90 $0.016    

Non-Brine 
BOD or TSS 

100 mg/L and higher 
$316.90 $0.016 $0.780 $0.745 

 
 

Section 4 That Application fees for a Capacity Right Agreement 
shall be: 

$250.00 
 

 

Section 5 That Initial Wastewater Discharge Permit Application 
and Permit Renewal fees for wastewater generators who discharge 
directly through pipeline connection to the NRWS sewer system shall 
be: 

 

 
 

Initial Wastewater Discharge Permit Application Fees 
(Ownership Change with Process Changes included): 

 
 

 

Categorical Industrial User $4,375.00 
with Combined Waste Stream Formula, add $1,063.00 
with Production Based Standards, add $563.00 
with Multiple Categories, add $2,125.00 

Non-Categorical, Significant Industrial User $3,188.00 
Non-Categorical, Non-Significant Industrial User $2,625.00 
 
  

 

 
  

 

  



Resolution No. 2022-6-4 

IEBL Rates 

Page 4 of 7 
 

Permit Renewal Fees:  
 

Categorical Industrial User $3,250.00 
with Combined Waste Stream Formula, add $563.00 
with Production Based Standards, add $313.00 
with Multiple Categories, add $1,063.00 

Non-Categorical, Significant Industrial User $813.00 
Non-Categorical, Non-Significant Industrial User $563.00 

   
 

Section 6 That Initial Wastewater Discharge Permit Application 
and Permit Renewal fees for wastewater generators whose 
wastewater is hauled away, i.e., by a wastewater trucking company, 
and discharged into the NRWS sewer system shall be: 

 

  

Initial Wastewater Discharge Permit Application Fees:  
(Ownership Change with Process Changes included) 

 

 
 

Categorical Industrial User $2,750.00 
with Combined Waste Stream Formula, add $1,063.00 
with Production Based Standards, add $563.00 
with Multiple Categories, add $2,125.00 

Non-Categorical, Significant Industrial User $1,625.00 
Non-Categorical, Non-Significant Industrial User $1,063.00 

 
 

  

Permit Renewal Fees:  
 

 

Categorical Industrial User $2,250.00 
with Combined Waste Stream Formula, add $563.00 
with Production Based Standards, add $313.00 
with Multiple Categories, add $1,063.00 

Non-Categorical, Significant Industrial User $813.00 
Non-Categorical, Non-Significant Industrial User $563.00  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Resolution No. 2022-6-4 

IEBL Rates 

Page 5 of 7 
 

Section 7 That initial Wastewater Hauler Permit application and 
Permit Renewal fees for the North NRWS shall be:  
 

 

Initial Permit Application for Wastewater Hauler $250.00 
Permit Renewal for Wastewater Hauler $125.00  

 

South NRWS Wastewater Hauler Permit Application and Permit 
Renewal are processed and administered by Santa Ana Watershed 
Project Authority (SAWPA). 

 

 
 

Section 8 That Permit Revision or Facility Expansion fees shall be: $1,625.00 
 

 

Permit Revisions shall be required if the modification affects the 
quantity/quality of the wastewater discharge to deviate from the 
conditions in the current permit by more than 25%.  Such additions or 
modifications include, but are not limited to, the following:  
Maintenance, Monitoring, Change of Discharge Limits, Addition of 
Control Equipment, etc. 

 

 
 

Section 9 That for change of business name with no process 
changes shall be: 

$250.00 
  

That Permit Addendum fees shall be: $813.00  
 

Permit Addendum shall be required if the addition or modification does 
not affect the existing wastewater quantity/quality by more than 25%.  
Such additions or modifications include, but are not limited to, the 
following:  Maintenance, Monitoring, Change of Discharge Limits, 
Addition of Control Equipment, Ownership Change without Process 
Changes, etc. 

 

 
 

Section 10 Toxic Organic Management Plan (TOMP) Processing No Charge 

 
Section 11 Miscellaneous processing fees that do not fall under any of the above 
sections shall be charged based on time and material of staff(s) evaluating such 
process using adopted labor rates for the current fiscal year. 
 
Section 12 That all provisions of the Brine Line Ordinance and any amendments 
thereto are hereby applicable and will remain in full force and effect. 
 
 
 



Resolution No. 2022-6-4 

IEBL Rates 

Page 6 of 7 
 

Section 13 That upon the effective date of this Resolution, the Resolution 
No. 2021-6-4 pertaining to the Inland Empire Brine Line (also known as South 
NRWS) is hereby rescinded in its entirety. 
 

 
 
 
 

ADOPTED this 15th day of June 2022. 
 
 
 
       
Steven J. Elie 
President of the Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency* and of the Board of Directors 
thereof 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Marco Tule 
Secretary/ Treasurer of the Inland Empire 
Utilities Agency* and of the Board of  
Directors thereof 
 
 
*A Municipal Water District 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution No. 2022-6-4 

IEBL Rates 

Page 7 of 7 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA   ) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO ) 
 

I, Marco Tule, Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, 

DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution being No. 2022-6-4 as adopted at 

a regular Board meeting on June 15, 2022, of said Agency* by the following vote: 

 
 

AYES:   
 

NOES:   
 

ABSTAIN:  
 

ABSENT:  
 
 

  ________________________________ 
       Marco Tule     
       Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
 
 
* A Municipal Water District 



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-6-5 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE INLAND EMPIRE 
UTILITIES AGENCY*, SAN   BERNARDINO   COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, 
ESTABLISHING IMPORTED WATER RATES. 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Division II, Part II, Section 201 of Ordinance No. 104, the Board 
of Directors of Inland Empire Utilities Agency* (Agency) establishes, from time to time, rates for 
water sold or delivered by direct connections to Metropolitan Water District of Southern 
California (MWD) facilities; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Agency establishes rates for delivery of 
imported water supplies; and the rates are based on the approved and adopted biennial budget 
rates by the MWD Board on April 12, 2022; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors hereby RESOLVES, DETERMINES AND 
ORDERS the following to be effective July 1, 2022, and January 1, 2023, and to remain in effect 
until rescinded by a new resolution: 
 
 Section 1.  That the rates of sales of imported water are direct pass-through charged by 
Metropolitan for each class of water.  The rates, by class of water are as follows: 
 

(a)    FOR TIER 1 FULL SERVICE UNTREATED  
 WATER – i.e., domestic and municipal purposes:    
 
 01/1/2022 – 12/31/2022  $799.00 per acre foot 
 01/1/2023 – 12/31/2023  $855.00 per acre foot 
 01/1/2024 – 12/31/2024  $903.00 per acre foot 
 
 
(b) FOR TIER 2 FULL SERVICE UNTREATED  
 WATER – i.e., domestic and municipal purposes:    

  
 01/1/2022 – 12/31/2022  $841.00 per acre foot 
 01/1/2023 – 12/31/2023  $1,064.00 per acre foot 
 01/1/2024 – 12/31/2024  $1,102.00 per acre foot 



Resolution No. 2022-6-5 

Page 2 of 4 

 
(c)    FOR GROUND WATER STORAGE PROGRAM 
 

REPLENISHMENT WATER UNTREATED – This rate is available contingent upon 
the requirements of Metropolitan’s Administrative Code, and includes water 
delivered for groundwater replenishment and storage, by direct or in-lieu methods. 
 

 01/1/2022 – 12/31/2022 (NO RATE AVAILABLE) 
          01/1/2023 – 12/31/2023 (NO RATE AVAILABLE) 
          01/1/2024 – 12/31/2024 (NO RATE AVAILABLE) 
 

 

(d) METROPOLITAN WATER SUPPLY ALLOCATION PLAN (WSAP) PENALTY 
RATE of $2,000/AF beginning June 1, 2022 – Reduced imported water allocations 
caused by the adoption of a WSAP will reduce a member agencies Tier 1 allocation 
pursuant to Resolution 2016-9-1. Penalty rates will be applied in accordance to 
Metropolitan’s WSAP to IEUA and its member agencies if IEUA exceeds its 
imported water allocation from MWD and is invoiced by MWD for WSAP penalty 
rates.  Any such penalty rates shall be “passed through” to the appropriate agency 
that caused the imposition of a penalty rate by MWD.  

  
  

 Section 2.  That IEUA will impose any Metropolitan rates and charges, applicable to 
 each service connection, if invoiced by Metropolitan to IEUA during FY 2022/23 and FY   
           2023/2024 
  
  

Section 3.  That the Metropolitan levied Capacity Charge ($/cfs) shall be as follows: 
 
 01/1/2022 – 12/31/2022             $  12,200 per cubic foot per second (cfs) 
 01/1/2023 – 12/31/2023             $  10,600 per cubic foot per second (cfs) 
 01/1/2024 – 12/31/2024             $  11,200 per cubic foot per second (cfs) 
 

 
Section 4.   That a minimum charge of $1,000 per month will be collected from any 
active Metropolitan full service industrial connection beginning 7/1/2022 through 
6/30/2024. 

 
 
Section 5.    In the event of any delinquent payments for bills related to imported water 
or other charges, the Agency will apply Division III, Part I, Section 107 of Ordinance No. 
104 
 
Section 6.    That upon the effective date of this Resolution, Resolution No. 2021-6-7 is 
hereby rescinded in its entirety. 

 
 



Resolution No. 2022-6-5 

Page 3 of 4 

ADOPTED this 15th day of June 2022. 
 
 

 
                         
Steven J. Elie 
President of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency* 
and of the Board of Directors thereof 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Marco Tule 
Secretary/ Treasurer of the Inland Empire 
Utilities Agency* and of the Board of  
Directors thereof 
 
 
*a Municipal Water District 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution No. 2022-6-5 

Page 4 of 4 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA   ) 

)SS 
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO ) 
 

I, Marco Tule, Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, DO 

HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution being No. 2022-6-5, was adopted at a regular 

meeting on June 15, 2022, of said Agency* by the following vote: 

 
 

AYES:   
 

NOES:  
 

ABSTAIN:  
 

ABSENT:  
 
 
 
 

  ________________________________ 
       Marco Tule      
       Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
 
* A Municipal Water District 

 
  



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-6-6 
 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE INLAND 
EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY*, SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY, 
CALIFORNIA, ESTABLISHING EQUIPMENT RENTAL RATES FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023. 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Inland Empire Utilities Agency* is required by Agency 
Ordinance No. 28, Section 3, to establish, from time to time, rates for rental of maintenance and 
construction equipment. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors hereby RESOLVES, DETERMINES AND 
ORDERS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 28, that the rates for equipment rental are as shown in 
Exhibit 1 attached hereto and are effective July 1, 2022, and remain in effect until rescinded by a 
new resolution: 
 

Upon the effective date of this Resolution, Resolution No. 2021-6-8 is hereby rescinded in 
its entirety. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution No. 2022-6-6 

Equipment Rental 

Page 2 of 4 

 
ADOPTED this 15th day of June 2022. 

 
 
 

                         
Steven J. Elie 
President of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency* 
and of the Board of Directors thereof 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Marco Tule 
Secretary/ Treasurer of the Inland Empire 
Utilities Agency* and of the Board of  
Directors thereof 
 
 
*a Municipal Water District 
 
 



Resolution No. 2022-6-6 

Equipment Rental 

Page 3 of 4 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
)SS 

COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO ) 

I, Marco Tule, Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, DO 

HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution being No. 2022-6-6 was adopted at a regular 

meeting on June 15, 2022, of said Agency* by the following vote: 

AYES:  

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

________________________________ 
Marco Tule  
Secretary/Treasurer 

(SEAL) 

* A Municipal Water District





RESOLUTION NO. 2022-6-7 
 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE INLAND 
EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY*, SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY, 
CALIFORNIA, ESTABLISHING CHARGES FOR LABORATORY 
ANALYSES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022/23 

 
 

WHEREAS, The Agency occasionally enters into agreements with other local 
governmental agencies to perform laboratory analyses; and 
 

WHEREAS, the most efficient and practical method of charging for this work is through 
the establishment of a price for each analysis. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors hereby RESOLVES, DETERMINES AND 
ORDERS, that, effective July 1, 2022, the single item prices for laboratory analyses are as 
shown on Exhibit 1 attached hereto, and remain in effect until rescinded by a new resolution: 
 

Upon the effective date of this Resolution, Resolution No. 2021-6-5 is hereby rescinded in 
its entirety. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution No. 2022-6-7 

Laboratory Fees 

Page 2 of 4 

 
ADOPTED this 15th day of June 2022. 

 
   
 

                         
Steven J. Elie 
President of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency* 
and of the Board of Directors thereof 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Marco Tule 
Secretary/ Treasurer of the Inland Empire 
Utilities Agency* and of the Board of  
Directors thereof 
 
 
*a Municipal Water District 
 



Resolution No. 2022-6-7 

Laboratory Fees 

Page 3 of 4 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA   ) 

)SS 
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO ) 
 

I, Marco Tule, Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, DO 

HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution being No. 2022-6-7, was adopted at a 

regular meeting on June 15, 2022, of said Agency* by the following vote: 

 
 

AYES:    
  

NOES:   
 

ABSTAIN:   
 

ABSENT:   
 
 
 

  ________________________________ 
       Marco Tule     
       Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
 
 
* A Municipal Water District 
 
 
 
 





       CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

 1K 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

June 15, 2022

Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-6-8, Establishing the Appropriations Limit for Fiscal
Year (FY) 2022/23

In accordance with State Legislation Proposition 4 and Proposition 111, the Agency annually
adopts an appropriations limit, or limit to the amount of property tax proceeds that can be spent
each year.

To calculate the annual appropriations limit, the Agency applies the population growth and per
capita personal income tax (PIT) growth factors to the prior year's appropriations limit. For FY
2022/23, San Bernardino County population increased by 0.14 percent and the State of
California PIT index was 7.55 percent. As a result, the Agency's total appropriations limit for
FY 2022/23 is $232.1 million, an increase of $16.6 million, or 7.70 percent, compared to the
limit of $215.5 million for FY 2021/22. The expenses that will utilize anticipated property tax
revenue of $74.0 million are well below the FY 2022/23 calculated appropriations limit.

The state required minimum 15-day notice of the Agency's intent to adopt the appropriations
limit and documentation of staff's determination of the limit has been met.

It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt Resolution No. 2022-6-8 establishing the
appropriations limit for Fiscal Year 2022/23.

The appropriations limit will not affect the Agency's proposed spending levels or reserves, as the
proposed expenditures are projected to be supported primarily by non-ad valorem tax revenue
sources, such as user fees and rates. Expenses that will utilize tax revenue are expected to be
well below the FY 2022/23 appropriations limit.

06/08/22Finance & Administration

Javier Chagoyen-Lazaro, Acting Assistant General Manager

N N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

Establishing the appropriations limit for FY 2022/23 is consistent with the Agency's business
goal of Fiscal Responsibility in funding and appropriation.

On August 18, 2021, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 2021-8-1, establishing the
revised appropriations limit for FY 2021/22.

Attachment 1 - Background
Attachment 2 - Resolution No. 2022-6-8
Attachment 3 - PowerPoint

Not Applicable

22141

















Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-6-8, 
Establishing the Appropriations Limit 

for FY 2022/23

Alex Lopez
Acting Budget Officer

June 2022



• It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt Resolution No. 2022-6-8, 
establishing the appropriations limit for Fiscal Year 2022/23, and rescind Resolutions No. 
2021-8-1 adopted in August 2021. 

2

Recommendation





ACTION  
ITEM 

2A



General Manager

Budget Impact 

June 15, 2022



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

22153



Attachment 1









Attachment 2



2022 CSDA BOARD CANDIDATE INFORMATION SHEET
The following information MUST accompany your nomination form and Resolution/minute order: 

Name: ______________________________________________________________________

District/Company: ____________________________________________________________

Title: _______________________________________________________________________

Elected/Appointed/Staff: _______________________________________________________

Length of Service with District: _________________________________________________

1. Do you have current involvement with CSDA (such as committees, events,
workshops, conferences, Governance Academy, etc.):

____________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________

2. Have you ever been associated with any other state-wide associations (CSAC, ACWA,
League, etc.):

____________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________

3. List local government involvement (such as LAFCo, Association of Governments,
etc.):

____________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________

4. List civic organization involvement:

____________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________

**Candidate Statement – Although it is not required, each candidate is requested to submit a 
candidate statement of no more than 300 words in length.  Any statements received in the 
CSDA office after March 31, 2022 will not be included with the ballot. 

Phelan Pinon Hills Community Services District

Don Bartz

General Manager

Staff

14 years

I currently hold the CSDM designation through CSDA and I was appointed to my

position on the CSDA Board in 2020. I attend most CSDA conferences and events.

LAFCo, ASBCSD (local chapter of CSDA) High Desert Mountain Water Association

ACWA, AWWA, CPRA, CalRural Water

I serve as a commissioner on the Hesperia Planning Commission

Institute for Local Government



760-868-1212 x306                  dbartz@pphcsd.org                4176 Warbler Road • Phelan, CA 92371

DON BARTZ

GENERAL MANAGER

CANDIDATE  STATEMENT

It is an honor to be considered for election to CSDA's Seat B - Southern Network to continue 
my service as a member of the Board of Directors. I have been active with CSDA for over 20 
years during my time as General Manager for three different Southern Network agencies. I 
hold the Certified Special District Manager designation through CSDA and I understand just 
how valuable membership in CSDA is for special districts. Special districts often do not have 
a voice with our legislators and CSDA advocates for us. Most recently, when special districts 
were completely overlooked in regard to state and federal COVID-19 funds, CSDA worked 
with our legislators to provide COVID-19 funding for special districts.

I have been the General Manager of the Phelan Pinon Hills Community Services District 
(“District”) since it formed 14 years ago. Our District has utilized CSDA’s education and 
legislative programs to educate both District directors and staff in order to establish sound 
governance and best practices for our authorized services. I have served on CSDA’s
Professional Development and Membership Committees and recommend all special districts 
join CSDA to strengthen our coalition and bring recognition to our unique districts.
 
Because my District provides water, parks and recreation, solid waste, and street lighting 
services, I will bring a variety of experience and understanding of the needs of special 
districts in our region. As a regular attendee of CSDA conferences and workshops, I am 
willing to attend meetings and conferences. As a regular panelist on CSDA’s, “So You Want to 
be a General Manager,” workshop, I understand the role CSDA plays in helping general 
managers manage special districts and how CSDA is essential in training the next generation 
of managerial staff. 

I currently serve as CSDA's representative for the Institute of Local Government and I also 
serve as an appointed planning commissioner for the City of Hesperia. I understand the land 
use and other hurdles special districts face when developing projects. I will utilize my 
legislative relationships for the benefit of CSDA members to advocate for special districts 
and to ensure we have a voice in the legislature and are considered for funding and grants. I 
would be honored to receive your agency’s vote. 

CONTACT INFORMATION



2022 CSDA BOARD CANDIDATE INFORMATION SHEET 
The following information MUST accompany your nomination form and Resolution/minute order: 

Name: ______________________________________________________________________ 

District/Company: ____________________________________________________________ 
 
Title: _______________________________________________________________________

Elected/Appointed/Staff: _______________________________________________________

Length of Service with District: _________________________________________________ 

1. Do you have current involvement with CSDA (such as committees, events,
workshops, conferences, Governance Academy, etc.):

____________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________ 

2. Have you ever been associated with any other state-wide associations (CSAC, ACWA,
League, etc.):

____________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

3. List local government involvement (such as LAFCo, Association of Governments,
etc.):

____________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

4. List civic organization involvement:

____________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

**Candidate Statement – Although it is not required, each candidate is requested to submit a 
candidate statement of no more than 300 words in length.  Any statements received in the 
CSDA office after March 31, 2022 will not be included with the ballot.

Ken Endter

Fallbrook Public Utility District

Director

Elected

4 years

Workshops and events

ACWA workshops and events

San Diego County Emergency Preparedness, Supervisor District #14

Attachment 3



2022 CSDA BOARD CANDIDATE INFORMATION SHEET 
The following information MUST accompany your nomination form and Resolution/minute order: 

Name: ______________________________________________________________________ 

District/Company: ____________________________________________________________ 

Title: _______________________________________________________________________ 

Elected/Appointed/Staff: _______________________________________________________ 

Length of Service with District: _________________________________________________ 

1. Do you have current involvement with CSDA (such as committees, events,
workshops, conferences, Governance Academy, etc.):

 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

2. Have you ever been associated with any other state-wide associations (CSAC, ACWA,
League, etc.):

 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

3. List local government involvement (such as LAFCo, Association of Governments,
etc.):

 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

4. List civic organization involvement:
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

**Candidate Statement – Although it is not required, each candidate is requested to submit a 
candidate statement of no more than 300 words in length.  Any statements received in the 
CSDA office after March 31, 2022 will not be included with the ballot. 

Beverli A. Marshall

Valley Sanitary District

General Manager

Staff

2.5 years

I am currently on the Professional Development and Membership Services

committees. I have served on various committees over the past 10 years.

I am a member of CSMFO, CASA, CWEA, CalPELRA, and Cal-ICMA. I am also a

member of NACWA, AWWA, ICMA, WEF, and WateReuse.

I serve on the Advisory Board of the UCSB Professional & Continuing Education Women in Leadership Executive

Program and am Chairman for the Water Sector Management Committe for the Desert Region Apprenticeship Program.

I am President of Indio Sunrise Rotary club, Parliamentarian of the Woman's Club of Indio, a member of the

Daughters of the American Revolution, and my application is being processed for the Mayflower Society.

Attachment 4



Beverli A. Marshall
General Manager

Valley Sanitary District

Masters - ABCD : 2009

Candidate - Southern Network (Seat B) 

EDUCATION

BOARD EXPERIENCE

CERTIFICATION

VOTE

Doctoral Candidate - 2022
Business Administration 

MPA - 1996
Public Administration

CSDA
Professional Development, Legislative, 
Elections & Bylaws, Fiscal, and 
Membership Services committees

Mt. View Sanitary District
Board Member

If elected, I will serve the Southern 
Network ethically, responsibly, and 
enthusiastically. Remember - ballots will 
be sent out electronically before June 2 
and are due July 8. 

ABOUT ME
I have worked in public agencies for 
over 20 years and, for the past 13 
years, served in management 
positions at special districts. I am an 
outspoken advocate for the critical 
work that districts do for their 
communities every day.

Bachelor of Arts - 1994
Sociology

CWEA
DEI Task Force

AWWA
Workforce Strategies Committee

Vote for Beverli A. Marshall - Southern Network (Seat B)

VOLUNTEER

Indio Sunrise Rotary Club
Board President

Woman's Club of Indio
Board Parliamentarian

SDLF
Certified Special District Manager

ICMA
Credentialed Manager

SDLF
Special District Governance

CSMFO
Budget Award Review

CSRMA 
Board Member



ACTION  
ITEM 

2B



General Manager

Budget Impact 

June 15, 2022

Adoption of the Fiscal Year 2022/23 - 2031/32 Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan 
and Ten-Year Forecast

The Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan (TYCIP) is a planning tool used to outline IEUA’ s
capital priorities through a list of ongoing and future projects. The TYCIP proposes a schedule
for the implementation of projects agency-wide, based on necessity to ensure reliability and
safety while meeting all regulatory requirements. This TYCIP identifies capital projects for the
Fiscal Year (FY) 2022/2023 through FY 2031/2032 time frame. Over the next ten years IEUA is
planning approximately $1,190,606,459 in capital improvement projects, of which 46% is
expected to be in the Regional Wastewater Capital Improvement fund.

In addition, IEUA staff annually presents the TYCIP as a courtesy to the Regional Technical and
Policy Committees before adoption by the Board of Directors. Pursuant to Section 9A of the
Regional Sewage Service Contract, the Inland Empire Utilities Agency will submit a subset of
the TYCIP, the Ten-Year Forecast (TYF), to the Regional Technical Committee for review and
Policy Committee for approval. The TYF includes wastewater flow forecasts, a description of
planned wastewater capital projects, capital project expenditures, plant capacities, and available
funding of the Regional Wastewater Capital Improvement (RC) Fund. The Regional Policy
Committee's approval authority applies to capital wastewater projects that address future 
demands.

Adopt the Fiscal Years 2022/23-2031/32 Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan and Ten-
Year Forecast.

Comprehensive of all agency projects.

Aligned with Fiscal Year 2022/23 proposed biennial budget.

Javier Chagoyen-Lazaro, Acting Assistant General Manager

Y Y

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Ten-Year Forecast covers many programs and projects that directly align with several 
Agency Business Goals, including Water Reliability, Wastewater Management, Environmental 
Stewardship, Business Practices, and Fiscal Responsibility.

The Fiscal Year 2022/23-2031/32 Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan & Ten-Year
Forecast was presented to the Board on March 16, 2022 as an informational item.

Each project listed within the TYCIP & TYF will have it's own environmental impact 
determination.

Attachment 1 - PowerPoint 
Attachment 2 - TYCIP Report

Not Applicable

22146



20  20





*All values rounded to nearest million ($)



RP-5 Expansion
February 2022





*FY 2021/22 capital project totals are from the adopted agency budget







Adopt iscal ear   and Ten Year 
Forecast

The proposed FY 2022/23 -2031/32 Ten Year Capital Improvement Plan is consistent with the IEUA Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility, 
Water Reliability, Wastewater Management, Environmental Stewardship, and Business Practices



2022

I E U A ' s
T e n - Y e a r  C a p i t a l
I m p r o v e m e n t  P l a n



IEUA Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan FY 2022/2023 

1 

Contents 
ABBREVIATIONS .................................................................................................................... 2 

SECTION 1: BACKGROUND ................................................................................................... 3 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency Overview ............................................................................. 3 

Formation & Purpose ................................................................................................................. 3 

Governance.................................................................................................................................... 3 

Contracting Agencies .................................................................................................................. 4 

Member Agencies ........................................................................................................................ 5 

SECTION 2: TEN-YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN INTRODUCTION ................... 6 

Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan Purpose ..................................................................... 6 

Definition of a Capital Project .................................................................................................. 6 

SECTION 3: PROGRAM FUNDS ............................................................................................. 7 

Program Fund Summary ........................................................................................................... 7 

Administrative Services (GG) Fund ........................................................................................ 7 

Non-Reclaimable Wastewater (NC) Fund ............................................................................. 8 

Regional Wastewater Capital Improvement (RC) Fund .................................................... 9 

Regional Wastewater Operation and Maintenance (RO) Fund ....................................... 9 

Recharge Water Fund (RW) Fund ......................................................................................... 10 

Recycled Water (WC) Fund ..................................................................................................... 11 

Water Resources (WW) Fund ................................................................................................. 12 

SECTION 4: TEN YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT LIST ................................ 13 

Ten Year Capital Improvement Project List Summary .................................................... 13 

APPENDIX A: Ten-Year Capital Improvement Project List ......................................... 14 

APPENDIX B: Grant Dependent Capital Projects .................................................... ...... 1

APPENDIX C: Ten-Year Operations & Maintenance Project List ............................... 

APPENDIX D: Ten-Year Forecast ..................................................................................... . 



IEUA Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan FY 2022/2023 

2 

ABBREVIATIONS 

AF: Acre Feet 

CVWD: Cucamonga Valley Water District 

EWL: Etiwanda Wastewater Line 

FWC: Fontana Water Company 

FY: Fiscal Year 

GG Fund: Administrative Services Fund 

IEUA: Inland Empire Utilities Agency 

IEBL: Inland Empire Brine Line 

MVWD: Monte Vista Water District 

MWD: Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 

NC Fund: Non-Reclaimable Wastewater Fund 

NRWS: Non-Reclaimable Wastewater System 

O&M: Operation and Maintenance 

RC Fund: Regional Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund 

RO Fund: Regional Wastewater Operations and Maintenance Improvement Fund 

RRWDS: Regional Recycled Water Distribution System 

RW Fund: Groundwater Recharge Fund 

TYCIP: Ten Year Capital Improvement Plan 

Regional Contract: Chino Basin Regional Sewage Service Contract 

RP: Regional Water Recycling Plant 

WC Fund: Recycled Water Fund 

WW Fund: Water Administration Fund 



IEUA Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan FY 2022/2023 

3 

SECTION 1: BACKGROUND 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency Overview 

The Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) is a regional wastewater treatment agency and 
wholesale distributor of imported water. IEUA is responsible for serving approximately 
875,000 people over 242 square miles in western San Bernardino County. IEUA is focused 
on providing three key services: (1) treating wastewater, developing recycled water, local 
water resources, and conservation programs to reduce dependence on imported water 
supplies and provide local supply resiliency to the region; (2) converting biosolids and waste 
products into a high-quality compost made from recycled materials; and (3) generating 
electrical energy from renewable sources.  

Formation & Purpose 

IEUA was originally formed as the Chino Basin Municipal Water District on June 6, 1950, as 
a municipal corporation with the mission to supply supplemental imported water purchased 
from the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD) to municipalities in the 
Chino Basin. Since then, IEUA has expanded its mission from a supplemental water supplier 
to include regional wastewater treatment with both domestic and industrial disposal 
systems along with energy production facilities. In addition, IEUA has become a major 
provider of recycled water, a supplier of biosolids/compost materials, and continues its 
leading role in water quality management and environmental protection in the Inland 
Empire. 

Governance 

IEUA is a special district governed by five publicly elected Board of Directors. Each director 
is assigned to one of the five divisions which generally serve the following regions: Division 
1- Upland/Montclair; Division 2- Ontario; Division 3- Chino/Chino Hills; Division 4- Fontana;
and Division 5- Rancho Cucamonga. Monthly meetings are also held with the Regional
Technical and Policy Committees comprised of representatives from each of IEUA’s Regional
Sewer Service Contracting Agencies. These Committees discuss and provide
recommendations on various technical and policy issues affecting IEUA.



IEUA Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan FY 2022/2023 

4 

Contracting Agencies 

As a regional wastewater treatment agency, IEUA provides sewage utility services to seven 
contracting agencies under the Chino Basin Regional Sewage Service Contract (Regional 
Contract): the cities of Chino, Chino Hills, Fontana, Montclair, Ontario, and Upland along with 
Cucamonga Valley Water District. Figure 1 depicts each Contracting Agency’s sphere of 
influence within IEUA’s service area.   

Figure 1 – IEUA Contracting Agencies 



IEUA Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan FY 2022/2023 

5 

Member Agencies 

As a member of MWD and the regions wholesale imported water provided, IEUA serves 
seven retail water agencies: the cities of Chino, Chino Hills, Ontario, Upland, Cucamonga 
Valley Water District (CVWD) in the City of Rancho Cucamonga, Fontana Water Company 
(FWC) in the city of Fontana, and the Monte Vista Water District (MVWD). Figure 2 depicts 
each Member Agency’s sphere of influence within IEUA’s service area.   

Figure 2 – IEUA Member Agencies 



IEUA Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan FY 2022/2023 
 

6 
 

SECTION 2: TEN-YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN INTRODUCTION 

Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan Purpose 

The Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan (TYCIP) is a report that outlines IEUA’s capital 
priorities through a list of ongoing and future projects. The TYCIP proposes a schedule for 
the implementation of projects agency wide based on necessity. In contrast, the Ten-Year 
Forecast, published by IEUA and attached to this report as Appendix D, solely identifies 
wastewater capital projects as required in the Regional Sewage Service Contract. While 
wastewater capital projects are found on both the Ten-Year Forecast and TYCIP, the TYCIP 
includes capital projects beyond those required for the wastewater system. The timing of 
projects on the TYCIP may be further refined through the Capital Budget process, based on 
the availability of financial resources.  

The IEUA Board of Directors adopts and publishes the TYCIP in order to provide 
transparency into the ongoing and future projects the agency requires over the next ten 
years. Projects identified in the TYCIP are necessary for IEUA to ensure reliability and safety 
while meeting all regulatory requirements. Some of the factors that may lead to the need for 
a capital project include the physical conditions of assets and the forecasted regional 
projections for water and wastewater needs. This TYCIP identifies capital projects for the 
Fiscal Year (FY) 2022/2023 through FY 2031/2032 timeframe.  

Definition of a Capital Project 

The TYCIP is composed of a list of capital projects, which are projects that involve the 
purchase, improvement, or construction of major fixed assets and equipment, such as the 
expansion of treatment plants, the construction of pipeline and pump stations, and the 
replacement of equipment. Capital projects do not include funds spent on standard operation 
and maintenance (O&M). However, O&M projects are listed as an appendix to this TYCIP, see 
Appendix C. 

  



IEUA Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan FY 2022/2023 
 

7 
 

SECTION 3: PROGRAM FUNDS 

Program Fund Summary 

Projects listed on the TYCIP are categorized by fund. Over the next ten years, IEUA is 
planning approximately $1,190,606,459 in capital improvement projects, of which 46% is 
expected to be in the Regional Wastewater Capital Improvement fund. Agency-wide, capital 
project expenses in the first year of the TYCIP are estimated to be approximately 
$200,825,466. Table 1 below outlines the timing of the projected capital spending by fund.  

Table 1: FY 2022/23 TYCIP Total by Fund ($ in millions) 
Fund Year One  

FY 2022/23 
Year Two 

FY 2023/24 
Years 3-10 

FY 2024/31 
Ten Year Total  
FY 2022-2031 

Administrative 
Services (GG)  $4.66  $2.41 $22.88  $29.95  

Non-Reclaimable 
Wastewater (NC)  $9.35  12.93  $13.24  $35.52 

Regional Wastewater 
Capital Improvement 

(RC) 
$134.18   $135.90  $274.33  $544.40 

Regional Wastewater 
Operations & 

Maintenance (RO) 
$22.67  $34.63  $150.67   $207.97 

Recharge Water 
(RW)  $11.17 $3.32  $4.00   $18.49 

Recycled Water (WC)  $13.75 $22.50 $312.98   $349.23 
Water Resources 

(WW)  $5.04 $0.00  $0.00   $5.04 

TOTAL  $200.83 $211.69   $778.10  $1,190.61 
*Numbers are based on the TYCIP Project List (Appendix A). All values rounded. 

Administrative Services (GG) Fund 

The GG Fund serves as IEUA’s general fund and capital expenses include agency supplies 
such as computers, printers, copiers, pooled vehicles, and other purchases. Major projects 
included in the TYCIP include Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) implementation, agency-
wide roofing, and central plant cooling tower replacement. Total spending over the ten-year 
window is projected to be $29,952,040.  

  



IEUA Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan FY 2022/2023 

8 

Non-Reclaimable Wastewater (NC) Fund 

Projects funded through the NC Fund are associated with IEUA’s Non-Reclaimable 
Wastewater System (NRWS), which is a collections system physically separated from the 
agency’s wastewater sewage system. The NRWS includes pipelines and pump stations that 
serve to export high-salinity industrial wastewater generated in IEUA’s service area for 
treatment and eventual discharge to the Pacific Ocean. The wastewater discharged to the 
NRWS is primarily comprised of industrial and groundwater treatment brine. The NRWS is 
operated by IEUA and is comprised of three independent collections systems, the North non-
reclaimable wastewater system, the Etiwanda Wastewater Line (EWL), and the Inland 
Empire Brine Line (IEBL) also known as the South NRWS. Figure 3 is a map that outlines the 
NRWS system. 

Capital projects in the NC Fund may include the acquisition, construction, expansion, or 
replacement of NRWS sewer lines, interceptors, and supporting facilities. Major projects 
included in the TYCIP include Philadelphia Lift Station force main improvements, 
Philadelphia Lift Station pump improvements, NRWS odor mitigation, and NRWS manhole 
upgrades.  Total spending over the ten-year window is projected to be $35,522,000.

Figure 3 – IEUA Non-Reclaimable Wastewater System 



IEUA Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan FY 2022/2023 
 

9 
 

Regional Wastewater Capital Improvement (RC) Fund 

In accordance with the Regional Contract, the regional funding for the wastewater system is 
split into capital improvement and operations and maintenance funds. The RC Fund covers 
capital project costs associated with IEUA’s regional wastewater system. Expenses charged 
to the RC Fund include capital projects that are required to meet regional growth in the forms 
of flow, loading, capacity or other factors. Major projects in the RC fund included in the TYCIP 
include the expansion of Regional Plant-5, capacity recovery at Regional Plant-1, and 
thickening building and acid phase digester at Regional Plant-1. Total spending over the ten-
year window is projected to be $544,403,853. A detailed review of RC fund projects over the 
next ten years can be found in IEUA’s Ten-Year Forecast (TYF), which is attached to this 
report as Appendix D.  Figure 4 below outlines the regional wastewater system.  

Regional Wastewater Operation and Maintenance (RO) Fund 

The RO Fund covers the operations and maintenance costs associated with IEUA’s regional 
wastewater system. Operations and maintenance costs can have capital components 
included in the TYCIP including the cost to rehabilitate fixed assets. Major projects in the RO 
fund included in the TYCIP include the construction of an advanced water purification 
facility, updates to the Enterprise System, and Regional Plant-1 influent pump station 
electrical improvements. Total spending over the ten-year window is projected to be 
$207,966,600. 

 
Figure 4 – IEUA Regional Wastewater System 



IEUA Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan FY 2022/2023 

10 

Recharge Water Fund (RW) Fund 

In conjunction with Chino Basin Water Master, Chino Basin Water Conservation District, and 
San Bernardino County Flood Control District, IEUA implements and operates the Recycled 
Water Groundwater Recharge Program within Chino Basin to replenish and maintain the 
Chino Groundwater Basin. Infrastructure associated with the RW Fund includes a network 
of pipelines that directs captured stormwater, recycled water, and imported water to 
recharge sites. The groundwater recharge projects are a means to diversify the water supply 
for the region and maximize the beneficial reuse of recycled water and the yield of the Chino 
Basin. Recycled water recharge is a key component of the region’s water supply portfolio. 
The more recycled water that is recharged into the Chino Groundwater Basin, the more 
resilient the region becomes. Figure 5 is a map of the recharge basins used in groundwater 
recharge.  

Major projects in the RW Fund included in the TYCIP include the completion of Recharge 
Master Plan Update projects and safety work for basin gate actuator access. Total spending 
over the ten-year window is projected to be $18,488,700.

Figure 5 – Chino Basin Groundwater Recharge Locations 



IEUA Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan FY 2022/2023 
 

11 
 

Recycled Water (WC) Fund 

IEUA and its member agencies have invested in the construction of a Regional Recycled 
Water Distribution System (RRWDS). The RRWDS consists of a network of pipelines, storage 
tanks, and pump stations that serve customers with Title 22 treated water from IEUA’s water 
recycling facilities. The use of recycled water provides a high-quality alternative water 
source for the region that can be used directly by customers or recharged into the 
groundwater as a way to improve regional resiliency.  Figure 6 is a map of the RRWDS 
infrastructure.  

Capital projects in the WC fund are associated with the expansion and improvement of the 
RRWDS infrastructure. Major projects included in the TYCIP include 6 thousand AF per year 
of advanced water treatment capacity and injection wells, a recycled water interconnection 
to the City of Rialto, and a recycled water connection to the Jurupa Community Service 
District. Total spending over the ten-year window is projected to be $349,230,000. 

 

Figure 6 – Regional Recycled Water Distribution System  



IEUA Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan FY 2022/2023 
 

12 
 

Water Resources (WW) Fund 

Projects in the WW Fund are associated with the management and distribution of imported 
water supplies, development and implementation of regional water use efficiency initiatives, 
water resources planning efforts, and support for regional water supply programs including 
recycled water, groundwater recharge, and stormwater management. The majority of 
projects in the WW fund are O&M by nature, which can be found listed in Appendix C. The 
only capital project included in the TYCIP is associated with the Chino Basin Program 
evaluation. Total spending over the ten-year window is projected to be $5,043,266. 

 

  



IEUA Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan FY 2022/2023 

13 

SECTION 4: TEN YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT LIST 

Ten Year Capital Improvement Project List Summary 

The TYCIP contains capital projects which were identified by IEUA staff and include 
expansion projects to provide additional treatment capacity to meet future growth. Drivers 
used to determine the timeframe and necessity of projects include regulatory and permitting 
requirements, wastewater flow projections, asset age, performance, efficiency, and grant or 
funding availability. Over the next ten years IEUA is planning $1,190.61 million in capital 
improvement projects. This is a 41% increase from the FY 2021/22 TYCIP total of $841.61 
million. The change in spending can be partially attributed towards the inclusion of the 
construction of an advanced water purification facility and the expansion of the recycled 
water program via injection wells and new interconnections. Table 2 below provides a 
comparison between IEUA’s FY 2020/21 TYCIP projection and the current FY 2022/23 
projection by fund. The list will be updated regularly as facility needs are reprioritized. An 
estimated ten-year budget for capital project by fund is summarized in Table 2.  

Table 2: TYCIP 2021/22 and 2022/23 Comparison* 

Fund FY 2021/22  
($ in Millions) 

FY 2022/23 
($ in Millions) 

Administrative Services Fund 
(GG) $11.45 $29.95 

Non-Reclaimable Wastewater 
Fund (NC) $31.45  $35.52 

Regional Capital Improvement 
Fund (RC) $610.51  $544.40 

Regional Operations and 
Maintenance (RO) $92.36 $207.97 

Recharge Water Fund (RW) $24.97  $18.49 

Recycled Water Fund (WC) $60.78  $349.23 

Water Resources Fund (WW) $10.09  $5.04 

TOTAL $841.61  $1,190.61 
*FY 2021/22 capital spending is from IEUA’s adopted budget.  FY 2022/23 capital spending is
based on the projected TYCIP Project List (Appendix A). All dollars have been rounded.



IEUA Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan FY 2022/2023 
 

14 
 

APPENDIX A: Ten-Year Capital Improvement Project List 
  









IEUA Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan FY 2022/2023 

1  

APPENDIX B: Grant Dependent Capital Projects 





IEUA Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan FY 2022/2023 

 

APPENDIX C: Ten-Year Operations & Maintenance Project List 







IEUA Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan FY 2022/2023 

 

APPENDIX D: Ten-Year Forecast 



20
22

I E U A ' s
T e n - Y e a r  F o r e c a s t



IEUA Ten-Year Forecast FY 2022/2023 

1 

Contents 
ABBREVIATIONS .............................................................................................................................. 2 

SECTION 1: BACKGROUND ............................................................................................................. 3 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency Overview ............................................................................. 3 
Formation & Purpose .................................................................................................................. 3 
Governance .................................................................................................................................... 3 
Contracting Agencies .................................................................................................................. 3 

SECTION 2: INTRODUCTION TO THE TEN-YEAR FORECAST ................................................ 5 
Ten-Year Forecast Purpose ....................................................................................................... 5 
Definition of a Capital Project................................................................................................... 5 
Regional Sewage Service Contract Requirements and Plan Adoption .......................... 5 

SECTION 3: REGIONAL WATER RECYCLING INFRASTRUCTURE .......................................... 6 
Regional Wastewater Recycling Plants .................................................................................. 6 
Regional Wastewater System ................................................................................................... 6 
Carbon Canyon Water Reclamation Facility ......................................................................... 7 
Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 1 .................................................................................... 7 
Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 2 .................................................................................... 8 
Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 4 .................................................................................... 8 
Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 5 .................................................................................... 8 
Regional Wastewater Recycling Plant Capacity .................................................................. 9 
Capacity Expansion ...................................................................................................................... 9 
System Loading ........................................................................................................................... 10 

SECTION 4: EQUIVALENT DWELLING UNITS........................................................................... 12 
Historical EDU Activity ............................................................................................................. 12 
Projected EDU Activity.............................................................................................................. 13 
Capital Capacity Reimbursement Accounts ........................................................................ 14 

SECTION 5: WASTEWATER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS ..................................... 15 
Regional Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund ............................................................ 15 
Ten-Year Forecast Project List ............................................................................................... 15 

APPENDIX A: TEN-YEAR FORECAST PROJECT LIST ........................................................... 16 

APPENDIX B: REGIONAL WASTEWATER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND BALANCE
............................................................................................................................................................. 1  



IEUA Ten-Year Forecast FY 2022/2023 

2 

ABBREVIATIONS 

AF: Acre Feet 

CCRA: Capital Capacity Reimbursement Account 

CCWRF: Carbon Canyon Water Reclamation Facility 

CVWD: Cucamonga Valley Water District 

EDU: Equivalent Dwelling Unit 

FY: Fiscal Year 

IEUA: Inland Empire Utilities Agency 

IERCF: Inland Empire Regional Composting Facility 

MGD: Million Gallons per Day 

MWD: Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 

O&M: Operation and Maintenance 

RC: Regional Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund 

TYF: Ten-Year Forecast 

RCAs: Regional Contracting Agencies 

RP-1: Regional Water Recycling Plant 1 

RP-2: Regional Water Recycling Plant 2 

RP-4: Regional Water Recycling Plant 4 

RP-4: Regional Water Recycling Plant 5 

WWFMPU: 2015 Wastewater Facilities Master Plan Update 



IEUA Ten-Year Forecast FY 2022/2023 
 

3 
 

SECTION 1: BACKGROUND 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency Overview 

The Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) is a regional wastewater treatment agency and 
wholesale distributor of imported water. IEUA is responsible for serving approximately 
875,000 people over 242 square miles in western San Bernardino County. IEUA is focused 
on providing three key services: (1) treating wastewater, developing recycled water, local 
water resources, and conservation programs to reduce dependence on imported water 
supplies and provide local supply resiliency to the region; (2) converting biosolids and waste 
products into a high-quality compost made from recycled materials; and (3) generating 
electrical energy from renewable sources.  

Formation & Purpose 

IEUA was originally formed as the Chino Basin Municipal Water District on June 6, 1950, as 
a municipal corporation with the mission to supply supplemental imported water purchased 
from the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD) to municipalities in the 
Chino Basin. Since then, IEUA has expanded its mission from a supplemental water supplier 
to include regional wastewater treatment with both domestic and industrial disposal 
systems along with energy production facilities. In addition, IEUA has become a major 
provider of recycled water, a supplier of biosolids/compost materials, and continues its 
leading role in water quality management and environmental protection in the Inland 
Empire. 

Governance 

IEUA is a special district governed by five publicly elected Board of Directors. Each director 
is assigned to one of the five divisions which generally serve the following regions: Division 
1- Upland/Montclair; Division 2- Ontario; Division 3- Chino/Chino Hills; Division 4- Fontana; 
and Division 5- Rancho Cucamonga. Monthly meetings are also held with the Regional 
Technical and Policy Committees comprised of representatives from each of IEUA’s Regional 
Sewer Service Contracting Agencies. These Committees discuss and provide 
recommendations on various technical and policy issues affecting IEUA. 

Contracting Agencies 

As a regional wastewater treatment agency, IEUA provides wastewater utility services to 
seven contracting agencies under the Chino Basin Regional Sewage Service Contract 
(Regional Contract): the cities of Chino, Chino Hills, Fontana, Montclair, Ontario, and Upland 
along with Cucamonga Valley Water District (CVWD). Figure 1 depicts each Contracting 
Agency’s sphere of influence within IEUA’s service area.   



IEUA Ten-Year Forecast FY 2022/2023 

4 

Figure 1 – IEUA Contracting Agencies 



IEUA Ten-Year Forecast FY 2022/2023 
 

5 
 

SECTION 2: INTRODUCTION TO THE TEN-YEAR FORECAST 

Ten-Year Forecast Purpose 

The Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency adopts a Ten-Year Forecast 
(TYF) based on the growth and regulatory requirements, existing asset management needs, 
and recommendations from the Regional Technical and Policy Committees, pursuant to the 
terms of the Regional Sewage Service Contract. The purpose of the TYF is to catalog and 
schedule capital improvement projects necessary to enable the regional wastewater system 
to meet forecasted demands for all the Contracting Agencies over a multi-year period. 
Pursuant to Section 9 of the Regional Contract, IEUA submits a TYF of capacity demands and 
capital projects to the Regional Technical and Policy Committees. This TYF identifies projects 
for the Fiscal Year (FY) 2022/2023 through FY 2031/2032. 

Projects identified in the TYF are important to ensure regional reliability and safety while 
meeting all regulatory requirements based on the physical conditions of assets and the 
forecasted regional projection of wastewater needs.  According to these projections, the TYF 
proposes a schedule for implementing projects based on necessity. The timing of the projects 
identified in the TYF are further refined during the Capital Budget process, based on the 
availability of financial resources. 

Definition of a Capital Project 

The TYF is composed of a list of capital projects, which are projects that involve the purchase, 
improvement, or construction of major fixed assets and equipment, such as the expansion of 
treatment plants, the construction of pipeline and pump stations, and the replacement of 
equipment. Capital projects do not include funds spent on standard operation and 
maintenance (O&M). 

Regional Sewage Service Contract Requirements and Plan Adoption 

The Regional Sewage Service Contract is the guiding document that defines the terms of the 
services and facilities in IEUA’s regional wastewater system. The Regional Contract was 
originally signed in January 1973, amended in 1984 and 1994, and is due for renewal in 
January 2023, 50 years after it was originally executed. 

As required by the Regional Contract, the TYF includes wastewater flow forecasts, a 
description of planned capital projects, capital project expenditures, plant capacities, and 
available funding of the Regional Wastewater Capital Improvement (RC) fund. After detailed 
review, comments, and recommendations from the Regional Technical and Policy 
Committees and the Agency’s Board of Directors, the TYF is adopted.  



IEUA Ten-Year Forecast FY 2022/2023 
 

6 
 

SECTION 3: REGIONAL WATER RECYCLING INFRASTRUCTURE 

Regional Wastewater Recycling Plants 

The Agency has four regional water recycling plants which produce recycled water from 
treated wastewater. Recycled water from all four plants meets Title 22 standards and it is 
used for agriculture, landscaping, industrial processing and groundwater recharge. The 
four regional facilities are: Regional Water Recycling Plant No.1 (RP-1), Regional Water 
Recycling Plant No.4 (RP-4), Regional Water Recycling Plant No.5 (RP-5), and Carbon 
Canyon Wastewater Recycling Facility (CCWRF). All the plants have primary, secondary, 
and tertiary treatment and recycled water pumping facilities that are interconnected in a 
regional network. Agency staff use wastewater bypass and diversion facilities, such as the 
San Bernardino Lift Station, Montclair Diversion Structure, Etiwanda Trunk Line, and 
Carbon Canyon bypass, to optimize IEUA’s flows and capacity utilization. In general, flows 
are routed between regional plants in order to maximize recycled water deliveries while 
minimizing overall pumping and treatment costs. IEUA also has three facilities where the 
biosolids from the water recycling plants are handled: RP-1 Solids Handling Facility, 
Regional Water Recycling Plant No.2 (RP-2) Solids Handling Facility, and the Inland Empire 
Regional Composting Facility (IERCF).   

Regional Wastewater System 

The regional pipeline system that connects the plants can be used to send sewer flow from 
one water recycling plant to another to balance and optimize the use of treatment capacity. 
Currently, the regional interceptors can send partially treated flows from RP-4 to RP-1 and 
RP-2 to RP-5 and raw influent from CCWRF to RP-5. In addition, primary effluent can be 
sent from the RP-1 equalization basins to RP-5.   

IEUA also has four regional wastewater lift stations. These are used to shift flows that 
would naturally flow from one portion of the service area to a different treatment plant. 
This balancing of flows keeps water in the northern portion of the service area, maximizing 
potential recycled water use. The lift stations are: 

Montclair Lift Station – pumps wastewater from portions of Montclair, Upland, and 
Chino to RP-1 and CCWRF. 
Preserve Lift Station – pumps wastewater from the Prado Regional Park and The 
Preserve community in the City of Chino to RP-5. 
RP-2 Lift Station – pumps wastewater from the southeastern portions of the cities of 
Chino and Chino Hills and the solids treatment side streams from RP-2 to RP-5. 
San Bernardino Avenue Pump Station – pumps a portion of the flow from the City of 
Fontana to RP-4.  

Figure 2 illustrates the regional wastewater network that connects the treatment plants. 



IEUA Ten-Year Forecast FY 2022/2023 
 

7 
 

 

Figure 2 – IEUA Regional Wastewater System  

Carbon Canyon Water Reclamation Facility 

CCWRF is located in the City of Chino and has been in operation since May 1992. The 
CCWRF works in tandem with RP-2 and RP-5 to serve the areas of Chino, Chino Hills, 
Montclair, and Upland. Wastewater is treated at CCWRF while the biosolids removed from 
the wastewater flow are pumped to RP-2 for processing. The CCWRF is designed to treat an 
annual average flow of 12 MGD and treats approximately 8.0 MGD.    

Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 1 

RP-1 is located in the City of Ontario near the intersection of Highway 60 and Archibald 
Avenue. This facility was originally commissioned in 1948 and has undergone several 
expansions to increase the design wastewater treatment capacity to approximately 44 MGD, 
based on the wastewater characteristics at the time of the expansions. Although the 
projected wastewater flows do not show a significant increase from current to build-out, 
they do reflect higher loading characteristics that require treatment process modifications 
to meet effluent discharge regulations. RP-1 serves the areas of Ontario, Upland, Fontana, 
Chino, Montclair, and Rancho Cucamonga, and currently treats approximately 25.5 MGD. 



IEUA Ten-Year Forecast FY 2022/2023 
 

8 
 

Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 2 

RP-2 in the City of Chino has been in operation since 1960. RP-2 was both a liquids and solids 
treatment facility until 2004, when RP-5 was constructed to handle the liquids portion. Since 
then, RP-2 treats only the solids from CCWRF and RP-5. RP-2 treatment processes include 
gravity thickening and DAF thickening, anaerobic digestion for stabilization, and dewatering 
by either belt press or centrifuge.   

Once the solids are dewatered, they are transported to the IERCF. RP-2 is located on land 
leased from the US Army Corps of Engineers and the lease is due to expire in 2035. RP-2 is 
also located within the recently redefined flood zone behind Prado Dam. Orange County 
Flood Control District and the Army Corps have plans to raise the maximum operational 
water level behind the dam to allow greater water storage and conservation.  Since RP-2 does 
not have physical flood protection, IEUA will relocate the solids handling from RP-2 to RP-5.  
The relocation of solids handling is expected to start in 2023. 

Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 4 

RP-4 is located in Rancho Cucamonga and has been in operation treating wastewater and 
producing recycled water since 1997. The RP-4 facility capacity was doubled in 2009 from 7 
MGD to 14 MGD.  

Waste sludge generated at RP-4 is discharged back to the sewer and flows by gravity to RP-
1. RP-4 serves areas of Fontana and Rancho Cucamonga, treating approximately 8.8 MGD.  

Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 5 

RP-5 is located immediately east of the Agency’s Administrative Headquarters campus in the 
City of Chino and began operation in March 2004. It has a capacity rating of 16.3 MGD, which 
includes capacity for approximately 15 MGD of raw wastewater and 1.3 MGD of solids 
processing return or recycled flows from RP-2. Waste sludge produced at RP-5 is pumped to 
the RP-2 solids handling facility, which will be relocated to RP-5 around 2023. RP-5 serves 
areas of Chino, Chino Hills, and Ontario, treating approximately 8.3 MGD.   

The RP-5 Solids Handling Facility was operated by IEUA from 2001 to 2009 as a regional 
facility accepting dairy manure for recycling and generating biogas.  In 2010, IEUA entered 
into a lease agreement with Environ Strategies (now Inland BioEnergy) and in 2012, they 
began utilizing the facility for digestion of primarily food wastes with minor amounts of dairy 
manure.  RP-5 SHF can process 705 wet tons/day of food and dairy waste through an 
anaerobic digestion process and can generate electricity from the biogas produced. As of 
August 2017, Inland BioEnergy stopped regular Operations of the facility. Due to the regional 
benefits of such a waste handling facility and the reduced energy costs, the Agency plans to 
keep RP-5 SHF available for the processing of food and dairy waste.  



IEUA Ten-Year Forecast FY 2022/2023 
 

9 
 

Regional Wastewater Recycling Plant Capacity 

The regional wastewater recycling plants utilized capacity is calculated based on a 12-month 
average of influent flows measured in million gallons per day (MGD) as seen in Table 1.  

Table 1 - Regional Plant Capacity Utilization (MGD) 
Regional 

Plant 
Total 

Capacity 
Average FY 20/21 Used 

Capacity  
Capacity 

Remaining 
Scheduled 

Expansions 
CCWRF 12.0 8.0 4.0 N/A 

RP-1   32.0* 24.7 7.3 +8.0 
RP-2** N/A N/A  N/A N/A 
RP-4 14.0 8.9 5.1 N/A 
RP-5 16.3 8.7 7.6 +6.2 
Total 

Influent 74.3 50.3 24.0 +14.2  

*RP-1 total hydraulic capacity without loading treatment limitations is 44 MGD 
**RP-2 liquid treatment facilities have been relocated to RP-5    

 

 
Figure 3 – Historical Regional Influent Flows 

 

Capacity Expansion 

Wastewater flow forecasts are conducted annually and are based on four main components: 
(1) historical wastewater flow trends; (2) per dwelling unit wastewater generation factors, 
based on the 2015 Wastewater Facilities Master Plan Update (WWFMPU) projections; (3) 
actual influent flows measured at the treatment plants; and (4) expected future growth 
numbers provided by the RCAs. These projections are used to determine future demands on 

0
10
20
30
40
50
60

In
flu

en
t (

M
GD

)

Fiscal Year



IEUA Ten-Year Forecast FY 2022/2023 
 

10 
 

the Agency’s facilities and help anticipate the need for modifications to treatment plants and 
solids handling facilities. 

The WWFMPU identified the projected flows to the treatment plants in 2035 through 2060. 
The WWFMPU estimates that there will be a regional flow of 73.5 MGD by 2035 and an 
ultimate/build-out flow of 80 MGD by 2060. Capacity projects to address increasing 
demands within the 10-year window include expansions at RP-5, the relocation of RP-2 
solids handling to RP-5, and the beginning of the RP-1 liquid capacity recovery and solids 
treatment expansion. 

The expansion at RP-5 set for completion in 2025 will increase the plant capacity to 22.5 
MGD, up 6.2 MGD from its current capacity of 16.3 MGD.  

The RP-1 liquid capacity recovery project is set to recover 8 MGD of capacity lost due to 
system loading. While RP-1 has a hydraulic capacity of 44 MGD, only 32 MGD of capacity is 
usable due to loading treatment constraints. After the recovery project is completed, the total 
usable capacity will be increased to 40 MGD, still 4 MGD below the plant’s hydraulic capacity.   

System Loading 

Over the past decade the IEUA service area has experienced an increase in indoor water use 
efficiency as a direct result of drought, shifting public policy, more efficient building and 
plumbing codes, and effective conservation program campaigns. This increased efficiency 
has decreased the total influent volume of wastewater flows received by IEUA treatment 
plants by approximately 10% since 2010. While the flows have decreased, the regional 
population has continued to grow. The combination of an increased population but reduced 
wastewater flow has resulted in an increase in the strength of the wastewater coming into 
IEUA’s treatment facilities. This trend of increased wastewater strength is expected to 
continue as both the population and regional water efficiency continue to increase. Current 
and future wastewater treatment plant expansions are largely driven by the increased 
strength of wastewater flows to the facilities, rather than the volume of flows to the facilities.  
 
 
 



IEUA Ten-Year Forecast FY 2022/2023 
 

11 
 

 
 

 

 
Figure 4 – Monthly Concentrations: April 2000 – June 2021 

 

 

 

  

  



IEUA Ten-Year Forecast FY 2022/2023 
 

12 
 

SECTION 4: EQUIVALENT DWELLING UNITS 

One equivalent dwelling unit (EDU) is an approximate measure of the daily wastewater flow 
in quantity and strength of an average single-family household as determined in Exhibit “J” 
of the Regional Contract. This unit of measurement enables IEUA and the RCAs to uniformly 
track past and projected connections to the regional wastewater system.  

Historical EDU Activity 

EDU activity has increased from FY 19/20 to FY 20/21 with the addition of 5,281 EDUs to 
the region compared to the addition of only 3,435 EDUs the previous fiscal year. The 
additional EDUs added in FY 20/21 are 3,732 EDUs lower than the RCAs projections of 9,013 
EDUs and 1,281 EDUs more than the IEUA Budgeted Projections of 4,000 EDUs. Two sets of 
projections exist in order to allow for conservative estimates. The RCAs’ projections are 
required under the Regional Contract and serve as a planning tool for plant treatment 
capacity and loading. Under the Regional Contract, RCAs who report EDU projections that 
are lower than what the regional experiences may have building moratoriums imposed. For 
this reason, the RCAs may make projections conservatively high. Budgeted projections are 
used by IEUA to project future wastewater treatment needs and fund availability. To ensure 
adequate fund availability, budgeted projections are conservatively low. The result of both 
sets of projections is the assumption that projections are conservative, ensuring IEUA 
treatment plants can safely and effectively treat the additional wastewater while also 
ensuring the agency does not over-project fund availability. Table 2 outlines the building 
activity in the region along with both sets of EDU projections.  
 

Table 2 - Building Activity for Last Five Fiscal Years 
(FY 15/16 through FY 20/21) 

Year 
Building 
Activity 
(EDUs) 

Budgeted  
Projections 

(EDUs) 

RCAs 
Projections 

(EDUs) 

FY 15/16 4,787 4,330 5,849 
FY 16/17 5,189 3,000 5,277 
FY17/18 5,223 4,000 5,442 
FY 18/19 3,459 4,000 6,149 
FY 19/20 3,435 4,000 6,390 
FY 20/21 5,281 4,000 9,013 

 



IEUA Ten-Year Forecast FY 2022/2023 
 

13 
 

Projected EDU Activity 

In accordance with the Regional Contract, the RCAs completed a survey of their 10-year 
capacity demand forecast. The results of the 10-year capacity demand forecast survey are 
summarized in Table 3. For FY 2021/22, the forecasted activity was 9,144 additional EDUs.  
Over the next ten years, activity was projected to total 67,927 EDUs added region wide. 
Approximately 72% of this projected activity is a result of new development in the service 
areas of Ontario and Fontana. Over the next ten years, building activity is projected to be 
approximately 80% residential and 20% commercial/industrial. Figure 5 highlights the 
breakdown between residential and commercial/industrial projected EDUs.  

Table 3 – 10 Year Projected RCAs EDU Activity 

Fiscal 
Year Chino 

Chino 
Hills CVWD Fontana Montclair* Ontario Upland Total 

EDUs EDUs EDUs EDUs EDUs EDUs EDUs EDUs 
FY 21/22 434 138 2,050 1,792 474 3,780 476 9,144 
FY 22/23 396 361 2,050 1,863 106 3,382 456 8,614 
FY 23/24 396 570 1,650 1,935 26 3,382 351 8,310 
FY 24/25 396 391 1,250 2,011 26 3,382 271 7,727 
FY 25/26 396 200 890 2,089 26 2,660 176 6,437 
FY 26/27 395 276 490 2,171 26 2,520 100 5,978 
FY 27/28 285 231 490 2,171 26 2,410 55 5,668 
FY 28/29 285 1 490 2,171 26 2,410 0 5,383 
FY 29/30 235 1 490 2,171 26 2,410 0 5,333 
FY 30/31 235 1 490 2,171 26 2,410 0 5,333 

TOTAL 3,453 2,170 10,340 20,545 788 28,746 1,885 67,927 

*The City of Montclair’s forecasts have been extended from last Fiscal Year as a completed 2021 10-
year capacity demand forecast was not completed.  

 

 
Figure 5 – FY 21/22 10-Year Growth Forecast 

0
2,000
4,000
6,000
8,000

10,000

2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Bu

ild
in

g 
Ac

tiv
ity

 
(E

DU
s)

Fiscal Year

FY 2021/22 10-Year Growth Forecast

Residential EDUs Commercial/Industrial EDUs



IEUA Ten-Year Forecast FY 2022/2023 
 

14 
 

Estimated CCRA account contributions in 2022 dollars are calculated by taking the RCAs 
EDU projections and multiplying them by the current adopted EDU rate of $7,379. 
Projected CCRA contributions are estimated at roughly $67 million at the start of the ten-
year period and steadily dropping year after year to around $39 million.  

Capital Capacity Reimbursement Accounts 

IEUA levies a fee on all new connections to its regional wastewater system. Connection fees 
are restricted to finance capital acquisition, construction, equipment, and process 
improvement costs for the IEUA’s regional wastewater system. Pursuant to the Regional 
Contract, new EDU connection fees are collected by each of IEUA’s RCAs and held in trust in 
a Capital Capacity Reimbursement Account (CCRA) until requested, or “called”, by IEUA. 
Capital calls, or connection fee payments of CCRA funds, are based on the identified and 
projected capital needs of IEUA over the ensuing nine months, as calculated and reported by 
IEUA each quarter. Connection fees rates were evaluated as part of IEUA’s FY 2019/2020 
Rate Study. Capital calls are calculated based on the proportionate share of each Contracting 
Agency’s CCRA account balance relative to the aggregate amount. The current balance of the 
CCRA accounts can be found in Table 4 below.  

Table 4 – Contracting Agencies CCRA Balance as of June 
30th, 2021 

Regional Contracting Agency CCRA Balance 

City of Chino  $         12,540,350.96  

City of Chino Hills  $           4,892,678.48  

Cucamonga Valley Water District  $         11,578,029.93  

City of Fontana  $         20,217,463.28  

City of Montclair  $           2,770,381.23  

City of Ontario  $         33,764,260.28  

City of Upland  $           5,748,458.49  

Total  $      91,511,622.65  



IEUA Ten-Year Forecast FY 2022/2023 
 

15 
 

SECTION 5: WASTEWATER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS 

Regional Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund 

The TYF evaluates capital improvement projects necessary to meet wastewater forecasted 
demands. IEUA categorizes these projects into the RC Fund. Expenses charged to the RC Fund 
include capital projects that are required to meet regional growth in the forms of flow, 
loading, capacity or other factors. The RC Fund’s primary sources of revenue include new 
EDU connection fees and property taxes but also include debt proceeds, loans, and grants. 
An estimated breakdown of the RC Fund balance over the next 10-years can be found in 
Appendix B.  

Ten-Year Forecast Project List 

The TYF contains projects which were identified by IEUA staff and include expansion 
projects to provide additional treatment capacity to meet future growth. Drivers used to 
determine the timeframe and necessity of projects include regulatory and permitting 
requirements, wastewater flow projections, asset age, performance, efficiency, and grant or 
funding availability. Total wastewater capital spending over the next ten-years is projected 
to be $544,403,853. The TYF project list represents IEUA’s capital projects forecast based on 
existing planning documents and anticipated funding sources. The full list of TYF projects 
can be found in Appendix A.  



IEUA Ten-Year Forecast FY 2022/2023 
 

16 
 

APPENDIX A: TEN-YEAR FORECAST PROJECT LIST 
  





IEUA Ten-Year Forecast FY 2022/2023 

1  

APPENDIX B: REGIONAL WASTEWATER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND 
BALANCE



IEUA Ten-Year Forecast FY 2022/2023 

 



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

3B 



Construction Trends

Adham Almasri, P.E.

Principal Engineer, Engineering & Construction Management 

June 2022



2

Major Construction Trends

• Price Increases/Inflation
• Price Volatility
• Supply Chain Issues and Increased Demand for Materials
• Labor Shortages



3

Price Increases/Inflation

In ability to predict future price reductions, even as fears of recession increase

1%
7%

9%
3%

31% 37%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Jul-20 Sep-20 Nov-20 Jan-21 Mar-21 May-21 Jul-21 Sep-21 Nov-21 Jan-22 Mar-22

Construction/Material Costs

Construction Cost Material Cost

Source: ENR Website



4

Price Volatility
• Speed of increasing prices is difficult to track
• Manufacturers and Suppliers Quotes

$654

$1,359

$1,470

$53 $61 $68

$122 $129 $139

$0

$200

$400

$600

$800

$1,000

$1,200

$1,400

$1,600

Jul‐20 Sep‐20 Nov‐20 Jan‐21 Mar‐21 May‐21 Jul‐21 Sep‐21 Nov‐21 Jan‐22 Mar‐22

20 City Average 
Lumber/Rebar/Concrete

 Lumber 2"x 4" Pine  Rebar Grade 60, No. 4  Concrete 3,000 psi

125%

14%

29%

Source: ENR Website



5

Supply Chain Issues and Increased 
Demand for Materials

• Construction spending up 11.2%
• Construction backlog – currently 8 months



6

Labor Shortages

• Engineers
• Skilled Construction
• Declining Number of Bids

0

5

10

15

20

25

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022*

1 - 2 3 - 5 6 - 10 >10

Average Number of Bids Received 
Ten Years (2012 – 2022)

$46 $46 $47

$60 $61

$40

$45

$50

$55

$60

$65

$70

Jul-20 Oct-20 Jan-21 Apr-21 Jul-21 Oct-21 Jan-22

Wage

20 City Average - Common Wage 20 City Average - Skilled Labor Wage

$59

2%

4%

Source: ENR Website Source: IEUA Engineering Dept.



201 Million

212 Million
245 Million

228 Million

127 Million

44 Million
27 Million

36 Million
36 Million

36 Million

 Million

50 Million

100 Million

150 Million

200 Million

250 Million

300 Million

To
ta

l P
ro

je
ct

ed
 C

ap
ita

l S
pe

nd
in

g 
($

)

Fiscal Year

FY 2022/2023 - FY 2031/2032 TYCIP 

22/23       23/24 24/25      25/26      26/27       27/28      28/29       29/30      30/31       31/32  

7

What this means to IEUA

*All values rounded to nearest million ($)



8

What IEUA is Doing……

• Project Marketing
— Contractor Engagement
— Public Affairs

• Continue to Monitor Trends
— Industry
— Contractors
— Other Agencies

• Reputation Management
— Professional and Fair
— Client of Choice

• Consultant Engagement
— Outreach Flyers



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

3C 



Budget Impact 

 
June 15, 2022

Fiscal Year 2021/22 Financial Audit Engagement Communications

The Board adopted Fiscal Ordinance and other regulatory requirements state that the Agency
must undergo a financial audit by an independent certified public accountant. The auditors
evaluate whether the Agency's financial statements are prepared in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as set forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB).

On March 17, 2021, the Board approved a contract with CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (CLA) to
provide Annual Financial and Single Audit Services for the Inland Empire Utilities Agency for
the three fiscal years ending June 30, 2021, 2022 and 2023 with options for an additional two
fiscal years.

Attached, are the Engagement Letters in Draft form which describe the terms and objectives of
the financial audit services with CLA for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2022. The final
Engagement Letters will be forthcoming before interim audit work begins. During the Audit
Committee meeting, Mr. Nitin Patel, CPA, Principal with CLA will provide a presentation about
the audit scope and approach, as well as the required communications.

This is an information item.

N/A

None, only when additional outside auditing or consulting services are required to provide
assistance to IA or fulfill the responsibilities of the Audit Committee. A proposal with proposed
fees would be submitted through the Audit Committee for appropriate action. Additionally,
some audit projects are intended to identify opportunities for cost containment.

06/06/22Audit

Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit

N Y

Manager Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Annual Financial Statement and Single Audit of the Agency is a requirement per the
Agency's approved Fiscal Ordinance and other regulatory requirements and is consistent with
the Agency’s Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility, Workplace Environment, and Business
Practices by providing transparent information, ensuring that the financial audit evaluate and
promote a strong fiscal control environment and assist the Board in fulfilling their oversight
responsibilities over internal controls and financial reporting.

On March 17, 2021, the Board approved Contract Numbers 4600003005, for a not-to-exceed
amount of $115,115 with CliftonLarsonAllen LLP, to provide Annual Financial and Single
Audit Services for the Inland Empire Utilities Agency for the three fiscal years ending June 30,
2021, 2022 and 2023 with options for an additional two fiscal years.

Attachment 1 - Engagement Letter - CLA (Draft)
Attachment 2 - AUP GANN Letter - CLA (Draft)
Attachment 3 - CLA PowerPoint

Not Applicable

22123



[Date] 

Mr. Shivaji Deshmukh 
General Manager 
Inland Empire Regional Composting Authority 
C/O Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
6075 Kimball Avenue 
Chino, CA 91708 
 
We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the terms and objectives of our engagement and the nature 
and limitations of the audit and nonaudit services CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (“CLA,” “we,” “us,” and “our”) will 
provide for Inland Empire Utilities Agency and Chino Basin Regional Financing Authority (“you,” “your,” or “the 
entity”) for the year ending June 30, 2022. 

Nitin Patel, CPA, is responsible for the performance of the audit engagement. 

Scope of audit services 

We will audit the financial statements of each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information, which 
collectively comprise the basic financial statements of Inland Empire Utilities Agency, and the financial 
statements of the Chino Basin Regional Financing Authority as of and for the year ending June 30, 2022, and the 
related notes to the financial statements. 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) provides for certain required supplementary information 
(RSI) to accompany the entity’s basic financial statements. The following RSI will be subjected to certain limited 
procedures, but will not be audited. 

1. Management’s discussion and analysis. 

2. GASB‐required supplementary pension and OPEB schedules. 

We will also evaluate and report on the presentation of the following supplementary information other than RSI 
accompanying the financial statements in relation to the financial statements as a whole: 

1. Schedule of expenditures of federal awards 

2. Combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules 

The following supplementary information other than RSI accompanying the financial statements will not be 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements and our auditors’ report 
will not provide an opinion or any assurance on that information: 

1. Introductory Section 

2. Statistical Section 

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



[Click here and type date] 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Page 2 

Nonaudit services 

We will also provide the following nonaudit services: 

 Preparation of your financial statements for Chino Basin Regional Financing Authority only, schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards and related notes. 

 Prepare the Data Collection Form. 

Audit objectives 

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that 
includes our opinions about whether your basic financial statements are fairly presented, in all material 
respects, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. 
GAAP). Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America (U.S. GAAS) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements, 
including omissions, can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood 
that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on 
the financial statements.  

Our audit will be conducted in accordance with U.S. GAAS; the standards for financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards require us to be 
independent of the entity and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical 
requirements relating to our audit. Our audit will include tests of your accounting records, a determination of 
major program(s) in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, and other procedures we consider necessary to 
enable us to express opinions and render the required reports. We will apply certain limited procedures to the 
RSI in accordance with U.S. GAAS. However, we will not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. We will also perform procedures to enable us to express an opinion on whether the supplementary 
information (as identified above) other than RSI accompanying the financial statements is fairly stated, in all 
material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

The objectives of our audit also include: 

 Reporting on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance with the provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and award agreements, noncompliance with which could have a material effect 
on the financial statements in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

 Reporting on internal control over compliance related to major programs and expressing an opinion (or 
disclaimer of opinion) on compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of 
federal awards that could have a direct and material effect on each major program in accordance with 
the Uniform Guidance. 

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



[Click here and type date] 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Page 3 

The Government Auditing Standards report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and 
other matters will include a paragraph that states (1) that the purpose of the report is solely to describe the 
scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance, and (2) that the report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
entity’s internal control and compliance. The Uniform Guidance report on internal control over compliance will 
include a paragraph that states that the purpose of the report on internal control over compliance is solely to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Both reports will state that the report is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

We will issue written reports upon completion of our audit of your financial statements and compliance with 
requirements applicable to major programs. Circumstances may arise in which our report may differ from its 
expected form and content based on the results of our audit. Depending on the nature of these circumstances, 
it may be necessary for us to modify our opinions, add an emphasis‐of‐matter or other‐matter paragraph to our 
auditors’ report, or if necessary, withdraw from the engagement. If our opinions on the financial statements or 
the single audit compliance opinion is other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. If 
circumstances occur related to the condition of your records, the availability of sufficient, appropriate audit 
evidence, or the existence of a significant risk of material misstatement of the financial statements or material 
noncompliance caused by error, fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets, which in our 
professional judgment prevent us from completing the audit or forming opinions on the financial statements or 
an opinion on compliance, we retain the right to take any course of action permitted by professional standards, 
including declining to express opinions or issue reports, or withdrawing from the engagement. 

Auditor responsibilities, procedures, and limitations 

We will conduct our audit in accordance with U.S. GAAS, the standards for financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance. Those standards require that we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the planning and performance of the 
audit. As part of our audit, we will: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and material 
noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinions. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement or a material noncompliance resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing opinions on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. However, we will communicate to you in writing any 
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control relevant to the audit of the basic 
financial statements that we have identified during the audit. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the basic 

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



[Click here and type date] 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Page 4 

financial statements, including the amounts and disclosures, and whether the basic financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 Conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events, considered in 
the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

Although our audit planning has not been concluded and modifications may be made, we have identified the 
following significant risk(s) of material misstatement as part of our audit planning:  

 Management override of controls. 

 Revenue recognition. 

There is an unavoidable risk, because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent 
limitations of internal control, that some material misstatements or noncompliance may not be detected, even 
though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with U.S. GAAS, Government Auditing 
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance. Because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, 
material misstatements, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of 
assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable to the entity or to acts by 
management or employees acting on behalf of the entity, may not be detected. Because the determination of 
waste and abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not require auditors to perform specific 
procedures to detect waste or abuse in financial audits nor do they expect auditors to provide reasonable 
assurance of detecting waste or abuse. 

In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental 
regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial statements or on major programs. 
However, we will inform the appropriate level of management and those charged with governance of any 
material errors, fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets that come to our attention. We will 
also inform the appropriate level of management and those charged with governance of any violations of laws 
or governmental regulations that come to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential. We will include such 
matters in the reports required for a single audit. 

Tests of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of certain controls that we consider relevant to 
preventing and detecting fraud or errors that are material to the financial statements and to preventing and 
detecting misstatements resulting from noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements that have a material effect on the financial statements. Our tests, if performed, will be less in scope 
than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed 
in our report on internal control issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards.  

As required by the Uniform Guidance, we will perform tests of controls over compliance to evaluate the 
effectiveness of the design and operation of controls that we consider relevant to preventing or detecting 
material noncompliance with the direct and material compliance requirements applicable to each major federal 
award program. However, our tests will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on those 

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



[Click here and type date] 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Page 5 

controls and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to the 
Uniform Guidance. 

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify deficiencies, significant 
deficiencies, or material weaknesses in internal control. However, we will communicate to you in writing 
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control relevant to the audit of the basic financial 
statements that we identify during the audit that are required to be communicated under AICPA professional 
standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance. 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we will perform tests of the entity’s compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements that have a material effect on the financial statements. However, the objective 
of our audit will not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such an opinion in 
our report on compliance issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 

We will include in our report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance relevant information 
about any identified or suspected instances of fraud and any identified or suspected noncompliance with 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, or grant agreements that may have occurred that are required to be 
communicated under Government Auditing Standards. 

The Uniform Guidance requires that we also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the auditee has complied with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal 
awards that may have a direct and material effect on each of the entity’s major programs. Our procedures will 
consist of tests of transactions and other applicable procedures described in the “OMB Compliance Supplement” 
for the types of compliance requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each of the entity’s 
major programs. The purpose of these procedures will be to express an opinion on the entity’s compliance with 
requirements applicable to each of its major programs in our report on compliance issued pursuant to the 
Uniform Guidance. 

We will evaluate the presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards accompanying the financial 
statements in relation to the financial statements as a whole. We will make certain inquiries of management and 
evaluate the form, content, and methods of preparing the schedule to determine whether the information 
complies with U.S. GAAP and the Uniform Guidance, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior 
period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We 
will compare and reconcile the schedule to the underlying accounting records and other records used to prepare 
the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. 

Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any later 
periods for which we are not engaged as auditors. 

Management responsibilities 

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that you (management and, when appropriate, those charged with 
governance) acknowledge and understand that you have certain responsibilities that are fundamental to the 
conduct of an audit. 

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



[Click here and type date] 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Page 6 

You are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, RSI, and the schedule 
of expenditures of federal awards in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Management is also responsible for identifying 
all federal awards received, understanding and complying with the compliance requirements, and for the 
preparation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards (including notes and noncash assistance received) 
in accordance with the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. 

Management’s responsibilities include the selection and application of accounting principles; recording and 
reflecting all transactions in the financial statements; determining the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates included in the financial statements; adjusting the financial statements to correct material 
misstatements; and confirming to us in the management representation letter that the effects of any 
uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period 
presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the entity’s ability to continue as a going 
concern for 12 months beyond the financial statement date. 

Management is responsible for compliance with applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of contracts 
and grant agreements, including compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of 
federal awards applicable to the entity’s federal programs. Your responsibilities also include identifying 
significant contractor relationships in which the contractor has responsibility for program compliance and for 
the accuracy and completeness of that information. 

You are responsible for the design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control, including 
internal control over compliance, relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, including evaluating and monitoring 
ongoing activities and safeguarding assets to help ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met; and 
that there is reasonable assurance that government programs are administered in compliance with compliance 
requirements.  

You are responsible for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal controls to prevent and detect 
fraud; assessing the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud; and for 
informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving (1) management, (2) employees 
who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or 
suspected fraud affecting the entity received in communications from employees, former employees, grantors, 
regulators, or others. In addition, you are responsible for implementing systems designed to achieve compliance 
with applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements, including compliance 
with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards applicable to the entity’s 
federal programs; identifying and ensuring that the entity complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grant agreements, including compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of 
federal awards applicable to the entity’s federal programs; and informing us of all instances of identified or 
suspected noncompliance whose effects on the financial statements should be considered.  

You are responsible for taking timely and appropriate steps to remedy any fraud and noncompliance with 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements that we may report. Additionally, as required by 

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



[Click here and type date] 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Page 7 

the Uniform Guidance, it is management’s responsibility to evaluate and monitor noncompliance with federal 
statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards; take prompt action when instances of 
noncompliance are identified, including noncompliance identified in audit findings; and to follow up and take 
prompt corrective action on reported audit findings and to prepare a summary schedule of prior audit findings 
and a corrective action plan. The summary schedule of prior audit findings should be available for our review 
during final fieldwork. 

You are responsible for providing us with (1) access to all information of which you are aware that is relevant to 
the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, including amounts and disclosures, such as 
records, documentation, identification of all related parties and all related‐party relationships and transactions, 
and other matters, and for the accuracy and completeness of that information (including information from 
within and outside of the general and subsidiary ledgers), and for ensuring management information and 
financial information is reliable and properly reported; (2) access to personnel, accounts, books, records, 
supporting documentation, and other information as needed to perform an audit under the Uniform Guidance; 
(3) additional information that we may request for the purpose of the audit; and (4) unrestricted access to 
persons within the entity from whom we determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence. You agree to inform 
us of events occurring or facts discovered subsequent to the date of the financial statements that may affect the 
financial statements.  

You agree to include our report on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards in any document that 
contains and indicates that we have reported on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards. You also agree 
to include the audited financial statements with any presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards that includes our report thereon or make the audited financial statements readily available to intended 
users of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards no later than the date the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards is issued with our report thereon. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the 
representation letter that (1) you are responsible for presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards in accordance with the Uniform Guidance; (2) you believe the schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with the Uniform Guidance; (3) the 
methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have 
changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or 
interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards. 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of other supplementary information in 
accordance with U.S. GAAP. You agree to include our report on the supplementary information in any document 
that contains, and indicates that we have reported on, the supplementary information. You also agree to include 
the audited financial statements with any presentation of the supplementary information that includes our 
report thereon or make the audited financial statements readily available to users of the supplementary 
information no later than the date the supplementary information is issued with our report thereon. You agree 
to provide us written representations related to the presentation of the supplementary information. 

Management is responsible for providing us with a written confirmation concerning representations made by 
you and your staff to us in connection with the audit and the presentation of the basic financial statements and 
RSI. During our engagement, we will request information and explanations from you regarding, among other 
matters, the entity’s activities, internal control, future plans, specific transactions, and accounting systems and 
procedures. The procedures we will perform during our engagement and the conclusions we reach as a basis for 

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



[Click here and type date] 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Page 8 

our report will be heavily influenced by the representations that we receive in the representation letter and 
otherwise from you. Accordingly, inaccurate, incomplete, or false representations could cause us to expend 
unnecessary effort or could cause a material fraud or error to go undetected by our procedures. In view of the 
foregoing, you agree that we shall not be responsible for any misstatements in the entity’s financial statements 
that we may fail to detect as a result of misrepresentations made to us by you. 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit findings 
and recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report copies to us of 
previous financial audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies related to the 
objectives discussed in the “Audit objectives” section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us 
corrective actions taken to address significant findings and recommendations resulting from those audits, 
attestation engagements, performance audits, or other engagements or studies. You are also responsible for 
providing management’s views on our current findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as your 
planned corrective actions for the report, and for the timing and format for providing that information. 

Responsibilities and limitations related to nonaudit services 

For all nonaudit services we may provide to you, management agrees to assume all management 
responsibilities; oversee the services by designating an individual, preferably within senior management, who 
possesses suitable skill, knowledge, and/or experience to understand and oversee the services; evaluate the 
adequacy and results of the services; and accept responsibility for the results of the services. Management is 
also responsible for ensuring that your data and records are complete and that you have received sufficient 
information to oversee the services. 

The responsibilities and limitations related to the nonaudit services performed as part of this engagement are as 
follows: 

 We will prepare a draft of your financial statements for Chino Basin Regional Financing Authority only, 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards and related notes, in conformity with U.S. GAAP and the 
Uniform Guidance based on information provided by you. Since the preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and related notes is your 
responsibility, you will be required to acknowledge in the representation letter our assistance with 
preparation of the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and related notes 
and that you have reviewed and approved the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards, and related notes, prior to their issuance and have accepted responsibility for them. You have a 
responsibility to be in a position in fact and appearance to make an informed judgment on those 
financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and related notes.  

 We will prepare the Data Collection Form. Management is responsible to review for completeness and 
accuracy before submitting to the Federal Audit Clearing House.  

These nonaudit services do not constitute an audit under Government Auditing Standards and such services will 
not be conducted in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



[Click here and type date] 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Page 9 

Use of financial statements 

The financial statements and our report thereon are for management’s use. If you intend to reproduce and 
publish the financial statements and our report thereon, they must be reproduced in their entirety. Inclusion of 
the audited financial statements in a document, such as an annual report or an offering document, should be 
done only with our prior approval of the document. You are responsible to provide us the opportunity to review 
such documents before issuance. 

If the parties (i.e., you and CLA) agree that CLA will not be involved with your official statements related to 
municipal securities filings or other offering documents, we will require that any official statements or other 
offering documents issued by you with which we are not involved clearly indicate that CLA is not involved with 
the contents of such documents. Such disclosure should read as follows: 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP, our independent auditor, has not been engaged to perform and has not 
performed, since the date of its report included herein, any procedures on the financial statements 
addressed in that report. CliftonLarsonAllen LLP also has not performed any procedures relating to this 
offering document. 

With regard to the electronic dissemination of audited financial statements, including financial statements 
published electronically on your website or submitted on a regulator website, you understand that electronic 
sites are a means to distribute information and, therefore, we are not required to read the information 
contained in those sites or to consider the consistency of other information in the electronic site with the 
original document. 

We may issue preliminary draft financial statements to you for your review. Any preliminary draft financial 
statements should not be relied on or distributed. 

Engagement administration and other matters 

We expect to begin our interim audit in June 2022 and our final audit in October 2022. We expect to issue our 
reports in December 2022. 

We understand that your employees will prepare all confirmations, account analyses, and audit schedules we 
request and will locate any documents or invoices selected by us for testing. A list of information we expect to 
need for our audit and the dates required will be provided in a separate communication. 

At the conclusion of the engagement, we will complete the auditor sections of the electronic Data Collection 
Form SF‐SAC and perform the steps to certify the Form SF‐SAC and single audit reporting package. It is 
management’s responsibility to complete the auditee sections of the Data Collection Form. We will create the 
single audit reporting package PDF file for submission; however, it is management’s responsibility to review for 
completeness and accuracy and electronically submit the reporting package (including financial statements, 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards, summary schedule of prior audit findings, auditors’ reports, and 
corrective action plan) along with the Data Collection Form to the federal audit clearinghouse and, if 
appropriate, to pass‐through entities. The Data Collection Form and the reporting package must be 
electronically submitted within the earlier of 30 calendar days after receipt of the auditors’ reports or nine 
months after the end of the audit period. 

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



[Click here and type date] 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Page 10 

We will provide copies of our reports to the entity; however, management is responsible for distribution of the 
reports and the financial statements. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing confidential or 
sensitive information, copies of our reports are to be made available for public inspection. 

The audit documentation for this engagement is the sole and exclusive property of CLA and constitutes 
confidential and proprietary information. However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit 
documentation and appropriate individuals will be made available upon request and in a timely manner to 
California State Controller’s Office, or its designee, a federal agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the 
U.S. Government Accountability Office for purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or 
to carry out oversight responsibilities. We will notify you of any such request. If requested, access to such audit 
documentation will be provided under the supervision of CLA personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we may 
provide copies of selected audit documentation to the aforementioned parties. These parties may intend, or 
decide, to distribute the copies or information contained therein to others, including other governmental 
agencies. 

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of seven years after the report 
release date or for any additional period requested by the California State Controller’s Office. If we are aware 
that a federal awarding agency, pass‐through entity, or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the 
party(ies) contesting the audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation. 

Except as permitted by the “Consent” section of this agreement, CLA will not disclose any confidential, 
proprietary, or privileged information of the entity to any persons without the authorization of entity 
management or unless required by law. This confidentiality provision does not prohibit us from disclosing your 
information to one or more of our affiliated companies in order to provide services that you have requested 
from us or from any such affiliated company. Any such affiliated company shall be subject to the same 
restrictions on the use and disclosure of your information as apply to us. 

Professional standards require us to be independent with respect to you in the performance of these services. 
Any discussion that you have with our personnel regarding potential employment with you could impair our 
independence with respect to this engagement. Therefore, we request that you inform us prior to any such 
discussions so that we can implement appropriate safeguards to maintain our independence and objectivity. 
Further, any employment offers to any staff members working on this engagement without our prior knowledge 
may require substantial additional procedures to ensure our independence. You will be responsible for any 
additional costs incurred to perform these procedures. 

Our engagement ends on delivery of our signed report. Any additional services that might be requested will be a 
separate, new engagement. The terms and conditions of that new engagement will be governed by a new, 
specific engagement letter for that service. 

Government Auditing Standards require that we make our most recent external peer review report publicly 
available. The report is posted on our website at www.CLAconnect.com/Aboutus/. 

Mediation 

Any disagreement, controversy, or claim (“Dispute”) that may arise out of any aspect of our services or 
relationship with you, including this engagement, shall be submitted to non‐binding mediation by written notice 

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



[Click here and type date] 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Page 11 

(“Mediation Notice”) to the other party. In mediation, we will work with you to resolve any differences 
voluntarily with the aid of an impartial mediator.  

The mediation will be conducted as specified by the mediator and agreed upon by the parties. The parties agree 
to discuss their differences in good faith and to attempt, with the assistance of the mediator, to reach an 
amicable resolution of the Dispute. 

Each party will bear its own costs in the mediation. The fees and expenses of the mediator will be shared equally 
by the parties. 

Time limitation 

The nature of our services makes it difficult, with the passage of time, to gather and present evidence that fully 
and fairly establishes the facts underlying any Dispute that may arise between the parties. The parties agree 
that, notwithstanding any statute or law of limitations that might otherwise apply to a Dispute, including one 
arising out of this agreement or the services performed under this agreement, for breach of contract or fiduciary 
duty, tort, fraud, misrepresentation or any other cause of action or remedy, any action or legal proceeding by 
you against us must be commenced within twenty‐four (24) months (“Limitation Period”) after the date when 
we deliver our final audit report under this agreement to you, regardless of whether we do other services for 
you relating to the audit report, or you shall be forever barred from commencing a lawsuit or obtaining any legal 
or equitable relief or recovery. 

The Limitation Period applies and begins to run even if you have not suffered any damage or loss, or have not 
become aware of the existence or possible existence of a Dispute. 

Fees 

Our not to exceed fee for the year ending June 30, 2022, is set forth below, which is inclusive of a five percent 
technology and client support fee. These fees are based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and 
their assistance with preparing confirmations and requested schedules. If the requested items are not available 
on the dates required or are not accurate, the fees and expenses will likely be higher. If unexpected 
circumstances require significant additional time, we will advise you before undertaking work that would require 
a substantial increase in the fee and expense estimates. Our invoices, including applicable state and local taxes, 
will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation. In accordance with our firm 
policies, work may be suspended if your account becomes 60 days or more overdue and will not be resumed 
until your account is paid in full. If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will be 
deemed to have been completed even if we have not issued our reports. You will be obligated to compensate us 
for all time expended and related fees and to reimburse us for all out‐of‐pocket expenditures through the date 
of termination. 

  

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



[Click here and type date] 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Page 12 

Service  Amount 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Financial Audit 

$ 32,400 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Single Audit 

$ 6,000 

Chino Basin Regional Financing 
Authority Financial Audit 

$ 4,400 

Total  $ 42,400 

 
Unanticipated services 
We do not anticipate encountering the need to perform additional services beyond those described in this 
letter. Below are listings of services considered to be outside the scope of our engagement. If any such service 
needs to be completed before the audit can proceed in an efficient manner, we will determine whether we can 
provide the service and maintain our independence. If appropriate, we will notify you and provide a fair and 
reasonable price for providing the service. We will bill you for the service at periodic dates after the additional 
service has been performed. 

Changes in engagement timing and assistance by your personnel 

The fee estimate is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and their assistance with 
timely preparation of confirmations and requested schedules. If the requested items are not available 
on the dates required or are not accurate, we will advise management. Additional time and costs may 
be necessary because of such unanticipated delays. Examples of situations that may cause our 
estimated fee to increase include: 

 Significant delays in responding to our requests for information such as reconciling variances or 
providing requested supporting documentation (e.g., invoices, contracts, and other documents) 

 Rescheduling our fieldwork 

 Schedule disruption caused by litigation, financial challenges (going concern), loan covenants 
(waivers), etc. 

 Identifying a significant number of proposed audit adjustments 

 Schedules prepared by your personnel that do not reconcile to the general ledger 

 Numerous revisions to information and schedules provided by your personnel 

 Restating financial statements for accounting errors in the prior year 

 Lack of availability of entity personnel during audit fieldwork 

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



[Click here and type date] 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Page 13 

Other fees 
You also agree to compensate us for any time and expenses, including time and expenses of legal counsel, we 
may incur in responding to discovery requests or participating as a witness or otherwise in any legal, regulatory, 
or other proceedings that we are asked to respond to on your behalf. 

Finance charges and collection expenses 
You agree that if any statement is not paid within 30 days from its billing date, the unpaid balance shall accrue 
interest at the monthly rate of one and one‐quarter percent (1.25%), which is an annual percentage rate of 15%. 
In the event that any collection action is required to collect unpaid balances due us, reasonable attorney fees 
and expenses shall be recoverable. 

Consent 

Consent to use information for benchmarking analysis 
In an effort to better serve the needs of our clients, we develop a variety of benchmark, performance indicator, 
and predictive analysis reports, using anonymized client data obtained from our audit, tax, and other 
engagements. Business and financial information that you provide to us may be combined with information 
from other clients and included within the aggregated data that we use in these reports. While some of these 
analytical reports will be published and released publicly, please be assured that the separate information that 
we obtain from you will remain confidential, as required by the AICPA Code of Professional Conduct. 

Subcontractors 
CLA may, at times, use subcontractors to perform services under this agreement, and they may have access to 
your information and records. Any such subcontractors will be subject to the same restrictions on the use of 
such information and records as apply to CLA under this agreement. 

Agreement 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you and believe this letter accurately summarizes the 
significant terms of our engagement. This letter constitutes the entire agreement regarding these services and 
supersedes all prior agreements (whether oral or written), understandings, negotiations, and discussions 
between you and CLA. If you have any questions, please let us know. Please sign, date, and return this letter to 
us to indicate your acknowledgment and understanding of, and agreement with, the arrangements for our audit 
of your financial statements including the terms of our engagement and the parties’ respective responsibilities. 

Sincerely, 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

 
 
 
Nitin Patel, CPA 
Principal 
714‐978‐1300 
Nitin.Patel@CLAconnect.com 

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



[Click here and type date] 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Page 14 

 
Response: 

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Inland Empire Utilities Agency. 

 

Authorized management signature:                

Title:                        

Date:                        

 

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



 

[Date] 

Mr. Shivaji Deshmukh 
General Manager 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
6075 Kimball Avenue 
Chino, CA 91708 

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the terms and objectives of our engagement and the nature 
and limitations of the agreed‐upon procedures engagement CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (“CLA,” “we,” “us,” and 
“our”) will provide for Inland Empire Utilities Agency (“you,” “your,” or “the entity”) for the year ending June 30, 
2023. 

Nitin Patel is responsible for the performance of the agreed‐upon procedures engagement. 

Scope, objective, and responsibilities 

We will apply the agreed‐upon procedures which Inland Empire Utilities Agency and the League of California 
Cities (as presented in the League Publication entitled “Article XIII‐B Appropriation Limit Uniform Guidelines”) 
has specified and agreed to, listed in the attached schedule, to the Appropriations Limit Worksheet No. 6 of 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency for the year ending  June 30, 2023. Inland Empire Utilities Agency is responsible 
for the Appropriation Limit Worksheet No. 6. 

Our engagement to apply agreed‐upon procedures will be conducted in accordance with attestation standards 
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Inland Empire Utilities Agency agrees to 
and acknowledges the procedures performed or to be performed are appropriate for the intended purpose of 
the requirements of Section 1.5 of Article XIII‐B of the California Constitution. The intended users of the agreed‐
upon procedures report are the Board of Directors and management of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency. 
Intended users in addition to Inland Empire Utilities Agency may be requested to agree to the procedures and 
acknowledge that the procedures performed are appropriate for the intended purpose. Consequently, we make 
no representation regarding the appropriateness of the procedures enumerated in the attached schedule either 
for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other purpose. The intended users assume 
the risk that such procedures might be inappropriate for the intended purpose and the risk that they might 
misunderstand or otherwise inappropriately use findings properly reported by CLA.  

Our responsibility is to perform the specified procedures and report the findings in accordance with the 
attestation standards. Because the agreed‐upon procedures listed in the attached schedule do not constitute an 
examination, or review, we will not express an opinion or conclusion on the Appropriation Limit Worksheet No. 
6. In addition, we have no obligation to perform any procedures beyond those listed in the attached schedule. 

At the conclusion of the engagement, you agree to provide a written representation letter that includes your 
agreement and acknowledgement that the procedures performed are appropriate for the intended purpose of 
the engagement and, if applicable, that you have obtained from necessary other parties their agreement to the 
procedures and acknowledgement that the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes. 

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



[Click here and type date] 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Page 2 

We will issue a written report upon completion of our engagement that lists the procedures performed and our 
findings. This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management of 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency, and should not be used by anyone other than the specified parties. If, for any 
reason, we are unable to complete the procedures, we will describe any restrictions on the performance of the 
procedures in our report, or will not issue a report and withdraw from this engagement. Our report will include 
a statement indicating that had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our 
attention that would have been reported to you. 

An agreed‐upon procedures engagement is not designed to detect instances of fraud or noncompliance with 
laws or regulations; however, we will communicate to you any known and suspected fraud and noncompliance 
with laws or regulations affecting the Appropriations Limit Worksheet No. 6 that come to our attention, unless 
they are clearly inconsequential. In addition, if, in connection with this engagement, matters come to our 
attention that contradict the Appropriations Limit Worksheet No. 6, we will disclose those matters in our report. 
Such disclosures, if any, may not necessarily include all matters that might have come to our attention had we 
performed additional procedures or an examination or review. 

Management is responsible for providing us with (1) access to all information of which you are aware that is 
relevant to the Appropriations Limit Worksheet No. 6  and the agreed‐upon procedures, such as records, 
documentation, and other matters, and for the accuracy and completeness of that information; (2) additional 
information that we may request for the purpose of performing the agreed‐upon procedures; and 
(3) unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom we determine it necessary to obtain evidence 
relating to performing the procedures. You agree to inform us of events occurring or facts discovered 
subsequent to the date of the Appropriations Limit Worksheet No. 6 that may affect the Appropriations Limit 
Worksheet No. 6. 

For all accounting services we may provide to you, management agrees to assume all management 
responsibilities; oversee the services by designating an individual, preferably within senior management, who 
possesses suitable skill, knowledge, and/or experience to understand and oversee the services; evaluate the 
adequacy and results of the services; and accept responsibility for the results of the services. Management is 
also responsible for ensuring that your data and records are complete and that you have received sufficient 
information to oversee the services. 

We plan to begin our procedures on approximately July 2022 and, unless unforeseeable problems are 
encountered, the engagement should be completed by August 2022.  

Engagement administration and other matters 

The workpapers supporting the services we perform are the sole and exclusive property of CLA and constitute 
confidential and proprietary information. We do not provide access to our workpapers to you or anyone else in 
the normal course of business. Unless required by law or regulation to the contrary, we retain our workpapers in 
accordance with our record retention policy that typically provides for a retention period of seven years. 

Pursuant to authority given by law or regulation, we may be requested to make certain workpapers available to 
the California State Controller’s Office for their regulatory oversight purposes. We will notify you of any such 
request. Access to the requested workpapers will be provided to the regulators under the supervision of CLA 
personnel and at a location designated by our firm. Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of 

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



[Click here and type date] 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Page 3 

selected workpapers to such regulators. The regulators may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or 
information contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies. 

CLA will not disclose any of your confidential, proprietary, or privileged information to any persons without the 
authorization of your management or unless required by law. This confidentiality provision does not prohibit us 
from disclosing your information to one or more of our affiliated companies in order to provide services that you 
have requested from us or from any such affiliated company. Any such affiliated company shall be subject to the 
same restrictions on the use and disclosure of your information as apply to us. 

Our engagement ends on delivery of our signed report. Any additional services that might be requested will be a 
separate, new engagement. The terms and conditions of that new engagement will be governed by a new, 
specific engagement letter for that service. 

Mediation 

Any disagreement, controversy, or claim (“Dispute”) that may arise out of any aspect of our services or 
relationship with you, including this engagement, shall be submitted to non‐binding mediation by written notice 
(“Mediation Notice”) to the other party. In mediation, we will work with you to resolve any differences 
voluntarily with the aid of an impartial mediator. 

The mediation will be conducted as specified by the mediator and agreed upon by the parties (i.e., you and CLA). 
The parties agree to discuss their differences in good faith and to attempt, with the assistance of the mediator, 
to reach an amicable resolution of the Dispute. 

Each party will bear its own costs in the mediation. The fees and expenses of the mediator will be shared equally 
by the parties. 

Time limitation 

The nature of our services makes it difficult, with the passage of time, to gather and present evidence that fully 
and fairly establishes the facts underlying any Dispute that may arise between the parties. The parties agree 
that, notwithstanding any statute or law of limitations that might otherwise apply to a Dispute, including one 
arising out of this agreement or the services performed under this agreement, for breach of contract or fiduciary 
duty, tort, fraud, misrepresentation or any other cause of action or remedy, any action or legal proceeding by 
you against us must be commenced within twenty‐four (24) months (“Limitation Period”) after the date when 
we deliver our final report under this agreement to you, regardless of whether we provide other services for you 
relating to the report, or you shall be forever barred from commencing a lawsuit or obtaining any legal or 
equitable relief or recovery. 

The Limitation Period applies and begins to run even if you have not suffered any damage or loss, or have not 
become aware of the existence or possible existence of a Dispute. 

Fees 

Our not to exceed fee for the year ending June 30, 2023, is included in the audit fee for Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency. This fee is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and their assistance with preparing 
confirmations and requested schedules. If the requested items are not available on the dates required or are not 
accurate, the fees and expenses will likely be higher. If unexpected circumstances require significant additional 

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



[Click here and type date] 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Page 4 

time, we will advise you before undertaking work that would require a substantial increase in the fee and 
expense estimate. Our invoices, including applicable state and local taxes, will be rendered each month as work 
progresses and are payable on presentation. In accordance with our firm policies, work may be suspended if 
your account becomes 60 days or more overdue and will not be resumed until your account is paid in full. If we 
elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have been completed even 
if we have not issued our report. You will be obligated to compensate us for all time expended and related fees 
and to reimburse us for all out‐of‐pocket expenditures through the date of termination. 

Other fees 
You also agree to compensate us for any time and expenses, including time and expenses of legal counsel, we 
may incur in responding to discovery requests or participating as a witness or otherwise in any legal, regulatory, 
or other proceedings that we are asked to respond to on your behalf. 

Finance charges and collection expenses 
You agree that if any statement is not paid within 30 days from its billing date, the unpaid balance shall accrue 
interest at the monthly rate of one and one‐quarter percent (1.25%), which is an annual percentage rate of 15%. 
In the event that any collection action is required to collect unpaid balances due us, reasonable attorney fees 
and expenses shall be recoverable. 

Agreement 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you and believe this letter accurately summarizes the 
significant terms of our engagement. This letter constitutes the entire agreement regarding these services and 
supersedes all prior agreements (whether oral or written), understandings, negotiations, and discussions 
between you and CLA. If you have any questions, please let us know. If you agree with the terms of our 
engagement as described in this letter, please sign, date, and return the copy to us.  

Sincerely, 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

 
 
 
Nitin Patel, CPA 
Principal 
714‐795‐5387 
Nitin.patel@CLAconnect.com 
 
Enclosure 

Response: 

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Inland Empire Utilities Agency. 

 

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



[Click here and type date] 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Page 5 

Authorized Signature:                

Title:                    

Date:                    

  

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



[Click here and type date] 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Page 6 

SCHEDULE A 
 

SCHEDULE OF PROCEDURES TO BE PERFORMED 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

 

The procedures performed and our findings were as follows: 

 

1. We will obtain the completed Worksheet No. 6 for the year ended June 30, 2023, and compare the limit 

and annual adjustment factors included in that worksheet to the limit and annual adjustment factors that 

were adopted by resolution of the Board of Directors. We will also compare the population and inflation 

options included in the aforementioned worksheet to those that were selected by a recorded vote of the 

Board of Directors. 

 

2. For the Appropriations Limit Worksheet No. 6, we will add last year’s limit to the total adjustments, and 

compare the resulting amount to this year’s limit. We will also recalculate the adjustment factor and the 

adjustment for inflation and population, and compare the results to the amounts on Worksheet No. 6. 

 

3. We will compare the prior year appropriations limit presented in the Appropriations Limit Worksheet No. 6 

to the prior year appropriations limit adopted by the Board of Directors for the prior year. 
 

Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t



WEALTH ADVISORY | OUTSOURCING | AUDIT, TAX, AND CONSULTING
Investment advisory services are offered through CliftonLarsonAllen Wealth Advisors, LLC, an SEC-registered investment advisor

©
2

0
2

2
 C

lif
to

n
La

rs
o

n
A

lle
n

 L
LP

Fiscal Year 2021-2022

Inland Empire Utilities Agency  
Planning Presentation to 
Audit Committee 



©
2

0
2

2
 C

lif
to

n
La

rs
o

n
A

lle
n

 L
LP

Outline

• Scope of services for year ending June 30, 2022

• GASB/Audit Standards

• Auditor’ responsibilities

• Planned scope and timing

2Inland Empire Utilities Agency



©
2

0
2

2
 C

lif
to

n
La

rs
o

n
A

lle
n

 L
LP

Scope of Service

• Audit of the annual financial statements for the Inland Empire Utilities Agency and 
Chino Basin Regional Financing Authority for the year ending June 30, 2022, in 
accordance with Generally Accepted (US) and Governmental Auditing Standards

• Audit of federal grant expenditures under the Uniform Guidance 

• Agreed-Upon-Procedures related to the Agency’s calculation of the GANN limit

3Inland Empire Utilities Agency



©
2

0
2

2
 C

lif
to

n
La

rs
o

n
A

lle
n

 L
LP

GASB/Audit Standards

• GASB 87 – Leases

• SAS 134 - Changes to the Independent Auditors’ Report
o Opinions

o Basis for Opinions

o Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

o Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

▪ Additional disclosures

4



©
2

0
2

2
 C

lif
to

n
La

rs
o

n
A

lle
n

 L
LP

Auditor’s Responsibilities

• Forming and expressing opinions on whether the financial statements 
prepared by management are fairly presented in all material respects in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles

• Planning and performing the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatements

5Inland Empire Utilities Agency



©
2

0
2

2
 C

lif
to

n
La

rs
o

n
A

lle
n

 L
LP

Auditor’s Responsibilities

• Examining in accordance with the Uniform Guidance about the Agency’s 
compliance applicable to each of the major federal program for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the Agency’s compliance with those 
requirements

• Communicating significant matters related to the financial statement audit 
that in our judgement are relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the 
financial statement process

6Inland Empire Utilities Agency



©
2

0
2

2
 C

lif
to

n
La

rs
o

n
A

lle
n

 L
LP

Planned scope and timing of audit

• Audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosure in the financial statements: therefore, our audit 
will involve judgement about the number of transactions to be examined 
and areas to be tested

• Material misstatements may result from:
o Errors

o Fraudulent financial reporting

o Misappropriation of assets

o Violations of laws or government regulations that are attributable to the Agency or to 
acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the Agency

7Inland Empire Utilities Agency



©
2

0
2

2
 C

lif
to

n
La

rs
o

n
A

lle
n

 L
LP

Planned scope and timing of audit

• Communicate significant findings and internal controls matters that are 
required to be communicated at the conclusion of the audit

• Timing of work to be finalized with management
o Interim fieldwork - June 2022 

o Final fieldwork – October 2022

o Report issuance – December 2022

8Inland Empire Utilities Agency



WEALTH ADVISORY | OUTSOURCING 
AUDIT, TAX, AND CONSULTING

Investment advisory services are offered through CliftonLarsonAllen 
Wealth Advisors, LLC, an SEC-registered investment advisor

©
2

0
2

2
 C

lif
to

n
La

rs
o

n
A

lle
n

 L
LP

9

Nitin Patel, CPA
nitin.patel@claconnect.com



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

  

3D 



Budget Impact 

 
June 15, 2022

Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit Report - Review of Procure
to Pay Processes for Planning and Resources

Internal Audit (IA) staff completed an evaluation of the procure to pay process for professional
and consulting services administered by the Planning and Resources Department (P&R). The
objective of the audit was to evaluate the procure to pay processes including contract
implementation, requests for services, purchase orders, receiving, approval and payment
processing to identify any problems, bottlenecks, and constraints in the various steps to process
vendor invoices timely. The Review of Procure to Pay Processes for P&R noted that
approximately 200 invoices totaling over $2 million are paid each year. The report attached
provides a list of 11 observations and recommendations related to: the need for more efficient
processes and procedures, visibility of transactions through monitoring tools and reports are
needed, Standard Operating Procedures should be documented and formalized to establish
consistency in processes and use as guides for meeting goals, the need for technology tools for
routing, tracking and monitoring invoices and transactions, utilizing monitoring reports to
prioritize payments, and established key performance indicators and measurements are needed.
Of the 11 audit recommendations provided, 6 are for P&R, 2 for CAP, 3 new and 8 restated for
Accounting. The report that follows provides details of the current process and the list of the
observations and recommendations identified.

This is an information item.

N/A

N/A

06/06/22Audit

Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit

N Y

Manager Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit Report Review of Procure to Pay
Processes for Planning and Resources is consistent with the Agency's Business Goals of Fiscal
Responsibility, Workplace Environment, and Business Practices by ensuring that IA's
evaluations provide recommendations that foster a strong control environment, safeguard assets,
promote a safe work environment and assist management in achieving organizational goals and
objectives.

On June 16, 2021, the Board of Directors approved the Fiscal Year 2021/22 Annual Audit Plan.
The Plan proposed the various Procure to Pay Audits under the Accounts Payable Operational
and Internal Control Audit.

Attachment 1 - Audit Report for the Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit -
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Planning and Resources
Attachment 2 - PowerPoint

Not Applicable

22127



 
 

 

DATE:   May 25, 2022 
  
TO:  Shivaji Deshmukh 
  General Manager 

     
FROM:   Teresa V. Velarde 
  Manager of Internal Audit 
 
SUBJECT:  Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report – 

Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Planning and Resources 
 
Audit Authority 
The Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA or Agency) Internal Audit (IA) Department has 
performed an audit of the Procure to Pay Processes related to Professional Services 
administered by Planning and Resources.  The audit was performed under the authority 
given by the Board of Directors in the approved Fiscal Year (FY) 2021/2022 Annual Audit 
Plan and the IA’s Department Charter. 
 
Audit Objectives and Scope:  
The objective of the overall Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit is 
to evaluate the various payment processes and operations of the Accounts Payable (AP) 
Group, within the Accounting Unit, to determine whether Agency policies and department-
specific operating procedures were established and to identify areas for improvement.  
The scope of the Review of Procure to Pay Processes (P2P) for Professional Services is 
to evaluate the processes for the professional services as administered by the Planning 
and Resources Department (P&R). 
 
The specific objectives of the audit include:  

• Evaluate the invoice processes, including receiving and payments, related to 
professional/consulting services procured by P&R 

• Evaluate the procurement processes, including ordering and receiving processes 
for the professional/consulting services administered by P&R 

• Determine compliance with Agency Policies 

• Determine compliance with department Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) 

• Evaluate internal controls 

• Evaluate the timeliness of the receiving and payment functions 

• Evaluate the use of technology and report tools 

• Identify operational efficiencies and opportunities for improvement 
 



Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report –  
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Planning and Resources  
May 25, 2022 
Page 2 of 27 
 

 
 

 
IA is performing the Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit in multiple 
phases.  To-date, IA has issued the following audit reports:  
 

• Interim Audit Report: Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit 
(dated August 20, 2021) This comprehensive report evaluated invoice and 
payment data and metrics, including the total number of invoices paid on time or 
late and the number of days invoices were paid after the due date, along with other 
analysis of financial information.  

 

• Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report – Review of 
Procure to Pay Processes for Chemicals (dated November 24, 2021) This report 
evaluated the Procure to Pay Processes for the Agency’s chemicals (from ordering 
to payments).  IA provided thirty-five (35) audit recommendations to: Operations & 
Maintenance, the Accounting and Contracts and Procurement (CAP) units of the 
Finance Department. (This audit will be referred to as the “P2P Chemicals”). 

 

• Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report  - Review of 
Procure to Pay Processes for Professional Services – Engineering & Construction 
Management (dated February 24, 2022) This report evaluated the Procure to Pay 
Processes for Professional Services as administered by the Engineering & 
Construction Management (E&CM) unit, specifically the Master Contracts or 
Design Contracts. IA provided twenty-one (21) recommendations: E&CM, CAP, 
and the Accounting Unit. (This audit will be referred to as the “P2P E&CM”). 

 
In the previous twelve (12) months, IA has provided fifty-six (56) audit recommendations 
to improve efficiencies in the procure to pay process throughout the Agency.  In response 
to the problem of late payment invoices, the Agency’s General Manager created the 
Agency’s Strike Team to help make immediate changes to improve the timeliness of 
vendor payments. The Strike Team meets regularly to discuss IAs observations and 
recommendations and the department’s corrective actions and improvements while IA 
continues to work on additional P2P audits. 
 
Quarterly progress reports are submitted to the Audit Committee to report on the 
implementation status of all P2P recommendations.  IA also plans to evaluate the P2P 
processes related to other departments’ goods and services.  An audit report will be 
finalized after the completion for each area reviewed.  
 
Audit Techniques applied: 
Audit techniques applied: 

• Interviews of Agency staff 

• Review of Agency policies 

• Review of SOPs 

• Evaluation of internal controls 



Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report –  
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Planning and Resources  
May 25, 2022 
Page 3 of 27 
 

 
 

• Review/understanding of the processes to perform receiving, matching of 
procurement and invoice documents, and processing of payments  

• Review and analysis of financial transactions 
• Review of supporting documents  

 
 

Audit Results – Executive Summary 
This report provides the results, observations, and recommendations related to IA’s 
Review of the Procure to Pay Processes for Professional Services administered by the 
Planning and Resources Department (P&R), this audit will be referred to as “P2P P&R”. 
 
In FY 2020/21 and 2021/22 (as of April 16, 2022), P&R processed 243 vendor payments 
totaling $2,416,375 and 154 vendor payments totaling $2,075,071, respectively, for 
Agency related professional/consulting services (see table in the background section later 
in the report).  
 
IA is reporting a total of 11 audit recommendations in the following areas: 
 

Department 
Name 

Summary of Audit Observations 

P&R 

• Some payments were paid outside the traditional P2P process because of the unique nature 

• P&R internal tracking tools/spreadsheets can be made more efficient leveraging tools 

• The department’s goal of “1 to 2 weeks” for invoice approval/receiving into SAP should be 
evaluated and formalized  

• Determine the need for email communications after receiving is completed n SAP 

• Implement formal SOPs that follow Agency Policy A-51 and provide training on the new SOPs 

• The department collaborate with CAP to evaluate the unique procurement items 

CAP 

• Work with the department to review/evaluate payments paid outside the P2P process 

• Work closely with P&R to identify unique transactions and the best procurement instrument 
and/or procurement process for those uncommon and unique transactions 

• Update Agency Procurement Ordinance and Agency Policy  

Accounting 

• Implement a more efficient method to route vendor invoices for approval  

• Implement and formalizing a consistent methodology to upload invoices into the SAP – 
Invoice Held Feature and utilize it to monitor, track and prioritize the payable transactions 

• Determine the best method for capturing when items have been received and work to 
eliminate the overload of email notifications from the departments 

 
 
This audit report is organized as follows:  

• Observations and recommendations 

• Flowcharts and narratives documenting the current Procure to Pay Process 

• Background information about the P&R department 

• Financial data and analysis of transactions selected 
 
  



Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report –  
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Planning and Resources  
May 25, 2022 
Page 4 of 27 
 

 
 

Acknowledgements 
IA would like to extend our appreciation to the P&R, Information Technology (IT), 
Accounting, and CAP Departments and Units for their cooperation and assistance during 
the audit. IA looks forward to the continued collaboration and continually working together. 
 
 
Discussions with Management 
IA provided the audit results to P&R, Accounting and CAP management on May 12, 2022.  
Results were communicated via email to Accounting on May 16, 2022.   The results were 
also communicated and discussed in various meetings. Where possible, the department’s 
management comments, and responses have been incorporated.   
 
 
The Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit Report Review of Procure 
to Pay Processes for Professional Services administered by the Planning and Resources 
Department is consistent with the Agency’s Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility, 
Workplace Environment, and Business Practices by ensuring that IA’s evaluations 
provide recommendations that foster a strong control environment, safeguard assets, 
promote a safe work environment and assist management in achieving organizational 
goals and objectives. 
 
 
TV:sn  

 
  



Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report –  
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Planning and Resources  
May 25, 2022 
Page 5 of 27 
 

 
 

Observations and Recommendations 
Procure to Pay Process for P&R 

In the prior Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit Reports, it was noted 
that the existing problem: Agency invoices are not being paid by the invoice due date 
and/or within the payment terms.  This problem has been the basis for the scope of the 
Procure to Pay audits. In this audit report, IA provides observations and recommendations 
related to the following: 
 
Delays in performing the Receiving function by P&R are due to: 

• Untimely routing invoices from Accounts Payable to the P&R department for 
approval and receiving. 

• The P&R Project Manager (PM) does not agree with the services billed on the 
invoice, and the invoice needs to be revised by the vendor (although technically 
not late if an edit/revision must be made, if the invoice date is not updated by the 
vendor, the invoice may appear to have been paid late based on the original 
invoice date and terms). In these instances, the PM does a due diligence review 
to ensure the invoice is accurate. See details of our analysis, attached. 

• There is no backup administrative support to perform the receiving function in SAP 
during staff absences/leaves, or when there are other assignments and priorities.  
 

Delays in processing invoices for payment by the due date by AP are due to: 

• Processes and procedures require changes to make them more efficient 

• Identification, monitoring and visibility of transactions that have been received into 
SAP and are waiting to be processed for timely payment 

• There are no documented SOPs for Accounting processes to establish a 
consistent, routine, methodology for prioritizing and processing timely payments 

• Improved communication and procedures to ensuring timely payments 
 
Potential Risks to IEUA due to late payments to vendors  

• Vendors not willing to do business with IEUA in the future 

• Possible higher prices offered at the time of establishing contracts  

• Possible late fees  

• Harmed vendor relationships 

• Damaged reputation and image of IEUA 

• Staff time and resources wasted researching transactions and responding to 
vendors asking for overdue payments 

 
The matrix that follows, identifies 11 audit observations and related recommendations 
corresponding to the P2P processes as illustrated in the flowchart and the narrative that 
follow the matrix.  The matrix also provides information about the impact to the process if 
the recommendations are implemented and notes the Department(s) that need to 
collaborate to implement corrective action. The financial information and IA analysis on 
the last page provide additional support for the observations and recommendations 
identified. 



Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report –  
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Planning and Resources  
May 25, 2022 
Page 6 of 27 
 

 
 

Internal Audit’s List of Observations and Recommendations 
 

Planning and Resources (P&R) 

 

Dept 
taking the 

lead to 
implement 

Observation, Issue, or Idea Recommendation 
Impact on revised/updated process 

with recommendation being 
implemented 

1 P&R 

Unique transactions paid outside 
of the traditional P2P process 
 

IA noted that some vendors 
managed by P&R (i.e., Chino Basin 
Watermaster, South Coast AQMD, 
all County of San Bernardino 
invoices and other public agencies) 
are paid via a Check Request 
and/or Direct Pay, (approximately 27%   

66 of 243 in FY2021) instead of going 
through the regular P2P process 
(begins with a PR, CAP prepares a 
PO, receiving is done against a PO, 
payment is issued to a vendor 
after the 3-way match).  
 

P&R staff indicated that these are 
unique transactions that do not 
often fit the traditional P2P 
process. P&R staff stated that they 
are looking forward to working 
closely with CAP and Accounting 
to ensure transactions follow a 
more traditional P2P process that 
ensures tracking and visibility and 
not delay payments. 
 

P&R should work closely with 
CAP and Accounting to establish 
the most appropriate P2P 
process for all/unique 
transactions.  The departments 
should collaborate to ensure the 
process follows the Agency’s 
Procurement Ordinance 
requirements.  P&R should 
discuss and seek CAPs assistance 
to ensure there is a clear 
understanding of the service 
agreement or transaction and the 
required documentation that 
should be completed and 
submitted, the process to commit 
to purchase services, ensure 
vendors are properly set up and a 
required PR/PO are established 
when necessary. The P2P process 
should be discussed and the best 
procurement method that works 
for all the departments involved, 
should be formalized, and agreed 
to, in order to ensure 
transactions are tracked and 
payments are paid on time.  

 
Ensuring and obtaining assistance 
from CAP on all procurement 
transactions, including unique 
and/or special circumstances, not 
commonly traditional, will help 
identify the best, approved 
procurement method under the 
Ordinance and Agency policies. 
Additionally, it will ensure 
visibility, tracking and monitoring 
of the transactions and related 
vendor payments.  

2 P&R 

Automated Tools for Department 
Excel Spreadsheets 

Internal Invoice Tracker 
P&R uses an excel spreadsheet to 
track, route, and monitor 
approximately 200 P&R 
invoices/check requests a year.  
Information recorded in the excel 
spreadsheet is manually entered 
from the invoices received. The 
information recorded in the 
Invoice Tracker, includes invoice 
details already entered in SAP by 
AP in addition to information not 
recorded in SAP but are metrics 
the department tracks, which 

Internal Invoice Tracker 
IA recommends the P&R 
Department work with and 
collaborate with Accounting and 
IT to evaluate if the SharePoint 
Document Library and/or 
Microsoft Office Access database 
would be a more efficient tool to 
track invoices, metrics and 
projects (similar to the one used 
by Engineering & Construction 
Management) or if any other 
technologies, tools or solutions 
(new and/or existing) are 
available (leveraging information 

Leveraging the use of existing 
technologies will make the process 
more efficient and eliminate 
duplication of data, and assist with 
tracking internal metrics, 
including:  

• Centralized location 

• Tracking/routing capability 

• Measures metrics and time 
frames 

• Predetermine parameters for 
field/data entry 

• Collaboration tool 

• Reduces reliance on email 
communications 



Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report –  
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Planning and Resources  
May 25, 2022 
Page 7 of 27 
 

 
 

includes the date P&R received 
the invoice from AP/PM, approval 
dates, and date invoices were 
returned to AP for payment. 
 

While this is a good control to 
track and monitor department-
specific invoices, the department 
could leverage the automated 
tools for tracking and routing 
invoices. This would assist in 
eliminating additional manual data 
entry, tracking and monitoring.  

already in SAP) can be leveraged 
to record, track and route 
invoices for approval, to make 
the process more efficient and 
effective and eliminate the need 
for a stand-alone spreadsheet. Or 
determine if the current process 
with the excel spreadsheet is the 
best method. 

• Possibly provides email or 
automatic notifications  

• Efficient safekeeping tool  
 
 

3 P&R 

Automated Tools for Department 
Excel Spreadsheets  

Project Specific Trackers 
P&R staff have 8-10 excel 
spreadsheets that are project 
specific, for the purpose of 
monitoring each project’s contract 
spending, payments issued, funds 
remaining, PO terms and other 
details of the contract/project. 
Vendor invoice amounts are 
manually entered into the project 
specific excel spreadsheets. 
 

While this is a good internal 
control to track/monitor contract 
and project spending, the 
department could leverage 
information already in SAP for 
contract/project monitoring and 
spending.  

Project Specific Trackers 
IA recommends P&R Department 
work with and collaborate with 
CAP, Accounting, and IT to 
evaluate if existing reports in the 
Agency’s financial system (SAP) 
can be leveraged, utilized and/or 
developed to monitor P&R’s 
contracts/projects to make the 
process of tracking/monitoring 
more efficient. Or evaluate if 
there are existing reports that 
can be used (for example the 
Contract Expiration Report and 
others).  Or determine if the 
current process with multiple 
excel spreadsheets is the best 
monitoring method. 

Leveraging existing technologies 
will make the process more 
efficient and eliminate duplication 
of data, and automatically records 
and tracks the spending for 
contracts/projects and ensure 
there is a good and reliable 
monitoring control to 
continuously review and track 
project information.  

4 P&R 

Evaluate Department’s Current Goal of 
“1 to 2 weeks” for Invoice Routing and 
Processing Receiving into SAP  

P&R has a goal to obtain all 
required approval signatures on 
invoices and complete the 
receiving function in SAP within 
one to two weeks of the date the 
invoice arrives to the P&R 
Department. Currently, P&R’s 
average is approximately 7 days.  
P&R should evaluate the goal to 
determine if efficiencies can be 
incorporated to expedite the 
process to allow additional time 
for Accounting to process the 
payment and formalize the goal in 
actual, total number of days. 

P&R determine the most 
appropriate metric (in total 
number of days) for completing 
receiving and work closely with 
Accounting to evaluate and 
determine if the current goal to 
turnaround the approved invoice 
and complete the receiving into 
SAP allows sufficient time for 
Accounting to complete the 3-
way match and process the 
payment by the due date. P&R 
should determine the best metric 
and document the metric in 
actual total days, in the updated, 
formal SOP. 

Coordination between the P&R’s 
goals to complete the receiving 
and the time needed for the 
Accounting Unit to process the 
payment to ensure payments are 
made by the due date. 



Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report –  
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Planning and Resources  
May 25, 2022 
Page 8 of 27 
 

 
 

5 P&R 

Email Notifications to Accounting 
(after Receiving is complete in SAP) 

P&R administrative staff currently 
send email notifications to the AP 
group email address after the 
receiving process has been 
completed in SAP to notify them 
of the receiving. This may not be 
the most efficient/effective way to 
report that the receiving in SAP 
has been completed. Additionally, 
Accounting may be receiving too 
many emails. 

IA recommends P&R take the 
lead to discuss with Accounting 
to determine if email 
notifications are needed to notify 
when the receiving process has 
been performed in SAP. P&R and 
Accounting work together to 
establish the most effective and 
efficient communication method 
and work to minimize the 
number of emails sent to AP.  

Evaluate the most 
efficient/effective way to notify 
and communicate that the 
receiving has been performed to 
eliminate the need for additional 
emails. Utilizing SAP workflow 
notifications and/or other 
technology and solutions would be 
more efficient and are provided as 
a recommendation to Accounting 
below.  

6 P&R 

Formal Standard Operating 
Procedures (SOPs) & Training 

P&R Administrative staff keep 
desk procedures and “how to 
guides” to perform certain tasks. 
While these are good reference 
tools to have, these should be 
formalized, using Agency Policy A-
51, as official department SOPs to 
document the various processes 
related to invoice processing, 
including, routing of the invoices, 
performing the receiving in SAP, 
tracking and monitoring spending 
on POs, contracts and projects, 
and other budget and fiscal 
activities. Training should be 
provided that is consistent with 
the formal, documented SOP. 

P&R consider formalizing the 
current documented desk 
procedures using the Agency’s 
Policy A-51 for documenting 
department SOPs to ensure these 
include metrics/KPIs/goals for 
processing receiving and other 
activities including procedures for 
processing invoices, routing, 
tracking, obtaining approvals, 
receiving in SAP, monitoring POs, 
contracts and projects, and other 
budget and fiscal activities.  
Additionally, provide periodic 
training to reinforce the most 
updated SOPs and ensure 
procedures are available to all 
staff.  

SOPs provide consistent 
procedures for employees to 
follow and be trained on. SOPs 
serve as a resource and reference 
guide during staffing changes (i.e., 
leaves, turnover, retirements, 
etc.).  P&R stated they will 
document their current desk 
procedures following A-51 format. 

 

 

  



Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report –  
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Planning and Resources  
May 25, 2022 
Page 9 of 27 
 

 
 

Contracts and Procurement (CAP) 

 

Dept 
taking the 

lead to 
implement 

Observation, Issue, or Idea Recommendation 
Impact on revised/updated process 

with recommendation being 
implemented 

7 CAP 

P&R unique procurement needs 
and/or P2P training needs 

Noted instances when P&R 
payments are made to vendors 
outside of the traditional P2P 
process (PR, PO, receiving 
against a PO, payments issued to 
a vendor).  These types of 
payments are sometimes paid 
using a Check Requests and/or 
using Direct Pay (for example: 
POs not carried-forward from 
the prior fiscal year and/or 
funding has been returned and 
having to use the current year’s 
funds to pay the vendor’s 
invoice, etc.). For example, Chino 
Basin Watermaster, and other 
public agencies) are paid via 
Check request (approximately 27%   

66 of 243 in FY2021).  P&R has 
unique procurement 
requirements and training needs.  

CAP should take the lead to work 
closely with and collaborate with 
P&R to evaluate the unique 
transactions and vendor 
agreements/services and provide 
the necessary information, 
assistance, and training to 
properly set up the most effective 
procurement instrument that 
follows the requirements of the 
Agency Ordinance and Agency 
Policies and follow an approved 
and efficient P2P process. 

Unique transactions require 
collaboration and review. 
Payments to vendors going 
through the P2P process ensures 
proper accountability, visibility 
and tracking and ensures the 
proper internal controls and 
policies are followed. Information 
and training and information will 
ensure staff understand the 
requirements of Agency policies 
related to procurement 
instruments. 

8 CAP  

Procurement Ordinance No. 108 and 
Agency Policy A-50 

Agency Policy A-50 is currently 
applied to PO and Non- PO 
transactions, although the title 
may be misleading. The current 
Policy A-50 is old and outdated. 
Additionally, the Agency-wide 
reorganization has resulted in 
changes to department names 
and staff positions/titles, and 
possibly approval authorities; 
therefore, no longer matches the 
requirements and information 
listed in the Agency policy A-50. 
A-50 and the Procurement 
Ordinance require updates.  
 

CAP should take the lead to make 
needed updates to Agency Policy 
A-50 and the Procurement 
Ordinance, to ensure they provide 
policy requirements for both PO 
and Non-PO items and addresses 
the changes resulting from the 
recent Agency reorganization to 
establish the most current and 
applicable controls for the 
Agency’s procurement activities. 

Having multiple documents that 
communicates consistent 
information reduces confusion 
and increases clarity and 
understanding.  
 
Establishing and communicating 
current policies and procedures 
reduces the risk of 
misunderstanding 
for departments and ensures both 
the policy and business practices 
match one another.  

 
  



Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report –  
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Planning and Resources  
May 25, 2022 
Page 10 of 27 
 

 
 

Finance and Accounting Department (Accounting Unit) 

 

Dept 
taking the 

lead to 
implement 

Observation, Issue, or Idea IA Recommendation 
Impact on revised/updated process 

with recommendation being 
implemented 

9 Accounting 

Routing Vendor Invoices 
Currently, there does not appear to 
be a consistent method for how the 
vendor invoices are routed from AP 
to the P&R Department. There is no 
use of SAP or other workflow 
technology for routing, tracking, and 
monitoring invoices for approval and 
back to accounting after they have 
been approved and received. 
 

In FY 2021, P&R had over two 
hundred (200) invoices, and for FY 
2022 (as of the beginning of April 
2022), P&R has already received 
approximately one-hundred fifty 
(150) invoices. (Approximately 
sixteen (16) a month). 
 

The audit noted that P&R invoices 
were not always sent to the P&R 
department soon after the invoice 
date or soon after AP receives the 
invoices. IA randomly selected 20 
items for review and noted, also see 
the last 2 pages of this report for 
details and the analysis: 
 

• In five (5) of twenty (20), it took 
longer than thirty (30) days for 
the AP group to acknowledge 
receipt of the invoice from the 
vendor (based on the date-
stamp by AP) 

 

• In two (2) of twenty (20), it took 
longer than thirty (30) days for 
the AP group to route the 
invoice to P&R (based on the 
date-stamp by AP). 

 

P&R stated they do not always wait 
until the invoice is sent from AP to 
process for approval.  If they are 
copied on the email from the vendor 
with the invoice they begin to 
process. In the 20 items that were 
selected for IA review:  
 

• Four (4) of the twenty (20), the 
processing and routing started 
by P&R before the invoice was 

Accounting should take the lead 
to work directly with IT to 
determine if current or new 
technologies can be leveraged to 
ensure timely uploading, tracking, 
and routing of invoices to ensure 
there are no delays in the 
payment process.  Accounting 
should work directly with P&R to 
evaluate if using the SharePoint 
Document Library (similar to the 
one developed for Engineering & 
Construction Management) 
and/or any other technologies 
and solutions (new or existing) to 
manage and route the P&R 
invoices. 
 
Additionally: 
 

• Establish a consistent 
system/method and best 
practices for uploading and 
routing vendor invoices to 
the correct department as 
soon as they are received 
from vendors. 

• A metric/goal that 
establishes the total number 
of days it should take to 
route the invoice should be 
determined and established 
with the goal of paying the 
invoices on time (possibly 1-4 
days). 

 

Having a consistent and 
systematic method and process 
for uploading and routing vendor 
invoices and leveraging 
technology tools to route, 
monitor, and track invoices will 
ensure: 
 

• Timely review, tracking and 
payment of invoices 

• Centralized location for all 
invoices  

• Improves visibility of all the 
invoices  

• Assists with tracking the 
process of the invoices 

• Provides accessibility, 
especially if there are more 
than one administrative staff 
member 
reviewing/monitoring 
invoices 

• Provides one location for all 
Agency invoices to and 
possibly not having to 
research and determine who 
the assigned PM is for the 
project/vendor/invoice  

• Reduces the amount of and 
the reliance on email 
communications  

• Saves time by not having to 
search and mine through 
emails looking for vendor’s 
invoices, and  

• Ensures timely payment of 
vendor invoices 



Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report –  
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Planning and Resources  
May 25, 2022 
Page 11 of 27 
 

 
 

sent to the P&R from 
Accounting because the PM 
and/or P&R Admin staff were 
copied on the email to the AP 
group by the vendor. 

 

As noted in the report, most of the 
invoices are emailed to the AP group 
email address and the PM and/or 
Admin staff are included.  
 

Accounting stated that even though 
the PM and staff are included on the 
email, AP will still route the vendors 
invoices via email to P&R during the 
“Invoice Intake Process” because all 
invoices should come into 
Accounting first. 
 

P&R noted that in calendar year 
2022, Accounting has not been 
forwarding and/or routing any 
invoices to P&R, and the department 
is relying on the invoices that are 
sent via email directly to P&R from 
the vendor.  

10 Accounting 

Shared Vendors 
The audit noted there are 
departments that use the same 
vendors for different projects 
making it difficult for accounting 
to timely route the invoice to the 
appropriate staff because each 
department has a different 
designated person. 
 

For example, one vendor might 
be working on two different 
projects which are managed by 
two different departments (i.e. 
Engineering, Operations, P&R).   
 

Some invoices come into the 
Agency and do not provide 
enough information about the 
projects and departments or the 
PM contact person.  This makes 
it difficult for AP to identify 
which department the invoice 
should be routed to. As a result, 
this requires additional research 
and time by AP to properly and 
timely route the invoice. 

To minimize delays in routing 
invoices for approval and paying 
on time, IA recommends 
Accounting take the lead to work 
closely with the IT and respective 
departments involved to:  
 

1) determine if having an updated 
list of current vendors and related 
projects per department would 
be a good reference to rely on for 
timely/properly routing invoices,  
 

2) determine if a SharePoint 
Document Library (similar to the 
one developed for Engineering & 
Construction Management) will 
assist with routing,  
 

3) implement other technologies 
and solutions (new and/or 
existing) or workflow to 
implement a more efficient tool 
to manage and route invoices 
that are shared amongst various 
Agency departments, and 
 

4) work directly with vendors to 
request they add additional 
identifying information directly on 

Evaluating alternatives to expedite 
the time it takes to route the 
invoice to the correct department 
would assist in ensure the invoices 
are approved timely and the 
receiving function is completed 
timely to ensure invoices are paid 
on time. 



Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report –  
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Planning and Resources  
May 25, 2022 
Page 12 of 27 
 

 
 

the invoices (project/contract, PM, 

etc.). 

11 Accounting 

Email notifications 

The AP group email receives 
email notifications from the P&R 
Admin staff after the Receiving 
process has been completed, and 
this may not be the most 
efficient/effective way to 
communicate/report that 
receiving in SAP has been 
completed.  
 

For each Professional Services 
invoice, receiving is performed, 
while for Check request no 
receiving is performed. In this 
review, IA identified there were 
at least 200 invoices more or 
less, where receiving must have 
been performed in SAP. Email 
communication can be 
overwhelming and overused and 
may not be the most effective to 
communicate that receiving has 
been completed in SAP.  
 
 

Accounting management should 
take the lead to work directly 
with P&R department to 
determine the most 
efficient/effective way to 
communicate that the receiving 
function in SAP has been 
performed. Both departments 
should discuss and agree if there 
is a need to use email 
communication for invoice 
management.  

Establishing an agreed 
communication process for 
invoice and payment management 
will improve efficiency.  

Re 
stat
ed 

Accounting 
(Restated) 

Visibility of Invoices Routed to P&R 

Once AP routes invoices to the 
department, AP has no visibility 
of the invoices and where they 
are in the review/approval 
process until the receiving is 
completed in SAP.  
 

P&R (similar, to Engineering & 
Construction Management) 
tracks and monitors their 
invoices received either from AP 
or the vendor, while AP has no 
visibility once invoices are routed 
out of the department. 
 

For AP, the invoice transfer and 
flow are not tracked/monitored 
and there is no visibility for AP as 
to where in the approval process 

IA recommends Accounting take 
the lead to work directly with the 
IT and P&R Department to 
determine if a SharePoint 
Document Library (similar to the 
one developed for Engineering & 
Construction Management) 
and/or any Other Technologies 
and Solutions (New and/or 
Existing) would be a more 
effective and efficient tool to 
manage and route all the 
invoices, including showing the 
status and where the invoices are 
in the process, and providing 
visibility to Accounting and the 
end-user department.  
(This recommendation was provided 
in the P2P for E&CM and, according 

Having a SharePoint Document 
Library and/or other type of 
software solutions to monitor and 
track the workflow of invoices will 
assist with:  
 

• Improved visibility, tracking 
and monitoring of all 
incoming and outgoing 
invoices from AP 

• Reduces reliance on email 
correspondence and 
communications 

• Efficiencies with researching 
invoices.  



Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report –  
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Planning and Resources  
May 25, 2022 
Page 13 of 27 
 

 
 

the invoice is at.  AP is not able 
to follow up on overdue items or 
determine when items are 
overdue.  

to Accounting, is currently In 
Progress of being addressed) 

Re 
stat
ed 

Accounting 
(Restated) 

SAP – Invoice Held Feature 
All invoices received 
electronically via email are 
currently uploaded by the 
interns and parked in the Invoice 
Held Screen in SAP until 
processing by AP.   

The Accounting management 
should continue to work with the 
IT Department and determine if 
an invoice recognition software 
and/or other technology-based 
software/systems (new and/or 
existing) could assist with  
uploading, tracking and 
monitoring invoices. 
(This recommendation was provided 
in the P2P for E&CM and, according 
to Accounting, is currently In 
Progress of being addressed) 

The use of technology 
tools/solution as invoice 
recognition software can increase 
efficiency of the Procure to Pay 
processes, and provides an overall 
visibility of all the invoices 
received and, in the queue, to be 
processed by the Agency. 

Re 
stat
ed 

Accounting 
(Restated) 

AP Process/method for selecting 
and prioritizing items for payment 

Controls need improvement for 
the payment of invoices and 
three-way match processes and 
open invoices administered by 
the Accounts Payable Group of 
the Accounting unit.  
 

In this audit, IA found:  
• Twelve (12) of twenty (20) 

instance, where it took longer 
than 2 weeks to process and 
post for payment, after the 
invoice had been returned 
from the P&R department to 
the Accounts Payable Group.  

 

Additionally, there is no 
documented/formal process for 
how the three-way matching is 
performed. The current three-
way match process can vary in 
time to complete from a few 
minutes to several hours as staff 
sometimes have to complete 
research and review several 
screens in SAP.  
 

IA recommends Accounting:  
 

• establish a procedure to 
track all open invoice issues, 
 

• open invoice issues are 
reviewed by the Accounts 
Payable Supervisor at the 
end of each month to 
ensure open items are 
cleared,  

• work with the IT 
department to determine a 
more streamlined/efficient 
process in SAP to verify that 
Receiving was completed 
and expediate the three-
way match, OR  
 

• consider working with the IT 
department to develop SAP 
workflow notifications that 
Receiving has been 
completed against the PO 
and/or SAP, and  

 

• consider technology, 
software, and/or artificial 
intelligence tools/ 
platforms/systems for 
invoice processing and 
management.  

(This recommendation was provided 
in the P2P for E&CM as 
Recommendation #13 and, according 

The benefit of implementing these 
recommendations provides 
management the opportunity to 
reduce these risks of:  
 

• Open, unresolved invoices 
may not be posted by the 
closing deadline,  
 

• Appropriate/timely matching 
of invoices with receiving 
documents, and purchase 
orders may not be 
performed.  



Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report –  
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Planning and Resources  
May 25, 2022 
Page 14 of 27 
 

 
 

to Accounting, is currently In 
Progress of being addressed). 

Re 
stat
ed 

Accounting 
(Restated) 

SAP “flag” for payment of invoices 

A control was not established in 
the SAP system for the AP 
processes of the Invoice for 
payment during the “next 
scheduled payment cycle”. 
 

Accounting staff indicated that 
SAP "flags" when an invoice is 
due and that is how staff 
determine what to pay. If SAP 
flags at the exact invoice terms 
(on the due date and after) this 
could be a big reason why all 
invoices are paid in the month 
after the due date (and 
considered paid late) (per our 
review of all payments, see table 
in this audit report). 

The Accounting management 
should take the lead to work with 
the Leadership Team to 
determine the Agency’s policy 
and business decision of when to 
pay invoices (prior to due date, on 
the due date or after due date). 
 

Based on results noted above, if 
necessary, the Accounting should 
take the lead to work with the IT 
Department to evaluate the cost/ 
benefit to establish a procedure 
and/or reconfigure this built-in 
SAP “flag/alert” to ensure SAP 
“flags” items for payment five (5) 
or so days before the invoice due 
date, so that items can be 
processed days prior to the due 
date to avoid being paid late.  
(Note: This recommendation was 
provided in the P2P Chemicals audit 
report as Recommendation #25 and 
P2P E&CM as Recommendation #15, 
both currently In Progress). 

The Accounting Unit will be able 
to see items that are due within 
the payment cycle to process for 
payment by the due date. 
 
A systematic method to pay 
invoices before they are due and 
reduce the instances of late  
invoices and improve efficiency 
for invoice payments. 

Re 
stat
ed 

Accounting 
(Restated) 

Accounting SOPs 
SOPs were not established for 
the AP and Procure to Pay 
processes and supporting 
procedures for frequency 
and timely completion of the 
three – way match for timely 
payment processing. 

Accounting management 
formalize and document specific 
procedures to specify how and 
what items should be selected by 
AP Group staff to perform the 
three-way match and processing 
of payments, also specify the 
frequency of when this process 
should be completed. 
 

(Note: This is recommendation was 
provided in the P2P Chemicals audit 
and the P2P E&CM audit and 
according to Accounting, SOPs are 
currently In Progress and were 
planned for completion by June 
2022).  

SOPs should be documented once 
all recommendations and changes 
have been implemented. 
 
SOPs provide value by 
documenting consistent 
procedures for employees 
to follow and be trained and 
evaluated on. 

Re 
stat
ed 

Accounting 
(Restated) 

Training on new/updated SOPs 
There is a need for training for 
AP staff on any new processes 
established and SOPs for the AP 
function and Procure to Pay 
processes on any new processes 
established.  

Accounting should provide 
training periodically to reinforce 
the documented SOPs to ensure 
employees are following 
consistent procedures.  
(Note: This is recommendation was 
provided in the P2P Chemicals audit 
and the P2P E&CM audit and 
according to Accounting, SOPs are 

Training should be done 
periodically after SOPs have been 
documented and new procedures 
to ensure the effectiveness and 
efficiency of AP processing and 
Procure to Pay processes.  



Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report –  
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Planning and Resources  
May 25, 2022 
Page 15 of 27 
 

 
 

currently In Progress and were 
planned for completion) 

Re 
stat
ed 

Accounting 
(Restated) 

KPIs, goals and objectives for 
the timely payment of invoices. 
There is no information available 
of performance metrics and 
KPI’s, goals and objectives a 
method to measure those. 

The Accounting management 
establish and document 
performance metrics, and KPI’s, 
goals, and objectives and a 
method to measure how timely 
invoices are paid. 
 

In addition, the Accounting 
management works with the IT 
Department to establish any 
reports that can provide 
measurements and metrics. 
(Note: This is recommendation was 
provided in the P2P Chemicals audit 
and the P2P E&CM audit and 
according to Accounting, currently In 
Progress of being addressed) 

Establishing performance metrics 
and KPI's, goals, objectives, and a 
method to measure those. For 
example, establish a goal to 
ensure invoices are paid by the 
due date 90% of the time 
or within a given number of days 
from the date the invoice is 
received. 
 
Measurements to evaluate the 
revised process and evaluate 
employee performance. 

Re 
stat
ed 

Accounting 
(Restated) 

Professional Accounting 
Consulting services 
Late invoice payments have been 
an Agency-wide issue for several 
years. One of the causes is that 
the Accounting Unit has had staff 
shortages for several months due 
to turnover or retirements. 
According to Accounting 
management, they stated it has 
been difficult for the Accounting 
to fill their vacancies. 
 
IAs P2P audits have 
highlighted observations and 
provided recommendations to 
improve efficiencies in the 
processes. Accounting 
Management has stated that 
time constraints prevent them 
from fully addressing and timely 
implementing audit report 
recommendations such as 
developing SOPs, new processes 
and procedures, and providing 
training. 

The Accounting management 
should work with the General 
Manager and the Leadership 
Team and discuss or consider 
bringing in professional 
consultants to assist in catching 
up with the backlog of overdue 
payments, and/or using a 
professional consultant to 
evaluate the department’s needs, 
key performance indicators (KPIs), 
processes, procedures, and help 
implement recommendations to 
ensure the Accounting Unit can 
implement recommendations, 
incorporate best practices that 
ensure payments are made 
timely, SOPs are documented, 
and training is provided to staff. 
(Note: This is recommendation was 
provided in the P2P E&CM audit and 
there has been no action on to 
accept or reject recommendation.)  

A professional outside consultant 
with experience in evaluating the 
Accounting Unit and AP Group 
operations would provide an 
opportunity to identify additional 
ideas and steps for staffing, 
catching up with back logs, 
development of best practices, 
policies, procedures, implement 
audit recommendations and to 
support the establishment an 
efficient Procure to Pay process to 
ensure timely payments. 

 

 
 

  



Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report –  
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Planning and Resources  
May 25, 2022 
Page 16 of 27 
 

 
 

Flowchart: Procure to Pay Process for Planning & Resources (P2P P&R) 
There are three (3) main departments involved in in the P2P process for the 
professional/consulting services invoices administered by P&R: P&R, CAP, and 
Accounting.  IA documented the P2P process using the flowchart below, and the narrative 
documents the step-by-step process as confirmed with respective departments. 
 

 
 
  



Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report –  
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Planning and Resources  
May 25, 2022 
Page 17 of 27 
 

 
 

Narrative: Procure to Pay Process for Planning & Resources (P2P P&R) 
 

Planning & Resources – Professional/Consulting Services – Purchase Requisition Process 
 

New Contracts, Sole or Single Source (regardless of dollar amount): 

1) Project Manager (PM) determines a new Professional Services contract needs to be established and notifies 

P&R Administrative staff. 

2) P&R Administrative staff enters a Purchase Requisition (PR) for $1 dollar (to serve as a placeholder) for the 

new contract in SAP. After the creation of the PR, Contracts and Procurement (CAP) is notified via SAP 

workflows (email notification) that a PR is awaiting in the queue and triggers a pre-solicitation/kick-off 

meeting the nature of the contract between both CAP and P&R. 

3) CAP and PM collaborate on the scope of work and the terms and conditions of the new contract.  

4) Once the contracted has been drafted, the contract is forwarded to the vendor for review and signature. 

5) Upon the return of the signed contract to the PM, then P&R Administrative staff will route the signed contract 

to Agency Management via DocuSign. Board Letter is completed and submitted to the Board Secretary 

according to the corresponding due date. Once the contract is approved by the Board, then the General 

Manager will sign the contract.  

6) P&R Administrative staff will receive notification from DocuSign that the contract has been approved and 

forwarded to CAP, and then sends the contract via email to the vendor. 

7) Then, P&R Administrative staff compile the supporting documentation (i.e., Board letter, On Tap minutes, 

signed contract) and enters in a new PR for the dollar amount of the contract and attaches all the supporting 

documentation into SAP. (Note: The $1 dollar PR is deleted by CAP when they create the contract) P&R 

Administrative staff will record the PR number and information into the department’s Internal PR/Purchase 

Order tracker, which is an excel spreadsheet that serves as a reminder and reference sheet on the status of all 

the department’s PRs and Purchase Orders (POs). 

• PR approvals – In SAP, the number of approvals required to approve a PR is dependent on the 

contract dollar amount, and if Board approval was required. For example, the PR will be approved 

by the following: Deputy Manager, Department Manager, Executive Manager, General Manager, 

and the Board (i.e., Board Secretary), if applicable.   

8) After the PR has been approved, CAP staff receive notification and shift the PR into a PO. Once there is a 

PO, then the invoices can be received and processed for payment. 
 

Contract Amendments (regardless of dollar amount):    

1) PM informs P&R Administrative staff that a contract requires an amendment. Typical reasons an amendment 

is required: scope of work change and/or requesting additional work to be performed. 

2) PM sends the proposal to the P&R Administrative staff, and a new PR is entered and the supporting 

documentation (i.e., proposal, original/master contract) is attached in SAP.   

3) The new PR will go through the approval process (as described up above under line-item number 7). Once 

PR is fully approved, then CAP is notified via workflows in SAP, and will start processing the contract 

amendment.  

4) CAP will draft the contract amendment and send to the PM for review.  

5) Once the contract amendment is finalized, then CAP forwards (via email) the contract amendment to the 

vendor for review and signature.  

6) Vendor reviews and signs the contract amendment, and return the amendment to both CAP and PM. Then, 

the signed contract amendment is forwarded from the PM to P&R Administrative staff. Contract amendment 

is saved electronically to the corresponding folder (depending on the project name/number) in the 

department’s internal shared drive. 

7) Invoices related to the contract amendment are received and processed against the PO in SAP.     

 

 



Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report –  
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Planning and Resources  
May 25, 2022 
Page 18 of 27 
 

 
 

Planning & Resources – Professional/Consulting Services – Invoice Receiving Process  
 

All Invoices, except for Chino Basin Program (CBP) and Chino Basin Watermaster (CBWM) 

1) Professional/Consulting Services invoices are received by email either directly from the vendor OR from 

Accounts Payable (AP).  
(Note: Majority of the vendors will send the invoice via email to AP and copy P&R Administrative staff and/or the PM on the email.) 

2) Once the invoices are received via email, P&R Administrative staff will input the information into the 

department’s Internal Invoice Tracker (excel spreadsheet), which is located on the department’s internal 

shared drive and accessible by all P&R staff.  

3) P&R Administrative staff inputs the following information into the Internal Invoice Tracker: invoice number, 

vendor name, and date received from AP and/or PM. P&R Administrative staff electronic stamps the invoice 

with the “approval stamp” and enters the account number and/or PO number that the invoice pertains to.  

4) P&R Administrative staff forwards the invoice to the PM for review and approval.  

 

CBP invoices (PO invoices) and CBWM invoices (Non-PO Invoices), the following additional steps are performed: 

1) P&R Administrative staff enters the invoice number and amount for each vendor invoice into the another 

excel spreadsheet (Naming convention of the files are based on the specific project name), which calculates 

the spending and amount of funds remaining on the contract. Afterwards, the excel spreadsheet is converted 

into PDF format.  

2) Then, the invoice and excel spreadsheet (in PDF format) are sent via email to the PM for review and approval. 

 

Approval process for All Invoices, include CBP and CBWM 

1) After the invoice has been sent to the PM, the P&R Administrative staff enters the following information into 

the Internal Invoice Tracker (excel spreadsheet): date sent to the PM. Goal is for PM to approve the invoices 

with a week and/or 2 weeks at the latest. 

2) Once the invoice(s) has been approved, the PM inputs their digital signature on the invoice and notifies P&R 

Administrative staff via email of its approval.  

3) P&R Administrative staff sends the invoice to department management for final approval.  

4) Department manager will review and approve the invoice by adding the digital/electronic signature and date, 

then the invoice is returned to P&R Administrative staff via email.  

a. Department retains only the signed version of the invoice and is located on the department’s shared 

drive and does not retain multiple versions and/or copies of the invoice.  

b. If an invoice amount is greater than $100,000 or more, then the invoice is forwarded via email to the 

Deputy General Manager for review and approval.  
Note: P&R does not to use DocuSign for the invoice approval process, the department uses Adobe and digital signatures.  

5) After P&R Administrative staff receives the approved the invoice, then the Receiving process is performed 

in SAP and the following information is noted on the invoice (i.e., purchase order number, line item (where 

the Receiving was performed), material document number, and entry sheet invoice number). P&R 

Administrative staff updates the Internal Invoice tracker with the date approved by Department Manager.  

6) Then, P&R Administrative staff uploads the approved invoice into SAP and emails the approved invoice to 

the AP group and copies the PM on the email.  

7) P&R Administrative staff updates the department’s Internal Invoice Tracker (excel spreadsheet) with the 

corresponding information (i.e., dates sent to Accounting, and any pertinent notes/information) 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report –  
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Planning and Resources  
May 25, 2022 
Page 19 of 27 
 

 
 

Contracts & Procurement (CAP) 
There are five (5) different paths a procurement request may take, depending on the specifics of the services 

required, risk to the Agency, the longevity and the dollar value of the services, as well as potential applicable 

policies, laws and regulations.  Listed below is the process related to Professional Services contracts at the Agency:    

1) Agency departments determine the need for professional services and develop the scope of work.  

2) Agency department enters one dollar Purchase Requisition (PR) and attaches scope of work and any 

supporting documentation.  

3) Agency departments and CAP collaborate to develop the requirements of the solicitation. Agency 

departments and CAP determine the avenue/method to proceed (i.e., RFI, RFP, Prequalification, etc.).  

4) Based on the authority provided under the Procurement Ordinance, CAP will post on 3rd party websites to 

publicly solicit for professional services.   

5) BID closes and CAP receives the proposals, and evaluation team is established to evaluate proposals and to 

make a recommendation for award.  

6) Agency department enters PR fully funding the amount for the contract and attaches all received proposals 

and indicates Professional Services vendor selected.    

7) CAP staff reviews PR and performs due diligence and verifies documentation and sets up a new vendor and 

ensuring they have the current insurance in place to come onto Agency property if required.   

8) CAP determines the type of contract to be created based on risk, longevity of the contract, and dollar value.  

9) CAP adopts PR onto an Outline Agreement to generate Contract Number (10-digit number, starting with 46).  

10) The Contract Release PO (10-Digit number starting with 45) is created to receive and pay invoices and may 

be referenced in the Contract document.   

11) CAP creates the Outline Agreement contract to track in SAP and monitor spending for the approved value of 

the contract (throughout the life of the contract) in SAP.   

12) CAP will draft the Professional Service contract/agreement and will route to vendor to obtain signatures via 

DocuSign. 

13) Vendor’s signed draft contract/agreement is included the Board Package for Board approval.   

14) Once there is a fully executed contract, then it is distributed to all interested parties and uploaded into 

Laserfiche.  

 

Note: P&R has unique transactions, besides just Professional/Consulting services. Examples of the agreement types 

include: capacity, energy-share, power-purchase, revenue sharing, lease, mutual-aid and so on. Each of these 

transactions require a contract, but do not follow the traditional Procure to Pay process. It was noted that CAP 

becomes involved when the contract needs to be generated in SAP and would like to be involved as a resource at the 

time the agreements are being established.   

 

After Contract Execution and PO set up: 

15) For Professional/Consulting Services, the contract dates and dollar amounts are monitored using the Contract 

Expiration Forecast report, which is distributed monthly to Agency departments. The Contract Expiration 

Forecast report is a list of all contracts by Project Manager nearing expiration (between 30 to 240 days) and 

requires review by the CAP Department and the Project Manager to determine if it needs to be amended for 

time and value or rebid.  

 
 
 
 
 
 



Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report –  
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Planning and Resources  
May 25, 2022 
Page 20 of 27 
 

 
 

Accounting’s Process to Pay the Professional/Consulting Invoices  
Accounting Unit - Accounts Payable 

As of February 28, 2022, the “Intake/Receiving” processes for the Agency’s invoices are performed by two intern 

staff, instead of temporary staff.  

1) All invoices received by AP are date-stamped (regardless of goods and/or Professional/Consulting 

Services): 

• Hardcopy invoices are date-stamped, scanned daily, and cataloged by Intern staff.  

• Electronic invoices are electronically stamped when received by Intern staff. 

2) After the mail is opened or downloaded from email, all incoming invoices are logged on spreadsheet and the 

following information is recorded: date received, email or surface (post) mail, vendor name, invoice number, 

invoice date, and invoice amount. This step is currently being performed by Intern staff. 

3) All goods and services invoices are entered into the SAP system and posted to the “Invoice Held Invoices” 

feature (SAP transaction code: MIR6 or FMFG_HELD, Invoice Overview: Invoice Documents). (New step 

as of July 2021)  

4) Types of information entered: invoice receipt date, invoice date, posting date, (dollar) amount, reference 

number (invoice number), currency (USD), tax amount (if applicable), text (description), and PO number. 

Once an invoice is entered into this “Invoice Held Invoices” feature, it is stored as a temporary document in 

the temporary table until further processing in the SAP system. 

 

For Professional/Consulting Services invoices, AP will perform the following:  

Invoice Routing:  

5) P&R invoices:  Invoices are emailed to the AP group, and the PM and/or P&R admin staff are sometimes 

included on the email, but not all the time. If only the PM is included, then the invoice is forwarded to the 

P&R Admin staff for processing. If both the PM and/or P&R Admin staff are not included on the email, then 

AP has to research to determine the department the invoices belongs to.  

6) Reoccurring/Prior invoices (previously processed by the AP) – review the vendor and/or payment history in 

the SAP system to determine the position that approved the invoice.  This type of research provides the 

Agency department, and AP staff will forward the invoice via email for their review and approval.  

7) New Invoices – AP staff reviews the invoice and performs preliminary research based on the information 

listed on the invoice in SAP (i.e. project number, WBS element number, etc.).  If no identifying information 

is contained on the invoice and/or the research does not yield any results, then AP staff will circulate the 

invoice via email to all administrative staff to determine the Agency department. 

 

8) Starting point for processing Professional (Consulting)Services payments is the Goods Receipt/Invoice 

Receipt (GR/IR) report in SAP (transaction code: FBL3N, specified layout).  The purpose for using this 

report is it identifies all the transactions where the “Receiving” process has been performed, and these 

transactions are waiting for the three-way match to be performed and process for payment.  

9) After the GR/IR report has been generated, the data/information is sorted to ensure the oldest information 

appears first and identify the oldest goods receiving that has been performed.  

10) Using the data/information from the GR/IR report, AP staff filter out and process invoices based on alphabet 

and/or vendor assignment.  Once AP staff have their assigned group/population of invoices, then AP staff 

will identify the vendor whose invoices will be processed. Invoice selection is based on the following:  

• Oldest date, Highest Dollar amount, and the vendor/invoice that requires the immediate attention.  

11) Once a transaction (line item) is selected for processing, AP staff will perform the three-way match for the 

Professional/Consulting Services invoice, which entails reviewing the: 

• PO information and determining the line item where Receiving was performed,  

• Invoices parked in the Invoice Held Feature, which includes the original invoices submitted by the 

vendors,  



Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report –  
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Planning and Resources  
May 25, 2022 
Page 21 of 27 
 

 
 

• Approved invoices and any supporting documentation attached during the Receiving process. At this 

time, AP staff verifies the appropriate approvals have been obtained based on the invoice’s dollar 

amount.  

Note: For Professional (Consulting) Services, P&R includes a cover page/template as part of the 

supporting documentation that has all the approvals within one location in the document. This 

template is also used in the  

12) After the three-way match has been performed, AP staff proceeds to finish processing the transaction and 

posts the invoice.  Once an invoice has been posted, it is removed from the queue (upon refresh) in the Invoice 

Held Feature screen. 

13) Then, AP staff will attach the approved invoice and supporting documentation in SAP.  

Note: For Professional (Consulting) services, two (2) invoices are attached to the transaction: one is the 

original vendor’s invoice, and the other invoice shows the approvals.   

14) Once an invoice has been set up, entered, and posted into the financial module (SAP), then the financial 

system establishes the transaction as a “Payable” in the future.  

Note: A “Payable item” does not mean payment has been made.  It means that a payment will be scheduled 

some time in the future (the liability is recognized in SAP when the 3-way match occurs).  

15) After all the invoice processing has been completed, AP determines what items will be paid in the SAP 

system. 

16) Accounting Management will run a “Prelist” on all the items that will be processed. 

Note: The “Pre-list” is reviewed by Agency Management, and items that are not included will be 

researched and reviewed to determine if they should be included in the current payment cycle.  

17) Once the “Pre-list” has been reviewed by Agency Management, Accounting Unit, then a final list is 

generated.  
18) Final list is submitted for processing in the SAP system.  An ACH file is sent to the bank for processing 

and payment, while physical checks are printed and mailed to the vendors. 
 

 

  



Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report –  
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Planning and Resources  
May 25, 2022 
Page 22 of 27 
 

 
 

Background Information 

As stated in the prior Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit Report – 
Review of Procure-to-Pay processes for Professional Services - Engineering & 
Construction Management, dated February 24, 2022:  
 

“Professional Services shall mean any specially-trained and experienced 
individual, firm or corporation, providing services and advice in financial, 
economic, accounting, engineering, information services, technical, 
architectural or other administrative/professional matters.”  
 

(Source: Procurement Ordinance No. 108 Establishing and Setting forth the policies governing Agency authority and 
dollar limits for best value procurements and procurement-related activities, Section 1, Letter Z, adopted on October 
16, 2019) 

 

The Agency contracts for many different types of Professional/Consulting Services 
including investment advisors, financial assets/portfolio management, training, 
laboratory, legal counsel, and other legal services, legislative, software (i.e., SAP, 
Laserfiche, Adobe), engineering, construction, environmental, cleaning/janitorial, car 
washing, landscape maintenance, pest control, security/alarm, and so on.  
 
 
Planning & Resources  
P&R is dedicated and focused on programs that will meet the future water, wastewater 
and energy needs of the Agency’s region. P&R’s mission statement:  

 
To fulfill its mission statement and major priorities and initiatives, P&R contracts for many 
kinds of Professional/Consulting Services as part of day-to-day operations, including for 
the Water Storage Investment program (WSIP)/Chino Basin Program (CBP). 
 
  



Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report –  
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Planning and Resources  
May 25, 2022 
Page 23 of 27 
 

 
 

P&R Payment Types 
AP processes two (2) types of payments related to Professional/Consulting Services for 
the P&R department; they are as follows:  
 

• Professional/Consulting Services (PO invoices) – these payments are for 
Professional Services related to capital construction and non-capital construction 
projects. Examples include Chino Basin Program (CBP)/Water Storage 
Investment Program (WSIP), Regional Contract Facilitation, Water Bank, and so 
on. These payments are paid through the P2P processes and contain these 
elements: contract/agreement, PRs, POs, approvals, Receiving, 3-way match, and 
payment.  
 

• Payments to Other Entitles (Non-PO invoices) – these payments are to other public 
sector organizations and are paid via Check Request. Non-PO invoices are 
governed by Agency Policy A-50 (Non-Purchase Order Invoice Approval, effective 
April 27, 2015). Examples include Chino Basin Watermaster (CBWM), 
Cucamonga Valley Water District (CVWD), South Coast Air Quality Management 
District (SCAQMD), State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB), Santa Ana 
Watershed Project Authority (SAWPA), and all San Bernardino County invoices 
(i.e., Fire Protection District, Transportation Authority, Assessor-Recorder-County 
Clerk, and so on).  
 

These payments are Not paid via the P2P processes (meaning there is no PR, PO 
and Receiving performed). Payments made via Check requests are subject to 
verification of the approvals and amount paid.  

 
 
Invoices/Check Requests Processing Summary 
To accomplish the department’s responsibilities, P&R contracts for various 
professional/consulting services for various projects that require studies, master plans, 
and/or environmental reports, in addition to, Agency programs such as the CBP/WSIP. 
The total invoices and check requests processed, and corresponding amounts paid to 
vendors for the last two fiscal years are as follows:  

 

Planning & Resources Department 

Total Number of Invoices/Check Requests Processed 

Fiscal year 
Number of Invoices 

and/or Check requests 
Dollar amount 

FY 2020/21 243 $ 2,416,375 

FY 2021/22 (1) 154 $ 2,075,072 

Source: Planning and Resources Department, Internal Invoice tracker,  

FY 2020/21 and 2021/22 (as of April 16, 2022) (1). 

 
 
  



Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report –  
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Planning and Resources  
May 25, 2022 
Page 24 of 27 
 

 
 

Invoice Routing process for P&R 
For this review of P2P processes for Professional Services, IA reviewed the internal data 
recorded in the P&R department’s Internal Invoice Tracker, which is an excel spreadsheet 
that is utilized to record, track, and inventory all invoices and/or check requests that are 
incoming into the department for Project Manager and Department Manager approvals 
and outgoing to AP for payment processing.  An Internal Invoice Tracker is maintained 
for each individual fiscal year, which is a good control to maintain accountability of all the 
invoices/checks request that are routed and processed by the department. 
 
Using the data in the department’s Internal Invoice Tracker, IA analyzed the information 
to obtain an overall understanding of the dollar amount, quantity, and volume of invoices 
and check requests that are being processed by the P&R department.  The table shows 
the total processed for the last two fiscal years:  
 

Planning & Resources 

Internal Invoice Tracker (Excel spreadsheet) 

Statistical Information 
Fiscal Year 

2020/21 

Fiscal Year  

2021/22 (1) 
Total dollar value of invoices & check requests 

processed 
$ 2,416,375 $ 2,075,072 

Number of vendors  44 28 

Total number of invoices & check requests processed  243 154 
   

Average number of days for P&R to receive an invoice 

from Accounts Payable/Project Manager 
(the Admin Assistant receives from either AP or the PM) 

11 days 23 days 

Average number of days for P&R to obtain Project 

Manager’s approval 
1 day 1 day 

Average Number of days between Project Manager’s 

approval and to obtain Department Manager’s approval 
3 days 2 days 

Average number of days between Department 

Manager’s approval and send the invoice to Accounts 

Payable for processing 
3 days 4 days 

   

Average # of days to complete approvals, 

complete receiving into SAP, and notify AP  
(from the date the P&R Admin. Assistant received the invoice 

from Accounting and/or the PM, to the date sent to AP). 

6 days 7 days 

(1) = Internal Invoice Tracker information as of April 18, 2022, approximately 9 months of the fiscal year. 

 
P&R has an internal goal of routing and completing the signature requirements on 
invoices and/or check requests and completing the receiving function in SAP within one 
(1) to two (2) weeks of the date the invoice arrives in P&R department (during the audit, 
P&R staff stated their goal is seven (7) days). IA’s review noted the average is 
approximate 7 days for FY 2021/22 (as of April 16, 2022).  
 
 
  



Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report –  
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Planning and Resources  
May 25, 2022 
Page 25 of 27 
 

 
 

Invoices Processed: Purchase Order and Non-Purchase Order 
Using the Accounts Payable Monitoring Report, IA summarized the data for majority (not 
all) of the vendors that P&R had listed on the Internal Invoice Tracker. The information 
listed in the table below is not specific to the P&R department, and it includes all the 
transactions associated with that vendor. At the Agency, there are many vendors that 
are shared amongst the various departments; therefore, when reviewing the data, the 
reports do not distinguish by department. The table below provides a general, high-level 
overview of the number of invoices/payments that were processed as a PO Invoice 
(includes PR, PO, 3-way match) and Non-PO Invoice (Payment requested via Check Request, 

No PR, PO and/or Receiving) for these vendors.   
 

Number of transactions processed with a PO and Non-PO  

for all Agency-wide shared vendors 

(using P&R’s list of vendors*) 

Fiscal Year PO Invoice 
(Document Type: VI) 

Non-PO Invoice 
(Document Type: VM) 

Total 

2020/21 396 373 769 

2021/22 
(as of April 22, 2022) 

229 204 433 

Sources: AP Monitoring Report for FY 2020/21 and FY 202/22 (as of April 22, 2022), P&R Internal Invoice  

Tracker. *IA was unable to trace 2 vendors from the P&R Invoice Tracker to the AP Monitoring Report. 

 
 

Timeliness of Payments  
From P&R’s Internal Invoice Tracker, IA obtained a list of vendors and pulled the 
transactional information for those vendors from the AP Monitoring report.  Using the data 
gathered for the specific vendors, IA summarized the number of invoices that were paid 
on time or late for FY 2021/22 (as of April 2, 2022).  
 
The information listed in the table below is not department-specific (not just P&R) and 
includes all the transactions associated with that vendor (some vendors are shared 
because of multiple projects administered by different Agency departments). The 
table below provides a general, high-level overview of the number of invoices/payments 
that were paid on time or late for these shared vendors. 
 

Number of transactions processed as On Time or Late  

for all Agency-wide shared vendors  

(using P&R list of vendors*) 

Fiscal Year On Time Late Grand Total 

2020/21 509 260 769 

Percentage  66% 34% 100% 
    

2021/22 
(as of April 22, 2022)* 

178 255 433 

Percentage 41% 59% 100% 
Sources: AP Monitoring Report for FY 2020/21 and FY 202/22 (as of April 22, 2022),  

P&R Internal Invoice Tracker. *IA was unable to trace 2 vendors from the P&R Invoice Tracker  

to the AP Monitoring Report. 

 



Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report –  
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Planning and Resources  
May 25, 2022 
Page 26 of 27 
 

 
 

Detailed Audit Testing and Analysis 
Using P&R’s Internal Invoice Tracker and Accounts Payable Monitoring Report for FY 
2020/21 and 2021/22 (as of mid-April 2022), IA performed a detailed review and 
examination to determine the amount of time required for each step in the process to pay 
a vendor’s invoice. IA calculated the metrics from the invoice date to the date paid in the 
Agency’s financial system and cross-referenced to P&R’s Internal Invoice Tracker.  
Specifically, IA judgmentally selected twenty (20) invoices that were paid late (paid 
between 5 and 119 days late – after the invoice due date).  Attachment 1 of this report 
summarizes the results of the metrics and analysis. Of the 20 items paid late, IA’s review 
showed the following, observations have been incorporated into the recommendations:  

 

• Five (5) of the 20 invoices (items no. 5,6, 8, 9, and 15) took longer than 30 days for AP to 
acknowledge receipt of the invoice from the vendor, between 31 -115), per the dates 
documented on the invoice, electronic receive date on the invoice, and/or invoice receipt date 
in SAP (refer to the spreadsheet). This is an issue related to Routing of Vendors Invoices - see 
Recommendation # 8 above. 
 

• Two (2) of the 20 invoices (items no. 16 and 17) took longer than thirty (30) days for the AP to 
send/route the invoice to the P&R department. This is an issue related to Routing of Vendors 
Invoices - see Recommendation # 8. 
 

• Four (4) of the 20 invoices (items no. 8, 9, 15 and 19), the invoice processing and routing 
started by P&R before the invoice was sent to P&R from Accounting because the PM and/or 
P&R Admin staff were copied on the email to the AP group.  This is an issue related to Routing 
of Vendors Invoices - see Recommendation # 8. 
 

• Two (2) of the 20 invoices (items no. 7 and 10) took longer than two (2) weeks to obtain the 
Department Manager approval, which is longer than the internal metric of one (1) to two (2) 
weeks. Delays in obtaining the department’s manager’s approval and completing the receiving 
in SAP could be related to the PM rejecting the invoice while performing a due diligence review.  
In these instances, the vendor must update the invoice with the correct services before the PM 
approves for payment.  Because the invoice date is not updated by the vendor, the invoice 
may appear to have been paid late based on the invoice date and the payment terms.  
Sometimes the reasons for why an invoice is paid late are not documented in the invoice 
tracker to demonstrate this review process.  See Delays in Performing the Receiving function 
by P&R on page 5 of this report. 

 

• Twelve (12) of the 20 instances (items no. 1, 2, 3, 4, 11, 12, 13, 14, 16, 18, 19, and 20), were 
paid late (as late as 90, after the due date) and it took AP longer than 2 weeks to process for 
payment, even after the invoice had been received into SAP by the P&R department. This is 
an issue related to Accounting not having a consistent and best practice method and process 
for selecting and prioritizing invoices to ensure timely payments of items received – see 

Recommendation for Accounting under AP Process/method for selecting and prioritizing items for 
payment. This recommendation is restated for Accounting from prior audits). 

 
IA is available to provide additional reviews and assistance in evaluating implementation 
and corrective actions.  IA will provide quarterly progress reports on the implementation 
status of all P2P recommendations to the Leadership Team and the Board of Directors. 



Accounts Payable and Operational and Internal Control Audit Report - 

Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Plannning and Resources

May 25, 2022

Page 27 of 27

Date of 

Invoice 

(Document 

date in SAP)

Date 

AP 

Received 

the Invoice 

from the 

Vendor 

(Documented 

on the invoice 

or Invoice 

Receipt date in 

SAP)

Date 

P&R 

Received 

the Invoice 

from AP 

Date 

Invoice was 

sent to PM 

for review 

and 

approval

Date 

Invoice sent 

to Dept 

Manager 

for 

approval

Date 

Receiving 

was 

performed 

in SAP

Date Invoice 

was 

Returned 

from P&R to 

AP

Date 

Processed 

by AP in 

SAP

Date Paid 

per SAP

(A) (B) ( C) (D) ( E) (F) (G) (H) (I)

1 GEI CONSULTANTS INC 54,623.50$     4500032413 6/17/2021 6/21/2021 6/21/2021 6/21/2021 6/22/2021 6/23/2021 6/23/2021 6/28/2021 8/26/2021 4 0 0 1 1 0 5 59 40

2 GEI CONSULTANTS INC 68,363.00$     4500032413 8/18/2020 8/20/2020 8/20/2020 8/20/2020 8/20/2020 8/24/2020 8/24/2020 10/2/2020 10/8/2020 2 0 0 0 4 0 39 6 21

3 KEARNS & WEST 5,976.25$       4500028620 8/18/2020 8/19/2020 8/19/2020 8/20/2020 8/20/2020 8/20/2020 8/20/2020 11/2/2020 11/5/2020 1 0 1 0 0 0 74 3 49

4 KEARNS & WEST 4,962.50$       4500028620 9/14/2020 9/14/2020 9/14/2020 9/14/2020 9/14/2020 9/15/2020 9/15/2020 11/2/2020 11/5/2020 0 0 0 0 1 0 48 3 22

5 WEST YOST & ASSOCIATES INC 18,634.75$     4500037338 1/31/2021 3/8/2021 3/8/2021 3/9/2021 3/19/2021 3/23/2021 3/23/2021 3/24/2021 3/25/2021 36 0 1 10 4 0 1 1 23

6 BABCOCK LABORATORIES, INC 710.00$          4500037109 2/26/2021 6/21/2021 6/21/2021 6/21/2021 6/21/2021 6/21/2021 6/21/2021 6/21/2021 6/24/2021 115 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 88

7 BROWN AND CALDWELL * 9,376.81$       4500032778 4/21/2021 4/21/2021 4/21/2021 4/21/2021 6/7/2021 6/7/2021 6/7/2021 6/8/2021 6/10/2021 0 0 0 47 0 0 1 2 20

8 CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 18,813.25$     None 4/30/2021 5/31/2021 5/28/2021 6/1/2021 6/15/2021
Non-applicable 

paid via Check 

Request

6/16/2021 6/16/2021 6/17/2021 31 (3) 4 14
Non-applicable 

paid via Check 

Request

Non-applicable 

paid via Check 

Request

0 1 18

9 WALLACE & ASSOCIATES CONSULTING INC11,200.00$     4500035336 12/31/2020 2/3/2021 1/20/2021 2/2/2021 2/2/2021 2/3/2021 2/3/2021 2/3/2021 2/4/2021 34 (14) 13 0 1 0 0 1 5

10 MEANS CONSULTING LLC * 1,620.00$       4500029898 4/30/2021 5/3/2021 5/3/2021 5/3/2021 6/7/2021 6/8/2021 6/8/2021 6/8/2021 6/10/2021 3 0 0 35 1 0 0 2 11

12 GEI CONSULTANTS INC 63,913.00$     4500032413 9/23/2021 9/23/2021 9/27/2021 9/27/2021 9/27/2021 10/6/2021 10/6/2021 11/8/2021 11/10/2021 0 4 0 0 9 0 33 2 18

13 GEI CONSULTANTS INC 61,307.00$     4500032413 11/23/2021 11/29/2021 11/29/2021 11/29/2021 12/1/2021 12/2/2021 12/2/2021 2/16/2022 2/17/2022 6 0 0 2 1 0 76 1 56

14 RINCON CONSULTANTS INC 40,310.27$     4500036845 11/23/2021 11/23/2021 11/24/2021 11/24/2021 11/24/2021 11/24/2021 11/24/2021 2/2/2022 2/3/2022 0 1 0 0 0 0 70 1 42

15 WILLIAMS SCOTSMAN INC 100,036.20$   None 8/13/2021 9/21/2021 9/14/2021 9/14/2021 9/20/2021
Non-applicable 

paid via Check 

Request

9/20/2021 9/23/2021 9/23/2021 39 (7) 0 6
Non-applicable 

paid via Check 

Request

Non-applicable 

paid via Check 

Request

3 0 11

16 KEARNS & WEST 2,513.75$       4500028620 11/3/2021 11/8/2021 1/17/2022 1/18/2022 1/18/2022 1/18/2022 1/18/2022 2/7/2022 3/3/2022 5 70 1 0 0 0 20 24 90

17 CAROLLO ENGINEERS 4,917.15$       4500032676 8/17/2021 8/24/2021 1/5/2022 1/6/2022 1/6/2022 1/6/2022 1/6/2022 1/11/2022 1/13/2022 7 134 1 0 0 0 5 2 119

18 TOM DODSON & ASSOCIATES 18,639.48$     4500036593 10/19/2021 10/1/2021 10/19/2021 10/20/2021 10/20/2021 10/25/2021 10/25/2021 11/15/2021 11/15/2021 (18) 18 1 0 5 0 21 0 15

19 RBC RESOURCES 8,092.00$       4500032731 7/1/2021 7/15/2021 7/6/2021 7/6/2021 7/14/2021 7/15/2021 7/15/2021 8/26/2021 8/26/2021 14 (9) 0 8 1 0 42 0 26

20 ARCADIS U.S., INC. 21,734.00$     4500038860 12/2/2021 12/2/2021 12/2/2021 12/6/2021 12/7/2021 12/8/2021 12/8/2021 2/16/2022 2/17/2022 0 0 4 1 1 0 70 1 47

*Invoice was rejected by the Project Manager and sent back to the vendor, the consultant sent a revised invoice at a later date.

39

Source: SAP (Agency's Financial System), Accounts Payable Monitoring Report for FY 2021 and 2022 (as of April 2022), and Planning & Resources Internal Invoice Tracker.

0 0 0 0 65 07/13/2021 7/13/2021 9/16/2021 9/16/2021 3 1

Number of 

Days for the 

Agency to pay 

the Invoice 

AFTER the 

invoice due 

date 

(A)+30 days 

(payment 

terms) = 

Invoice Due 

date - (I)

11 TRUSSELL TECHNOLOGIES INC 2,910.00$       4500036763 7/9/2021 7/12/2021 7/13/2021 7/13/2021 7/13/2021

Number of Days 

for the invoice to 

be sent to the PM 

for review and 

approval

Number of 

Days for the 

invoice to be 

sent to the 

Dept 

Manager for 

approval, 

(after the 

invoice was 

approved by 

the PM)

Number of 

Days for 

Receiving 

to be 

performed in 

SAP 

(after it was 

approved by 

the Dept 

Manager)

Number of 

Days for P&R 

to return the 

invoice to the 

AP group 

(after 

Receiving has 

been 

performed)

Number of 

Days for AP to 

process the 

Invoice 

(after it was 

returned by 

P&R)

Number of 

Days for 

payment to be 

processed 

after it was 

posted in SAP

Attachment 1
Procure to Pay Process for Professional Services - Planning & Resources

Items Selected for Detailed Analysis

Fiscal Year 2020/21 and 2021/22 (as of April 16, 2022)

Number 

Vendor Name Amount

PO Number

Number of 

Days for AP to 

receive the 

Invoice

Number of Days 

for P&R to 

receive the 

Invoice from AP 

and/or PM



Teresa Velarde 

Manager of Internal Audit 

June 2022

Accounts Payable
Operational & Internal Controls Audit

Review of Procure to Pay Processes for 
Professional/Consulting Services administered by

Planning and Resources



P2P - Planning & Resources

2

Audit Objectives

• Evaluate the invoice processes, including receiving and payments, related to 

Professional/Consulting Services procured by P&R

• Determine compliance with Agency policies and department Standard Operating Procedures 

• Evaluate internal controls

• Evaluate the timeliness of payments 

• Evaluate the efficiency of the payment process for the professional/consulting vendors 

administered by P&R

• Evaluate the use of technology and reporting tools

• Identify operational efficiencies and opportunities for improvement



P2P - Planning & Resources

3

Risks due to Late Payments

• Vendors not willing to do business with IEUA in the future

• Possible higher prices offered at the time of establishing contracts 

• Possible late fees 

• Inaccurate budgeted funds available to spend due to not Accounting timely for payments due 

to vendors who already performed services for the Agency

• Harmed vendor relationships

• Damaged reputation and image of IEUA

• Staff time and resources wasted researching transactions and responding to vendors asking 

for overdue payments



4

Purpose of Flowchart 

• To evaluate every step and 

activity in the process

• To highlight and identify 

areas where efficiencies 

can be incorporated

11 Audit Recommendations: 

• 6 for P&R

• 2 for CAP

• 3 for Accounting

Pages 6-15 of Audit Report



Audit Results

5

Department 

Name
Summary of Audit Observations

P&R

• Some payments were paid outside the traditional P2P process because of the unique nature

• P&R internal tracking tools/spreadsheets can be made more efficient leveraging tools

• The department’s goal of “1 to 2 weeks” for invoice approval/receiving into SAP should be 

evaluated and formalized 

• Determine the need for email communications after receiving is completed n SAP

• Implement formal SOPs that follow Agency Policy A-51 and provide training on the new SOPs

• The department collaborate with CAP to evaluate the unique procurement items

CAP

• Work with the department to review/evaluate payments paid outside the P2P process

• Work closely with P&R to identify unique transactions and the best procurement instrument 

and/or procurement process for those uncommon and unique transactions

• Update Agency Procurement Ordinance and Agency Policy 

Accounting

• Implement a more efficient method to route vendor invoices for approval 

• Implement and formalizing a consistent methodology to upload invoices into the SAP – Invoice 

Held Feature and utilize it to monitor, track and prioritize the payable transactions

• Determine the best method for capturing when items have been received and work to 

eliminate the overload of email notifications from the departments



Professional Services Managed by Planning & Resources

6

Planning & Resources

Internal Invoice Tracker (Excel spreadsheet)

Statistical Information Fiscal Year 2020/21
Fiscal Year 

2021/22 (1)

Total dollar value of invoices & check requests processed $ 2,416,275 $ 2,075,072

Number of vendors 44 28

Total number of invoices & check requests processed 243 154

Average number of days for P&R to receive an invoice from 

Accounts Payable/Project Manager

(the Admin Assistant receives from either AP or the PM)

11 days 23 days

Average number of days for P&R to obtain Project Manager’s 

approval
1 day 1 day

Average Number of days between Project Manager’s approval 

and to obtain Department Manager’s approval
3 days 2 days

Average number of days between Department Manager’s 

approval and send the invoice to Accounts Payable for processing
3 days 4 days

Average # of days to complete approvals, complete receiving 

into SAP, and notify AP 

(from the date the P&R Admin. Assistant received the invoice 

from Accounting and/or the PM, to the date sent to AP).

6 days 7 days



IA Recommendations for P2P Professional Services

11 Audit Recommendations: 

• 6 for P&R
• 2 for CAP
• 3 for Accounting

—SOPs (Standard Operating Procedures) and training

—Continuous monitoring of Purchase Orders and working closely with CAP

—Leveraging technology for improved monitoring and communication

—Timely routing of invoices for approval 

—Leveraging SAP workflow tools for tracking and routing

—KPIs (Key Performance Indicators), goals and objectives

—Seek assistance from outside professional consultants to assist and evaluate processes

Details of audit observations and recommendations are listed on the matrix on pages 
6-15  of Audit Report.

7



The Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit Report Review of Procure
to Pay Processes for Professional Services administered by the Planning and
Resources Department is consistent with the Agency’s Business Goals of Fiscal
Responsibility, Workplace Environment, and Business Practices by ensuring that IA’s
evaluations provide recommendations that foster a strong control environment,
safeguard assets, promote a safe work environment and assist management in
achieving organizational goals and objectives.



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

  

3E 



Budget Impact 

 
June 15, 2022

Interim Audit Report: Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit Report
– Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Materials and Supplies

Internal Audit (IA) staff is in the process of completing an evaluation of the procure to pay
processes for Agency materials and supplies. The objective of the audit is to evaluate the
procure to pay processes including ordering, purchase requisitions, receiving, approval and
payments for materials and supplies, to identify problems, bottlenecks, and constraints in the
various steps to process vendor invoices timely. Additionally, to evaluate the reasons for and
minimize the risk of the Agency being placed on credit hold due to late payments.

IA's preliminary review shows that additional controls, documented goals, written procedures
and continuous training may be required for all procure to pay processes for materials and
supplies.

The attached report, provides preliminary background information, and a detailed narrative and
flowchart of the procure to pay processes. IA continues to evaluate financial transactions and
data. A final audit report will be presented in September 2022.

This is an information item.

N/A

06/06/22Audit

Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit

N Y

Manager Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit Report Review of Procure to Pay
Processes for Materials and Supplies is consistent with the Agency’s Business Goals of Fiscal
Responsibility, Workplace Environment, and Business Practices by ensuring that IA’s
evaluations provide recommendations that foster a strong control environment, safeguard assets,
promote a safe work environment and assist management in achieving organizational goals and
objectives.

On June 16, 2021, the Board of Directors approved the Fiscal Year 2021/22 Annual Audit Plan.
The Plan proposed the various Procure to Pay Audits under the Accounts Payable Operational
and Internal Control Audit.

Attachment 1 - Audit Report for the Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit -
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Materials and Supplies
Attachment 2 - PowerPoint

Not Applicable

22128



 
 

 

DATE:   May 26, 2022 
  
TO:  Shivaji Deshmukh 
  General Manager  
   

     
 FROM:   Teresa V. Velarde 
  Manager of Internal Audit 
 
SUBJECT:  Interim Audit Report: Accounts Payable Operational and Internal 

Control Audit Report – Review of Procure to Pay Processes for 
Materials and Supplies 

 
 
Audit Authority 
The Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA or Agency) Internal Audit (IA) Department has 
performed an audit of the Procure to Pay Processes (P2P) of Materials and Supplies for 
the Operations and Maintenance (O&M) Department.  The audit was performed under 
the authority given by the Board of Directors in the approved Fiscal Year (FY) 2021/22 
Annual Audit Plan and the IAD’s Charter.  This report is an Interim Audit Report to provide 
information related to the ongoing review.  IA anticipates completing the review of the 
P2P for Materials and Supplies and present during the September 2022 Audit Committee 
Meeting.  
 
Audit Objectives and Scope: 
The objective of the overall Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit is 
to evaluate the various payment processes and operations of the Accounts Payable (AP) 
Group, within the Accounting Unit, to determine whether Agency policies and department-
specific Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) were established and to identify areas 
for improvement.  The scope of the Review of Procure to Pay Processes (P2P) for 
Materials and Supplies is to evaluate the procure to pay processes for materials and 
supplies including ordering, receiving and payments, to identify opportunities to make the 
process more efficient and ensure invoices are paid timely.   
 
The objectives of the audit include: 

• Determine whether internal controls, Agency policies, and SOPs were established 
and are adequate. 

• Evaluate internal controls 

• Determine compliance with Agency policies and department Standard Operating 
Procedures  



Interim Audit Report:  
Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit Report –  
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Materials and Supplies  
May 26, 2022 
Page 2 of 10 
 

 
 

• Identify operating efficiencies and areas of improvement for P2P processes 
pertaining to materials and supplies. 

• Evaluate the invoice payment processes and operations of AP related to materials 
and supplies procured for the Operations Unit and the Maintenance Unit 

• Evaluate the timeliness and efficiency of payments for specified materials and 
supplies vendors for the Operations Unit and the Maintenance Unit  

• Evaluate the use of technology and reporting tools 

• Evaluate the late vendor payments vendors and vendors that have placed the 
Agency on Credit Hold for materials and supplies 

 
IA is performing the Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit in multiple 
phases.  To-date, IA has issued the following audit reports:  
 

• Interim Audit Report: Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit 
(dated August 20, 2021) This comprehensive report evaluated invoice and 
payment data and metrics, including the total number of invoices paid on time or 
late and the number of days invoices were paid after the due date, along with other 
analysis of financial information.  

 

• Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report – Review of 
Procure to Pay Processes for Chemicals (dated November 24, 2021) This report 
evaluated the Procure to Pay Processes for the Agency’s chemicals (from ordering 
to payments).  IA provided thirty-five (35) audit recommendations to: Operations & 
Maintenance, the Accounting and Contracts and Procurement (CAP) units of the 
Finance Department. (This audit will be referred to as the “P2P Chemicals”). 

 

• Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report  - Review of 
Procure to Pay Processes for Professional Services – Engineering & Construction 
Management (dated February 24, 2022) This report evaluated the Procure to Pay 
Processes for Professional Services as administered by the Engineering & 
Construction Management (E&CM) unit, specifically the Master Contracts or 
Design Contracts. IA provided twenty-one (21) recommendations: E&CM, CAP, 
and the Accounting Unit. (This audit will be referred to as the “P2P E&CM”). 

 
Quarterly progress reports are submitted to the Audit Committee to report on the 
implementation status of all P2P recommendations.  IA also plans to evaluate the P2P 
processes related to other departments’ goods and services.  An audit report will be 
finalized after the completion for each area reviewed.  
 
 
  



Interim Audit Report:  
Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit Report –  
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Materials and Supplies  
May 26, 2022 
Page 3 of 10 
 

 
 

Audit Techniques applied: 
Audit techniques applied: 

• Interviews of Agency staff 

• Review of Agency policies 

• Review of SOPs 

• Evaluation of internal controls 

• Review/understanding of the processes to perform receiving, matching of 
procurement, and invoices, and payment processing   

• Review and analysis of financial transactions 

• Review of supporting documents  
 
This interim audit report is organized as follows:  

• A sample of vendors that have placed the Agency on Credit Hold 

• Narratives documenting the current Procure to Pay Process 

• Flowchart documenting the current Procure to Pay process  

• Preliminary observations to be confirmed with additional data 

• A list of additional audit procedures to be performed 
 
 
Audit Results – Executive Summary 
This is an interim audit report to provide information and an update on the audit work 
gathered to-date.  Additional audit procedures and analysis are planned before the audit 
can be finalized (discussed later in this report).  Currently, IA is still performing an analysis 
on receiving and payment data.  IA will continue to work with all Agency staff involved.  A 
final audit report is planned to be presented during the September Audit Committee 
Meeting.   
 
Acknowledgements 
IA would like to extend our appreciation to the O&M Department, Asset Management, 
Accounting Unit, Contracts and Procurement (CAP), and Information Technology (IT) 
Department, for their cooperation and assistance during the audit.  IA looks forward to the 
continued collaboration and continually working together. 
 
 
The Interim Audit Report: Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit 
Report Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Materials and Supplies is consistent with 
the Agency’s Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility, Workplace Environment, and 
Business Practices by ensuring that IA’s evaluations provide recommendations that foster 
a strong control environment, safeguard assets, promote a safe work environment and 
assist management in achieving organizational goals and objectives. 
 
 
TV:sr   



Interim Audit Report:  
Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit Report –  
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Materials and Supplies  
May 26, 2022 
Page 4 of 10 
 

 
 

Background Information 

As reported previous in the Interim Audit Report: Accounts Payable Operational and 
Internal Control Audit (dated August 20, 2021) a Credit Hold is when a vendor will place 
their customer on Credit Hold when they are consistently late in making payments, 
exceeded their credit limit, and/or identified as a risk. By placing a credit hold on the 
customer’s account, it prevents the Agency from making credit purchases, and new 
orders are declined. This has been an on-going Agency problem. The significant risk for 
the Agency is the impact of vendors to place the Agency on Credit-Hold and the Agency 
unable to acquire the required parts, supplies for maintenance, repair, and updates to 
Agency equipment.  
 

Vendors previously placed Agency on Credit Hold and Dollar Amounts paid * 
(Source: Interim Audit Report: Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit (dated August 20, 2021) 

 

Vendor Name Nature of the Goods purchased and/or Services 
Procurement 

Method  
2019/20 2020/21 

Amazon 

Business 

Business and computer related items and 

accessories: paperware, iPhone chargers, tools 

(pressure washer, LED Emergency Light), 

microscope slides, dichlorination tablets, mouse, 

laptop back, and many others 

Vendor 

Catalog, PO 
$64,360 $54,833 

Cummins 

Pacific LLC 
Parts – (i.e., generator parts) PO $10,697 $9,890 

Griswold 

Industries 
Parts (i.e., tubing, fittings) PO $32,020 $27,882 

Hach 

Company 

Parts (i.e., LDO Probe, the LDO Model 2 

(Luminescent Dissolved Oxygen), accurately 

measures dissolved oxygen levels in water by 

utilizing luminescent dissolved oxygen 

technology  

within the O2 sensor 

PO, BPA $141,238 $213,107 

Harrington 

Industrial 

Plastics LLC 

Parts – Pipes, valves, fittings 

(i.e. - RP1-Roller Assembly, Tube Assembly) 
BPA $103,581 $84,835 

Hasco Oil 

Company Inc 
Supplies – lubricants – gear oil  

 
BPA  $71,076 $58,156 

Home Depot 

Credit Services 

Equipment, tools, supplies etc. Catalog/Credit 

Card/BPA  
$41,893 $36,690 

McMaster Carr 

Supply Co 
Parts- (i.e.., small parts cabinet, box with 

compartments, shelves, plastic bins) 
BPA $29,287 $63,219 

Napa Genuine 

Parts Company 

Parts – filters, air, oil, batteries, etc. 
BPA $14,170 $10,922 

 Total  $508,322 $559,534 
 

* This is only a sample list of past vendors for materials/supplies that have placed the Agency on Credit-Hold is noted 
below (also reported in the Interim Audit Report: Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit, dated August 
20, 2021).  It should be noted that this is not a comprehensive list of vendors that supply the Agency with all Materials 
and Supplies needed/required.  This is also not a comprehensive list of all vendors that have placed the Agency on 
Credit Hold, as there are others.  This list was initially compiled during the initial stages of the P2P audits.   



Interim Audit Report:  
Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit Report –  
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Materials and Supplies  
May 26, 2022 
Page 5 of 10 
 

 
 

Process Narrative - P2P process for Materials and Supplies 

Operations and Maintenance Department and Contracts and Procurement  

The Operations and Maintenance (O&M) Department consists of the Operations Unit and the Maintenance Unit.  The 

Operations Unit and the Maintenance Unit Administrative staff will make a request for materials and supplies to the 

O&M designated staff personnel for creating and submitting purchase requisitions. The Maintenance Planner creates 

a purchase requestion for work orders in SAP.  The Operations Unit and the Maintenance Unit can order and procure 

materials and supplies using one of five (5) different purchasing options: 

 

1. O&M Administrative staff and the Maintenance Planner has the option to order via vendor catalogs in SAP 

purchase requisition Catalogs for materials and supplies.  Vendor catalogs are established through Contracts and 

Procurement (CAP) and have approved and negotiated prices.   

a. CAP creates a standard purchase order (PO) for a catalog order. The PO may be sent to the vendor based 

on vendor request and a copy of the PO sent to the requestor of the department.   The department or the 

Warehouse uses receiving document (i.e., packing slip, bill of lading, goods receipt) to receive against 

the PO. 

b. A PO is established if a vendor’s catalog is not available. 

• O&M staff will obtain the required number of quote(s) or proposal(s).   

• Then O&M staff enters the purchase requisition (PR) with the requestors’ justification per the 

Agency Procurement Ordinance thresholds (i.e., $3,500, and above purchase) 

• The workflow in SAP is determined by the cost center entered in the PR request.  The request will 

automatically be sent through SAP workflow to the person who is assigned to the cost center.  

• CAP will review the submittal package noted above in step three (3) for vendors without a catalog 

option.  Next, CAP will create a PO.  CAP will provide a vendor the PO and a copy to the department 

who requested PR.  

2. O&M staff enter a PR request with support (i.e., applicable quotes and documentation per Procurement Ordinance 

#108) in SAP. CAP will review approved PR request and CAP will approve the corresponding PO in SAP for 

receiving and payment of invoices. 

• If there is a pricing change for Contract PO throughout the fiscal year, CAP must establish a new 

Contract PO with the new PR and new negotiated pricing, based on information provided by O&M.  

• If there are not enough funds in the established Contract PO, O&M staff create a new PR request with 

additional funding and CAP facilitates adding the new funded PR to the existing PO.  

3. An additional purchasing option is to establish Blanket Purchase Order Agreement (BPA) for routine, repetitive 

purchases, and negotiated fixed pricing.   

• O&M Staff works with CAP to establish BPAs and utilizes them to expedite work orders, materials, 

and supplies acquisition for the current fiscal year.  

• O&M staff will create a PR request and funding of the BPA for review and approval by the Manager 

of CAP. 

• Once the BPA is established, the O&M Staff use the BPA number to place orders for materials and 

supplies for their work orders. 

 

4.  Additional purchasing option is to establish a contract with the vendor through either solicitation, sole source, 

multiple quotes depending on threshold in the Procurement Ordinance #108 guidelines. 

a. O&M Staff create a PR in SAP to request CAP in establishing the contract.  

b. CAP establishes a contract with a vendor in SAP and a fully executed signed contract.  A Contract PO 

is established to fund and receive and pay Contract POs on.   

c. Now, O&M staff can contact vendor and provide the vendor the Contract PO number and the receiving 

is on the Contract PO.  This is a purchasing option but not generally done.  

 



Interim Audit Report:  
Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit Report –  
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Materials and Supplies  
May 26, 2022 
Page 6 of 10 
 

 
 

• If there is pricing change throughout the fiscal year, O&M staff will show letters from vendors 

for price increases to CAP.  CAP does an update to the contract with new pricing rate sheet for a 

contract amendment.   

5. Designated Operations Unit and Maintenance Unit staff assigned Agency credit cards (US Bank Procurement 

Credit Card or Home Depot Credit Cart) may purchase good and materials.   CAP administers the Procurement 

Card and Home Depot Cards Agency programs. 

 

    Receiving operational practices for materials and supplies 

The Warehouse will receive goods (materials and supplies) only if the staff members order notes delivery to the 

Warehouse.  If they require certain items to be delivered to another location, then it is noted in the PR and will be 

delivered accordingly. It is the responsibility of those who requested it to be delivered to any other location to do their 

own individual receiving.   

Operations Unit Administrative SAP Receiving  

The Operations Unit Administrative staff will on perform receiving for the Ground Water Recharge (GWR), 

Recycling (RC), office supplies (Staples), and Amazon procurement of materials and supplies.    

1. Operations Unit Administrative staff will access SAP and the enter the T-Code MIGO to perform receiving.  

2. In addition, they will upload into SAP the supporting documentation (packing slip, good receipt, receipt, or 

bill of lading).  

3. SAP will generate a Goods Receipt and Goods receipt number for each SAP Receiving transaction performed 

by the Operations Unit Administrative staff. 

 

Maintenance Unit Administrative Staff  

The Maintenance Unit Administrative staff will only perform receiving function for other locations RP-1, RP-2, R-

P4, RP-5, and CCWRF. 

1) Receipt of receiving documentation, bills of lading (BOL), or invoices for vendor payment.  

a. Documentation emailed or hard copy received in the field (RP-1, RP-2, R-P4, RP-5, and CCWRF) 

b. Documentation emailed when received from other facilities 

2) Will access SAP to start the process for payment by the Maintenance Administrative Staff by accessing SAP 

and entering the T-Code MIGO to perform receiving.   

3) In addition, they will upload into SAP the supporting documentation (packing slip, good receipt, receipt, or 

bill of lading). 

4) SAP will generate a Goods Receipt number for each SAP Receiving transaction performed by the Maintenance 

Unit Administrative staff  

 

Home Depot (HD) Card Purchases 

Warehouse orders HD, the O&M Department submit their receipts to the Warehouse.   If staff purchases HD and turns 

in their receipt into the Warehouse, it gets received into SAP since this is a BPA. The only HD transactions not received 

by the Warehouse are Recycled Water (RW)/Groundwater Recharge (GWR), they have their own PO. If any of the 

BPA/POs are used to purchase items, it is the staffs’ responsibility to forward their receipts to either Warehouse or their 

Department Unit Administrative Staff so they can forward to the Warehouse so that HD purchase transactions can be 

received in SAP.   

Accounting Unit - Accounts Payable  

1) As of 2/28/2022, Mailing Processing and invoice intake is done by two Interns. Prior to 2/28/2022, all invoices 

received by AP are date-stamped (regardless of goods and/or Materials and Supplies): 

• Hardcopy invoices are date-stamped, scanned daily, and cataloged  

• Electronic invoices are electronically stamped when received. 

2) After the mail is opened or downloaded from email, all incoming invoices are logged on a spreadsheet and the 

following information is recorded: date received, email or surface (post) mail, vendor name, invoice number, 

invoice date, and invoice amount. 



Interim Audit Report:  
Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit Report –  
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Materials and Supplies  
May 26, 2022 
Page 7 of 10 
 

 
 

3) All goods and services invoices are entered into the SAP system and posted to the “Invoice Held Invoices” 

feature (SAP transaction code: MIR6 or FMFG_HELD, Invoice Overview: Invoice Documents). (New step as 

of July 2021)  

4) Types of information entered: invoice receipt date, invoice date, posting date, (dollar) amount, reference 

number (invoice number), currency (USD), tax amount (if applicable), text (description), and PO number. 

Once an invoice is entered into this “Invoice Held Invoices” feature, it is stored as a temporary document in 

the temporary table until further processing in the SAP system. 

 

For Materials and Supplies invoices, AP will perform the following:  

5) invoices: Receiving for material and supplies are generally going to supported by bill of lading/packing slip or 

in-store receipt, not invoices.  Purchasing authorization levels are dictated by Procurement Ordinance No. 108.  

Additionally, payment request could be for the following transactions for credit card purchases and BPAs. 

When AP reviews an invoice for signature, AP staff are ensuring acknowledgement of receipt of a service (or 

goods, sometimes) as noted on the invoice, including the description of the item/service, price, service period, 

and so forth, as compared to the Purchase Order (PO).  The receiver should have the ability to make that 

determination, so generally it’s a department or project manager who signs off on the invoice. Each department 

has their specific guidelines, workflow, and levels of authorization to confirm receiving.   AP staff can identify 

the signer and know if the signature belongs to someone within the same department (cost center) as the 

requestor, per the PO, as well as compared to the user who received the item/service in SAP.  In practice, 

seasoned AP staff become familiar with their assigned vendors, how the products or services are used within 

the Agency, and which departments are placing the orders from that vendor.  

6) Reoccurring/Prior invoices (previously processed by the AP) – review the vendor and/or payment history in 

the SAP system to determine the position that approved the invoice.  For existing vendors AP staff need to 

evaluate the validity of the invoice and ensure we haven’t already paid it; so, they will review the payment 

history.  

7) New Invoices – AP staff reviews the invoice and performs preliminary research based on the information listed 

on the invoice in SAP (i.e., project number, WBS element number, etc.).  If no identifying information is 

contained on the invoice and/or the research does not yield any results, then AP staff could not find the 

associated PO related to an invoice, they would attempt to identify who made the order and reach out to that 

Agency personnel.  Also, the AP staff may also reach out to CAP for assistance to see if we have a new vendor 

not yet in SAP.   

8) Starting point for processing Materials and Supplies payments is the Goods Receipt/Invoice Receipt (GR/IR) 

report in SAP (transaction code: FBL3N, specified layout).  The purpose for using this SAP account inquiry 

screen is it identifies all the transactions where the “Receiving” process has been performed, and these 

transactions are waiting for the three-way match to be performed and process for payment.  

9) After the GR/IR report has been generated, the data/information is sorted to ensure the oldest information 

appears first and identify the oldest goods receiving that has been performed.  

10) Using the data/information from the GR/IR report, AP staff filter out and process invoices based on alphabet 

and/or vendor assignment.  Once AP staff have their assigned group/population of invoices, then AP staff will 

identify the vendor whose invoices will be processed. Invoice selection is based on the following:  

• Oldest date, Highest Dollar amount, and the vendor/invoice that requires the immediate attention.  

11) Once a transaction (line item) is selected for processing, AP staff will perform the three-way match for the 

Materials/Supplies invoices, which entails reviewing: 

• the PO information and determining the line item where Receiving was performed,  

• the invoices parked in the Invoice Held Feature, which includes the original invoices submitted by 

the vendors,  



Interim Audit Report:  
Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit Report –  
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Materials and Supplies  
May 26, 2022 
Page 8 of 10 
 

 
 

• the approved invoices and packing slip or bill of lading attached during the Receiving process. At this 

time, AP staff verifies the appropriate approvals have been obtained based on the invoice’s dollar 

amount.  

12) After the three-way match has been performed, AP staff proceeds to finish processing the transaction and posts 

the invoice.  Once an invoice has been posted, it is removed from the queue (upon refresh) in the Invoice Held 

Feature screen. 

13) Then, AP staff will attach the approved invoice and supporting documentation in SAP.  

Note: Any special notes for Materials and supplies invoices?   

14) Once an invoice has been set up, entered, and posted into the financial module (SAP), then the financial system 

establishes the transaction as a “Payable” in the future.  

Note: A “Payable item” does not mean payment has been made.  It means that a payment will be scheduled 

some time in the future (the liability is recognized in SAP when the 3-way match occurs).  

15) After all the invoice processing has been completed, AP determines what items will be paid in the SAP system. 

16) AP staff (whomever is assigned that week – we rotate this duty) runs the pre-list of items recommended to be 

processed and sends it to Accounting management for review. 

Note: The “Pre-list” is reviewed by Agency Management, and items that are not included will be researched 

and reviewed to determine if should not be included in the current payment cycle.  

17) Once the “Pre-list” has been reviewed by Agency Management, Accounting Unit, then a final list is generated.  

18) Final list is submitted for processing in the SAP system.  Note that Finance staff process the ACH which is 

then approved online at CBB by Accounting Management.  An ACH file is sent to the bank for processing and 

payment, while physical checks are printed and mailed to the vendors.    

 

 

 
Process Flowchart - P2P process for Materials and Supplies 
The diagram on the next page provides the overview of the Procure-to-Pay (P2P) process 
for Materials and Supplies any observations and recommendations identified will be 
reported in the Final Audit Report. 



Interim Audit Report:  
Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit Report –  
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Materials and Supplies  
May 26, 2022 
Page 9 of 10 
 

 
 

 



Interim Audit Report:  
Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit Report –  
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Materials and Supplies  
May 26, 2022 
Page 10 of 10 
 

 
 

For the final audit report, IA will update the list of vendors that have placed the Agency 
on Credit Hold to include additional vendors, if necessary.  
 
 
Preliminary Observations: 
Based on IA’s interim review, below are some preliminary observations:  

 

• Controls may be required to decrease the receiving time into the Agency’s financial 
system, 

• Documented SOPs for the receiving function and processing payments, 

• Continuous review and close monitoring of purchase orders (PO’s) to ensure there 
is sufficient funding, and 

• Key performance indicators (KPI's), goals, and objectives. 

• The other units may want to incorporate similar processes as implemented by 
Operations using iPhone/SharePoint  

 
 
Additional Audit Procedures In-Progress: 
Additional audit procedures to be performed by Internal Audit include:  
 

• Evaluate the timeliness of the receiving process, 

• Evaluate the number of invoices processed and paid on time and late, 

• Evaluate delays in processing payments, and 

• Select a sample of transactions and perform detailed testing. 
 
 
IA anticipates completing the review of the P2P for Materials and Supplies and present 
during the September 2022 Audit Committee Meeting.  
 
 



Interim Audit Report
Review of Procure to Pay Processes 

for Materials and Supplies

Teresa Velarde 

Manager of Internal Audit 

June 2022



Accounts Payable Operational & Internal Control Audit
Audit Scope

2

Audit Objectives:

• Determine whether internal controls, Agency policies, and department-specific standard

operating procedures were established and are adequate.

• Evaluate internal controls

• Determine compliance with Agency policies and department Standard Operating Procedures

• Identify operating efficiencies and areas of improvement for P2P processes pertaining to

materials and supplies.

• Evaluate the invoice payment processes and operations of the Accounts Payable (AP)

Group, within the Accounting Unit related to materials and supplies procured for the

Materials Unit and Operations Unit

• Evaluate the timeliness and efficiency of payments for specified materials and supplies
vendors for the Maintenance Unit and Operations Unit

• Evaluate the use of technology and reporting tools
• Evaluate the late vendor payments vendors and vendors that have placed the Agency on

Credit Hold for materials and supplies



P2P Materials and Supplies

3

Audit Scope:

The scope of the Review of P2P Materials and Supplies is to evaluate the late vendor payments

vendors and vendors that have placed the Agency on Credit Hold for materials and supplies for

the Maintenance Unit and Operations Unit.

Credit Hold

The biggest risk to the Agency is having vendors place the Agency on Credit Hold. A vendor will

place their customer on Credit Hold when they are consistently late in making payments,

exceeded their credit limit, and/or identified as a risk. By placing a credit hold on the customer’s

account, it prevents credit purchases, and new orders will be declined.



P2P – Materials and Supplies

4

Risks due to Late Payments

• Vendors not willing to do business with IEUA in the future

• Possible higher prices offered at the time of establishing contracts 

• Possible late fees 

• Inaccurate budgeted funds available to spend due to not Accounting timely for 
payments due to vendors who already performed services for the Agency

• Harmed vendor relationships

• Damaged reputation and image of IEUA

• Staff time and resources wasted researching transactions and responding to 
vendors asking for overdue payments



Flow Chart 
for the P2P Process for 
Materials and Supplies 

5



P2P Materials and Supplies

6

Preliminary Observations:

Based on IA’s interim review, below are some preliminary observations:

• Controls may be required to decrease the receiving time into the Agency’s financial system,

• Documented SOPs for the receiving function and processing payments,

• Continuous review and close monitoring of purchase orders (PO’s) to ensure there is

sufficient funding, and

• Key performance indicators (KPI's), goals, and objectives.

• The other units may want to incorporate similar processes as implemented by Operations

using iPhone/SharePoint



P2P Materials and Supplies

7

Additional Audit Procedures In-Progress:

Additional audit procedures to be performed by Internal Audit include:

• Evaluate the timeliness of the receiving process,

• Evaluate the number of invoices processed and paid on time and late,

• Evaluate delays in processing payments, and

• Select a sample of transactions and perform detailed testing

IA anticipates completing the review of the P2P for Materials and Supplies

and present during the September 2022 Audit Committee Meeting.



The Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control – Review of Procure to Pay
Processes for Materials and Supplies audit is consistent with the Agency’s Business
Goals of Fiscal Responsibility, Workplace Environment, and Business Practices by
ensuring that IA’s evaluations provide recommendations that foster a strong control
environment, safeguard assets, promote a safe work environment and assist
management in achieving organizational goals and objectives.



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

  

3F 



Budget Impact 

 
June 15, 2022

Progress Update for all Procure to Pay Audit Recommendations

This is a quarterly update of the 56 audit recommendations provided to-date through the
Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control audits that evaluate the Procure to Pay (P2P)
processes for the various Agency departments and processes. The scope of the P2P audits is to
evaluate the ordering, receiving and payment processes for the Agency's goods and services and
to identify observations and recommendations for improvements to the processes to ensure
vendor invoices are paid within the terms and processes are efficient.

To-date, Internal Audit (IA) has completed a comprehensive review of the Procure to Pay
Processes of Agency Chemicals (report issued November 24, 2021) and a comprehensive review
of the Procure to Pay Processes for Professional Services administered by the Engineering and
Construction Management Department (report issued February 24, 2022) and has provided
recommendations under each review. Of the 56 recommendations issued through the P2P
audits, 20 are now implemented, 23 are in progress of being implemented, 5 require additional
time for corrective action and 8 are considered no longer applicable. The attached report
provides details of the results. IA will continue to provide quarterly progress updates for all
recommendations, including new ones through additional P2P audits.

This is an information item.

N/A

06/06/22Audit

Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit

N Y

Manager Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Progress Update for all Procure to Pay Audit Recommendations is consistent with the
Agency's Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility, Workplace Environment, and Business
Practices by ensuring that IA's evaluations provide recommendations that foster a strong control
environment, safeguard assets, promote a safe work environment and assist management in
achieving organizational goals and objectives.

On June 16, 2021, the Board of Directors approved the Fiscal Year 2021/22 Annual Audit Plan.
The Plan proposed the various Procure to Pay Audits under the Accounts Payable Operational
and Internal Control Audit.

Attachment 1 - Progress Update for all Procure to Pay Audit Recommendations
Attachment 2 - P2P Chemicals Recommendations - Second Update Results & Process Flowchart
Attachment 3 - P2P E&CM Recommendations - First Update Results & Process Flowchart
Attachment 4 - PPT

Not Applicable

22126



 
 

 

 
DATE:   May 19, 2022 
  
TO:  Shivaji Deshmukh 
  General Manager 
    

  
FROM:   Teresa V. Velarde 
  Manager of Internal Audit 
 
SUBJECT:  Progress Update for all Procure to Pay Audit Recommendations 
   
Audit Authority 
The Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA or Agency) Internal Audit Department (IA) is 
providing a quarterly update of fifty-six (56) audit recommendations provided in the 
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Chemicals, dated November 24, 2021, and the 
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Engineering & Construction Management, dated 
February 24, 2022.  The quarterly progress update is provided under the authority given 
by the Board of Directors in the approved Fiscal Year (FY) 2021/2022 Annual Audit Plan 
and the IAD’s Charter. 
 
Audit Objective  
The scope of the original audits was to evaluate the ordering, receiving, and payment 
processes for the Agency's goods and services and identify observations and 
recommendations for improvements to the processes to ensure the vendor payments are 
paid timely and within terms.  The purpose of the quarterly progress reports is to provide 
an update of the implementation status of the original audit recommendations with a 
status of each, including the corrective action plans, and planned dates for 
implementation for each recommendation.   
 
Background 
As detailed in the original audit reports, goods and services purchased by the Agency are 
considered critical to the wastewater treatment process because of public health 
regulatory requirements and critical to the business initiatives of the Agency.  The original 
audits evaluated the controls and processes in place to ensure goods and services are 
ordered, delivered, received, and paid for, in a timely manner, while following approved 
procurement processes.  Good internal controls and sound processes ensure the Agency 
can operate according to regulatory requirements and maintain healthy business 
relationships and a good business image with its vendors.     
 



Progress Update for all Procure to Pay Audit Recommendations  
May 19, 2022 
Page 2 of 4 
 

 
 

To date, IA has completed the following Procure to Pay (P2P) audits:  
 

• Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report – Review of Procure 
to Pay Processes for Chemicals, dated November 24, 2021. This audit provided thirty-
five (35) audit recommendations. Presented and discussed during the December 
Audit Committee meeting. 
 

• Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report - Review of Procure 
to Pay Processes for Professional Services – Engineering & Construction 
Management, dated February 24, 2022. This audit provided twenty-one (21) audit 
recommendations. Presented and discussed during the March Audit Committee 
meeting. 

 
The breakdown of the number of recommendations provided to each department is noted 
in the chart below with a current status for each recommendation. The attached reports, 
provide a detailed list of all recommendations, noting the departments responses, 
planned date for implementation and IA notes/comments related to the responses and 
proposed plans by the departments and the final disposition for each.  
 

 

 

Of the 56 recommendations:  

• 20 are now Implemented  

• 23 are in progress of being implemented  

• 5 require additional time for corrective action (Not Implemented) 

• 8 are considered no longer applicable  
 

 
Highlights 
Highlights of the recommendations that have been implemented during the previous three 
months include the following:  
 

• CAP has implemented the remaining six (6) audit recommendations.  
Recommendations suggested that CAP to reach out to the departments to work 



Progress Update for all Procure to Pay Audit Recommendations  
May 19, 2022 
Page 3 of 4 
 

 
 

closely with them to gain a clear understanding of their unique procurement 
requirements and to provide additional training, guidance, and assistance to 
ensure the transactions follow the Agency’s P2P process.  CAP has had multiple 
meetings with Operations & Maintenance(O&M) and Engineering & Construction 
Management (E&CM) and has provided guidance and awareness of the various 
procurement instruments and monitoring reports (Contracts and PO).  Additionally, 
CAP hosts a virtual Q&A session each month called CAP Café and attendees can 
ask questions, request guidance, assistance, and discuss any unique issues.  
Lastly, each month, CAP staff send via email to all Agency staff a list of Tips and 
Tricks related to SAP navigation and transactions.  The additional outreach efforts 
have provided valuable and useful information for all users.  
 

• The E&CM Department took the lead to evaluate their internal metric of fourteen 
(14) days to determine the best goal that allows Accounting sufficient time to 
process the invoice payment.  E&CM took worked closely with Accounting and 
CAP to evaluate options to ensure vendor invoices are returned to Accounting 
within the set internal goal/timeline of fourteen (14) days and will work with CAP to 
determine if invoice terms can be extended for future contracts.   
 

• The E&CM Department is working on documenting Standard Operating 
Procedures for processing invoices and pay estimates and plans to have final 
versions by June 30, 2022.  Additionally, E&CM plans to provide training on the 
new procedures once they are documented.  IA will follow up on this item during 
the next progress update.   

 

• The O&M Department took the lead and they worked closely with Information 
Technology and implemented IAs recommendations related to leveraging the 
various technologies and tools already available to expedite the receiving process 
for chemical deliveries.  Specifically, the O&M Department, for all plants, are now 
using Agency-issued cell phones to scan, upload, and submit the delivery 
documents to a designated electronic folder where the administrative assistants 
have immediate visibility and access to begin processing the receiving into SAP.  
This process has already been rolled out to all plants.  With this new process, the 
O&M Department has set a goal to ensure receiving is completed into SAP within 
five to seven (5-7) days; this is a tremendous improvement when compared to the 
original audit findings, where it was noted that receiving was taking an average of 
twenty-three (23) days.  With this shortened receiving time frame, it will allow the 
Accounting Unit the remaining twenty-three to twenty-five (23-25) days of the 
month to process timely payments for Chemical vendors.  The Strike Team 
continuously reviews the performance, and the results are positive. 

 

• The O&M Department finalized and documented a Department Standard 
Operating Procedure that documents the process for performing the receiving 
function and for monitoring the related Purchase Orders.  
 



Progress Update for all Procure to Pay Audit Recommendations  
May 19, 2022 
Page 4 of 4 
 

 
 

• Accounting has been working closely with the IT department to develop monitoring 
reports that Accounting can use to have greater visibility of all payable items that 
come in.  The reports will assist with sorting items, planning, prioritizing, and 
scheduling payments with the end goal of ensuring payments are made on time. 
 

• Accounting has also committed to drafting a Standard Operating Procedure to 
document the many processes involved with processing timely payments, 
including reviewing, matching, and processing for payment. Accounting is 
exploring the option of using a consultant to draft the SOP.  The draft SOP is 
planned to be completed by June 2022.  
 

• Both O&M and Accounting have periodic meetings together to discuss pending 
payable items that require attention.  According to the departments, the meetings 
have been a positive forum to discuss questions and follow up on items.  

 
The attached matrixes provide a status for each of the fifty-six (56) recommendations. 
Also, included are the corresponding process flowchart.  
 
For additional details related to background, findings, and recommendations, IA refers 
readers to the original audit reports, received and filed by the Board of Directors:  
 

• Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit Report – Review of Procure 
to Pay Processes for Chemicals, dated November 24, 2021. 
 

• Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit Report - Review of Procure 
to Pay Processes for Professional Services – Engineering & Construction 
Management, dated February 24, 2022.  

 
The reports can be accessed through the Agency’s intranet website or requested from 
the Manager of Internal Audit. IA will provide another progress update in September 2022.  
 
Acknowledgements 
IA would like to extend our appreciation to the Engineering & Construction Management, 
Operations & Maintenance, Accounting, and the Contracts and Procurement Department 
staff for their cooperation and assistance during this review and look forward to the 
continued collaboration. 
 
Discussions with Management 
IA met with each of the respective department managers and representatives to discuss 
the observations, the status of each recommendation, and corrective action plans.  Where 
possible, their comments have been incorporated. 
 
The Progress Update for all Procure to Pay Audit Recommendations is consistent with the Agency’s 
Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility, Workplace Environment, and Business Practices by ensuring that 
IA’s evaluations provide recommendations that foster a strong control environment, safeguard assets, 
promote a safe work environment and assist management in achieving organizational goals and objectives. 



P2P Chemicals Recommendations

Second Update

June 6, 2022

Reco #
Dept(s). 

taking the lead

Recommendation Implemented In Progress
Not 

Implemented

No Longer 

Applicable

Department's Response, Corrective Action Plan and Proposed Date for 

Implementation
IA comments/notes

1 Operations

Consider using the department scanned shared drive to "park" delivery 

documents and ensure other department staff know where to access those 

receiving documents. 

OR

Work with ISS/BIS to establish a separate scanner folder (for example, 

named: "OPS RECEIVING DOCS" or similar) and have operators scan into 

this department folder where the admin assistants can retrieve the receiving 

documents, instead of waiting for an email copy. 

X
This recommendation was deemed no longer 

applicable during the prior status update. 

2 Operations

Consider the feasibility of purchasing and servicing an additional scanner to 

be placed in closer proximity to the operators that have the Receiving 

documentation. 

OR

See next recommendation below for leveraging other technologies.

X
This recommendation was deemed no longer 

applicable during the prior status update. 

3

Operations

working with

BIS/ISS

Consider the feasibility of leveraging the use of iPhones to perform the 

scanning and emailing receiving documentation immediately upon verification 

of receiving chemicals. 

If cell phones will be used for scanning and emailing, provide the necessary 

and consistent training and instructions to operators for using the Agency 

iPhone scan function to scan and email a document and work with ISS/BIS to 

set up a unique email address where receiving documentation can be 

centralized (for example: OPSReceivingDocs@ieua.org). 

X This is fully implimented.  Staff is using OneDrive to upload BOLs to AIM.

Per staff, the new OneDrive upload of delivery 

documentation has been rolled out to all facilities. 

Staff is also working closely with other departments 

to implement the new process for chemical 

receiving.Staff will provide an updated metric report 

"GR Recieing and Invoice Payment Tracker" to 

show the differences in the time it took to receive 

items.  Operations goal has been to receive within 5-

7 days.  

4

Operations

working with

BIS/ISS/RM

Determine where the original delivery/shipping documentation should go. 

(Department, Accounting or Records).

Determine and standardize, for all locations, the process for how admin 

assistants will process the receiving in SAP with either an electronic copy or if 

the hard-copy documentation is needed for processing. Consider having them 

rely on the electronic documentation they can pull from a centralized location 

(scan folder or electronic email).

X
The electronic copies of the BOLs are stored in AIM.  Hard copies are stored onsite for 1 

year and are put in the shred bin on a rolling year calendar timeframe. 

This recommendation is considered implemented 

based on the response and new process 

implemented. Also, see comment in #3. 

5 Operations

See items related to #(2) above.  

Standardize for all locations the process of submitting the delivery docs to the 

admin assistant.  Determine the need for multiple copies and if documents 

can be saved and retrieved from a centralized folder, file, or email (as 

described above) and specify where the hardcopy should go

X This is fully implimented.  Staff is using OneDrive to upload BOLs to AIM.

This recommendation is considered implemented 

based on the response and new process 

implemented. Also, see comment in #3. 

6

Operations

working with 

AP

Standardize, for all plants: 

-Specify which or if all delivery documents should be scanned, copied, 

emailed, and uploaded into SAP.  

-Standardize the admin assistant's process for performing receiving in SAP.  

Reduce the need for multiple electronic copies (4+ copies) and email 

communication of delivery documents (by implementing recommendations 

mentioned above).

Ensure all receiving documentation:  Bill of Lading, all delivery documentation 

is uploaded into SAP at the time the admin assistant performs SAP Receiving 

function.  Information is important for AP to complete the 3-way match 

(Delivery Documents, PO, and Invoice).

X
This is fully implimented.  Staff is using OneDrive to upload BOLs to AIM & Admin 

Assistant is utilizing AIM to upload the BOLs to SAP.

This recommendation is considered implemented 

based on the response and new process 

implemented. Also, see comment in #3. 

7
Operations/

AP

Standardize, for all plants a consistent methodology for the receiving function 

in SAP: 

-Standardize the admin’s process for perform receiving in SAP.  Reduce the 

need for multiple electronic copies and emails.

Ensure all receiving documentation:  Bill of Lading, all delivery documentation 

is uploaded into SAP at the time the admin performs receiving. 

Determine and streamline the need for the several emails and attachments 

among the operators, admins, and AP staff.

X This is fully implimented.  Staff is using OneDrive to upload BOLs to AIM.

This recommendation is considered implemented 

based on the response and new process 

implemented.   Also, see comment in #3. 

Have a significant number of emails been reduced 

or eliminated to communicate receiving to AP and 

between Operators and Admins with copies of 

documents? 

Per Bonnie - doesn't get staff emails unless it is 

something else that is needed.  Per Bonnie, she 

reduced by about 150 emails a month.  

email correspondance to Acct. per Connie, doesn't 

want any emails unless it is something old and still 

cleaning up.  

8

Operations

working with

AP and CAP

Formalize and document Agency Policies or Department SOPs to:

*Ensure staff perform receiving against the correct PO and the correct line 

item within the PO.

*Work closely with CAP to continuously review POs to check pricing terms 

and that there is sufficient funding in the PO for the orders planned.

X
Draft SOP completed and in review.  Anticipate final SOPs to be completed by end of 

April. 

As of 4/26/2022 the department has documented 

SOP #2022-1 Migo Receiving Chemicals and SOP 

#2022-2 OneDrive Chemical Receiving to address 

receiving .  Staff have also met with CAP staff to 

evaluate efficiencies with setting up and charging to 

the correct POs. 

9

Operations

working with

AP

Document specific SOPs to establish consistent procedures for employees 

to follow, be trained on and evaluated on. SOPs should be reviewed 

periodically, and updates should be made as needed.

X
Draft SOP completed and in review.  Anticipate final SOPs to be completed by end of 

April. 

As of 4/26/2022 the department has documented 

SOP #2022-1 Migo Receiving Chemicals and SOP 

#2022-2 OneDrive Chemical Receiving to address 

receiving .  Staff have also met with CAP staff to 

evaluate efficiencies with setting up and charging to 

the correct POs. 

10 Operations

Training should be provided periodically to reinforce the documented SOPs 

to ensure employees are following consistent procedures and any updates 

are communicated promptly.

X
Draft SOP completed and in review.  Anticipate final SOPs to be completed by end of 

April. 

Staff indicated that training on the BOL upload 

process has been in person and sometimes one-on 

one.  Staff plans to providE continous training to 

ensure all staff  is able to perform the processes 

documented in the SOPs.  As of 4.26.22, staff 

indicated that Annual Referesher Training is 

scheduled on all calendars for March 2nd of each 

year. 

11

Operations

working with

BIS

Evaluate all findings and recommendations and develop a more streamlined 

and consistent approach to ensure receiving is completed by the 

administrative assistants within a few days of delivery.

X
Draft SOP completed and in review.  Anticipate final SOPs to be completed by end of 

April. 

Recommendation is considered Implemented. The 

method documented in the SOPs is the 

new/updated streamlined process. Currently, there 

are approximately 4 admins that perform the 

receiving. One main person, a back up and several 

specialized at different facilities or departments. 

Receiving is performed consistently throughout the 

week.  As of 4/26/2022, two SOPs have been 

documented (see Reco #8 & 9 above) and training 

has been provided and is scheduled.  The 

department has evaluated all recommendations and 

have developed their own efficient methods and 

have documented a more streamlined approach to 

ensure receiving is completed within a few days of 

chemical delivery.  

12
Operations

Working with

BIS

Establish and document performance metrics, KPI's, goals and objectives 

and a method to measure those for the documentation of the deliveries by the 

operators and the time it takes to complete receiving into SAP.  Work with BIS 

to establish any reports that can provide measurements and metrics.

X In process. Final should be completed by end of May.

Recommendation is considered In Progress.  

Metrics have been established, staff continues to 

work to improve the measurement report and 

working to document goals.  Planned for 

implementation by 5/4/2022. 

13

Operations

working 

AP

Consider eliminating the receiving function before issuing payments for 

chemicals, so that 

AP process payments without waiting for the receiving function.  Determine 

the feasibility to reconfigure and implement the change in SAP.

Determine how the "after the fact" reconciliation of receiving documents to 

POs and invoices will be completed to ensure proper oversight is performed.

Assess the benefit, impact, and the risks of eliminating the best practice 

internal control of performing the receiving before the 3-way match and the 

payment are issued.

X
This recommendation was deemed no longer 

applicable during the prior status update. 

STATUS

1 of 4



P2P Chemicals Recommendations

Second Update

June 6, 2022

Reco #
Dept(s). 

taking the lead

Recommendation Implemented In Progress
Not 

Implemented

No Longer 

Applicable

Department's Response, Corrective Action Plan and Proposed Date for 

Implementation
IA comments/notes

14

CAP 

working with 

O&M

CAP and Accounting should assist in providing training, information and have 

continuous communication with O&M staff prior to assisting with establishing 

the requested POs.  If the planned budget amount for each chemical is known 

and forecasted, the PR should be set up with sufficient funds to be able to 

cover a full years of invoice charges. O&M would benefit from training and 

information from CAP and Accounting.

X

CAP has on-going/regular biweekly meetings with O&M to discuss all procurement topics.  

CAP continues to be available to discuss all Procurement-related topics with O&M, CAP 

facilitates discussions during various forums including CAP Café, Tips and Tricks and 

other meetings. CAP will reach out to O&M to facilitate a discussion and offer any 

assistance, awareness and information about planning and setting up PRs.  Things to 

discuss will include:  total budget for chemical purchases, cost centers, GL, PR, line items 

- one for each facility, FY amounts, contract pricing, quanties, pricing, budget blocks, and 

timeliness of amendments and PRs, etc. with the goal of anticipating and eliminating 

budget blocks and late payments. 

On 4/19/2022 CAP met with O&M staff to discuss the department's budget process, the 

comment below provides a summary of the items discussed and continued, planned 

discussions between CAP and O&M: 

The budget preparation includes significant discussion with various staff.  It includes 

looking at the usage from the past year, the projections associated with flows, required 

dosages, the weather, contact terms, equipment shutdowns, repair projects, and other 

factors.

Once O&M determine what the anticipated annual budget is for the chemical and facility, 

O&M staff identifies the contract terms (pricing, increases, expiration dates) and 

establishes a value for the PR.  That amount can be the anticipated annual amount divided 

by 12 months, and then multiplied by the time-period associated with the contract terms.  

Staff additionally identifies a contingency factor of up to 20% for the PR.  This is done so 

that they don’t commit the full budget on the first PO, as they will be creating new PRs and 

Pos whenever there are price changes so that the receiving can be completed against 

new budget lines in the PO.  This is more efficient then adding new lines to a PO creating 

confusion on which is the appropriate line.

With the reorganization aligning Operations under one manager, the breakdown will allow 

more efficient management of the chemical budget and purchase orders.  

CAP & O&M also discussed potential ways to amend the PR/PO line items to potentially 

simplify the calculation process for receiving.  These are things the two departments are 

exploring and will continue to discuss. 

IA consisders this recommendation Implemented.  

The intent of the recommendation was to provide 

the observations and findings noted duirng the audit 

and encourage the departments to discuss potential 

operational efficiencies in the P2P process, 

specifically as they relate to budgeting, setting up 

PRs and charging against the established PRs with 

the goal of assistin in the process and working 

together to identify opportunities and ideas that 

ensure vendor payments are received timely and 

efficiently without delaying the payment process.   

Based on the comments provided, IA determines 

that that departments are aware of the potential 

concerns or delays and will continue to discuss and 

work together to make the process more efficient. 

15

O&M 

working 

with CAP 

& Acct 

There should be continuous monitoring of PO terms and pricing against the 

most current updates/amendments to the chemical contracts. O&M and CAP 

staff should work closely together to ensure that once the pricing adjustments 

are made, O&M immediately submits the required PR with the new terms so 

that CAP can establish the new PO# with the new terms.

X

O&M Response: 

The process is that at the beginning of the fiscal year each chemical contract is reviewed 

and a PR is put in place taking into consideration when the contract ends.  The Budget is 

divided by 12 and that total is then multiplied by the number of months left on the contract.  

For instance if the contract ends 8/31 the PR is put in place with 2 months worth of budget.  

Once we receive the new contract/amendment a new PR will be put into the system within 

7 days of receiving the signed contract/amendment.  The POs are monitored monthly by 

the Administrative Assistant using the Open PO Report and quarterly by the Administrative 

Assistant and Manager of Operations to ensure that the POs are properly funded. 

Per staff, the reorg is helping the PR process as 

seem to be approved faster.  With the reorg there 

will be a reduction in POs in the new FY and this too 

will help the process. Staff indicated that CAP have 

been helpful and responsive with questions. MPR bi-

weekly meetings and CAP Cafe provide a good 

resource.

As of 4/26/22 Operations and CAP have met to 

discuss the needs of the department with the 

several PRs and how the budget is planned/used.  

These discussions have provided insight as to the 

departments needs, as well as information to 

ensure Operations is using the most efficient 

method to set up POs.  CAP has been in continuos 

communication with the department through various 

forums and by reaching out.  Also see responses 

by CAP to #16 and #17 below. IA suggests 

Operations continues to work and communicate with 

CAP regarding their procurement needs and ensure 

there are trained individuals to the administrative 

assistant. 

16

CAP 

working with 

O&M

If O&M staff have a forecast/planned/budgeted amount to be spent on a 

specific vendor, the PR should be created with the total anticipated/planned 

amount for that vendor so that monies do not run out throughout the year.

The Open PO Report should be reviewed by all staff who manage POs for 

their department needs to continuously monitor PO amounts.  O&M staff 

should forecast and plan for incoming invoices and proactively ensure the 

existing POs have sufficient funds. 

X
this recommendation is being deferred to O&M to address with the implementation of 

Reco #15 and #18.  No longer applicable to CAP. 

IA defers this recommendation to O&M as it is 

being addressed through their implementation 

actions under Reco #15 and #18. 

17

CAP

working with 

O&M and Acct

O&M work closely with CAP and Accounting and possibly BIS to understand 

how to run, download and review the Open PO Report to monitor the 

department’s chemical POs to ensure that orders that are being placed will 

have the sufficient funds available in the corresponding POs and if additional 

money is needed, staff should proactively submit additional PRs with new 

funding requests.

X
CAP has done this through their discussions during CAP Café - demonstrated how to run 

by cost center and what to manage, the report is also sent once a month. 

IA considers this recommendation implemented 

through the implementation of the CAP Café, Tools 

and Tricks and other on-going department 

meetings. IA suggest CAP maintain metrics such as 

number of meetings, employees reached/attended 

and others for these trainings provided. 

18

O&M

working 

with CAP 

and 

Acctng

CAP and Accounting should assist O&M in documenting proper SOPs for 

funding POs.
X

Draft SOP completed and in review.  Anticipate final SOPs to be completed by end of 

April. 

As of 4/26/2022 the department has documented 

SOP #2022-1 Migo Receiving Chemicals and SOP 

#2022-2 OneDrive Chemical Receiving to address 

receiving .  Staff have also met with CAP staff to 

evaluate efficiencies with setting up and charging to 

the correct POs. See also #8 & 9 above and CAPs 

responses in # 17, 19 and 20 to providing 

information, assistance and updates and having 

discussions with the user department.  It has been 

determined that a separate SOP for funding POs is 

not needed only ongoing communication between 

Operations and CAP.  IA suggests Operations 

continues to work and communicate with CAP 

regarding their procurement needs and ensure 

there are trained individuals to the administrative 

assistant. 

19

CAP

working with 

O&M and Acct

CAP & Accounting should assist with providing periodic training to O&M on 

properly funding POs.
X This recommendation is addressed with Reco #14 and #17 above. 

IA considers this recommendation implemented 

through the implementation of the CAP Café, Tools 

and Tricks and other on-going department 

meetings. IA suggest CAP maintain metrics such as 

number of meetings, employees reached/attended 

and others for these trainings provided. 

20

CAP 

working with 

O&M

CAP should work with the end users to explain, provide assistance, training 

and coaching to ensure POs are established for the budgeted/ planned/ 

forecasted amount needed for the vendor.

X This recommendation is addressed with Reco #14 and #17 above. 

IA considers this recommendation implemented 

through the implementation of the CAP Café, Tools 

and Tricks and other on-going department 

meetings. IA suggest CAP maintain metrics such as 

number of meetings, employees reached/attended 

and others for these trainings provided. 

21

Acctg 

working with 

O&M & CAP

Once the information is entered into SAP in the "Held Invoices" database, AP 

staff should frequently review and evaluate  outstanding items and items past 

the payment terms and elevate them for additional attention and prompt 

processing. 

AP determine if this process is helping expedite processing invoices for 

payments and formalize by documenting specific procedures for staff to 

follow to provide specific steps for uploading invoices, how to monitor items 

and activity and actions steps for different situations.

X

Accounting Response:  Splitting the invoice data entry into SAP from the matching and 

payment processing into two different processes has been working well since 

implementation in early summer, 2021.  

Additional information: As of January 2022, this invoice intake process is being performed 

by temporary staff; however, recruitment is currently underway to hire two part-time interns 

to perform this task.  

This process will be integrated into the SOP of the department (see also recommendation 

26 regarding creation of SOPs.)

Recommendation #21:  On February 17, Lauramae (IT) forwarded instructions on how to 

download the held/parked invoice information in SAP (from the Invoice Overview Screen, 

aka mir6) into Excel. I have tested the instructions, and it worked. I will need to change the 

fields displayed so the vendor names show up; the instructions will be updated to include 

that step, and then we’ll integrate those instructions into our desk manuals.  Somewhat 

related to this recommendation, the “intake” process is going to be transferred to the new 

interns joining the Agency on 2/28/22. Please see recommendation # 26 for details about 

SOPs. 

This recommendation is considered In Progress.  

Accounting has worked with IT and there is now a 

way to export the information into a report that can 

be used to sort and prioritize items.   The process 

for how and when to use the report should be 

documented in a SOP.  Planned date for full 

implementation is 2/28/22.  

2 of 4



P2P Chemicals Recommendations

Second Update

June 6, 2022

Reco #
Dept(s). 

taking the lead

Recommendation Implemented In Progress
Not 

Implemented

No Longer 

Applicable

Department's Response, Corrective Action Plan and Proposed Date for 

Implementation
IA comments/notes

22

Acctg 

working with 

BIS 

Accounting work with BIS to determine if there is an existing report or a way to 

create a report to assist with making the 3-way matching more efficient to 

expedite the invoice processing.

Accounting formalize and document specific procedures to specify how and 

what items should be selected by AP staff to perform the 3-way match AND 

processing of payments, also specify the frequency of when this process 

should be completed.

X
This recommendation was deemed no longer 

applicable during the prior status update. 

23

Acctg 

working with 

BIS 

Accounting should work with BIS to develop an Aging Report or a report that 

shows all outstanding invoice information, including total days held and 

outstanding or overdue so that Accounting can take prompt action.

OR

Accounting should work with BIS to export and fully utilize the Held Invoice 

Report to review all items and ensure any outstanding items are reviewed 

promptly.

AND

Accounting should formalize and document specific procedures for how items 

are selected for matching and processing for payment before the due date.

X

As of January 2002, the Accounting Department continues to have staff vacancies, 

specifically replacement of an Accounting Technician who retired as of June 2021.  The 

lack of staff has created a “triage” situation within the department, and when end-user’s 

department staff or vendor representatives inquire about an outstanding invoice, that 

invoice will demand AP staff’s attention and be processed as quickly as possible.  Given 

the volume of vendor payments to be processed vs the current staff workload capacity, it’s 

difficult for AP staff to proactively identify invoices that are overdue.  However, we 

disagree that staff are waiting to process payments until someone inquires.  Instead, AP 

staff process payments based on: product/service being purchased (for example, priory is 

given to chemical vendors since the product is critical to plant operations), and if the 

goods receipt has been performed (i.e. ability to perform the 3-way match.)  Accounting 

management agrees it would be very helpful to be able to extract data from the SAP Held 

Screen (code MIR6 in SAP) and has advised BIS of our request. We will continue to work 

with BIS to create a report, or data extraction capabilities (i.e., export to Excel), of invoices 

pending on hold.  We additionally agree documented SOPs for vendor payment 

processing is needed (see also recommendation 26.) Further, management is 

considering updating the criteria used by SAP to select which payments to process, so 

that payments will be picked up by the system for processing prior to the due date (see 

also recommendation 25.) Additionally, the Accounting Supervisor is working closely with 

AP staff to help prioritize which payments to process, especially given the current 

workload and need to triage which invoices get processed first.   

Accounting managemetn  has reviewed with the IT Department  what the Controller is 

calling the “P2P monitoring report” (not sure what the official name is?) that the IT Unit has 

developed. We believe the report will be useful to proactively identify items that are 

pending and will potentially delay payment, as well as be more helpful than a traditional 

“aging” report for this purpose. As a reminder, SAP does already have an AP aging report, 

but it only captures the transactions once received as that’s when the liability is booked to 

the balance sheet. See also recommendation #21 regarding extracting held invoice data, 

as well as #26 regarding SOPs. 

Parts of the recommendation have been address.  

this recommendation is now considered In 

Progress. Additional corrective action plans and 

planned implementation dates need to be specified.  

Accounting and BIS have worked together and have 

been able to identify a method for extracting the 

Held Invoices report to excel for sorting and review. 

(as of 2/14/2022 BIS sent instructions for exporting 

the Invoices Held report, do these instructions 

work?  and how does Accounting plan to use the 

report and invoices?  

The recommendation also mentions the use of an 

Aging Report?  Does Accounting run the Aging 

Report?  If so, how is it used?  Does accounting 

need to work with BIS to update this report?  if so by 

what date will this be done?  

The recommendation provides for a formal and 

documented procedure.  Is there a planned date for 

full implementation of the SOP?  IA has some 

comments/recommendations on the draft SOP 

provide.

Does Accounting have planned timelines for each 

of these items in the recommendation? Please 

provide timelines for an In Progress Status. 

24 Acctg

Accounting - see items (9) & (10) above

Train staff to work proactively and collaborate with other departments in 

researching and resolving any delays/blocks with processing invoices for 

payment, with the end goal of working to pay all invoices by the due date. 

AND

Accounting should formalize and document specific procedures for how items 

are selected for matching and processing for payment before the due date. 

Specify the action steps, AP should take when items are approaching the due 

date or are past the due date, and how to elevate items for prompt research 

and attention.

X

Accounting management disagrees that AP staff do not work proactively and 

collaboratively to research any delays/blocks for processing invoices for payment.  

Throughout the day, AP staff reach out to various department receivers, managers, as well 

as staff in Finance to attempt to resolve any issues preventing payment as quickly as 

possible. If there is no immediate solution to the issue, AP staff place the invoice back on 

hold pending resolution; usually, these delays relate to no receiving in SAP, so the 3-way 

match cannot be performed.  Other times, the inability to process payments is due to lack 

of purchase order capacity or a budget block, in which case AP staff will contact both the 

requesting department staff as well as staff in Finance to resolve the issue.  We believe 

the implementation of Internal Audit’s recommendations to improve efficiency for 

receiving, as well as improved budget monitoring by Department Managers, will reduce the 

need for AP staff to continue to follow-up with other Department staff and thus allow for 

more time for payment processing as well as help to eliminate inefficiencies caused by 

AP staff task-switching. Accounting management agrees documented SOPs for vendor 

payment processing is needed (see also recommendation 26.)

Response provided 2/27/22 Staff continue to collaborate with other department staff to 

resolve any delays/blocks. However, due to delays in filling vacancies in the Accounting 

Unit, the Accounts Payable group continues to operate in a triage mentality versus having 

an opportunity to be more proactive as recommended. Two part-time Interns the are 

scheduled to start the week of 2/28/22 and an additional Accounting Technician (to fill the 

vacancy due to a retirement) on 3/7/22. Additionally, one limit term position and two 

additional temporary staff have now been approved by the Agency Leadership. The rest of 

this recommendation is to create SOPs, which is in progress; please see 

recommendation # 26. The observation from which this recommendation is derived noted 

that “..the invoice is placed back on hold” if receiving is not done; please note that this will 

not change with the documented procedure, as we cannot process without the 3-way 

match. Further, using the Excel download of the held invoice information as noted under 

recommendation# 21, as well as the new P2P Monitoring Report as noted under 

recommendation # 23, will allow staff and management to be more proactive to resolve 

any delays/blocks with processing invoices for payment.   

IA considers this recommendation Not 

Implemented.  

The recommendation states to formalize and 

document specific procedures for how items are 

selected for matching and processing for payment 

before the due date.  

Is there a planned date for implementation of a 

formal procedure for performing the 3-way match 

and process payments?  Will the procedure specify 

the action states staff should take to ensure 

payments are made by the due date?  Please 

provide a planned action to address the 

recommendation and a corrective action date. 

As a note - these steps were documented during 

the discussion and walkthrough with AP staff and we 

asked for confirmation several times and never 

received confirmation. For this reason, IA 

encourages Accounting to formalize and document 

their SOPs. 

Based on the response provided on 2/17, this 

recommendation will be considered In Progress, 

pending documentation of formal SOPs. 

25 Acctg

If SAP “flags” items for payment on the due date and after, Accounting and 

BIS should work together to evaluate the cost/ benefit to reconfigure this built-

in SAP “flag/alert” to ensure SAP “flags” items for payment 5 or so days 

before the invoice due date, so that items can be processed days prior to the 

due date to avoid being paid late. 

X

Accounting management disagrees that all invoices are paid in the month after the due 

date. The table within this report titled “Late Payment Analysis” shows 57% of invoices are 

paid on time; and in the following table titled “Number of Invoices Paid Late…” of the total 

935 invoices reviewed, 534 invoices were paid on time and 296 are paid within the 

following 30 days.  The payment cycle is already defined as one week (Thursday – 

Wednesday), with physical checks only issued every other week. Currently, AP staff do 

not manually select which payments to issue; instead, SAP is setup to only 

process pending payments which are due or overdue on or after the payment 

date entered by AP staff (each week on Thursday). Accounting Management agrees 

SAP should be reprogramed to issue payments with invoice due dates prior to 

the payment date. With consultation from Executive Management over Finance, 

Accounting, and BIS on this change in the Agency’s business practice, we will work with 

BIS to implement this change. Since this recommendation may require reprogramming of 

SAP, we must defer to BIS for the implementation timeline.

Response on 2/17/2022: Accounting managment has met with IT Department on February 

10th to discuss the need to update the business rules in SAP so that payments are 

process before the due date. Currently the system is setup to only process 

invoices which are due or past due prior to the next payment day; we have 

proposed to change the business rule so that payments due within 5 days are 

also processed. This recommendation is dependent on IT making this change in 

SAP, and we have not heard back from IT regarding the timeline for 

implementation.  

IA considers this recommendation Not 

Implemented.  The recommendation is suggesting 

that Accounting work with BIS to evaluate the 

feasibility of reconfiguring SAP to  "flag" when an 

item is past due before the actual due date.  

Accounting should also discuss the "business 

decision" of when payments need to be made and 

incorporate that Agency policy into the documented 

SOP. 

Has Accounting initiated discussions or a plan to 

work with BIS to see if this id completed. Who will 

take the lead on this recommendation.  IA suggests 

Accounting take the lead to discuss the possibilities 

since it does impact work load and prioritizing. Is 

there a planned date for testing this reconfiguration?  

2/14/22 Discussed during Strike Meeting that 

progress was made.  Can you provide a 

proposed date for implementation or a test 

date of what will happen to make this change?

2/17/22:  Per response, this recommendation 

will be considered In Progress due to on going 

discussions, and until full implementation is 

complete.   

26 Acctg

Formalize and document specific procedures to specify how and what items 

should be selected by AP staff to perform the 3-way match AND processing 

of payments, also specify the frequency of when this process should be 

completed.  SOPs establish consistent procedures for employees to follow 

and be trained and evaluated on. 

X

Accounting Management agrees there is a need for documented SOPs for payment 

processing in order to establish consistence procedures and strengthen the internal 

control environment. We will complete a draft of SOPs for Executive Management review 

no later than January 31, 2022 and/or once all recommendations and changes affecting 

AP processes have been implement.

Response on 2/17/2022:  SOPs are in process; however, they are taking much longer 

than anticipated, particularly given the unresolved lack of personnel capacity in the 

Accounting Unit. As noted at the Strike Team meeting, the AP Process Overview SOP 

was not ready for any sort of review but was forwarded only as evidence of the progress 

being made. The plan is for the Controller to continue to work on the AP Process 

Overview SOP, while the AP staff formalize and review all the various desk manuals, 

guides, cheat sheets, and other various references that are provided to staff. By February 

24th, we will have the Mail / Invoice Intake desk manual completed which will be used to 

assist in training the new Interns onboarding the week of February 28th. By March 24th the 

Accounting Unit will submit a draft of the Process Overview SOP that is ready for review by 

the IA team, which will include the references (names) of the other desk manuals. We 

might combine some of the desk manuals or turn others into a full separate SOP?  The 

new (more realistic) goal for this entire project is the end of the fiscal year, June 30.  

IA considers the recommendation In Progress until 

the SOP is fully documented, finalized, distributed 

to staff for training.  

A Draft SOP was forwarded. IA will provide review 

comments and recommendation to consider in 

finalizing the SOP.   This recommendation suggests 

an SOP for the 3-way match, other 

recommendations suggest SOPs for other 

processes and procedures within Accounting.  

3 of 4



P2P Chemicals Recommendations

Second Update

June 6, 2022

Reco #
Dept(s). 

taking the lead

Recommendation Implemented In Progress
Not 

Implemented

No Longer 

Applicable

Department's Response, Corrective Action Plan and Proposed Date for 

Implementation
IA comments/notes

27 Acctg
Training should be provided periodically to reinforce the documented SOPs 

to ensure employees are following consistent procedures.
X

Accounting Management agrees AP staff should be provided training on any new 

processed established as the result of this review.  The Accounting Supervisor will be 

responsible for ensuring the existing staff as well as new AP staff are trained on the 

SOPs, on an ongoing basis. In addition to training sessions, the Accounting Supervisor 

regularly meets with the AP team and will use those meetings to reinforce best practices 

as well as any updates to the SOPs. 

Response on 2/17/2022:  See recommendation # 26 regarding timeline of SOP creation. 

As previously noted, training will be provided to new staff as they onboard, as well as on 

an ongoing basis. The SOPs will be distributed to all AP team members, and evidence of 

the distribution will be provided to IA as it occurs. While the SOPs are mostly documenting 

processes that are already occurring, any new or changed procedures will be 

communicated to the AP team via their weekly meetings with the Accounting Supervisor 

over AP. 

This recommendation is considered not yet 

implemented because there are no final SOPs to 

provide staff training.  Once all SOPs are formalized 

and finalized, Department management can 

determine how to best provide training and 

information on the new SOPs, a plan of action for 

that training can be provided as a response to this 

recommendation after SOPs are documented. 

28

Acctg

working with 

O&M

Accounting should continue to lead periodic meetings with the end users.  

Discuss the "Held Invoice Report", discuss any vendor phone calls received, 

discuss PO issues, and any other bottlenecks/issue/concerns and discuss 

resolutions for moving forward. 

X
This recommendation was 

deemedimplementedduring the prior status update. 

29

Acctg 

working with 

BIS

Accounting should establish and document performance metrics and KPI's, 

goals and objectives and a method to measure how timely invoices are paid.

Work with BIS to establish any reports that can provide measurements and 

metrics.

X

Accounting Management agrees performance metrics and goals for on-time payments 

should be established. We will work with BIS to create any reports needed to monitor our 

department’s adherence with the performance metrics.  Accounting department 

management will use the established metrics to continue to monitor timeliness of vendor 

payments, identify the cause of transactions not meeting these goals, and how to prevent 

such delays.  The Accounting Supervisor will further consider these metrics as part of their 

probationary or annual evaluation of AP staff’s job performance. 

IA considers this recommendation not implemented 

at this time.  Does Accounting have a timeline for 

establishing KPIs, goals and objectives and a 

method to measure how timely invoices are paid? 

Based on this new response, this recommendation 

will be considered In Progress until all Key 

Indicators are formalized and more defined 

measurements/goals are established, and the 

monitoring reports are being used to measure what 

is intended to measure.  Once this practice is in 

place and consistently applied, the recommendation 

will be considered Implemented.   

30

Acctg

working with 

O&M

Document and formalize an Agency Policy or Department SOP about the 

requirement for completing receiving, matching, and processing payments.

-Specify the types of documents that should be included and verified in SAP 

or other required reports, before payments are processed.

-Specify if the Bill of Lading provided by the delivery drivers to the operators 

should be uploaded into SAP at the time SAP Receiving is completed or be 

retained in hard-copy and where specifically.

X

The Strike Team responded that the recommendation will also be addressed in 

recommendation six (6) with the creation of a SOP.  

Accounting management recommends the Bill of Lading continue to be attached to the 

receiving transaction in SAP by the receiver. Receiving support documents, such as the 

Bill of Lading, assists AP staff in verification of the 3-way match since sometime the 

information on the invoice doesn’t align with the information on the purchase order and/or 

to resolve errors in the receiving that may prevent payment processing. Hard copies of 

documents do not need to be forwarded to the Accounting Department. 

Per responses provided on 2/17/22, the provided 

draft SOP and the timeline to finalize SOPs, IA will 

consider this recommendation In Progress.

31

Acctg

working with 

O&M

Document and formalize in an Agency Policy or Department SOP about the 

requirement for completing receiving, matching, and processing payments.

-Specify the types of documents that should be included and verified in SAP 

or other required reports, before payments are processed.

-Specify that the invoice received by Accounts Payable should be 

documented with a date received and uploaded into SAP and accurately 

matched to the corresponding transaction.

Accounting should work with BIS to develop an Aging Report or a report that 

shows all outstanding invoice information, including total days held and 

outstanding or overdue so that Accounting can take prompt action. 

X

Accounting management agrees SOPs need to be created to document the vendor 

payment process (see also recommendation 26.)  Accounting management will follow-up 

with BIS to create a report or the ability to pull data from the hold screen (MIR6) to 

determine how long invoices have been pending payment (see also recommendation 23.) 

Per responses provided on 2/17/22, the provided 

draft SOP and the timeline to finalize SOPs, IA will 

consider this recommendation In Progress.

32

Acctg

working with 

O&M

Document and formalize in an Agency Policy or Department SOP about the 

requirement and expectation for the accuracy of data entry.

-Emphasize the importance that staff is expected to make every attempt to 

ensure the data entered in SAP for receiving and invoice processing needs to 

be accurate and accurately match the corresponding supporting 

documentation.

-Specify when it is allowable and when it is not allowable to back-post or post-

date information.  

X

The Strike Team responded that the recommendation will also be addressed in 

recommendation six (6) with the creation of a SOP.   

 Accounting management agrees a formal Agency Policy regarding appropriate use of 

data fields within SAP is needed. For AP processes, the data field usage will be defined 

withing the AP SOPs (see also recommendation 26.) Accounting management will further 

consult with other Agency departments regarding suggested best practices to incorporate 

within SOPs over SAP receiving or other P2P processes. Additionally, the Accounting 

Supervisor will provide feedback and training to receivers on the use of SAP data fields as 

part of the ongoing bi-weekly coordination meetings with Administrative Assistants (see 

also recommendation 28.) 

Per responses provided on 2/17/22, the provided 

draft SOP and the timeline to finalize SOPs, IA will 

consider this recommendation In Progress.

33

Acctg

working with 

O&M

Document and formalize in an Agency Policy or Department SOP about the 

requirement and expectation for the accuracy of data entry.

-Specify what is an acceptable best practice and approximate time frame for 

processing the invoice, complete the 3-way match, and process for payment. 

-Specify how invoices uploaded are monitored to ensure that items are 

processed by the payment terms. 

-Specify how delayed items should be handled and communicated with the 

goal of issuing payment by the payment terms.

X

The Strike Team responded that the recommendation will also be addressed in 

recommendation six (6) with the creation of a SOP.  

Similar to recommendation thirty three (33), Accounting management agrees a formal 

Agency Policy regarding appropriate use of data fields within SAP is needed. For AP 

processes, the data field usage will be defined withing the AP SOPs (see also 

recommendation twenty six (26).) Accounting management will further consult with other 

Agency departments regarding suggested best practices to incorporate within SOPs over 

SAP receiving or other P2P processes. Additionally, the Accounting Supervisor will 

provide feedback and training to receivers on the use of SAP data fields as part of the 

ongoing bi-weekly coordination meetings with Administrative Assistants (see also 

recommendation twenty eight (28)). 

Per responses provided on 2/17/22, the provided 

draft SOP and the timeline to finalize SOPs, IA will 

consider this recommendation In Progress.

34 O&M 

Document and formalize in an Agency Policy or Department SOP  the 

process for ensuring the Receiving function in SAP is completed within days 

from the date the chemicals are delivered to the Agency.

-Specify what is an acceptable best practice and approximate time frame 

allowed for the operator to submit the delivery documentation to the 

Administrative Assistants, and 

-Specify what is an acceptable best practice and approximate time frame 

allowed for the Administrative Assistants to complete the receiving in SAP.

-Implement recommendations provided in Recommendations #1-12 above to 

streamline the receiving process. 

X
Draft SOP completed and in review.  Anticipate final SOPs to be completed by end of 

April. 

SOP's as noted above in #8 and #9 above have 

been finalized and implemented.  Formal KPIs, 

goals and objectives are planned for 

implementation by 5/4/22 and will be addressed by 

Recommendation #12 above. IA consideres this 

recommendation implemented because SOPs have 

been finalized, a timefram for receiving has been 

established and all recommendations are being 

addressed. 

IA suggests Operations continues to work and 

communicate with CAP regarding their procurement 

needs and ensure there are trained individuals to 

the administrative assistant. 

35

Acctg

working with 

O&M

Document and formalize in an Agency Policy or Department SOP about the 

requirements and expectations for AP staff to open/download invoices, date, 

upload, match and process invoices in SAP and process payments. 

Consider establishing KPI’s and/or benchmarks to determine a reasonable 

amount for invoice retrieving, uploading, matching, and posting to be 

performed and processing the Invoices for payment.

X

Accounting Management agrees there is a need for documented SOPs for payment 

processing in order to establish consistence procedures and strengthen the internal 

control environment. We will complete a draft of SOPs for Executive Management review 

no later than January 31, 2022 and/or once all recommendations and changes affecting 

AP processes have been implement (see also recommendation twenty six (26)).   

Accounting Management agrees performance metrics and goals for on-time payments 

should be established (see also recommendation twenty nine (29)). 

Per responses provided on 2/17/22, the provided 

draft SOP and the timeline to finalize SOPs, IA will 

consider this recommendation In Progress.

35 Total Recommendations 16 12 1 6 35

P2P CHEMICALS - 2ND UPDATE Implemented In Progress
Not 

Implemented

No Longer 

Applicable Total Original Recommendations
Results after approximately 150 days, 

since the date of the original audit 

report (Nov 2021):

Operations & Maintenance 11 1 0 4 16
94% Implemented/Addressed

6% (1 of 16) Require Implementation

Contracts and Procurement 4 0 0 1 5
100% Implemented 

No outstanding recommendations

Accounting 1 11 1 1 14
14% Implemented/Addressed

86% (12 of 14) Require Implementation

Total Recommendations 16 12 1 6 35

4 of 4



Procure to Pay Process for Chemicals 
Documented by Internal Audit Department  
This flowchart represents the process at the time of the original review and before the internal audit recommendations 
were implemented.  
 

 

P2P for Chemicals 
Process for Ordering, Receiving and Payment of Chemicals

Co
nt

rac
ts 

an
d 

Pr
oc

ur
em

en
t

Op
er

at
ion

s &
 M

ain
te

na
nc

e
Ac

co
un

tin
g 

Ac
co

un
ts 

Pa
ya

ble

Delivery truck connects 
directly to IEUA tanks or a 
forklift is needed to unload.

Delivery vendor provides shipping/delivery 
documentation  to IEUA operator.  Operator 
verifies and signs off and authorizes delivery.

Operator 
Records in 
Delivery/ 
Receiving 

Log

Operator 
Records in 
Plant Log 

Book

Operator 
Records in 

shared 
drive excel 
spreadshe

et

Scans

Original document is 
placed in Admin Asst 

box or retained.
Process varies slightly 
at different plants.  
Some keep in their 

records.
There should be a 
consistent method.

Operator goes back to his 
computer to retrieve scanned 

document to: 
1. Attach to email for admin 
2. Save to Department drive

Admin Assistant uses operator’s email to 
perform Receiving in SAP, they upload 
receiving documents into SAP and files 
hardcopies. Admin assistant then emails 
AP staff to inform them when receiving is 
complete and forward the same receiving 

documents.

Public Folders

O&M work with the vendor, 
CAP, & Acctng

CAP works with Accounting 
and O&M throughout the 
process of creating a PO, 

requesting a PR and adding 
funds to the PO. Sometimes 
receive messages from the 

vendor.

CAP establishes 
contracts with 
pricing, terms & 

conditions

O&M prepare the 
PR and determine 

the amount with the 
requested PR 

amount. 

CAP prepare the PO with 
the amount requested by 
O&M. The PO is used to 
receive goods against the 

established amount.

Every FY, for 
each vendor, 
CAP must 

establish a new 
PO in SAP.

If there is a pricing change 
throughout the FY, CAP closes 
the old PO and creates a new 
PO but only with a new PR 

prepared by O&M.

If money runs out in the 
established PO, O&M staff must 
create a new PR with additional 

funding, then CAP will add the new 
funded PR to the existing PO so 
that receiving can be completed

Accounting – AP works with 
vendors, O&M and CAP 
requesting information.

SAP

(1) (2) (3) (4)

There should be a formal, 
documented method for how 

items are selected for matching 
and processing.  

When AP receive an invoice for 
services, AP cannot identi fy the 
Agency department responsible 
for approving the invoice.  It is 

difficult to ensure timely 
processing if the invoice cannot 

be sent to the approver.

For goods-related invoices, AP 
relies on the “Receiving” to be 

completed by O&M. 

AP will research only when 
invoices have been held for an 
extended period of time or the 
department reaches out to AP 

to process invoices for payment.

Email (electronic) 
invoices are 

electronically 
stamped when 
received by AP.

Hardcopy invoices 
are date-stamped, 
scanned daily and 
cataloged by AP.

As of July 1, 2021,
From the “Held Invoices” 
in SAP, AP staff will select 

the invoice for review, 
verify information, check 
PO#, once matched to a 

PO, AP will check that 
Receiving was completed 
by O&M. This is done by 

navigating through 
various SAP screens and 

viewing the 
documentation in SAP . 
AP will complete 3-way 

match.

If SAP receiving 
has not been 
completed by 

O&M, the invoice 
will be placed 

back on hold and 
continue to stay 

in “Held invoices”

If SAP receiving 
has been 

completed by 
O&M, AP will 
proceed to 

complete the 3-
way match. (At 

times must 
address amount 

adjustments).

AP process invoice 
for payment during 

the “next” 
scheduled payment 
cycle. According to 

staff, SAP “flags” 
items when they are 

due for payment 
and that is when 
staff process if all 

receiving and 
matching is 
complete.

All chemical 
vendors are paid 

through ACH.

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11) (12)

(5) (6) (7)

Invoice New step as of July 1, 
2021:

All  invoices are 
entered into SAP, by 

temp staff, and 
posted to the “Held 

Invoices” report
(a database of all 

incoming invoices)  
Held for further 

processing by AP 
staff in SAP.

SAP

SAP
If the 3-way match is 

successfully 
completed, payment 
can be processed for 

payment. 
If not, go back to steps 
prior and coordinate 
with O&M to ensure 

receiving is finalized or 
coordinate with CAP to 

ensure PO has 
sufficient money.

3‐Way Match
Invoice, Shipping Doc

 & PO

ACH 
payment

email
email

 

 

 



P2P Engineering and Construction Management

First Update

June 6, 2022

Reco #
Dept(s). 

taking the lead Recommendation
Implemented In Progress Not Implemented

No Longer 
Applicable

Department's Response, Corrective Action Plan and Proposed Date for 
Implementation

IA comments/notes

1 E&CM

The E&CM Department  management:
Finalize and update the SOP by documenting, signing, sharing with staff, and 
providing training.
   
Ensure the SOP documents the process for monitoring invoices,  timely 
receiving performed in SAP,  how to identify the professional services invoices, 
track, and route for approvals, to allow the Accounting Unit  sufficient time to 
process payments. 

X

There is an outdated SOP for processing invoices and pay estimates. Currently, the drafted 
updated document is under review. The final document is expected to be signed and 
finalized by June 30th, 2022.

Please forward the completed SOP to IA once it is 
finalized.  IA suggests you place it on a shared drive 
or on you website on AIM for all your staff to access. 
IA will follow up in July. 

2 E&CM

E&CM take the lead to seek assistance of CAP Department and the 
Accounting Unit to establish procedures for monitoring POs to minimize any 
budget blocks or delays in processing invoice for payments. 

The E&CM Department should document an SOP for reviewing, tracking and 
monitoring contracts, POs, monies remaining, payments issued, and other 
details of transactions and provide staff training. 

E&CM should work with IT, Accounting and CAP to determine, develop and/or 
enhance (using SAP or other systems) and avoid duplication of work/data 
entry, a report that is of greater value/use to the E&CM department, other than 
the Open PO Report and/or the MS Access Report, that will track all contracts, 
corresponding transactions (POs), spending,  remaining contract values, 
vendor contact information, payments issued, and any additional information 
that E&CM requires. Or determine if the current report and process is the best 

th d il bl

X

E&CM has reviewed the current report they utilize with CAP, and both departments along 
with BIS have found that the report that E&CM currently meets the needs required by the 
department. No new reports will be made for the trackign of these contracts. **BIS was 
going to look into seeing if they could generate a report for us utilizing the informaton.I 
need to follow-up with Kanes.**

IA will follow up on any progress sometime in July. 

3 E&CM

The E&CM Department management should provide  training periodically to 
reinforce the documented SOPs to ensure employees are following consistent 
procedures. X

E&CM has a full training plan that was implemented in February 2022 and will go through 
until 2023 to cover new and older topics with the department. (*attachment to training 
plan**)

Recommendation will be considered in progress until 
#1 is implemented - the SOP is finalized and shared 
with staff.  Did you meant to attach a training plan?  
Not attached to email. IA will follow up in July. 

4 E&CM

The E&CM Department management E&CM Department should consider 
formalizing this metric of 14 days and additional performance metrics and key 
performance indicators (KPI’s), goals, objectives, and a method to measure 
how timely invoices are approved and received. 

E&CM Department should work with the IT Department to establish any 
reports that can provide measurements and metrics

X

KPI Metric will be included in the SOP to fomalize the process.    **BIS was going to look 
into seeing if they could generate a report for us utilizing the informaton.** I believe AP and 
BIS are working an a new system. I will need to follow up on this item with Deborah and 
Kanes. **

Recommendation will be considered in progress until 
#1 is implemented - the SOP is finalized and shared 
with staff.  IA will follow up on the progress 
sometime in July. 

5 E&CM

The E&CM Department work closely with Accounting Unit to determine if the 
fourteen (14) days to turn around the approved invoice and complete the 
receiving into SAP allows sufficient time for Accounting to complete the 3-way 
matching and process the payment by the due date.  

The E&CM Department should evaluate their internal metric of 14 days to 
determine if this is the most appropriate goal and the most effective/efficient 
time frame or if it needs to be reviewed or updated

X

E&CM spoke to CAP and AP regarding this time frame. E&CM needs 14-days to go 
through the internal approval and processing side of an invoice. AP would like more time, 
so potentially CAP and E&CM can work on extending out invoice terms on new contracts 
going forward.

IA will consider this recommendation fully 
implemented.  E&CM coordinated with Accounting 
and CAP to evaluate options and preferences and 
you have determined what will work best for your 
department.  Keep in mind the payment terms when 
negotiating contracts so as not to delay payment 
processing by Accounting.  

6 E&CM

E&CM Department take the lead to work directly with the Accounting Unit and 
the IT Department to evaluate SAPs workflow functionality to track and route 
invoices for approval to make the process more efficient & effective.  

Additionally, evaluate the most efficient/effective way to communicate that 
receiving has been performed to eliminate the need for email communications. 

X

** I believe AP and BIS are working an a new system. I will need to follow up on this item 
with Deborah and Kanes. ** The second area, AP has requested that we no longer let them 
know that receiving is final. They run a report off of all receivers. ** E&CM to discuss with 
Audit.

This recommendation will be considered No Longer 
Applicable for E&CM since Accounting and IT are 
working together on this item. 

7 E&CM

IA noted that E&CM have tight internal controls that require multiple reviewers 
and approvals on invoices to verify and confirm that services have been 
provided and agree to the scope and terms of the agreements.  Some invoices 
require between two (2) and sometimes up to fourteen (14) reviewers to 
approve and sign invoices, depending on the type and/or dollar amount of 
invoices as well as the various projects listed on the invoice.  This internal 
control of multiple signatures, while may be a good and tight internal control, is 
currently not a requirement by any Agency policy or department SOP.

IA noted that E&CM has a timeframe of 14 days to turnaround the approved 
invoice to Accounting. E&CM should determine if it can be made more efficient 
by considering the cost/benefit of the multiple signatures and the time it takes 
to submit the invoice to Accounting for payment.

Agency Policy A-50 is currently applied by AP for verifying approval and 
processing invoices.  A-50 requires 1 signature for invoices under $250,000 
and 2 signatures for invoices over $250,000. 

X

E&CM utilized Policy A-50 for approval levels along with internal necessary approvals. 
These are utilized to verify that the invoice is accurate, since management of the 
department doesn' thave the initimate details of billing that the Project Manager has on a 
project. E&CM reviewed and have chose to stay with the current method.

This recommendation will be considered fully 
implemented.  E&CM took the time to evaluate the 
costs/benefits of their internal controls of multiple 
signatures and evaluated the 14 day timeframe to 
turnaround the approved invoice to Accounting and 
with Accounting's and CAP's involvement have 
determined that the benefit of the various signatures 
is a necessary internal control for the approval of the 
invoices. Accounting and CAP are both aware of 
this.  E&CM will work with CAP to extend payment 
terms with vendors for future contracts.  This item is 
consiserd now closed.  

8 CAP

The CAP Department should work closely with the E&CM Department to 
provide training and information on how to best monitor POs, activity and 
funding to prevent/minimize any budget blocks when processing the invoice for 
payment.

Additionally, CAP should work with E&CM, IT and Accounting to determine, 
develop and/or enhance (using SAP or other systems) and avoid duplication of 
work/data entry, a report that is of greater value/use to the E&CM department, 
other than the Open PO Report and/or the MS Access Report, that will track all 
contracts, corresponding transactions (POs), spending,  remaining contract 
values, vendor contact information, payments issued, and any additional 
information that E&CM requires. Or determine if the current report and process 
is the best method available

X

CAP continues to work closely with the department and believes the E&CM Department 
manages their POs and project expenses well. CAP continues to be available to provide 
any needed information or training if called upon as well as during CAP planned training 
events. E&CM staff continues to attend the CAP training events and have a monthly 
scheduled meeting to address procurement-related topics. 

IA considers this recommendation to be 
Implemented per the discussion with CAP and 
comments provided and per audit observations.  IA 
encourages and suggests CAP continues to do all 
the new things they have implemented with CAP 
Café, Tips and Tools, surveys, etc.  

9 CAP

The CAP Department take the lead to assist with providing periodic training, 
assistance and coaching to the E&CM Department staff on properly monitoring 
POs.
The training should be done periodically after carefully assessing the needs of 
the department and should reinforce requirements of the Procurement 
Ordinance, Agency policies, contract, and PO requirements, and SAP 
processes.

CAP should work with the end users to assess training needs, explain, provide 
assistance, training, and coaching to ensure POs are established for the 
budgeted/ planned/ forecasted amount needed for the vendor and discuss how 
to prevent any budget blocks or delays in processing payments.

X

CAP facilitates CAP Café, sends out the Tips and Tools and hold periodic meetings with 
E&CM and other departments individually to provide information and training on any 
specific department needs.  CAP is also evaluating the recent survey response to evaluate 
the needs of the users.  Also see response above, CAP believes E&CM monitors their 
contracts and POs appropriately and does not feel the need for additional training/meetings 
at this time. 

IA considers this recommendation to be 
Implemented per the discussion with CAP and 
comments provided and per audit observations. 
Additionally, E&CM is taking the lead to reach out to 
CAP to discuss additional P2P related topics.  

STATUS

1 of 3



P2P Engineering and Construction Management

First Update

June 6, 2022

Reco #
Dept(s). 

taking the lead Recommendation
Implemented In Progress Not Implemented

No Longer 
Applicable

Department's Response, Corrective Action Plan and Proposed Date for 
Implementation

IA comments/notes

10 ACCT

The Accounting management evaluate and make necessary updates to its 
internal processes and procedures to ensure all professional service invoices 
are received by AP staff and are immediately sent to the corresponding 
Agency department for approval and receiving.  

Accounting management continuously work closely with the E&CM 
Department and other Agency Departments and keep a reference list of the 
professional/consulting services vendors that each Department is managing, 
to ensure proper reference and routing of the invoices is done immediately 
upon receipt.  This will require continuous communication with the 
Departments as well as continuous communication with vendors to specify 
instructions for submitting invoices.  

Accounting management track the professional/consulting services invoices in 
the Invoice Held database or other tracking database to monitor when they are 
received by the Agency and when they are due for payment. 

X

The Agency is currently in the process of evaluating technology solutions to improve the 
visibility of incoming invoices, as well as possibility of creating workflow to distribute and 
approve invoices. BIS has been coordinating these efforts. Last demo held on 4/5/22; next 
scheduled for 4/18/22.

Accounting and Finance Management meets with E&CM monthly to, amongst other topics, 
review issues with payments to vendors.  The last meeting was on 3/29/22. Additionally, 
the Supervisor of Engineering Services and the Accounting Supervisor do share lists of 
vendors used by E&CM, as well as lists of invoices received in AP.  As part of review of 
these recommendations, EN&C staff met with Accounting Management, as well as CAP 
and IT staff on 4/6/22 to review possible areas of improvement for the P2P for services. 

Per Accounting's response, Accounting plans to 
move forward with implementing a new technology 
solution to improve uploading invoices received.  
This will be an on-going, long term project to 
address the recommendation.

In the meantime, to address the recommendation 
based on the current/existing practices, Accounting 
will continue to use current processes to receive and 
forward invoices.  No changes to current practices 
are planned?  The recommendation suggest to: 
*evaluate an update internal processes to 
immediately send the invoice to the department, *to 
work closely with E&CM to keep a reference list of 
the professional/consulting service vendors, 
including continuous communication, and *to track 
the service invoices.  Accounting did not respond to 
these items in the recommendation.  The response 
indicates that the plan is to work on implementing 
new software.  If Accounting disagrees with the 
recommendation, please indicate so. 

As of  4/18/22, based on the response proviced, this 
recommendation is considered Not Implemented, 
pending full implementation of new software. 

11 ACCT

The Accounting management should take the lead to work with the IT 
Department to develop useful monitoring report from SAP to assist with the 
review, tracking, and monitoring invoice due dates, open invoices, and 
prioritizing payments.

(Note:  This similar recommendation was provided in the Procure to Pay 
Chemicals audit report as Recommendation twenty-one (21).  As of February 
15, 2022, the IT Department has developed a way to export the data into excel 
to create reports).  

New Recommendation:  
The Accounting management should determine how this new 
reporting/monitoring tool (information from the Held Invoices) will be used and 
implement a procedure to assist with tracking, monitoring and prioritizing 
making timely payments. 

X

Accounting now has the ability to export data on held invoices in SAP (via the MIR6 
transaction) into Excel. This has been helpful when researching the status of a payment. 
Additionally, the Interns that joined Accounting as of 2/28/22 are now trained on mail 
processing / invoice in-take process, and have been maintaining the invoice log. This log 
records all invoices that come into Accounting, either by email or post mail. However, we 
continue to struggle with visibility of all incoming invoices, and are looking into additional 
technology solutions as noted above (see recommendation number 10.) Pending the 
Agency possibility purchasing an external solution, we have held off on creating any 
additional reports. Further, any reports derived from the data in SAP will not capture the 
non-PO invoices. Accounting many times is not aware that a non-PO purchase has been 
made, and therfore has no way of knowing there is an invoice outstanding until it arrives in 
Accounting. We would like to see adherence to the Agency's Purchasing Ordinance by all 
Agency staff, so that the vast majority of all purchases are made using a PO  (note this is 
not specific to services, but is an issue with various types of purchases.)

The recommendation states that Accounting should 
determine how to use the MIR6 export into excel and 
determine how it will be used for tracking, 
moniotring, prioiritizing and making timely 
payments.    The recommendation suggest to 
document this iinot a procedure to assist with 
consistency of this process.   

The recommendation was not addressed.  This 
recommendation is considred Not Implemented.

The response provides information on:  1. the mail 
processing/ invoice in-take process, 2. invoice log (in 
addition to the Invoice Held screen), 3.evaluation of 
technology solutions to assist with visibility of all 
incoming invoices, 4. Non-PO invoices and 
transactions, 5. Procurement Ordinance 
adhearance.

However, the recommendation is suggesting 
Accounting document a methodology/procedure for 
how it intends to use the MIR6 information to review, 
track, and monitor invoice due dates and open 
invoices and prioritize payments. Since this step was 
not addressed, the recommendation is considered 
Not Implemented.  If Accounting does agree with 
this recommendation, please indicate so and why. 

12

ACCT

The Accounting management should take the lead to work with the IT 
Department and determine if an invoice recognition software or other 
technology tools could assist with the uploading of invoices.

X

Accounting concurs with this recommendation and is currently working with IT staff to 
determine feasibility.  (See also recommendation 10 above.)  Note too that if such as 
solution is purchased, we will need to revise any relevant SOP related to vendor payment 
processing. 

IA has participated in some of the meetings and 
demonstrations regarding software solutions for 
invoice recognition.  This recommendation is 
considered In Progress. 

13 ACCT

It is recommended that the Accounting management:

 •establish a procedure to track all open invoice issues,

 •open invoice issues are reviewed by the Accounts Payable supervisor at the 
end of each month to ensure open items are cleared,

 •work with the IT Department to determine a more streamlined/efficient 
process in SAP to verify that receiving was completed and expedite the three-
way match, and

 •utilize software tools such as SAP Concur for invoice process and 
management. x

Accounting does not believe that the variability in the time it takes to process one vendor 
payment vs another is an indication of poor internal controls, but instead is the nature of 
processing a variety of types and complexity of invoices, as well as other factors that 
determine the time it takes to perform the 3-way match.  
An external technology solution may assist in the efficiency of the matching process, as 
well as AP’s ability to more quickly follow-up on issue or outstanding items preventing 
payment processing. Accounting is currently working with IT to explore options. (See 
recommendation 12 above.) 
While the statistics noted in the observation do not align to historical trends noted when 
data is pulled directly from SAP (using the FBL1N transaction), it is known that vendor 
payments aren’t being processed timely. However, there are many factors, as evidenced by 
the recommendations in this report to departments throughout the Agency, not just 
Accounting, that influences the timeliness of vendor payments. Using transactional data 
pulled from SAP directly (again, via FBL1N), after each payment run (at least weekly) 
Accounting Management (Deborah / Javier) look at the payments that were paid 
significantly late (over 60+ days) to analyze the cause of the delay to identity possibly 
process improvement opportunities. These issues and possible preventive solutions are 
discussed with the Accounting Supervisor during weekly meetings. 
We do not agree that creating a separate tracking for “invoice issues” is an efficient way to 
monitor vendor payment processing. Instead, on an ongoing basis, as part processing 
payments, AP staff follow-up on issues that are preventing invoices from being processed. 
The Accounting Supervisor reviews open invoice issues on a daily basis through 
monitoring the APGroup email, the GR/IR report (FBL3N screen for account 200900), as 
well as through communication with AP and other Agency staff.

The recommendation is suggesting controls to 
improve how invoices are selected to be matched 
and processed for payment.  "Controls" include 
anything related to a process/procedure. IA has not 
been provided with any documented procedures for 
how the department selects and processes matching 
and payments.  The recommendation is encouraging 
and suggesting that the department work to * 
formalize a procedure/process to track all open 
invoices, *formalize a procedure/process to review 
open invoice issues by a supervisor at the end of 
each month to ensure that anything that is due and 
was not processed for payment is addressed and 
follow up on, *work with IT to determine a more 
efficient process within SAP to verify that any items 
pending receiving are addressed/resolved so that 
they are paid timely, and to *utilize SAP to manage 
invoices, which includes continuously reviewing 
invoices that are due and require receiving and to 
ensure there is a process in place to follow up.  

Per the response provided, the recommendation is 
considered In Progress, until the department 
documents/implements a SOP for reveiwing, 
monitoring invoices.

14 ACCT

The Accounting management work with the IT Department to evaluate the 
feasibility of implementing a centralized SharePoint portal (like the one 
developed for E&CM) and determine if it would be of value to have for all 
Professional Services invoices  where they can be stored for further 
processing.   In addition, Share Point can assist AP staff in sorting and 
identifying invoices for their staff and ensure they track the approvals needed.

Accounting management should work with IT to determine the feasibility of 
utilizing SAPs workflow process to route invoices for approval while keeping 
track of where they are in the approval process and ensuring timely payments.

Additionally, establish formal, documented procedures for Accounting and 
other departments using SharePoint to ensure there is consistency in using 
SharePoint and timely processing invoices for approval and payment. 

x

Accounting concurs with the recommendation and is currently working with IT to evaluate 
possible technology-based solutions to assist with the routing of invoices. (See 
recommendation 10 and 12 above.) 

Per Accounting's response, Accounting plans to 
move forward with implementing a new technology 
solution to improve uploading invoices received.  
This will be an on-going, long term project to 
address the recommendation.

This recommendation will be considered In 
Progress.

15 ACCT

The Accounting management should take the lead to work with the Leadership 
Team to determine the Agency’s policy/business decision of when to pay 
invoices (prior to due date or after due date). 

Based on results noted above, if necessary, the Accounting Management 
should take the lead to work with the IT Department to evaluate the cost/ 
benefit to establish a procedure and/or reconfigure this built-in SAP “flag/alert” 
to ensure SAP “flags” items for payment five (5) or so days before the invoice 
due date, so that items can be processed days prior to the due date to avoid 
being paid late. 

(Note:  This recommendation was provided in the Procure to Pay Chemicals 
audit report as Recommendation twenty-five (25) currently In Progress).  

X

Accounting’s goal is to pay invoices as close to but not after the due date, in accordance 
with the payment terms agreed to with vendor (generally net 30.) To accomplish this, any 
payment that is currently due, will be due within 5 days, or is past due should be selected 
for payment. 
Accounting met with IT staff and determined the current set-up in SAP allows for flexibility 
of payment date range. AP staff will be directed to select the date range that will flag items 
due within 5 days or sooner of the next pay run. This process will be outlined in any related 
updated desk manuals or SOPs. Further, Accounting Management will review how to make 
the correct date selections with the Accounting Technicians at the meeting on April 19, 
2022. 

Please provide an update on the meeting on 
4/19/2022, were staff trained and do they understand 
how to implement this new process?  

Also, please provide an update on the 
documented/formal SOP to determine if this process 
will be included in the SOP.   IA can assist in 
reviewing a draft of the SOP. 

IA can also test the timeliness of payments during a 
future review if requested.  

This recommendation is considered In Progress 
pending finalization of the items above

2 of 3



P2P Engineering and Construction Management

First Update

June 6, 2022

Reco #
Dept(s). 

taking the lead Recommendation
Implemented In Progress Not Implemented

No Longer 
Applicable

Department's Response, Corrective Action Plan and Proposed Date for 
Implementation

IA comments/notes

16 ACCT

The Accounting management take the lead to work directly with E&CM 
Department to determine the most efficient/effective way to communicate that 
receiving has been performed.  Both Departments noted above should discuss 
and agree if there a need use email communication for invoice management.  

X

For purchases that follow the P2P procedures, including requesting items via a PR/PO, AP 
staff can see if the receiving is completed by viewing transactions posted in the 200900 
account, via the FBL3N transaction in SAP. As such, it should not be necessary to email 
Accounting when receiving is completed. However, that does not apply to purchasing that 
circumvents the P2P process and there is no PO. In such cases, the purchaser will email a 
signed copy of the invoice, and/or other receiving support, to the APgroup email. 
To help separate the “noise” that comes into the APGroup email (such as vendor 
advertisements), as well as help isolate the vendor invoices that are coming via email vs 
internal communication, Accounting is looking into setting up an additional AP email 
address for internal communications. This will allow the Interns to focus on the incoming 
invoices in the APgroup email and vendor inquires, while the internal email can be used to 
for communication with the Account Technicians to follow-up on issues as well as a place 
to receieve non-PO invoices and support. We anticipate implementing this new email 
within the next month (pending request to IT, as well as notification to Agency staff.)   

Quick follow up question - Does E&CM understand 
when to send an email to informa that receiving was 
done and when not to?  Suggest there is a 
discussion on this to inform the department.    IA will 
consider this recommendation In Progress until this 
information is clarified between both departments 
and/or when the secondary email is set up if that is 
the direction the department will go.  

17 ACCT

Accounting management  formalize and document specific procedures to 
specify how and what items should be selected by AP Group staff to perform 
the three-way match and  processing of payments, also specify the frequency 
of when this process should be completed.  

(Note:  This is recommendation was provided in the Procure to Pay Chemicals 
audit report as Recommendation twenty-six (26)).

x

Accounting has gathered a variety of existing “desk manuals” as well as other processing 
notes and instructions, that in total comprise of the SOPs over AP. Due to resource 
constraints we have not yet finalized an updated SOP. We are additionally looking to utilize 
an external consultant used by other department to formalize these written procedures into 
a formal SOP (see recomendation 20.)  It is also noted that if the Agency elects to 
implement a new technology solution (see recommendation 12), we’ll need to revise the 
SOPs and desk manuals, as well s train AP staff. Therefore, especially given limited 
resources and priority of getting back-log of late invoices processed, as of April, 2022 we 
have paused working on the SOPs. 

Per the response provided, this recommendation is 
considered In Progress pending full documentation 
of the department SOP and formalizing a procedure 
to address how staff select how, what and when to 
complete the 3-way match and processing of 
payments and also pending the final implementation 
of new software solutions.  This recommendation is 
similar to Recommendation #13 above suggesting 
there be a formal procedure to ensure invoices are 
reviewed, tracked and monitored to ensure all open 
items are addressed/processed. 

18 ACCT

The Accounting should provide training periodically to reinforce the 
documented SOPs to ensure employees are following consistent procedures. 

(Note:  This recommendation was provided in the Procure to Pay Chemicals 
audit report as Recommendation twenty-seven (27)).  

x

The Accounting team onboarded 3 additional staff members recently; 2 Interns began on 
February 28, and 1 Accounting Technician began on March 4, 2022.  The Accounting 
Supervisor along with more senior AP staff provided on the job training. New staff were 
provided a binder that includes relevant desk manuals and procedural notes, as well as 
were instructed on how to find these resources in digital format either on the shared 
network drive or via the Agency’s intranet (AIM.) On March 28, 2022, the AP staff, 
Accounting Supervisor, and Controller participated in a training facilitated by IT staff (Rose) 
covering basic navigation in SAP, placing an invoice on hold in SAP, along with navigation 
through the billing screens.  
If the Agency decides to implement a technology solution (see recommendation 12), 
SOPs, the various desk manuals, and procedure write ups will need to be updated. Then 
staff will need to be trained on the new procedures

Per the response provided, this recommendation is 
considered In Progress pending full documentation 
of the department SOP. 

19 ACCT

The Accounting management establish and document performance metrics, 
and KPI’s, goals, and objectives and a method to measure how timely invoices 
are paid. 

In addition, the Accounting management works with the IT Department to 
establish any reports that can provide measurements and metrics. 

(Note:  This recommendation was provided in the Procure to Pay Chemicals 
audit report as Recommendation twenty-nine (29)).  

X

As of April, 2022 the Accounting Group is still not fully staffed, with 2 additional Accounting 
Supervisor positions currently in recruitment. The additional Supervisors will allow 
redistribution of work, especially for the Accounting Supervisor over the AP team. We 
believe these additional staff will help improve the operation of the AP unit both directly and 
indirectly. Once we have the team in place specific KPI’s for staff will be established.
The AP unit is processing current invoices, as well as catching up on the backlog of old 
invoices and other payment requests caused by understaffing for the last 9 months. It is 
difficult to assess the proper KPIs for things such as volume goals or time to process 
payments while the team is still functioning under these handicaps. However, Accounting 
Management continues to look at payment trends each week by extracting data from SAP 
(via FBL1N) and using it to inform decisions about future KPIs.  
The overall goal for the AP team is to pay invoices as close to the due date as possible, 
but not after the due date. More so, the goal is first to eliminate any outstanding invoices 
that are greater than 90 days. Form there the focus will be 60 days, until we are paying all 
invoices within 45 days, with the goal of no later than the due date (generally, net 30.) 
Discussions about specific measurements are ongoing and any metrics would need to be 
adjusted if the Agency decides to  implement a technology solution that changes the 
process for paying invoices (see recommendation 12.) 

This recommendation is considered Not 
Implemented.  IA suggests Accounting work with the 
Leadership Team, AGM and GM to determine 
appropriate overall, Department- specific KPIs, goals 
and objectives and to look at industry best practices 
and similar organizations for ideas regarding 
appropriate goals/objectives and KPIs for similar 
Accounting departments.  

20 ACCT

The Accounting management should work with the General Manager and the 
Leadership Team and discuss or consider bringing in professional consultants 
to assist in catching up with the backlog of overdue payments, 

and/or

using a professional consultant to evaluate the department’s needs, key 
performance indicators (KPIs), processes, procedures, and help implement 
recommendations to ensure the Accounting Unit can implement audit 
recommendations, incorporate best practices that ensure payments are made 
timely, SOPs are documented, and training is provided to staff.

X

Accoutning management is exploring the use of a consultant used by other Agency 
department to formalize the SOPs. Note: We are holding off on moving forward with this 
contract until we have more infomaiton about implmentaing a technology soluation that 
would change processes. 

This recommendation is considered Not 
Implemented at this time.   

This recommendation will either end up being 
Implemented or No Longer Applicable pending final 
decision to either move forward or not with a 
consultant to assist with all accounting functions and 
develop KPIs, procedsses, procedures, implement 
recommendations, etc.  not just a consultant to 
document SOPs. 

21 ACCT

The Accounting management should take the lead and work with the Agency’s 
Leadership Team to update  Agency Policy A-50 to include procedures and 
approvals for purchase order invoices. 

X

Internal controls over purchases with a PO (i.e. the “regular” P2P process) are covered in 
of the Agency’s Procurement Manual; Section 2.3.A outlines the authorization levels. 
Any updates to the Procurement Manual should be lead by CAP, as they are responsible 
for administration of Agency purchasing. 

IA to discuss with CAP and CAP, ACCT to 
determine where this falls.  IA suggests both 
departmetns coordinate and work together, the 
policy does require it be updated. This 
recommendation is No Longer Applicable and IA will 
defer to the P2P P&R audit for CAP to take the lead 
on

21 Total Recommendations  4 11 4 2 21

P2P ‐ P/S E&CM ‐ 1ST UPDATE
Implemented In Progress Not 

Implemented
No Longer 
Applicable Total Recommendations

Results after approximately 60 days, 

since the date of the original audit report 

(March 2022):

Engineering & Construction Management 2 4 0 1 7
43% Implemented/addressed

57% (4 of 7) require Implementation

Contracts and Procurement 2 0 0 0 2
100% Implemented 

No outstanding recommendations

Accounting 0 7 4 1 12
8% Addressed

92% 11 of 12 require Implementation

Total Recommendations  4 11 4 2 21

3 of 3



Procure to Pay Process for Professional Services Administered by Engineering 
Documented by Internal Audit Department  
This flowchart represents the process at the time of the original review and before the internal audit recommendations 
were implemented.  
 

P2P for Professional Services Engineering 

Process for Ordering, Receiving and Payment of Professional/Consulting Services for Engineering & Construction Management 

C
o

n
tr

a
ct

s 
a
n
d

 P
ro

cu
re

m
e
n
t

En
g
in

e
e
ri
n

g
 C

o
n
st

ru
ct

io
n
 M

a
n
ag

e
m

e
n
t 

(E
&

C
M

)
A

c
co

u
n

ti
n

g
 

A
c
co

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a
b

le

E&CM works with the vendor, 

CAP, & Finance

E&CM has a goal to perform 

approval and receiving into 

SAP within 14 days

CAP works with E&CM and Finance 

throughout the process for vendor 

selection, PR requests, PO creation, 

and verifying funds available for a 

PO. Sometimes receive messages 

from the vendor.

If there is a pricing change 
throughout the FY, CAP closes 
the old PO and creates a new 

PO but only with a new PR 
prepared by E&CM.

If money runs out in the 
established PO, E&CM staff must 
create a new PR with additional 

funding, then CAP will add the new 
funded PR to the existing PO so 
that receiving can be completed

Accounting – AP works with 

vendors, CAP and E&CM 

requesting information.

No

Email (electronic) 

invoices are 

electronically 

stamped when 

received by AP.

Hardcopy invoices 

are date-stamped, 

scanned daily and 

cataloged by AP.

AP rely on FBL3N in SAP to 

identify the transactions 

where receiving has been 

performed.  

AP staff will  perform a 3-way 

match by selecting the 

invoice for review, verify 

vouching package 

information: PO#,  approved 

invoice & document support, 

SAP Goods Receipt/Invoice 

Receipt  (GR/IR).  This is done 

by navigating through 

various SAP screens and 

viewing the documentation in 

SAP. AP will complete 3-way 

match.

If SAP receiving 
has not been 
completed by 

E&CM, the 
invoice will be 
placed back on 

hold and continue 
to stay in  Held 

invoices 

If SAP receiving 
has been 

completed by 
E&CM, AP will 

proceed to 
complete the 3-
way match. (At 

times must 
address amount 

adjustments).

AP process invoice 
for payment during 

the  next  
scheduled payment 
cycle. According to 

staff, SAP  flags  
items when they are 

due for payment 
and that is when 
staff process if all 

receiving and 
matching is 
complete.

Most payments are 
paid through ACH.

(10) (12)

Invoice

New step as of July 1, 

2021:

All invoices are 

entered into SAP, by 

temp staff, and 

posted to the  Held 

Invoices  report

(a database of all 

incoming invoices)  

Held for further 

processing by AP 

staff in SAP.

SAP

SAP
If the 3-way match is 

successfully 
completed, payment 
can be processed for 

payment. 
If not, go back to steps 
prior and coordinate 
with E&CM to ensure 

receiving is finalized or 
coordinate with CAP to 

ensure PO has 
sufficient money.

3-Way Match
Invoice, Shipping Doc

 & PO

ACH 
payment

Share 
Point

email

E&CM works  with CAP 
for procurement 

process to establish 
vendors for 

professional/consulting 
services (refer the 

narrative descriptions 
in the report)  

E&CM obtains 
services from 

approved 
vendors for 

professional/
consulting 

services

E&CM enters a PR into 
SAP and attach the 
required supporting 
documentation and 

necessary information. 

E&CM receive invoices 
from AP via email  to the 

Engineering s Share 
Point; sometimes 

invoices are sent to 
E&CM directly by 

vendors

E&CM staff will 
download invoices from 
Share Point, and tracks 
and monitors invoices 

using an internal report.

Docu Sign

Multiple Approvers

Is a PR 
needed?

Approved 
Invoice and 
document 

support

SAP

Yes

E&CM performs Invoice 
Receiving into SAP 

Purchase 
Order (PO)

When the PO is 
available in SAP, 

E&CM can perform 
the  Receiving  

function-SAP Goods 

Receipt/Invoice 

Receipt (GR/IR) for 
the Professional 

(Consulting) 
Services invoices

Share 
Point email

E&CM updates Share 
Point with Vouching 
package(approved 
invoice, document 
support, SAP GR/IR 

receiving report 
information, and PO) 
and notify via email 
AP to vendor ready 

for payment

AP

CAP works with E&CM to 
determine the best 

procurement instrument 
necessary and determine 

the best method to 
proceed (sole/single 

source, or agreement or 
contract

CAP establishes 
agreement or contract 
with pricing, terms & 

conditions

CAP reviews E&CM PRs.  
CAP prepares the PO with 
the amount requested by 
E&CM. The PO is used to 
receive goods against the 

established amount.

Purchase 
Order (PO)

(7)

E&CM enters a $1  

Purchase 
Requisition (PR) 

supporting 
documentation and 
submits to CAP via 

SAP

SAP
(5)

(1)

(1)

(8)

(9)

(2)

AP checks for all the 

proper signatures 

according to A-50

(11)

E&CM has a goal of 
turning around the 
approved invoice to 
AP within 14 days 

(4)

AP logs all invoices 
received (email/mail) in 

an Excel Spreadsheet

E&CM sends invoices via 
DocuSign to approver(s) for 

review and approval to 
obtain needed signatures, 
sometimes 2-14 signatures 

depending on invoice 
details, dollar amounts or 

projects listed.

(3)

(3)

When AP receive an invoice 

for services, AP must 

research and  identify the 

Agency department 

responsible for approving 

the invoice.  It  is sometimes 

difficult to identify the 

appropriate approver and 

timely route the invoice.

AP emails E&CM the 

professional/consulting 

services invoices for approval 

There is no visibi lity of where 

in the review/approval 

process the invoice is at 

during the t ime the invoice is 

being reviewed/routed and 

approved at E&CM.

AP relies and waits on the 

 Receiving  to be completed 

by E&CM.  E&CM notify AP 

that receiving has been 

completed via email 

correspondence.

 



Progress Update for All Procure to Pay Audit Recommendations

Teresa Velarde 

Manager of Internal Audit 

June 2022



Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit 

2

Audit Observations & Recommendations

• Processes and procedures require changes to make them more efficient

• Visibility of transactions through monitoring reports

• PO & PR requirements and funding needs

• Training & Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs)

• Communication, training, knowledge and information

• Establish processes and controls to monitor all vendor invoices, tracking them through the P2P process

and ensure timely payment

Audit Objective

• Evaluate the ordering, receiving, and payment processes for the Agency's goods and services and 

• Identify efficiencies and provide recommendations for improvements 

• Provide recommendations to ensure the vendor payments are paid within terms. 

Risks to IEUA for Late Vendor Payments

• Being placed on credit hold and not being able to order goods for critical services

• Possible fees imposed or higher prices offered at the time of establishing contracts

• Vendors not willing to do business with IEUA in the future

• Harmed vendor relationships

• Harmed Agency reputation and image



P2P Audits Completed to-date

3

• P2P for Chemicals for O&M (Operations & Maintenance)

• Completed November 24, 2021

• 35 audit recommendations

• P2P for Professional Services – for E&CM (Engineering & Construction Management) 

• Completed February 24, 2022

• 21 audit recommendations

• P2P for Professional Services – for P&R (Planning and Resources)

• Completed May 24, 2022

• __ audit recommendations



Current Status of the 56 Audit Recommendations

Audit Recommendations Related to the P2P Audits

4

IA will provide a progress reports until all recommendations have been addressed. 



Results of P2P Audit Recommendations

Of the 56 recommendations:

• 20 are now Implemented

• 23 are in progress of being implemented

• 5 require additional time for corrective action (Not Implemented)

• 8 are considered no longer applicable

5

IA will provide a progress reports every quarter until all recommendations have been addressed. 



6

P2P for Professional Services Engineering 

Process for Ordering, Receiving and Payment of Professional/Consulting Services for Engineering & Construction Management 
C

o
n
tr

a
ct

s 
a
n
d

 P
ro

cu
re

m
e
n
t

En
g
in

e
e
ri
n

g
 C

o
n
st

ru
ct

io
n
 M

a
n
ag

e
m

e
n
t 

(E
&

C
M

)
A

c
co

u
n

ti
n

g
 

A
c
co

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a
b

le

E&CM works with the vendor, 

CAP, & Finance

E&CM has a goal to perform 

approval and receiving into 

SAP within 14 days

CAP works with E&CM and Finance 

throughout the process for vendor 

selection, PR requests, PO creation, 

and verifying funds available for a 

PO. Sometimes receive messages 

from the vendor.

If there is a pricing change 
throughout the FY, CAP closes 
the old PO and creates a new 

PO but only with a new PR 
prepared by E&CM.

If money runs out in the 
established PO, E&CM staff must 
create a new PR with additional 

funding, then CAP will add the new 
funded PR to the existing PO so 
that receiving can be completed

Accounting – AP works with 

vendors, CAP and E&CM 

requesting information.

No

Email (electronic) 

invoices are 

electronically 

stamped when 

received by AP.

Hardcopy invoices 

are date-stamped, 

scanned daily and 

cataloged by AP.

AP rely on FBL3N in SAP to 

identify the transactions 

where receiving has been 

performed.  

AP staff will  perform a 3-way 

match by selecting the 

invoice for review, verify 

vouching package 

information: PO#,  approved 

invoice & document support, 

SAP Goods Receipt/Invoice 

Receipt  (GR/IR).  This is done 

by navigating through 

various SAP screens and 

viewing the documentation in 

SAP. AP will complete 3-way 

match.

If SAP receiving 
has not been 
completed by 

E&CM, the 
invoice will be 
placed back on 

hold and continue 
to stay in  Held 

invoices 

If SAP receiving 
has been 

completed by 
E&CM, AP will 

proceed to 
complete the 3-
way match. (At 

times must 
address amount 

adjustments).

AP process invoice 
for payment during 

the  next  
scheduled payment 
cycle. According to 

staff, SAP  flags  
items when they are 

due for payment 
and that is when 
staff process if all 

receiving and 
matching is 
complete.

Most payments are 
paid through ACH.

(10) (12)

Invoice

New step as of July 1, 

2021:

All invoices are 

entered into SAP, by 

temp staff, and 

posted to the  Held 

Invoices  report

(a database of all 

incoming invoices)  

Held for further 

processing by AP 

staff in SAP.

SAP

SAP
If the 3-way match is 

successfully 
completed, payment 
can be processed for 

payment. 
If not, go back to steps 
prior and coordinate 
with E&CM to ensure 

receiving is finalized or 
coordinate with CAP to 

ensure PO has 
sufficient money.

3-Way Match
Invoice, Shipping Doc

 & PO

ACH 
payment

Share 
Point

email

E&CM works  with CAP 
for procurement 

process to establish 
vendors for 

professional/consulting 
services (refer the 

narrative descriptions 
in the report)  

E&CM obtains 
services from 

approved 
vendors for 

professional/
consulting 

services

E&CM enters a PR into 
SAP and attach the 
required supporting 
documentation and 

necessary information. 

E&CM receive invoices 
from AP via email  to the 

Engineering s Share 
Point; sometimes 

invoices are sent to 
E&CM directly by 

vendors

E&CM staff will 
download invoices from 
Share Point, and tracks 
and monitors invoices 

using an internal report.

Docu Sign

Multiple Approvers

Is a PR 
needed?

Approved 
Invoice and 
document 

support

SAP

Yes

E&CM performs Invoice 
Receiving into SAP 

Purchase 
Order (PO)

When the PO is 
available in SAP, 

E&CM can perform 
the  Receiving  

function-SAP Goods 

Receipt/Invoice 

Receipt (GR/IR) for 
the Professional 

(Consulting) 
Services invoices

Share 
Point email

E&CM updates Share 
Point with Vouching 
package(approved 
invoice, document 
support, SAP GR/IR 

receiving report 
information, and PO) 
and notify via email 
AP to vendor ready 

for payment

AP

CAP works with E&CM to 
determine the best 

procurement instrument 
necessary and determine 

the best method to 
proceed (sole/single 

source, or agreement or 
contract

CAP establishes 
agreement or contract 
with pricing, terms & 

conditions

CAP reviews E&CM PRs.  
CAP prepares the PO with 
the amount requested by 
E&CM. The PO is used to 
receive goods against the 

established amount.

Purchase 
Order (PO)

(7)

E&CM enters a $1  

Purchase 
Requisition (PR) 

supporting 
documentation and 
submits to CAP via 

SAP

SAP
(5)

(1)

(1)

(8)

(9)

(2)

AP checks for all the 

proper signatures 

according to A-50

(11)

E&CM has a goal of 
turning around the 
approved invoice to 
AP within 14 days 

(4)

AP logs all invoices 
received (email/mail) in 

an Excel Spreadsheet

E&CM sends invoices via 
DocuSign to approver(s) for 

review and approval to 
obtain needed signatures, 
sometimes 2-14 signatures 

depending on invoice 
details, dollar amounts or 

projects listed.

(3)

(3)

When AP receive an invoice 

for services, AP must 

research and  identify the 

Agency department 

responsible for approving 

the invoice.  It  is sometimes 

difficult to identify the 

appropriate approver and 

timely route the invoice.

AP emails E&CM the 

professional/consulting 

services invoices for approval 

There is no visibi lity of where 

in the review/approval 

process the invoice is at 

during the t ime the invoice is 

being reviewed/routed and 

approved at E&CM.

AP relies and waits on the 

 Receiving  to be completed 

by E&CM.  E&CM notify AP 

that receiving has been 

completed via email 

correspondence.

Review of Procure to Pay Process for 

Professional Services administered by 
Engineering & Construction Management



7

P2P for Chemicals 

Process for Ordering, Receiving and Payment of Chemicals

C
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 a
n

d
 

P
ro

cu
re

m
e
n

t
O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s 
&

 M
a
in

te
n

a
n

ce
A

c
co

u
n

ti
n

g
 

A
c
co

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a
b

le

Delivery truck connects 
directly to IEUA tanks or a 

forklift is needed to unload.
Delivery vendor provides shipping/delivery 

documentation  to IEUA operator.  Operator 
verifies and signs off and authorizes delivery.

Operator 
Records in 
Delivery/ 
Receiving 

Log

Operator 
Records in 
Plant Log 

Book

Operator 
Records in 

shared 
drive excel 
spreadshe

et

Scans

Original document is 
placed in Admin Asst 

box or retained.
Process varies slightly 

at different plants.  
Some keep in their 

records.
There should be a 

consistent method.

Operator goes back to his 
computer to retrieve scanned 

document to: 
1. Attach to email for admin 
2. Save to Department drive

Admin Assistant uses operator s email to 
perform Receiving in SAP, they upload 
receiving documents into SAP and files 

hardcopies. Admin assistant then emails 
AP staff to inform them when receiving is 
complete and forward the same receiving 

documents.

Public Folders

O&M work with the vendor, 

CAP, & Acctng

CAP works with Accounting 

and O&M throughout the 

process of creating a PO, 

requesting a PR and adding 

funds to the PO. Sometimes 

receive messages from the 

vendor.

CAP establishes 
contracts with 

pricing, terms & 
conditions

O&M prepare the 
PR and determine 

the amount with the 
requested PR 

amount. 

CAP prepare the PO with 
the amount requested by 
O&M. The PO is used to 

receive goods against the 
established amount.

Every FY, for 
each vendor, 

CAP must 
establish a new 

PO in SAP.

If there is a pricing change 
throughout the FY, CAP closes 
the old PO and creates a new 

PO but only with a new PR 
prepared by O&M.

If money runs out in the 
established PO, O&M staff must 
create a new PR with additional 

funding, then CAP will add the new 
funded PR to the existing PO so 
that receiving can be completed

Accounting – AP works with 

vendors, O&M and CAP 

requesting information.

SAP

(1) (2) (3) (4)

There should be a formal, 

documented method for how 

items are selected for matching 

and processing.  

When AP receive an invoice for 

services, AP cannot identify the 

Agency department responsible 

for approving the invoice.  It is 

difficult to ensure timely 

processing if the invoice cannot 

be sent to the approver.

For goods-related invoices, AP 

relies on the  Receiving  to be 

completed by O&M. 

AP will research only when 

invoices have been held for an 

extended period of time or the 

department reaches out to AP 

to process invoices for payment.

Email (electronic) 

invoices are 

electronically 

stamped when 

received by AP.

Hardcopy invoices 

are date-stamped, 

scanned daily and 

cataloged by AP.

As of July 1, 2021,

From the  Held Invoices  

in SAP, AP staff will select 

the invoice for review, 

verify information, check 

PO#, once matched to a 

PO, AP will check that 

Receiving was completed 

by O&M. This is done by 

navigating through 

various SAP screens and 

viewing the 

documentation in SAP. 

AP will complete 3-way 

match.

If SAP receiving 
has not been 
completed by 

O&M, the invoice 
will be placed 

back on hold and 
continue to stay 

in  Held invoices 

If SAP receiving 
has been 

completed by 
O&M, AP will 
proceed to 

complete the 3-
way match. (At 

times must 
address amount 

adjustments).

AP process invoice 
for payment during 

the  next  
scheduled payment 
cycle. According to 

staff, SAP  flags  
items when they are 

due for payment 
and that is when 
staff process if all 

receiving and 
matching is 
complete.

All chemical 
vendors are paid 

through ACH.

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11) (12)

(5) (6) (7)

Invoice New step as of July 1, 

2021:

All invoices are 

entered into SAP, by 

temp staff, and 

posted to the  Held 

Invoices  report

(a database of all 

incoming invoices)  

Held for further 

processing by AP 

staff in SAP.

SAP

SAP
If the 3-way match is 

successfully 
completed, payment 
can be processed for 

payment. 
If not, go back to steps 
prior and coordinate 
with O&M to ensure 

receiving is finalized or 
coordinate with CAP to 

ensure PO has 
sufficient money.

3-Way Match
Invoice, Shipping Doc

 & PO

ACH 
payment

email
email

Review of Procure to Pay 

Process for Chemicals for 
Operations & Maintenance



Highlights –
Contracts and Procurement

CAP has implemented the remaining six (6) audit recommendations.

—Available to provide training, information and guidance

—Working to identify knowledge gaps about SAP and procurement instruments

—Available to provide training and assistance with SOPs

8



Highlights –
Engineering & Construction Management

• The E&CM Department took the lead to evaluate their internal metric of fourteen (14) days

to determine the best goal for their department.

• The Department has committed to finalizing a draft of the SOP by June 2022.

9



Highlights –
Operations & Maintenance Unit

• Proactive approach to leveraging the various technologies and tools to implement new and more

efficient processes to expedite the receiving process.

• O&M Department has set a goal to ensure receiving is completed into SAP within 5-7 days,

an improvement from an average of 23 days

• Finalized and implemented Department Standard Operating Procedure to document the process

for performing the receiving function and for monitoring the related Purchase Orders.

10



Highlights –
Accounting Unit

• Filling staff vacancies

• Working closely with IT to evaluate invoice recognition software and other monitoring tools

• The Accounting Unit has committed to finalizing a draft of the SOP by June 2022.

11



Additional Internal Audit
Procure to Pay Audits

12

In Progress

• P2P for Materials & Supplies

• Planned for completion by September 2022

Planned

• P2P for Laboratory Equipment, Supplies and Professional Services

• P2P for other Professional Services

• P2P for Pay Estimates

• Others



13

Internal Audit Timeline to Evaluate Accounts Payable Operations

9/13/2021

GM created 
Strike Team

6/1/2021 - 8/30/2021

Accounts Payable Operational & 
Internal Controls Audit

Interim Audit Report

9/1/2021 - 12/6/2021

Review of
Procure to Pay

Chemicals

3/7/2022 - 6/6/2022

Review of
Procure to Pay

Parts

12/6/2021 - 3/7/2022

Review of
Procure to Pay

Services

6/6/2022 - 9/12/2022

Review of Procure to Pay 
Other Purchases

6/7/2021

Audit Committee Meeting

8/30/2021

Audit Committee Meeting

12/6/2021

Audit Committee Meeting

3/7/2022

Audit Committee Meeting

6/6/2022

Audit Committee Meeting

9/12/2022

Audit Committee Meeting

4/1/2021 - 6/7/2021

Preliminary 
Review

5/1/2021

Executive Management
& Asset Management

Brought to IA s attention



The Progress Update for all Procure to Pay Audit Recommendations is consistent with 
the Agency's Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility, Workplace Environment, and 
Business Practices by ensuring IA’s evaluations provide recommendations that foster a 
strong internal control environment, safeguard assets, promote a safe work 
environment and assist management in achieving goals and objectives.



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

  

3G 



Budget Impact 

 
June 15, 2022

Report of Open Audit Recommendations

The Board-approved Internal Audit Department Charter (Charter) requires the Internal Audit
Department (IA) to provide the Audit Committee and the Board with an annual report listing all
outstanding audit recommendations including action plans and expected resolution dates. The
Charter also requires IA staff to follow-up on the status of outstanding audit recommendations to
determine if corrective action efforts have been made to address the original observations or
findings. A recommendation is considered "outstanding" when management agreed with the
original recommendation at the time of the audit but the area audited has not yet addressed the
observation noted or requires IA's verification in order to close out the item. Responses to the
recommendations, including action plans, were discussed and incorporated in the original audit
report when issued. As of June 2022, 126 recommendations are considered outstanding; 20
relate to required policy updates currently under review, 31 relate to the renegotiation of the
Regional Contract, 28 relate to the recent P2P audits, and 47 are eligible for reevaluation.
Attached, is a complete report listing all outstanding recommendations and the status. Follow-up
reviews are scheduled according to the proposed Annual Audit Plan or sooner if requested by
management, the Audit Committee, the Board, or if risk and/or priority increases for the area
reviewed. This report is updated, with the completion of new and follow-up audits.

This is an information item.

None, only when additional outside auditing or consulting services are required to provide
assistance to IA or fulfill the responsibilities of the Audit Committee. A proposal with proposed
fees would be submitted through the Audit Committee for appropriate action. Additionally,
some audit projects are intended to identify opportunities for cost containment.

06/06/22Audit

Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit

N Y

Manager Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Report of Open Audit Recommendations is consistent with the Agency's Business Goals of
Fiscal Responsibility, Workplace Environment, and Business Practices. IA's ongoing monitoring
activities are to follow-up on the status of open audit recommendations to determine if the staff
have taken corrective action to address audit observations and issues identified. IA provides
recommendations to tighten internal controls, improve processes and assist the Agency and the
Board in achieving compliance with policies and organizational goals.

On June 16, 2021, the Board of Directors approved the Fiscal Year 2021/22 Annual Audit Plan.

On December 8, 2021, the Board of Directors reconfirmed the approved Audit Committee and
IA Department Charters. The Charters require an Annual Report listing all Outstanding Audit
Recommendations.

Attachment 1 - Report of Open Audit Recommendations
Attachment 2 - PowerPoint

Not Applicable

22125



Outstanding Audit Recommendations 
as of June 1, 2022

Department 
Assigned Audit Report Title Date Audit Report 

Issued Rec # Internal Audit Recommendation In Progress Not 
Implemented

Outstanding 
pending IA 
follow up 

review

Finance and 
Accounting

Accounts Payable Follow-Up 
Audit August 28, 2013 4

AFM should work with the appropriate Agency personnel to update Agency policies and remind 
employees of the requirements of Agency Policy A-12, Employee Personal Computer Purchase 
Program; Policy A-37, Reimbursement for Attendance at a Conference, Seminar or Meeting; 
Policy A-50, Non-Purchase-Order Invoice Approval Procedures; Policy A-55, Agency Credit 
Cards; and Agency Policy A-14 Vehicle Use.

X

Finance and 
Accounting

Accounts Payable Follow-Up 
Audit August 28, 2013 5

Human Resources department, in conjunction with Information Support Systems, should ensure 
that loans for personal computers are not approved for items not covered by the loan program as 
described in Agency Policy A-12. Additionally, consider revising Agency Policy A-12 to clarify the 
applicability of the computer loan program to tablet computers and operating systems other than 
Microsoft Windows.

X

Agency 
Management

Regional Contract Review - 
Final Report December 16, 2015 Overall Consider legal, political and financial impacts of governing by ordinance vs. contract X

Agency 
Management

Regional Contract Review - 
Final Report December 16, 2015 Overall Review and revise EDU formula X

Agency 
Management

Regional Contract Review - 
Final Report December 16, 2015 Overall

Resolve identified differences of over/under collected amounts of Connection fees and 
identified differences of over/under collected amounts of unreported monthly sewerage 
fees

X

Agency 
Management

Regional Contract Review - 
Final Report December 16, 2015 1

Connection Fees:
Centralize the permitting process OR IEUA provides final sign-off and plumbing permit 
approval for all nonresidential entities.

X

Agency 
Management

Regional Contract Review - 
Final Report December 16, 2015 2

Connection Fees:
IEUA should establish monitoring program to inspect random facilities and those were 
there is a suspected discrepancy

X

Agency 
Management

Regional Contract Review - 
Final Report December 16, 2015 3

Connection Fees:
Contract should include IEUA inspection, verification and recourse rights for under-
collected/under-reported Connection Fees

X

Agency 
Management

Regional Contract Review - 
Final Report December 16, 2015 4

Connection Fees:
Contract should include IEUA right to audit, full cooperation and access to records and 
documents upon request

X

Agency 
Management

Regional Contract Review - 
Final Report December 16, 2015 5

Connection Fees:
Two tier connection fees process that distinguishes between common features and 
unique features (i.e.., a toilet always costs the same regardless of type of business)

X

Agency 
Management

Regional Contract Review - 
Final Report December 16, 2015 6 Connection Fees:

Update Exhibit J regularly to include new/evolving business types X

Agency 
Management

Regional Contract Review - 
Final Report December 16, 2015 7 Connection Fees:

Update & clarify Fixture Unit descriptions of Exhibit J regularly X

Agency 
Management

Regional Contract Review - 
Final Report December 16, 2015 8

Connection Fees:
Standardize calculation worksheet to ensure it is consistent with Exhibit J and 
consistent region-wide

X

Agency 
Management

Regional Contract Review - 
Final Report December 16, 2015 9

Connection Fees:
IEUA should require copies of calculation worksheets for all nonresidential customers 
along with the monthly Building Activity Reports.  

X

Agency 
Management

Regional Contract Review - 
Final Report December 16, 2015 10

Connection Fees:
Regular workshops, meetings, plant tours, etc. with staff in Building, Plan Check and 
Utility Billing/Financial Departments

X

1 of 15



Outstanding Audit Recommendations 
as of June 1, 2022

Department 
Assigned Audit Report Title Date Audit Report 

Issued Rec # Internal Audit Recommendation In Progress Not 
Implemented

Outstanding 
pending IA 
follow up 

review

Agency 
Management

Regional Contract Review - 
Final Report December 16, 2015 11

Connection Fees:
IEUA develop fixture count expertise and provide regular/ongoing training for 
Contracting Agencies - Building Departments

X

Agency 
Management

Regional Contract Review - 
Final Report December 16, 2015 12

Connection Fees:
Contracting Agency internal review of Connection Fees as part of preparing the 
Building Activity Report

X

Agency 
Management

Regional Contract Review - 
Final Report December 16, 2015 1 Monthly Sewerage:

Collect monthly sewerage fees for the entire region through County’s property tax roll X

Agency 
Management

Regional Contract Review - 
Final Report December 16, 2015 2

Monthly Sewerage:
Evaluate methodology used for billing monthly sewerage fees (residential and 
commercial) and consider alternatives by water consumption, EDUs purchased or 
other methodology

X

Agency 
Management

Regional Contract Review - 
Final Report December 16, 2015 3

Monthly Sewerage:
Standardize monthly report to provide IEUA automated, itemized listings of non-
residential monthly sewerage charges

X

Agency 
Management

Regional Contract Review - 
Final Report December 16, 2015 4

Monthly Sewerage:
Establish contract for monthly sewerage payments from Contracting Agencies rather 
than IEUA issuing monthly invoices

X

Agency 
Management

Regional Contract Review - 
Final Report December 16, 2015 5

Monthly Sewerage:
IEUA exercise inspection, verification and recourse rights for under-collected/under-
reported monthly sewerage fees

X

Agency 
Management

Regional Contract Review - 
Final Report December 16, 2015 6

Monthly Sewerage:
Contract should include IEUA right to audit, full cooperation and access to records and 
documents upon request

X

Agency 
Management

Regional Contract Review - 
Final Report December 16, 2015 7

Monthly Sewerage:
Update 1997 billing memorandum regularly for new business types to provide detailed 
definitions and descriptions

X

Agency 
Management

Regional Contract Review - 
Final Report December 16, 2015 8 Monthly Sewerage:

Create a correlation between monthly sewerage fees and Connection Fees X

Agency 
Management

Regional Contract Review - 
Final Report December 16, 2015 9

Monthly Sewerage:
Add billing guidance for locations with multiple types of businesses serviced by a 
master meter

X

Agency 
Management

Regional Contract Review - 
Final Report December 16, 2015 10 Monthly Sewerage:

Bill commercial businesses at least a minimum of one EDU per month X

Agency 
Management

Regional Contract Review - 
Final Report December 16, 2015 1

Public Service Facility:
Consider legal, political and financial impacts of excluding Public Service Facilities 
from Connection Fees and monthly sewerage charges. 

X

Agency 
Management

Regional Contract Review - 
Final Report December 16, 2015 2

Public Service Facility:
Consider legal, political and financial impacts of IEUA assuming responsibility for 
Connection Fees calculations, collections and CCRA accounts

X

Agency 
Management

Regional Contract Review - 
Final Report December 16, 2015 3

Public Service Facility:
Contract should include IEUA inspection, verification and recourse rights for under-
collected/under-reported Connection Fees

X

Agency 
Management

Regional Contract Review - 
Final Report December 16, 2015 4

Public Service Facility:
Contract should include IEUA right to audit, full cooperation and access to records and 
documents upon request

X

2 of 15



Outstanding Audit Recommendations 
as of June 1, 2022

Department 
Assigned Audit Report Title Date Audit Report 

Issued Rec # Internal Audit Recommendation In Progress Not 
Implemented

Outstanding 
pending IA 
follow up 

review

Agency 
Management

Regional Contract Review - 
Final Report December 16, 2015 5 Public Service Facility:

Address difference between “Publicly Owned” vs. “Publicly Used” X

Agency 
Management

Regional Contract Review - 
Final Report December 16, 2015 6

Public Service Facility:
Consider cross-departmental approach to the development review process as a 
regional model

X

Information 
Technology

Follow-Up - IT Equipment 
Audit - ISS
(IT Equipment August 21, 
2012 - Original audit)               

February 29, 2016 3

ISS implement appropriate tracking systems that include relevant information on IT 
purchases (i.e., serial numbers, etc.), are updated timely and are complete and 
accurate.  ISS should establish procedures to enter, modify, and delete information in 
the tracking systems that address areas such as timeliness for updates, 
responsibilities for maintaining the systems, and the types of items included in the 
tracking system.

X

Information 
Technology

Follow-Up - IT Equipment 
Audit - ISS
(IT Equipment August 21, 
2012 - Original audit)               

February 29, 2016 1 ISS should ensure that any services procured with P-cards are expressly authorized by 
the Manager of CAP, CFO, AGM, or GM prior to committing to services. X

Information 
Technology

Follow-Up - IT Equipment 
Audit - FAD
(IT Equipment August 21, 
2012 - Original audit)

December 5, 2016 15

FMD should implement adequate controls to ensure that the stated capitalization 
policy for IT equipment is consistently followed to ensure that all items meeting the 
capitalization threshold are capitalized and to ensure that items not meeting the 
capitalization threshold are not capitalized.

X

Information 
Technology

Follow-Up - IT Equipment 
Audit - FAD
(IT Equipment August 21, 
2012 - Original audit)

December 5, 2016 17

FMD should implement adequate controls to ensure that asset records established in 
SAP are accurate and complete, such as ensuring that all data fields in SAP are 
completed and ensuring that only those items allowed by the capitalization policy are 
capitalized.

X

Finance and 
Accounting

Follow-Up - IT Equipment 
Audit - FAD
(IT Equipment August 21, 
2012 - Original audit)

December 5, 2016 19

FMD should return incorrect or incomplete Project Closure Authorization Forms to the 
Project Manager for proper completion.  FMD should also provide training to Project 
Managers on the importance of proper completion and instructions on completing the 
form.

x

Finance and 
Accounting

Follow-Up - IT Equipment 
Audit - FAD
(IT Equipment August 21, 
2012 - Original audit)

December 5, 2016 22

FMD should document Standard Operating Procedures to address the functions of 
setting up capital assets such as procedures for completing the SAP asset 
information, compliance with stated capitalization thresholds, and processing of 
Project Closure Authorization Forms.

x

Finance and 
Accounting

Follow-Up - IT Equipment 
Audit - FAD
December 5, 2016

December 5, 2016 1
FAD should take the lead to ensure a physical inventory and inspection of the 
Agency's IT fixed assets is completed on a periodic basis to verify existence, location, 
and working condition of assets. 

X

Finance and 
Accounting

Follow-Up - IT Equipment 
Audit - FAD
December 5, 2016

December 5, 2016 2
FAD should evaluate the Agency's current capitalization thresholds for IT equipment 
and determine if these need to be increased to ensure current practice meets policy 
and are consistent with current trends. 

X

Finance & 
Accounting

2017 Petty Cash Audit & 
Follow-up Review June 5, 2017 1 FAD should reinforce the guidelines of the petty cash fund, including custodian 

responsibilities and internal controls over petty cash accountability and record-keeping.
X

Finance & 
Accounting

2017 Petty Cash Audit & 
Follow-up Review June 5, 2017 2

FAD should consider updating the “Monthly Mileage Log and Reimbursement 
Request” to add a designated signature area for when the petty cash funds are utilized 
as a reimbursement for mileage.

X

Finance & 
Accounting

2017 Petty Cash Audit & 
Follow-up Review June 5, 2017 3

FAD should take the lead to communicate changes to the Petty Cash policy and forms 
immediately after implementation, to ensure employees understand the policy and 
utilize the updated forms.

X

3 of 15



Outstanding Audit Recommendations 
as of June 1, 2022

Department 
Assigned Audit Report Title Date Audit Report 

Issued Rec # Internal Audit Recommendation In Progress Not 
Implemented

Outstanding 
pending IA 
follow up 

review

Finance & 
Accounting

2017 Petty Cash Audit & 
Follow-up Review June 5, 2017 4

Petty cash custodians should only accept the appropriate forms and inform the 
requestor of the most appropriate procurement methods if the requestor’s petty cash 
request does not conform to Agency policies.

X

Finance & 
Accounting

2017 Petty Cash Audit & 
Follow-up Review June 5, 2017 5

FAD should take the lead to review and determine if the Petty Cash limit of $50 is 
adequate or if it should be updated (increased or decreased), or determine if there is a 
threshold that will require Executive Manager/General Manager authorization (i.e., 
anything over $50).

X

Finance & 
Accounting

2017 Petty Cash Audit & 
Follow-up Review June 5, 2017 6

Human Resources and FAD should work together to formally document or 
communicate the policy on the purchase and gifting of Gift Cards to ensure 
compliance with Federal requirements.  The policy should be communicated to all 
Agency employees and be reminded periodically.

X

Finance & 
Accounting

2017 Petty Cash Audit & 
Follow-up Review June 5, 2017 7

Human Resources and FAD should continue to work with the appropriate personnel in 
making revisions and updates to the following Agency policies that relate to cash 
reimbursements and controls: A-75 Employee Recognition Rewards Program, A-68 
Meal Reimbursement and Unscheduled Overtime, and A-34 Vehicle Maintenance.

X

Inter-Agency 
Relations

Water Use Efficiency 
Programs Audit June 5, 2017 1

Turf Removal Programs
While many retail customers received rebates, the range of customers could have 
been broader. Outreach to customers about WUE measures is a primary responsibility 
of member agencies, but IEUA may want to consider establishing a forum to discuss 
the goals and results of WUE Programs. The purpose of the discussions would be to 
evaluate and develop approaches to help (or consider joint efforts to) publicize, target 
and follow-up with entities in IEUA’s service area when WUE opportunities become 
available, and tailor outreach towards specific and/or different entities in the region that 
match those characteristics and/or potentially maintain a database of the region’s 
entities by unique characteristics (schools, churches, large lots, etc.).

X

Finance and 
Accounting

Water Use Efficiency 
Programs Audit June 5, 2017 2

Finance and Accounting (FAD) staff have already taken several practical measures to 
review and reduce the amounts included in Work in Process (WIP) to ensure only 
capital projects are capitalized. FAD may want to consider prioritizing additional efforts 
to ensure that prior period adjustments are eliminated, such as:
• Developing a cross-departmental team including representatives from Engineering, 
Operations and FAD to approve items in advance for capitalization in WIP.
• Establishing an automated log, register or report to be reviewed regularly that tracks 
project codes, amounts and purpose for FAD review to ensure accurate accounting of 
projects.
• Engaging an outside consultant, accounting firm or additional temporary resources to 
make a thorough examination of WIP to:
o Ensure only capital projects are included
o Recommend policies and procedures for establishing projects to ensure only capital 
projects are capitalized
o Develop written examples and guidelines of what constitutes a capital project and 
what constitutes an O & M project.

X

Inter-Agency 
Relations

Water Use Efficiency 
Programs Audit June 5, 2017 3

The Agency may want to consider utilizing the Annual Water Use Efficiency Programs 
Report as an evaluative tool to compare actual results to those projected in the 
Regional WUE (five year) Business Plan. The Annual WUE Programs Report could 
discuss reasons for variances from that plan, document changes being made to the 
plan and describe progress on any other initiatives that expect to yield water savings in 
future years.

X

4 of 15



Outstanding Audit Recommendations 
as of June 1, 2022

Department 
Assigned Audit Report Title Date Audit Report 

Issued Rec # Internal Audit Recommendation In Progress Not 
Implemented

Outstanding 
pending IA 
follow up 

review

Inter-Agency 
Relations

Water Use Efficiency 
Programs Audit June 5, 2017 4

IEUA may want to consider providing additional documentation, descriptions or 
informative information in the body of the Annual WUE Programs Report to describe 
the differing sources of information used to provide member agency information vs. 
regionwide information or alternatively (and/or in addition), presenting both the 
summary and member agency information on the same basis.

X

Inter-Agency 
Relations

Water Use Efficiency 
Programs Audit June 5, 2017 5

IEUA may want to consider expanding the “Highlights” commentary and providing 
subheadings and organizing the section to match the order of the Summary Charts to 
align the descriptions to the charts that follow.

X

Inter-Agency 
Relations

Water Use Efficiency 
Programs Audit June 5, 2017 6 WR staff may want to consider developing a desk procedure or other document to 

guide the preparation of the Annual WUE Programs Report for internal staff to follow. X

CAP Contracts and Procurement 
Follow-Up August 30, 2017 1

CAP should review the SAP assigned roles and transaction codes and ensure that
good internal controls are followed and no conflicts exist. IA recommends CAP
consider eliminating or reducing the ability to Create PRs and Receive Goods, for CAP
buyers in order to strengthen internal controls and further reduce risks. 

X

Finance and 
Accounting Payroll Operations Audit August 30, 2017 1

IA recommends that HR consider evaluating alternatives to the manual files used to
maintain employee information, for example:

--Working with Business Information Systems (BIS) to develop or acquire a self-
service portal for employees to make updates and changes to certain information that
currently requires a hard-copy document, such as withholding information, beneficiary
information, address changes, or for adding or deleting a family member from their
policies, and contribution amounts to various accounts.

--The Agency is in the process of implementing ECMS. HR may want to consider
whether the new ECMS would provide an automated approach to maintaining and
updating employee information or whether another automated approach would be
possible.

X

HR Payroll Operations Audit August 30, 2017 2 As part of the Agency’s disaster preparedness effort, IA recommends that HR consider
maintaining manual/hard-copy files in fire proof/water proof cabinets. X

Finance and 
Accounting Payroll Operations Audit August 30, 2017 3

FAD should update Standard Operating Procedure No. CR PR-08 to reflect the new 
payroll bank reconciliation process, communicate the procedure to all department 
employees and ensure the SOP is in the format outlined in accordance with Agency 
Policy A-51.

X

Finance and 
Accounting Payroll Operations Audit August 30, 2017 4

FAD should ensure bank reconciliations are prepared monthly and supervisory review 
occurs in a timely manner to ensure all outstanding and reconciling items are 
researched, investigated and resolved.

X

HR Payroll Operations Audit August 30, 2017 6

Both HR and FAD should encourage employees with payroll related functions to
attend ethics/fraud awareness training specific to their job responsibilities to stay
informed about new developments, risks and safeguards (for example, safeguards for
potential payroll fraud, safeguarding personnel files and employee confidential
information, etc.)

X

5 of 15



Outstanding Audit Recommendations 
as of June 1, 2022

Department 
Assigned Audit Report Title Date Audit Report 

Issued Rec # Internal Audit Recommendation In Progress Not 
Implemented

Outstanding 
pending IA 
follow up 

review

CAP Procurement Card Audit March 1, 2018 1

Agency Policy A-89, Procurement Card Program should be updated to reflect desired
internal controls and provide clearer guidelines about the proper use of P-Cards. The
policy should provide greater clarity about the purchases that are allowed or not
allowed (i.e.: food, restaurant, meals, training registrations, membership payments,
etc.). Additionally, the policy should provide instructions for users to follow when there
are situations that are unusual and note the additional written justification that is
necessary. Lastly, A-89, should direct users to seek CAP's guidance when there is a
unique need, keeping the Agency's need in mind and ensuring adequate controls are
maintained. 

X

CAP Procurement Card Audit March 1, 2018 2

The P-Card Administrator role should be clarified in Policy A-89 and expanded to 
include greater oversight responsibilities to ensure compliance.  The role should 
include duties to fully utilize the various on-line tools available through US Bank for 
reports, alerts, training and other controls for reviewing and monitoring activity.  
Additionally, the P-Card Administrator should provide assistance and give advice on 
the best procurement method and periodically review statements and identify 
purchases and transactions that are not aligned with policy and request additional 
information.

X

CAP Procurement Card Audit March 1, 2018 3

CAP should update Department-specific SOP CAP-0012 to incorporate any changes 
in Agency Policy A-89 Procurement card Program, including any updates to the P-
Card Administrator's role and responsibilities.  Additionally, CAP should ensure the 
SOP CAP-0012 complies with the guidelines and format set forth in Agency Policy A-
51.

X

CAP Procurement Card Audit March 1, 2018 4
CAP and FAD should work together to utilize any in-house tools and/or online tools 
available through US Bank to make the review, approval, reconciliation and upload of 
P-Card purchases more efficient with adequate oversight. 

X

CAP Procurement Card Audit March 1, 2018 5
CAP should take the lead to evaluate the benefits of consolidating credit card 
programs to utilize P-Cards for all purchases (other than fuel) and to eliminate other 
vendor-specific credit card or credit programs.  At a minimum, the Agency should 
ensure all Credit Card programs are governed by an approved Agency Policy. 

X

CAP Procurement Card Audit March 1, 2018 6

CAP should maximize the use of the US Bank online tools for downloading/reviewing 
reports, creating blocks and alert notices for unusual activity, streamlining the 
approval, reconciliation and upload/posting process and training end users and 
approvers. 

X

CAP Procurement Card Audit March 1, 2018 7 FAD should evaluate ways for the Agency to increase and/or maximize any rebates
received. 

X

Finance and 
Accounting Wire Transfers Audit March 1, 2018 2 FAD should finalize the new SOPs in the format provided in Agency Policy A-51. X

Finance and 
Accounting Wire Transfers Audit March 1, 2018 3

The Agency should evaluate the cost/benefit of obtaining additional coverage and 
consider a per occurrence limit greater than $2 million to ensure the Agency has 
adequate insurance coverage to address the Agency's risk tolerance.  In addition, to 
address potential uncovered losses, the Agency should consider reducing the 
threshold for a bank call-back to any amounts that exceed the Agency's chosen limit 
for Fraud Transfer Insurance. 

X

Finance and 
Accounting Wire Transfers Audit March 1, 2018 4

FAD should develop standards for documentation of transactions in SAP and a
process of reviewing transactions once posted to ensure that the information in the
accounting records is consistent and complete. 

X

6 of 15



Outstanding Audit Recommendations 
as of June 1, 2022

Department 
Assigned Audit Report Title Date Audit Report 

Issued Rec # Internal Audit Recommendation In Progress Not 
Implemented

Outstanding 
pending IA 
follow up 

review

Finance and 
Accounting Wire Transfers Audit March 1, 2018 5

FAD should document or revise a separate SOP that describes the steps in the wire
transfer process for investment transactions to provide guidelines for the processing of
investment transactions.

X

Finance and 
Accounting Inter-fund Transactions Audit August 30, 2018 2

FAD should document a Standard Operating Procedure and/or Inter-Fund Transfer 
policy that provides clear guidance as to the methodology applied to calculate and 
process inter-fund transfers, including the purpose, authorization procedures and 
methodology applied.

X

Finance and 
Accounting

Accounts Payable Follow-Up 
Audit May 30, 2019 1

In evaluating access controls over all IEUA staff that have some level of AP 
authorization, IA noted that some staff members have transferred to other 
departments at IEUA or to different functions within FAD. There is a need to 
implement additional controls to regularly evaluate and monitor employees’ SAP roles 
and authorizations to prevent the risk of conflicts of duties. Business Information 
Systems (BIS) should work with Finance and Accounting Department (FAD) and 
Human Resources (HR) to implement additional controls to regularly evaluate and 
monitor employees’ SAP roles and authorizations to prevent the risk of conflicts of 
duties. Options include:
- Business Information Systems (BIS) working closely with IA and FAD to perform 
regular (at minimum annual) reviews and evaluations of roles and authorizations to 
search for conflicts of duties.
- BIS working with HR to establish a formal notification method/checklist when 
changes occur as a result of employees changing job duties and responsibilities that 
may present a risk and potential conflict of duties.
- BIS determining the feasibility of seeking to implement an automated program or 
service to scan SAP for conflicts of duties on a regular basis, either through SAP or 
another third-party vendor.

X

Finance and 
Accounting

Accounts Payable Follow-Up 
Audit May 30, 2019 3

FAD should perform a comprehensive review of all existing VMD records (particularly 
older records and those created by the conversion to SAP) and ensure all vendor 
information is complete and up-to-date and includes a verified physical address. 

X

Finance and 
Accounting

Accounts Payable Follow-Up 
Audit May 30, 2019 4

FAD should perform a comprehensive review of the VMD to ensure only active 
vendors remain active and those with no activity in the previous 3-5 years are blocked 
appropriately. Additionally, vendors created through the conversion process to SAP 
and never used should be deleted.

X

Finance and 
Accounting

Accounts Payable Follow-Up 
Audit May 30, 2019 5

FAD should update all SOPs to reflect business process changes resulting from the 
implementation of the Agency's ERP SAP system of mid-2007 and any enhancements 
to internal controls since then. 

X

Opeartions 
or Facilities & 

Fleet
Voyager Fuel Card Audit May 30, 2019 1

Operations & Maintenance Department should develop and document goals and 
objectives, Key Performance Indicators (KPIs), and/or other metrics for the Agency’s 
fleet operations for measurement, analysis, tracking and reporting the fleet program’s 
effectiveness. Goals should be aligned with the Division’s overall mission and could 
include cost of fuel, fuel usage/consumption, cost of maintenance, asset value of the 
fleet by type of vehicle, etc. Goals should be measured, evaluated and updated 
periodically.

X

7 of 15



Outstanding Audit Recommendations 
as of June 1, 2022

Department 
Assigned Audit Report Title Date Audit Report 

Issued Rec # Internal Audit Recommendation In Progress Not 
Implemented

Outstanding 
pending IA 
follow up 

review

Opeartions 
or Facilities & 

Fleet
Voyager Fuel Card Audit May 30, 2019 2

Operations & Maintenance should work with US Bank to evaluate the reporting tools 
and features that are available to provide useful information about the Agency’s fleet 
to identify inefficiencies, areas of improvement, and instances of unusual card usage 
where follow-up is be required and reduce potential risks of misuse.

X

Opeartions 
or Facilities & 

Fleet
Voyager Fuel Card Audit May 30, 2019 3

The Fuel Card Administrator role should be clarified and enhanced, either in Agency 
Policy A-86 and/or other related policy. The Fuel Card Administrator role should be 
enhanced to include greater oversight roles and responsibilities, to include:

- Responsibilities to maximize the use of online reports and tools available through the 
US Bank Fleet Commander® Online system.

- Analysis and evaluation reports and communications to provide Operations & 
Maintenance information about the fuel card program.

X

Opeartions 
or Facilities & 

Fleet
Voyager Fuel Card Audit May 30, 2019 4

Operations & Maintenance should establish a process to periodically review the use of 
fuel cards and ensure cards no longer needed or used are deactivated to reduce risks 
to the Agency. 

X

HR
HR audit: 

Hiring and Promotions 
Operations Review

December 2, 2019 1
Human Resources should include additional justification information for the final 
selection made in the recruitment file to close out the recruitment file and ensure it 
stands alone.

X

HR
HR audit: 

Hiring and Promotions 
Operations Review

December 2, 2019 2
Human Resources should take the lead and work with Business Information Services 
and determine ways to implement automated workflows for recruitment documents 
and forms and utilize electronic files.

X

HR
HR audit: 

Hiring and Promotions 
Operations Review

December 2, 2019 3
Human Resources should take the lead to install fireproof and waterproof filing 
cabinets to safeguard manual personnel, recruitment, and other HR related files, in the 
event of a disaster.

X

HR
HR audit: 

Hiring and Promotions 
Operations Review

December 2, 2019 4
Human Resources should take the lead to ensure all Agency policies related to hiring 
and recruitment, as well as the department’s SOPs are updated to include the most 
recent and accurate requirements for the processes and Agency formats.

X

HR
HR audit: 

Hiring and Promotions 
Operations Review

December 2, 2019 5
Human Resources should work with Executive Management to determine the best 
approach to ensure compliance with the Agency Policy A-20 on completing timely 
performance appraisals for employees.

X

HR
HR audit: 

Hiring and Promotions 
Operations Review

December 2, 2019 6

Human Resources should work with Executive Management to determine an 
approach/method on how to address: having an Agency-wide Ethics Policy, the 
requirement for a Confidentiality Agreement for selected employees, and Conflict of 
Interest policy and related training that covers all topics. Any requirement should be 
documented and be clearly communicated to all Agency employees.

X

8 of 15



Outstanding Audit Recommendations 
as of June 1, 2022

Department 
Assigned Audit Report Title Date Audit Report 

Issued Rec # Internal Audit Recommendation In Progress Not 
Implemented

Outstanding 
pending IA 
follow up 

review

HR
HR audit: 

Hiring and Promotions 
Operations Review

December 2, 2019 7

IA recommends that Human Resources and Contracts and Procurement work 
together to establish written contracts for all vendors used by HR to document the 
scope, terms and conditions and prices for the services. The contracts should 
establish what information is included in the invoices for payment and what information 
needs to be maintained separately and confidentially.

X

Planning & 
Resources

Recycled Water Revenues 
Audit May 28, 2020 1

IA recommends implementing a process to review and verify recycled water records 
and processes (including how meters are checked, maintained and calibrated) at the 
individual contracting agencies to ensure completeness and accuracy of information 
provided to the Agency as provided in Agency Ordinance #63. An internal or external 
audit and/or review of contracting agency reporting of recycled water would provide an 
independent analysis of the information received from the contracting agencies to 
verify the data reported to the Agency. At a minimum, Planning staff should request 
additional supporting documentation from the contracting agencies periodically, to 
verify the information reported. This would potentially prevent, detect and/or correct 
any discrepancies to minimize any potential risk of error in reporting.

x

Planning & 
Resources

Recycled Water Revenues 
Audit May 28, 2020 3

Planning should take the lead to work together with Agency staff and the contracting 
agencies to develop standardized information reporting. Standardized and automated 
reports and methods of providing information would create efficiencies, make the 
process consistent and ensure accuracy.

x

Planning & 
Resources

Recycled Water Revenues 
Audit May 28, 2020 4

Engineering should update the Standard Operating Procedure and attached Exhibit 
#1: Work Instruction for Preparing Recycled Water Billing (last updated in 2015) to 
provide current detailed instructions and information for recording and reporting the 
recycled water information received from the contracting agencies.

x

HR Human Resources: 
Workload Indicators Review May 29, 2020 1

HR should evaluate the Department Workload Indicators as reported in the Agency’s 
Budget document and consider additional and/or different Workload Indicators that 
provide information about the various activities of the department and ensure they are 
aligned to the department’s goals.

X

HR Human Resources: 
Workload Indicators Review May 29, 2020 2

HR should document a Standard Operating Procedure or desk procedures to ensure 
consistency in the data collected and the method in calculating workload indicator 
results as documented in the Budget Book.

X

HR

HR Operational Audit: 
Administration of Employee 
Training and Development 
Programs

August 31, 2020 1

HR should re-evaluate the purpose and objective of the “Training Hours per 
Employee” Workload Indicator reported in the Agency’s Budget document, determine 
what the indicator is intended to measure, capture and report and how the indicator 
aligns with the department’s goals and the overall Agency goals and objectives.

X

HR

HR Operational Audit: 
Administration of Employee 
Training and Development 
Programs

August 31, 2020 2

HR should re-evaluate the calculation applied for “Training Hours per Employee” to 
ensure it is capturing the intended type of training. If the intent is to capture all training 
including training not administered through HR, periodically remind employees, 
supervisors and managers to appropriately code each type of training on timesheets to 
ensure the needed information is captured for the Workload Indicator.

X

HR

HR Operational Audit: 
Administration of Employee 
Training and Development 
Programs

August 31, 2020 3

HR should take the lead to work with Records Management on the record retention 
needs of the department and ensure the information in ABRA is managed and follows 
the recommended record retention guidelines to ensure the Agency complies with any 
requests and to minimize any potential risks of retaining older personnel records in the 
ABRA system.

X

9 of 15



Outstanding Audit Recommendations 
as of June 1, 2022

Department 
Assigned Audit Report Title Date Audit Report 

Issued Rec # Internal Audit Recommendation In Progress Not 
Implemented

Outstanding 
pending IA 
follow up 

review

HR

HR Operational Audit: 
Administration of Employee 
Training and Development 
Programs

August 31, 2020 4

HR should reevaluate Skillsoft as a training resource and consider establishing goals 
and objectives for the utilization of Skillsoft for employee training and development. 
Additionally, if HR determines Skillsoft is a beneficial training resource, HR should 
implement plans to increase utilization of Skillsoft. 

X

HR

HR Operational Audit: 
Administration of Employee 
Training and Development 
Programs

August 31, 2020 5 HR should determine the need to either delete or update Agency Policy A-57. X

Finance and 
Accounting

Agency Vehicle Operational 
Follow-up audit: Review of 
Vehicle Inventory Procedures

May 27, 2021 1

Finance and Accounting Department (FAD) Facilities Management should work 
together to reconcile the asset records in SAP:

• The Finance and Accounting Department (FAD) should periodically share the Fixed 
Asset List Report to Agency departments.

• Facilities Management should work closely with FAD to reconcile their internal 
reports to the financial information and resolve differences immediately. The 
departments work together to reconcile all internal reports used to track assets under 
their responsibility, perform periodic reconciliations, ensure the same identifying 
information identify assets in all report and complete all needed documents and forms 
for proper
accountability of disposals, surplus, new purchases, etc. 

• FAD should and will continue to provide on-going training and departments should 
reach out for additional information and guidance.

• Facilities Management should document their own SOP for the process of adding, 
removing and tracking assets under their custody

X

O&M

Accounts Payable and 
Internal Control Audit Report - 
Review of Procure to Pay 
Processes for Chemicals 
(P2P-Chemicals)

November 24, 2021 12

Establish and document performance metrics, KPI's, goals and objectives and a 
method to measure those for the documentation of the deliveries by the operators and 
the time it takes to complete receiving into SAP.  Work with BIS to establish any 
reports that can provide measurements and metrics.

X

Finance and 
Accounting

Accounts Payable and 
Internal Control Audit Report - 
Review of Procure to Pay 
Processes for Chemicals 
(P2P-Chemicals)

November 24, 2021 21

Once the information is entered into SAP in the "Held Invoices" database, AP staff 
should frequently review and evaluate  outstanding items and items past the payment 
terms and elevate them for additional attention and prompt processing. 

AP determine if this process is helping expedite processing invoices for payments and 
formalize by documenting specific procedures for staff to follow to provide specific 
steps for uploading invoices, how to monitor items and activity and actions steps for 
different situations.

X

10 of 15



Outstanding Audit Recommendations 
as of June 1, 2022

Department 
Assigned Audit Report Title Date Audit Report 

Issued Rec # Internal Audit Recommendation In Progress Not 
Implemented

Outstanding 
pending IA 
follow up 

review

Finance and 
Accounting

Accounts Payable and 
Internal Control Audit Report - 
Review of Procure to Pay 
Processes for Chemicals 
(P2P-Chemicals)

November 24, 2021 23

Accounting should work with BIS to develop an Aging Report or a report that shows all 
outstanding invoice information, including total days held and outstanding or overdue 
so that Accounting can take prompt action.

OR

Accounting should work with BIS to export and fully utilize the Held Invoice Report to 
review all items and ensure any outstanding items are reviewed promptly.

AND

Accounting should formalize and document specific procedures for how items are 
selected for matching and processing for payment before the due date.

X

Finance and 
Accounting

Accounts Payable and 
Internal Control Audit Report - 
Review of Procure to Pay 
Processes for Chemicals 
(P2P-Chemicals)

November 24, 2021 24

Accounting - see items (9) & (10) above
Train staff to work proactively and collaborate with other departments in researching 
and resolving any delays/blocks with processing invoices for payment, with the end 
goal of working to pay all invoices by the due date. 

AND

Accounting should formalize and document specific procedures for how items are 
selected for matching and processing for payment before the due date. Specify the 
action steps, AP should take when items are approaching the due date or are past the 
due date, and how to elevate items for prompt research and attention.

X

Finance and 
Accounting

Accounts Payable and 
Internal Control Audit Report - 
Review of Procure to Pay 
Processes for Chemicals 
(P2P-Chemicals)

November 24, 2021 25

If SAP “flags” items for payment on the due date and after, Accounting and BIS should work together to 
evaluate the cost/ benefit to reconfigure this built-in SAP “flag/alert” to ensure SAP “flags” items for 
payment 5 or so days before the invoice due date, so that items can be processed days prior to the due 
date to avoid being paid late. 

X

Finance and 
Accounting

Accounts Payable and 
Internal Control Audit Report - 
Review of Procure to Pay 
Processes for Chemicals 
(P2P-Chemicals)

November 24, 2021 26
Formalize and document specific procedures to specify how and what items should be selected by AP 
staff to perform the 3-way match AND processing of payments, also specify the frequency of when this 
process should be completed.  SOPs establish consistent procedures for employees to follow and be 
trained and evaluated on. 

X

11 of 15



Outstanding Audit Recommendations 
as of June 1, 2022

Department 
Assigned Audit Report Title Date Audit Report 

Issued Rec # Internal Audit Recommendation In Progress Not 
Implemented

Outstanding 
pending IA 
follow up 

review

Finance and 
Accounting

Accounts Payable and 
Internal Control Audit Report - 
Review of Procure to Pay 
Processes for Chemicals 
(P2P-Chemicals)

November 24, 2021 27 Training should be provided periodically to reinforce the documented SOPs to ensure 
employees are following consistent procedures. X

Finance and 
Accounting

Accounts Payable and 
Internal Control Audit Report - 
Review of Procure to Pay 
Processes for Chemicals 
(P2P-Chemicals)

November 24, 2021 29

Accounting should establish and document performance metrics and KPI's, goals and objectives and a 
method to measure how timely invoices are paid.

Work with BIS to establish any reports that can provide measurements and metrics.

X

Finance and 
Accounting

Accounts Payable and 
Internal Control Audit Report - 
Review of Procure to Pay 
Processes for Chemicals 
(P2P-Chemicals)

November 24, 2021 30

Document and formalize an Agency Policy or Department SOP about the requirement for completing
receiving, matching, and processing payments.

-Specify the types of documents that should be included and verified in SAP or other required reports, 
before payments are processed.

-Specify if the Bill of Lading provided by the delivery drivers to the operators should be uploaded into SAP 
at the time SAP Receiving is completed or be retained in hard-copy and where specifically.

x

Finance and 
Accounting

Accounts Payable and 
Internal Control Audit Report - 
Review of Procure to Pay 
Processes for Chemicals 
(P2P-Chemicals)

November 24, 2021 31

Document and formalize in an Agency Policy or Department SOP about the requirement for completing
receiving, matching, and processing payments.

-Specify the types of documents that should be included and verified in SAP or other required reports, 
before payments are processed.

-Specify that the invoice received by Accounts Payable should be documented with a date received and 
uploaded into SAP and accurately matched to the corresponding transaction.

Accounting should work with BIS to develop an Aging Report or a report that shows all outstanding invoice 
information, including total days held and outstanding or overdue so that Accounting can take prompt 
action. 

X

Finance and 
Accounting

Accounts Payable and 
Internal Control Audit Report - 
Review of Procure to Pay 
Processes for Chemicals 
(P2P-Chemicals)

November 24, 2021 32

Document and formalize in an Agency Policy or Department SOP about the requirement and expectation
for the accuracy of data entry.

-Emphasize the importance that staff is expected to make every attempt to ensure the data entered in 
SAP for receiving and invoice processing needs to be accurate and accurately match the corresponding 
supporting documentation.

-Specify when it is allowable and when it is not allowable to back-post or post-date information.  

X

Finance and 
Accounting

Accounts Payable and 
Internal Control Audit Report - 
Review of Procure to Pay 
Processes for Chemicals 
(P2P-Chemicals)

November 24, 2021 33

Document and formalize in an Agency Policy or Department SOP about the requirement and expectation 
for the accuracy of data entry.

-Specify what is an acceptable best practice and approximate time frame for processing the invoice, 
complete the 3-way match, and process for payment. 

-Specify how invoices uploaded are monitored to ensure that items are processed by the payment terms. 

-Specify how delayed items should be handled and communicated with the goal of issuing payment by the 
payment terms.ure that items are processed by the payment terms.

X

Finance and 
Accounting

Accounts Payable and 
Internal Control Audit Report - 
Review of Procure to Pay 
Processes for Chemicals 
(P2P-Chemicals)

November 24, 2021 35

Document and formalize in an Agency Policy or Department SOP about the requirements and
expectations for AP staff to open/download invoices, date, upload, match and process invoices in SAP and
process payments. 

Consider establishing KPI’s and/or benchmarks to determine a reasonable amount for invoice retrieving, 
uploading, matching, and posting to be performed and processing the Invoices for payment.

X

12 of 15



Outstanding Audit Recommendations 
as of June 1, 2022

Department 
Assigned Audit Report Title Date Audit Report 

Issued Rec # Internal Audit Recommendation In Progress Not 
Implemented

Outstanding 
pending IA 
follow up 

review

E&CM

Accounts Payable and 
Internal Control Audit Report - 
Review of Procure to Pay 
Processes for Professional 
Services for the Engineering 
Dept (P2P E&CM)

February 24, 2022 1

The E&CM Department  management:
Finalize and update the SOP by documenting, signing, sharing with staff, and providing training.
   
Ensure the SOP documents the process for monitoring invoices,  timely receiving performed in 
SAP,  how to identify the professional services invoices, track, and route for approvals, to allow 
the Accounting Unit  sufficient time to process payments. 

X

E&CM

Accounts Payable and 
Internal Control Audit Report - 
Review of Procure to Pay 
Processes for Professional 
Services for the Engineering 
Dept (P2P E&CM)

February 24, 2022 2

E&CM take the lead to seek assistance of CAP Department and the Accounting Unit to establish 
procedures for monitoring POs to minimize any budget blocks or delays in processing invoice for 
payments. 

The E&CM Department should document an SOP for reviewing, tracking and monitoring 
contracts, POs, monies remaining, payments issued, and other details of transactions and 
provide staff training. 

E&CM should work with IT, Accounting and CAP to determine, develop and/or enhance (using 
SAP or other systems) and avoid duplication of work/data entry, a report that is of greater 
value/use to the E&CM department, other than the Open PO Report and/or the MS Access 
Report, that will track all contracts, corresponding transactions (POs), spending,  remaining 
contract values, vendor contact information, payments issued, and any additional information that
E&CM requires. Or determine if the current report and process is the best method available.

X

E&CM

Accounts Payable and 
Internal Control Audit Report - 
Review of Procure to Pay 
Processes for Professional 
Services for the Engineering 
Dept (P2P E&CM)

February 24, 2022 3 The E&CM Department management should provide  training periodically to reinforce the 
documented SOPs to ensure employees are following consistent procedures. X

E&CM

Accounts Payable and 
Internal Control Audit Report - 
Review of Procure to Pay 
Processes for Professional 
Services for the Engineering 
Dept (P2P E&CM)

February 24, 2022 4

The E&CM Department management E&CM Department should consider formalizing this metric 
of 14 days and additional performance metrics and key performance indicators (KPI’s), goals, 
objectives, and a method to measure how timely invoices are approved and received. 

E&CM Department should work with the IT Department to establish any reports that can provide 
measurements and metrics. 

X

Finance and 
Accounting

Accounts Payable and 
Internal Control Audit Report - 
Review of Procure to Pay 
Processes for Professional 
Services for the Engineering 
Dept (P2P E&CM)

February 24, 2022 10

The Accounting management evaluate and make necessary updates to its internal processes 
and procedures to ensure all professional service invoices are received by AP staff and are 
immediately sent to the corresponding Agency department for approval and receiving.  

Accounting management continuously work closely with the E&CM Department and other 
Agency Departments and keep a reference list of the professional/consulting services vendors 
that each Department is managing, to ensure proper reference and routing of the invoices is 
done immediately upon receipt.  This will require continuous communication with the 
Departments as well as continuous communication with vendors to specify instructions for 
submitting invoices.  

Accounting management track the professional/consulting services invoices in the Invoice Held 
database or other tracking database to monitor when they are received by the Agency and when 
they are due for payment. 

X

13 of 15



Outstanding Audit Recommendations 
as of June 1, 2022

Department 
Assigned Audit Report Title Date Audit Report 

Issued Rec # Internal Audit Recommendation In Progress Not 
Implemented

Outstanding 
pending IA 
follow up 

review

Finance and 
Accounting

Accounts Payable and 
Internal Control Audit Report - 
Review of Procure to Pay 
Processes for Professional 
Services for the Engineering 
Dept (P2P E&CM)

February 24, 2022 11

The Accounting management should take the lead to work with the IT Department to develop 
useful monitoring report from SAP to assist with the review, tracking, and monitoring invoice due 
dates, open invoices, and prioritizing payments.

(Note:  This similar recommendation was provided in the Procure to Pay Chemicals audit report 
as Recommendation twenty-one (21).  As of February 15, 2022, the IT Department has 
developed a way to export the data into excel to create reports).  

New Recommendation:  
The Accounting management should determine how this new reporting/monitoring tool 
(information from the Held Invoices) will be used and implement a procedure to assist with 
tracking, monitoring and prioritizing making timely payments. 

X

Finance and 
Accounting

Accounts Payable and 
Internal Control Audit Report - 
Review of Procure to Pay 
Processes for Professional 
Services for the Engineering 
Dept (P2P E&CM)

February 24, 2022 12
The Accounting management should take the lead to work with the IT Department and determine
if an invoice recognition software or other technology tools could assist with the uploading of 
invoices.

X

Finance and 
Accounting

Accounts Payable and 
Internal Control Audit Report - 
Review of Procure to Pay 
Processes for Professional 
Services for the Engineering 
Dept (P2P E&CM)

February 24, 2022 13

It is recommended that the Accounting management:

 •establish a procedure to track all open invoice issues,

 •open invoice issues are reviewed by the Accounts Payable supervisor at the end of each month 
to ensure open items are cleared,

 •work with the IT Department to determine a more streamlined/efficient process in SAP to verify 
that receiving was completed and expedite the three-way match, and

 •utilize software tools such as SAP Concur for invoice process and management.

X

Finance and 
Accounting

Accounts Payable and 
Internal Control Audit Report - 
Review of Procure to Pay 
Processes for Professional 
Services for the Engineering 
Dept (P2P E&CM)

February 24, 2022 14

The Accounting management work with the IT Department to evaluate the feasibility of 
implementing a centralized SharePoint portal (like the one developed for E&CM) and determine 
if it would be of value to have for all Professional Services invoices  where they can be stored for 
further processing.   In addition, Share Point can assist AP staff in sorting and identifying 
invoices for their staff and ensure they track the approvals needed.

Accounting management should work with IT to determine the feasibility of utilizing SAPs 
workflow process to route invoices for approval while keeping track of where they are in the 
approval process and ensuring timely payments.

Additionally, establish formal, documented procedures for Accounting and other departments 
using SharePoint to ensure there is consistency in using SharePoint and timely processing 
invoices for approval and payment. 

X

14 of 15



Outstanding Audit Recommendations 
as of June 1, 2022

Department 
Assigned Audit Report Title Date Audit Report 

Issued Rec # Internal Audit Recommendation In Progress Not 
Implemented

Outstanding 
pending IA 
follow up 

review

Finance and 
Accounting

Accounts Payable and 
Internal Control Audit Report - 
Review of Procure to Pay 
Processes for Professional 
Services for the Engineering 
Dept (P2P E&CM)

February 24, 2022 15

The Accounting management should take the lead to work with the Leadership Team to 
determine the Agency’s policy/business decision of when to pay invoices (prior to due date or 
after due date). 

Based on results noted above, if necessary, the Accounting Management should take the lead to 
work with the IT Department to evaluate the cost/ benefit to establish a procedure and/or 
reconfigure this built-in SAP “flag/alert” to ensure SAP “flags” items for payment five (5) or so 
days before the invoice due date, so that items can be processed days prior to the due date to 
avoid being paid late. 

(Note:  This recommendation was provided in the Procure to Pay Chemicals audit report as 
Recommendation twenty-five (25) currently In Progress).  

X

Finance and 
Accounting

Accounts Payable and 
Internal Control Audit Report - 
Review of Procure to Pay 
Processes for Professional 
Services for the Engineering 
Dept (P2P E&CM)

February 24, 2022 16

The Accounting management take the lead to work directly with E&CM Department to determine 
the most efficient/effective way to communicate that receiving has been performed.  Both 
Departments noted above should discuss and agree if there a need use email communication for 
invoice management.  

X

Finance and 
Accounting

Accounts Payable and 
Internal Control Audit Report - 
Review of Procure to Pay 
Processes for Professional 
Services for the Engineering 
Dept (P2P E&CM)

February 24, 2022 17

Accounting management  formalize and document specific procedures to specify how and what 
items should be selected by AP Group staff to perform the three-way match and  processing of 
payments, also specify the frequency of when this process should be completed.  

(Note:  This is recommendation was provided in the Procure to Pay Chemicals audit report as 
Recommendation twenty-six (26)).

X

Finance and 
Accounting

Accounts Payable and 
Internal Control Audit Report - 
Review of Procure to Pay 
Processes for Professional 
Services for the Engineering 
Dept (P2P E&CM)

February 24, 2022 18

The Accounting should provide training periodically to reinforce the documented SOPs to ensure 
employees are following consistent procedures. 

(Note:  This recommendation was provided in the Procure to Pay Chemicals audit report as 
Recommendation twenty-seven (27)).  

X

Finance and 
Accounting

Accounts Payable and 
Internal Control Audit Report - 
Review of Procure to Pay 
Processes for Professional 
Services for the Engineering 
Dept (P2P E&CM)

February 24, 2022 19

The Accounting management establish and document performance metrics, and KPI’s, goals, 
and objectives and a method to measure how timely invoices are paid. 

In addition, the Accounting management works with the IT Department to establish any reports 
that can provide measurements and metrics. 

(Note:  This recommendation was provided in the Procure to Pay Chemicals audit report as 
Recommendation twenty-nine (29)).  

X

Finance and 
Accounting

Accounts Payable and 
Internal Control Audit Report - 
Review of Procure to Pay 
Processes for Professional 
Services for the Engineering 
Dept (P2P E&CM)

February 24, 2022 20

The Accounting management should work with the General Manager and the Leadership Team 
and discuss or consider bringing in professional consultants to assist in catching up with the 
backlog of overdue payments, 

and/or

using a professional consultant to evaluate the department’s needs, key performance indicators 
(KPIs), processes, procedures, and help implement recommendations to ensure the Accounting 
Unit can implement audit recommendations, incorporate best practices that ensure payments are
made timely, SOPs are documented, and training is provided to staff.

X

15 of 15



Report of Open Audit Recommendations

Teresa Velarde 

Manager of Internal Audit 

June 2022



2

Outstanding Audit Recommendations



As of June 2022, 126 recommendations remain outstanding:

• 28 - Procure to Pay Audits which are followed up on quarterly,

• 31 - renegotiation of the Regional Contract,

• 20 - required Agency policy Updates,

• 47 – recommendations eligible for follow up evaluation.

Report of Open Audit Recommendations

3



The Report of Open Audit Recommendations is consistent with the Agency's Business 
Goals of Fiscal Responsibility, Workplace Environment, and Business Practices. IA's 

ongoing monitoring activities are to follow-up on the status of open audit 
recommendations to determine if the staff have taken corrective action to address audit 

observations and issues identified. IA provides recommendations to tighten internal 
controls, improve processes and assist the Agency and the Board in achieving 

compliance with policies and organizational goals.



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

3H 



Budget Impact 

 
June 15, 2022

Internal Audit Department Quarterly Status Report for June 2022

The Audit Committee Charter requires that a written status report be prepared and submitted
each quarter. The Internal Audit Department Quarterly Status Report includes a summary of
significant internal and external audit activities for the reporting period.

During this quarter, along with additional routine audit projects and administrative tasks,
Internal Audit (IA) staff completed the evaluation of the Procure to Pay processes for
Professional Services administered by the Planning and Resources Department, this review falls
under the comprehensive Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit to provide
recommendations to improve the timeliness of vendor payments. IA is also providing a status
update on the 56 audit recommendations provided in the Review of the Procure to Pay processes
for Chemicals and the Review of the Procure to Pay processes for Professional Services under
the Engineering and Construction Management Department. Other audit projects are also
discussed in detail in this status report. IA continues to participate in various committees and
discussions and assists with requests for review of Agency policies and procedures, and provides
recommendations to improve internal controls. The attached Quarterly Status Report provides
details of the activities during this quarter.

This is an information item.

N/A

N/A

06/06/22Audit

Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit

N Y

Manager Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The IA Status Report is consistent with the Agency's Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility,
Workplace Environment, and Business Practices by describing IAs progress in providing
independent evaluations and audit services of Agency financial and operational activities and
making recommendations for improvement, to promote a strong, ethical internal control
environment, safeguarding Agency's assets and fiscal health, providing recommendations to
improve processes and to assist management in achieving organizational goals and objectives.

On June 16, 2021 the Board of Directors approved the Fiscal Year 2021/22 Annual Audit Plan.

On December 8, 2021, the Board of Directors reconfirmed the approved Audit Committee and
IA Department Charters. The Charters require a Quarterly Status Report.

Attachment 1 - Internal Audit Department Status Report for June 2022
Attachment 2 - Article from BlueGrace Logistics - A Step-by-Step to Doing an Internal Audit of
Your Supply Chain (June 14, 2021)
Attachment 3 - Article from SupplyChain Management Review - Top 5 supply chain risks for
2022 (January 17, 2022)

Not Applicable

22124



 
 

Page 1 of 8 

 

Internal Audit Department 
Quarterly Status Report for June 2022 

Project: Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit Report -  
 Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Planning and Resources (P&R) 
 
Scope: 
The objective of the audit was to evaluate the procure to pay processes related to the Professional/Consulting 
Services as administered by the P&R department and make recommendations to make the process more 
efficient to ensure payments are made timely. To-date, this is the fourth comprehensive internal audit 
completed under the Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit. 
 
Status:   COMPLETE 
The focus of this audit was to evaluate the Procure to Pay (P2P) processes for Professional Services, 
administered by P&R. In FY 2021/22 (as of April 16, 2022), P&R has processed 154 vendor payments in the 
amount of $2,075,075, for Agency related professional/consulting services Internal Audit (IA) analyzed the 
timeliness of payments and performed detailed audit tests on a select number of transactions to evaluate the 
amount of time required for each step in the process to pay an invoice.   
 
The complete audit report provides a detailed and comprehensive flowchart and narrative (table) documenting 
the P2P processes.  The report provides 15 audit observations and recommendations in the following areas:  
 

• Routing of invoices from AP to the department 

• Leveraging technologies (new and/or existing) to utilize workflows  

• Working close with the department(s) to identify unique transactions and the procurement 
instruments and/or processes for unique, uncommon situations/transactions 

• Reducing email notifications and communications  

• Leveraging the use of technology and reporting tools for better tracking, monitoring and follow-up 

• Documenting Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) and providing staff training  
 
IA will provide quarterly progress reports to provide a status on the corrective actions implemented.  
 

 
Project: Interim Audit Report:   

Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit:  
 Procure to Pay Processes for – Materials and Supplies 
  
Scope: 
The focus of this audit is to evaluate the Procure to Pay processes for the Agency’s Materials and Supplies, 
which are critical to the Agency because these are items needed to ensure the Agency’s treatment plants 
and equipment are running in good condition.  IA selected this area for review due to the complaints about 
several vendors of materials and supplies placing the Agency on Credit Hold.  When the Agency is placed on 
CH, the Agency is at risk of not being able to obtain the necessary equipment, tools and supplies.  
 
Status:   Interim Audit Report – Audit Still in Progress  
The audit is ongoing.  This is an interim audit report that documents the P2P process in flowchart and narrative 
format.  This memo also provides a preliminary list of vendors currently being analyzed.  The report provides 
some preliminary recommendations and a list of additional audit procedures to be performed.  IA plans to 
complete a detailed review of financial transactions for various material and supplies purchases to evaluate 
reasons for the delays in payments and provide recommendations to make the process more efficient.  
 
The final audit report is planned for completion: September 2022. 

 
 
 

Projects Completed This Period 



 
 

Page 2 of 8 

 

Internal Audit Department 
Quarterly Status Report for June 2022 

Project: Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit:  
 Quarterly Progress Update for all P2P Audit Recommendations 
 
Scope: 
The purpose of the Progress Update for all P2P Audit Recommendations is to provide a status on the 
implementation status of all audit recommendations provided through the P2P Audits:  

• Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report – Review of Procure to Pay Processes 
for Chemicals: 

o Dated November 24, 2021 
o Provided 35 audit recommendations  

 

• Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report - Review of Procure to Pay Processes 
for Professional Services – Engineering & Construction Management  

o Dated February 24, 2022 
o Provided 21 audit recommendations  

 
Status:   Completed June Progress Update and Ongoing 
 
As of May 16, 2022, the status of each review is as follows:  
 

 
 

 
 
The departments proposed action plans for all the outstanding recommendations are included in attachments 
under a separate cover.  IA will continue to provide quarterly progress reports until all audit recommendations 
have been addressed.  The complete report is under separate cover. 

 
Project: Internal Audit Annual Audit Plan for FY 2022/23 
  
Scope: 
According to the Board-approved Internal Audit Department Charter that states IA must annually submit a 
documented plan of proposed audit projects. The Plan allows the Manager of IA to carry out the 
responsibilities of the Internal Audit function by prioritizing projects and allocating necessary resources. The 
proposed projects are scheduled based on risk assessment to target the areas of highest risk in terms of 
impact and likelihood. The audits, and resulting recommendations are intended to assist Agency management 
and the Board in achieving organizational goals and objectives.  
 
Status:   COMPLETE 
For the FY 2022/23 Annual Audit Plan, IA is proposing the following audit projects: Accounts Payable 
Operational and Internal Control Audit, specifically, the completion of additional P2P reviews including the 
completion of P2P for Materials and Supplies, P2P for Laboratory equipment, P2P additional professional 
services and others if deemed necessary.  Additionally, IA is proposing the Information Systems Physical 
Inventory and Internal Controls Audit and follow-up, in addition to on-going and required projects, such as the 
annual ACFR review. The Annual Audit Plan is considered a flexible plan and projects can change or other 
projects with higher risks can take greater priority. Any changes or amendments to the Audit Plan are 
communicated to the Audit Committee through the Status Report or other amendment document.  The final 
Annual Audit Plan is provided under a separate cover.  



 
 

Page 3 of 8 

 

Internal Audit Department 
Quarterly Status Report for June 2022 

Project: Completion of Filing of Financial Audit and Single Audit for FY 2020/21  
 
Scope: 
Annually, IA takes the lead to file the Single Audit Reporting package and other Financial Statements/Reports 
with the various regulatory agencies. The Single Audit Reporting packages are due nine months after the 
entity’s fiscal year end according to 2 CFR 200.512, which is March 31st. For FY 2021, the due date was 
extended six (6) months beyond the normal due date, which is September 30, 2022, per the memorandum 
M-21-20 issued by the Office of Management and Budget (OMB).  
 
Status:   COMPLETE 
Every year in December, IA presents IA’s Quality Control Review of the Agency’s Annual Comprehensive 
Financial Report.  IA coordinates with the External Auditors and the Accounting Unit to provide IAs 
observations related to IAs quality control review.  Additionally, every year, once all audit reports have been 
completed by the External Auditor and approved for distribution by the Board of Directors, IA takes the lead 
to ensure these are filed with the required regulatory agencies.   
 
In May 2022, IA completed the required filings with the State Controller’s Office, State Water Resources 
Control Board and County of San Bernardino. Documents filed included: IEUA’s Single Audit Reporting 
Package*, Chino Basin Regional Financing Authority’s (CBRFA) Financial Statements, and the Inland Empire 
Regional Composting Authority’s (IERCA) Annual Financial Report for FY 20/21. 
(*Note: Single Audit Reporting package is comprised of the IEUA’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report and Single Audit) 

 
To complete the filing, IA had to coordinate with the Grants, Accounting and Records Management 
departments to gather the information needed for the filing. IA updated and notified each of the respective 
departments after the filing had been completed and provided the information for the Agency’s record 
retention requirements.  For the last two fiscal years (FY 2020 and 2021), due to the pandemic and working 
remotely, the filing of the Single Audit Reporting package and the other financial statements/reports were 
completed electronically and online using new technology tools, such One Drive and FTP (file transfer 
protocol) site, whereas previously the filings were completed using hard-copy documents.   
 
IA will continue to pursue filing these documents electronically and online, and to align with the Agency’s 
Business Goal of Environmental Stewardship.   

Project:  Audit Software Review Project: Workpaper and Data Analytics Software Tools 
 
Scope:   
IA is evaluating the costs and benefits of implementing automated audit tools to enhance audit processes. 
The Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) Audit Standard 1220.A2 –provides guidance for exercising due 
professional care for internal auditors.  IIA 1220.A2 states that internal auditors must consider the use of 
technology-based audit and other data analysis techniques.  
 
The use of technology, including, an automated working paper system as well the use of data analytics would 
enhance the audit capabilities and efficiency of the audit process.  Currently, IA is using Microsoft Office 
products. SharePoint is not geared toward auditing tools and creating audit workpapers. Resources, including 
costs and staff time will be necessary for implementation and maintenance. IA is carefully evaluating 
costs/benefits as well as risks and opportunities. Benefits and opportunities include time saving, quicker and 
more robust and larger scale analysis of transactions, sustainability, efficiencies, report production, 
dashboards, continuous monitoring, and storage, workpaper documentation and review administration. 
 
Status:   In Progress 
To date, IA has met with the three amin audit workpaper software vendors: AuditBoard, TeamMate and 
Workiva.  Each vendor has provided a quick version of a demo and preliminary information.   AuditBoard 

Projects in Progress 



 
 

Page 4 of 8 

 

Internal Audit Department 
Quarterly Status Report for June 2022 

provided a three-day sandbox opportunity.  Additional meetings will be scheduled to obtain additional 
information for further research and evaluation with all vendors.   
 
IA is also in the process of bringing on board the advice from IT and Contracts and Procurement. Any 
proposed plans will be discussed in detail with the GM and any affected Agency departments. IA will bring 
updates to the Audit Committee every quarter for review/discussion. Any proposed changes will be carefully 
evaluated, budgeted, and planned with sufficient advance time and notice.  
 

Project:  Strike Team, Asset Management Steering Committee & Safety Committee 
 
Scope:   
IA participates in meetings related to the Agency’s Asset Management program and the Safety programs to 
gain an understanding of the Agency’s priorities and understand Agency risks, represent the department and 
be a resource to provide feedback and recommendations.  
 
The Strike Team was implemented by the GM to assist in implementing audit recommendations and 
immediate changes as a result of the recommendations from the P2P Audits.   
 
Status:  On-going 
During this quarter, IA staff participated in weekly meetings with the Strike Team and monthly meetings for 
Asset Management Steering Committee and the Safety Committee (or more frequent when necessary). The 
meetings provide an opportunity for IA to gain an understanding of the Agency’s priorities and identify potential 
risks that assists in audit planning.  During the meetings, IA provides input and suggestions related to the 
initiatives underway. For example, Asset Management is currently developing an Asset onboarding and 
disposal policy and process and IA is very engaged with regards to prior audit recommendations provided.  
These meetings require approximately one hour each per month and sometimes more and do not 
compromise the independence of the auditors or the IA Department. 
 

 
Project:  Final Report: Review of Agency COVID-19 Expenses  
  
Scope:  
The original evaluation reviewed the expenses incurred by the Agency in response to the ongoing global 
pandemic (COVID-19).  Expenses include costs incurred to comply with health guidelines, to prevent the 
spread of COVID-19, protect Agency personnel and the public, cost related to transitioning employees to 
work from home and ensuring proper on-site precautions. The objectives of the review were to evaluate if the 
expenses met compliance requirements according to Agency policies and procedures, follow proper internal 
controls and contain the required supporting documentation.  
 
Status:   In Progress 
IA has provided detailed updates through this Status Report.  IA will coordinate with the Grants Department 
to provide a comprehensive update on all the details and information related to the Agency’s COVID-19 
expenses and the eligible/reimbursable amounts from the different funding sources.  This coordination/report 
will be scheduled through the Annual Audit Plan in June. 
 
A final report will be presented to the Audit Committee when final financial information is available. 
 

 
  



 
 

Page 5 of 8 

 

Internal Audit Department 
Quarterly Status Report for June 2022 

 

Project:   Follow-Up IT Equipment Audit – Integrated Systems Services (ISS) 
 
Scope:  In Progress 
To evaluate the status of the two open recommendations from the original Information Technology (IT) 
Equipment audit completed in 2012.  The recommendations are:  
 

• Original Recommendation # 3 (dated August 2012): ISS implement appropriate tracking systems that 
include relevant information on IT purchases (i.e., serial numbers, etc.), are updated timely and are 
complete and accurate. ISS should establish procedures to enter, modify, and delete information in 
the tracking systems that address areas such as timeliness for updates, responsibilities for 
maintaining the systems, and the types of items included in the tracking system. 
 

• Original Recommendation # 1 (dated November 2012): ISS should ensure that any services procured 
with P-Cards are expressly authorized by the Manager of CAP, CFO, AGM, or GM prior to committing 
to services.  

 
Status:   
IA will meet with ISS to evaluate the remaining two recommendations.  Based on the results of the discussions 
with the Operations Division and ISS Management, IA will assess the feasibility to expand the scope of the 
audit to evaluate additional areas to provide added value to the department and Agency. 
 
On July 26, 2021, ISS initiated an inventory of Technology assets assigned to Agency staff. The purpose of 
the inventory is to update asset records of Technology equipment issued through the department. A 
technology asset inventory assists in ensuring financial reporting is accurate and assists in maintaining 
physical accountability of the assets. Technology assets include: desktop computers, laptops, monitors, 
printers, docking stations, tablets, mobile phones, Jetpacks, and other computer peripherals.  
 
Additional details will be documented in the next Internal Audit Department Quarterly Status Report. 

The IAD Charter requires IA to follow-up on the status of outstanding audit recommendations to determine if 
corrective actions have been implemented.  A recommendation is considered “outstanding” if it requires 
corrective action to address the finding and risk observed.  IA performs follow up reviews, to determine that 
risks have been addressed and clears the recommendation when deemed appropriate.  Follow-up reviews 
are scheduled through the Board-approved Annual Audit Plan. Executive Management supports the 
implementation efforts of the recommendations previously provided and/or the development of alternative 
controls to address the original risks identified.  
 
Status: On-going 
As of June 2022, there are 95 outstanding audit recommendations. Details about each of the outstanding 
recommendations is submitted with the Annual Audit Plan each June.  This summary provides an updated 
count of the outstanding recommendations. This summary includes new recommendations provided during 
this fiscal year as well as considers any recommendations cleared during the year (up to the prior quarter).  
A follow up review is typically scheduled between 12–24 months from the date of the original audit, to allow 
time for full implementation. If a recommendation is deemed not implemented, the recommendation remains 
outstanding or alternate controls to mitigate any risks are evaluated to determine if the risk has been 
addressed and the recommendation is no longer applicable.  A follow up review is also scheduled sooner, if 
requested by the Audit Committee or Executive Management and/or the department audited.  The audited 
business units are encouraged to submit additional information for IA review if they determine the 
recommendation has been satisfied.  
 

Report on Open Audit Recommendations as of June 2022 



 
 

Page 6 of 8 

 

Internal Audit Department 
Quarterly Status Report for June 2022 

Area Audited Report Issued Date 
No. of Recs. 

Remaining to be 
Verified by IA* 

Accounts Payable Follow-Up  
(Deferred Recommendations related to Agency Policies) 

August 29, 2013 2 

Follow-Up – IT Equipment Audit – ISS  February 29, 2016 2 

Follow-Up – IT Equipment Audit – FAD December 5, 2016 6 

2017 Petty Cash Audit & Follow-Up Review June 5, 2017 7 

Water Use Efficiency Programs Audit June 5, 2017 6 

Contracts and Procurement Follow-Up Audit August 30, 2017 1 

Payroll Operations Audit August 30, 2017 5  

Procurement Card Audit March 1, 2018 7 

Wire Transfers Audit March 1, 2018 4 

Inter-fund Transactions Audit August 30, 2018 1 

Accounts Payable Follow-Up Audit May 30, 2019 4 

Voyager Fuel Card Audit May 30, 2019 4 

Human Resources Audit: Hiring and Promotions 
Operations Review 

December 2, 2019 7 

Recycled Water Revenues Audit  May 28, 2020 3  

Human Resources: Workload Indicators Review May 29, 2020 2 

Human Resources Operational Audit: Administration of 
Employee Training and Development Programs 

August 31, 2020 5 

Agency Vehicle Operational Follow-up audit:  
Review of Vehicle Inventory Procedures 

May 27, 2021 1 

Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit 
Report Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Chemicals 

November 24, 2021 13 

Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit 
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Professional Services 
– Engineering & Construction Management  

February 24, 2022 15 

Regional Contract Review – Final Audit Report (planned for full 
implementation with the renegotiation of the Regional Contract) December 16, 2015 31 

Total Outstanding Audit Recommendations 126 

  
*The Outstanding Recommendations Table does not update the status of recommendations resolved by follow-up audits during the 
current quarter or add any new recommendations resulting from the projects completed during this quarter (as noted in this Status 
Report).  The table is revised for those changes once all items have been received by the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors 
which is when items are determined to be final.  

 
As of June 2022, 126 recommendations remain outstanding:  

o 28 relate to the Procure to Pay audits completed, these are currently followed-up on, quarterly 

o 31 relate to the renegotiation of the Regional Contract,  
o 20 relate to required Policy updates to Agency policies, HR is working with a consultant to evaluate 
o 47 recommendations are eligible for follow up evaluation. 

Ongoing  
IA perform special reviews and projects including analyzing transactions, evaluating documents and policies, 
verifying information, assisting with interpretation of Agency Policies or other required procedures, and providing 
recommendations and feedback on results of the analysis, engaging necessary assistance if and/or when 
necessary, reporting to the General Manager and the Audit Committee.  These services are provided according to 
the IA and Audit Committee Charters, the Annual Audit Plan, and/or best practices. Special Projects can be short 
or long-term projects, typically requiring more than 80 hours of staff time and requiring setting aside or delaying 
work on scheduled audit projects. The scope of the review is not generally known, and the work must be handled 
with the highest degree of confidentiality and care, as with all audit projects.  Special Projects are usually considered 
highly confidential. 

Special Projects 



 
 

Page 7 of 8 

 

Internal Audit Department 
Quarterly Status Report for June 2022 

Ongoing  
IA assists Agency Management with requests for analysis, evaluations, and verification of information, assist 
with the interpretation of policies and procedures, and/or provide review and feedback on new policies or 
procedures. Additionally, staff assists with interviews, document evaluations and discussions when asked 
and time permits. These services are provided according to the IAD Charter, the Annual Audit Plan, and best 
practices.  The management request projects are short-term projects, typically lasting no more than 75 hours 
where IA determines it has the necessary staff, skills, and resources to provide the requested assistance 
without having to delay/defer scheduled audits and priority projects.  The scope of each review is agreed 
upon between the department manager requesting the evaluation, review, analysis, or assistance, the 
Manager of IA and when deemed appropriate by the Leadership Team and department Managers.  
 
During this quarter, IA staff assisted the Finance and Accounting Department with interviews for Financial 
Analyst, the Accounting Supervisor and Intern positions.  All three IAD staff members participated in the 
review of resumes and applications and various scheduled interviews of candidates.  The process requires 
time to review information and document details of the interviews and review as well as meet with other 
evaluators to discuss the requirements of the position, etc.  

IA is providing information on Supply Chain Risk, a current audit trend.  This is for information, attachments 
to the complete article are included at the end of this Quarterly Status Report.  
 
Supply chain risk has been in the news lately. Supply chain risk exposure has impacted many consumers 
and organizations with delays of needed goods to continue essential processes.  Improving your supply 
chain reduces the operating costs that add value to the organization.  A recent logistics article titled “A Step-
by-Step Guide to Doing an Internal Audit of Your Supply Chain” by Blue Grace [1] discusses how Internal 
Audit can help an organization develop appropriate supply chain risk management program.   Some the key 
attributes noted in the article are the following: 
 

• Reviewing and understanding supply chains, including their strengths and weaknesses, in 
developing markets, to validate monitoring programs 

• Working with the company’s supply chain specialists to help develop a monitoring process that can 
be repeated 

• Helping to identify which suppliers are critical 

• Assessing which suppliers may be vulnerable to threats and helping draw up a residual mitigation 
profile 

• Identifying strong risk control procedures 

• Helping to develop key analytic tools and techniques 

• Aiding with compliance monitoring 
 

The Supply Chain Management Review reported the Top five (5) supply chain risks for 2022 [2] are (1) 
Worldwide Water Instability, (2) Ocean Freight Bottlenecks, (3) The Continuously Changing Workplace, (4) 
Just-in-Time Shifts to Just-in Case and (5) Increased Regulatory Scrutiny. Organizations have an incredible 
opportunity to partner with the Internal Audit function to assess supply chain risk and develop a risk mitigation 
action plan to reduce risk exposure and identify process improvements.   
 
 

[1] A step-by-step guide to doing an internal audit of your supply chain. BlueGrace Logistics. (2021, June 14). Retrieved May 3, 2022, from  
https://mybluegrace.com/bluegrace-logistics/a-step-by-step-guide-to-doing-an-internal-audit-of-your-supply-chain/  
 
[2] Forger, G. (2022, January 18). Top 5 supply chain risks for 2022.  Recently Filed RSS. Retrieved May 16, 2022, from 
http://www.scmr.com/article/top_5_supply_chain_risks_for_2022  
 

Management Requests  

Audit News & Trends 

https://mybluegrace.com/bluegrace-logistics/a-step-by-step-guide-to-doing-an-internal-audit-of-your-supply-chain/
http://www.scmr.com/article/top_5_supply_chain_risks_for_2022


 
 

Page 8 of 8 

 

Internal Audit Department 
Quarterly Status Report for June 2022 

As required by the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing, and the IAD 
Charter, auditors must regularly enhance their knowledge, skills, and other competencies through continuing 
professional development. Audit standards require practicing internal auditors attend, at minimum of 40 
continuing professional education credits every 2 years.  During the past quarter, IA staff has continued to 
stay abreast of industry developments through review of industry literature and participation in on-line 
webinars. Most training is obtained through the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA), the global association for 
the profession of internal auditing, and most virtual trainings have been complimentary.  
 
All training hours met the requirements of Continuing Professional Education (CPE) and earned CPE credits. 
These highlighted trainings are in addition to mandatory IEUA Safety Trainings and other Agency training 
related to finance, procurements, etc. During this quarter, IA staff attended the following:  
 

• April: the Manager and a Senior attended a full-day, in-person conference titled “Tools for Auditors” 
and provided 8 sessions in fraud, ethics, cybersecurity, data analytics and more.  The education 
event was hosted by the IIA Inland Empire Chapter and took place at the Agency’s facilities.  The IIA- 
IE appreciates IEUA for the opportunity to host onsite, this was the chapter’s first in person event in 
over two years and had a record attendance of over 45 attendees.   

 

• April: one Senior attended the 3-day, in-person annual ISACA (Information Systems Audit and 
Control Association ®) Conference in Los Angeles.  The training provided various sessions related 
to information technology audits, risks, and trends. 
 

• April: the Manager attended IIA’s Leadership Conference in Florida.  The conference attracted over 
300 IIA chapter leaders from around the country, included valuable sessions related to leadership 
and all the latest trends of the IIA and internal auditing as well as resources for professional auditors.  
 

• May: the Manager and one Senior attended a 6-hour, virtual training hosted by 5 IIA chapters and 
provided education sessions in cybersecurity, technology, data analytics, internal controls and more.   

 
All members of the IA team participate in the local chapters of the IIA in an officer/board capacity. All members 
of the IA team have various certifications and higher degrees as required by the IIA standards and the Charter. 
 
The Internal Audit Department is staffed as follows: 

• 1 Full-time Manager of Internal Audit 

• 2 Full-time Senior Internal Auditors 
 

• Monday, September 12, 2022 - Regularly Audit Committee Meeting 

• Monday, December 5, 2022 – Regularly Scheduled Audit Committee Meeting  

• Monday, March 6, 2023 – Regularly Scheduled Audit Committee Meeting 

Future Audit Committee Meetings 

Internal Audit Staffing and Professional Development 



A Step-by-Step Guide to Doing an Internal 
Audit of Your Supply Chain  

 

While all facets of the modern business are important, arguably the most 
important to any retail, manufacturing, or goods based service is their supply 
chain. The supply chain serves as the backbone of these companies and has 
a significant impact on the company’s business strategy which directly affects 
its operation and operational costs. Additionally, the performance of the 
supply chain has a direct impact on a company’s ability to provide services to 
their customers and create additional value via services offered or simply 
through reliability. With the multitude of changes that have been occurring 
within the logistics, trade, and freight industries now, more than ever, is an 
opportune time to conduct or review the process of internal audit of your 
supply chain. 

An internal supply chain audit is one of the most powerful 
methods of evaluating and possibly improving your supply chain, 
reduce operations costs, and increase competitive advantages. 

An internal supply chain audit is one of the most powerful methods of 
evaluating and possibly improving your supply chain, reduce operations costs, 



and increase competitive advantages. The goal of the internal audit is to help 
you find weaknesses within your supply chain and correct pain points, 
bottlenecks to increase supply chain flexibility, agility, and overall efficiency. 
To make the most out of your audit and its results, it’s important to understand 
that the supply chain isn’t a stand-alone, isolated feature of your business. In 
all actuality, the supply chain is suffused in every aspect of your business. As 
such the supply chain needs to be viewed between all participating companies 
and suppliers throughout the supply chain, with solutions applied from a 
holistic approach. 

Why an Internal Audit is Necessary for Your Supply Chain 

For most companies, audits are typically part of the normal routine, either for 
financial records or for physical inventory. The entire purpose behind an audit 
is to make sure things are where they should be and that everyone is playing 
by the same rules. “Internal auditing is defined as an independent, objective 
assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and improve an 
organization’s operations. It helps an organization to accomplish its objectives 
by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the 
effectiveness of risk management, control, and governance processes,” as 
defined by The Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA). 

This is especially important when trying to maintain retail 
compliance, for example, with increasing customer demands like 
On Time; In Full (OTIF) or Must Arrive By Date (MABD). 

Simply put, an internal audit is a multi-step process that is a means of 
determining whether your current systems and operations are in compliance 
with your company’s predetermined operating procedures and regulations. 
This is especially important when trying to maintain retail compliance, for 
example, with increasing customer demands like On Time; In Full (OTIF) or 
Must Arrive By Date (MABD). Conducting an internal audit does more than 
just evaluates the supply chain, it also takes a necessary look at the 
interaction between other aspects of the organization such as the accounting 
and financial systems, practices, and procedures. For example, are your 
planners and purchasers communicating properly, not only with each other 
but with the production floor and shipping department? Are parts coming in 
with enough lead time that items can be manufactured and shipped according 
to customer requirements? An internal audit is important because it allows the 
company executives and logistics decision makers to examine the 
effectiveness of their business operations and controls and applications of 



new policies. Over time, establishing those best practices means a more 
competitive and more profitable company in the future. 

Things to Consider Before you Start the Audit 

Performing an audit is one thing, but knowing what areas you need to be 
focusing on is something else entirely. While every audit should be more or 
less tailored to the specific needs of an individual organization, here is the 
basic framework for initiating an audit that needs to be included: 

• Audit Planning: Internal auditors should have a plan in place well before 
the actual auditing begins. 

• Examining and Evaluating Information: Internal auditors should have a 
standardized criterion to compare findings against. 

• Communicating Results: Audit should have a clear and concise method 
of reporting their findings. 

• Follow Up: Internal auditors should follow up in a timely manner to ensure 
that appropriate actions have been taken to correct audit findings. 

This framework also serves as a support system for corporate managers and 
allows managers of larger production systems to delegate the oversight of the 
audit to the internal audit department. This is important for a few reasons: 

• Operating Complexity: Automated data processing has increased the 
levels of complexity when analyzing data, a task better suited for those 
who know what to look for. 

• Decentralization: Given that supply chains are prone to be decentralized 
in terms of a physical location due to globalization. 

• Lack of Expertise: As the adage goes, stick to what you know. Leave 
those auditors in charge of the audit for the best quality audit. 

With the right framework in place for the audit to commence, let’s take a look 
at the tasks involved for the actual audit. 

Supply Chain Structure and Internal Audit Tasks 

Like we mentioned above, every company is different and, as a result, the 
needs for every individual supply chain will vary. So while there is no hard and 
fast or “Use audit ‘A’ for Supply chain system ‘1’ ” convenient method of doing 
things, there are some common focal points that are applicable for just about 
every organization and style of the supply chain. The supply chain 
management processes identified by The Global Supply Chain Forum are: 



• Customer Relationship Management 
• Supplier Relationship Management 
• Customer Service Management 
• Demand Management 
• Order Fulfillment 
• Manufacturing Flow Management 
• Product Development and Commercialization 
• Returns Management 

All of these processes are hallmarks of a healthy supply chain and also 
indicative of the successful supply chain management. Here again, we can 
see all of the links that connect the supply chain to every other facet of the 
business. Another benefit to performing an internal audit is that offers to 
perfect opportunity to increase the synergy between these various 
departments. For CFO’s and supply chain leaders, this means that supply 
chain management deals with total business excellence and represents a new 
way of managing the business and relationships with vendors, suppliers, and 
partners. An internal audit can help a company in finding answers to crucial 
questions about managing success factors of supply chain excellence, of 
which these can be divided into five main sections: 

• Strategy – To determine if the enterprise has a clear strategy tuned to 
business expectations and focused on profitably servicing customer 
requirements 

• Organization – To determine if an effective organization structure exists 
enabling the enterprise to work with its partners to achieve its supply 
chain goals 

• Process – To determine if the enterprise has excellent processes for 
implementing its strategy, embracing all plan-source-make-deliver 
operations 

• Information – To determine if the enterprise has reliable information and 
enabling technology to support effective supply chain planning, execution, 
and decision-making 

• Performance – To determine if the enterprise is managing supply chain 
performance in ways that will increase the bottom line, cash flows and 
shareholder returns 

Supply Chain Risk Management 

As much as we wish we could, the ability to see and accurately predict the 
future still eludes us to this day. In the end, it all comes down we can 
optimistically refer to as an “educated guess”.  With that being said, even the 



most educated guesses can’t predict the weather or a broken down truck. This 
means that within every supply chain, there will always be an element of risk. 
That risk represents any number of things that can go wrong within your 
supply chain and halt or delay your shipments. For this very reason, risk 
management is incredibly important when evaluating your supply chain. 

An internal audit can provide business leaders with the necessary 
framework to develop an appropriate supply chain risk 
management program. 

Risk management is a huge proponent of supply chain health, especially 
given the instabilities in the global marketplace created by political uncertainty, 
trade tariffs, etc. An internal audit can provide business leaders with the 
necessary framework to develop an appropriate supply chain risk 
management program. This is how your supply chain audit can also help with 
risk reduction and increased security: 

• Reviewing and understanding supply chains, including their strengths and 
weaknesses, in developing markets, to validate monitoring programs 

• Working with the company’s supply chain specialists to help develop a 
monitoring process that can be repeated 

• Helping to identify which suppliers are critical 
• Assessing which suppliers may be vulnerable to threats and helping draw 

up a residual mitigation profile 
• Identifying strong risk control procedures 
• Helping to develop key analytic tools and techniques 
• Aiding with compliance monitoring 

Ideally, the risk mitigation will also allow companies to increase supply chain 
efficiency to the point where on hand stock can be reduced. While having 
excessive stock might create a buffer in time where shipments are running 
late or capacity is tight, that excess can also eat into company profit margins. 
Additionally, having a well-running supply chain vastly lowers the chance for 
disruptions, operating costs, and other unexpected costs such as 
chargebacks, detention fees. 

Despite the cause, however, the results are often the same, a 
drastic slow down of operations and a huge impact on customer 
satisfaction and profitability. 

Supply chain management is a very complex structure of activities with cross-
functional processes, and it presents one of the most important functions in 



the company since it is directly linked to all functions of the company. Supply 
chain problems can result from any number of things including natural 
disasters, labor disputes, supplier bankruptcy, an act of war or terrorism, 
systems breakdowns, procurement failures, and other causes. Despite the 
cause, however, the results are often the same, a drastic slow down of 
operations and a huge impact on customer satisfaction and profitability. The 
supply chain internal audit aims to support managers in process optimization 
and above all in cost reduction which result from an uncertain environment by 
evaluating and directing management towards approaches which will prevent 
or reduce negative effects. After analyzing definitions and some of the 
standards of internal audit, it can be concluded that this process can improve 
effectiveness and efficiency, and by that, the performances of many functions 
within the organization. High-impact supply chains are more competitive and 
are capable of winning market share and customer loyalty, creating 
shareholder value, extending the strategic capability and reach of the 
business. Independent research shows that excellent supply chain 
management can yield: 

• 25-50% reduction in total supply chain costs 
• 25-60% reduction in inventory holding 
• 25-80% increase in forecast accuracy 
• 30-50% improvement in order-fulfillment cycle time 
• 20% increase in after-tax free cash flows 

To increase supply chain strength, agility, and overall integrity, companies 
should develop a framework for a structured approach to ongoing risk 
identification and management. This will enable businesses to proactively 
address organizational supply chain risks on a periodic basis – a practice that 
affords stronger company and brand protection against supply chain risk 
gaps. 

[1] A step-by-step guide to doing an internal audit of your supply chain . BlueGrace Logistics. (2021, June 14). Retrieved May 3, 

2022, from https://mybluegrace.com/bluegrace-logistics/a-step-by-step-guide-to-doing-an-internal-audit-of-your-supply-chain/  
 

https://mybluegrace.com/bluegrace-logistics/a-step-by-step-guide-to-doing-an-internal-audit-of-your-supply-chain/






INFORMATION 
ITEM 

3I 



INNOVATIVE FEDERAL STRATEGIES, LLC 
 Comprehensive Government Relations 

511 C Street, NE • Washington, DC 20002 • 202-347-5990 • Fax 202-347-5941 

MEMORANDUM 

To: IEUA Community and Legislative Affairs Committee 

From: Letitia White, Jean Denton, and Drew Tatum 

Date: May 26, 2022 

Re: May Monthly Legislative Update  

Top Democrats Speak Out after Draft Supreme Court Ruling Released 

In early May, House Speaker Nancy Pelosi (D-CA) and Senate Majority Leader Chuck Schumer 

(D-NY) offered harsh criticism after a purported draft majority option that would overturn Roe v. 

Wade was leaked by Politico. 

The draft option was written by Justice Samuel Alito and declares the 1992 decision in Planned 

Parenthood v. Casey has no constitutional grounding. The court is expected to release a final 

option on cases heard this term before the end of June when the court takes its traditional 

summer break.  

Both Schumer and Pelosi said the draft ruling would “inflict the greatest restriction of rights in 

the past fifty years — not just on women but on all Americans.” 

In a joint statement they said, “The Republican-appointed Justices’ reported votes to overturn 

Roe v. Wade would go down as an abomination, one of the worst and most damaging decisions 

in modern history.” 

The leak is unprecedented as the Supreme Court hasn’t experienced leaks of Justices’ positions, 

much less draft options of the Court, prior to the public release of those documents.  

It has also caused fierce debate and pushback from Democrats who are now calling to remove 

the legislative filibuster to pass legislation codifying Roe vs. Wade. However, they would need 

total unity from their caucus – which they don’t have.  

Earlier this year, a vote in the Senate to codify abortion rights failed with a 46-48 vote. Senator 

Joe Manchin (D-WV) voted with Republicans.  

Democrats are now using this ruling to energize their voting base as they head into midterm 

elections this November.  

Senate Panel Advanced Water Projects Bill 

The Senate Environment and Public Works Committee took an important step in advancing 

biennial legislation to authorize water resources projects.  



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 
 

IFS Monthly Report 2 | P a g e  

 

 

After EPW Committee Chairman Tom Carper (D-DE) released draft text, the Committee met on 

May 4, 2022 to report the legislation to the full Senate. It advanced out of the EPW Committee 

unanimously.  

 

The Water Resources Development Act (WRDA) of 2022 would authorize much-needed 

investments in the projects and programs of the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Corps) across 

the country. For the first time since 2007, the bill authorizes new environmental infrastructure 

projects and modifies existing ones. It also directs the Corps to expedite the completion of 

several ongoing studies and projects that are critical to addressing coastal and inland flood risk 

mitigation, navigation, and ecosystem restoration. 

 

“Our committee has shown, yet again, that we can come together across the aisle to help meet 

the pressing water infrastructure needs of the American people,” Senator Carper said. “This 

year’s reauthorization of the Water Resources Development Act would authorize the 

modification of existing and construction of new, critical Army Corps projects in Delaware and 

throughout the country — projects that will significantly improve quality of life, create good-

paying jobs, and protect communities against the threats of climate change. I am proud of our 

committee’s bipartisan work in advancing this legislation and look forward to its consideration 

by the full Senate.”  

 

In addition to key policy reforms, WRDA 2022 authorizes 36 new Corps feasibility studies and 

authorizes or modifies 21 projects for construction. The legislation also includes authorizations 

to study modifications to existing projects.  

 

The legislation would facilitate the timely completion of much-needed improvements to the 

country’s inland waterways system by reducing the strain on the Inland Waterways Trust Fund. 

It also proposes to address harbor deepening and maintenance needs for commercially significant 

ports and authorizes new avenues for the provision of assistance to underserved community 

harbors that are critical to local and regional authorities.  

 

The legislation also aims to improve inland and coastal resilience and restore ecosystems through 

investments in the protection and restoration of shorelines and riverbanks. The bill streamlines 

the implementation of shoreline protection and restoration projects to aid communities most 

vulnerable to coastal storms and enables communities to partner with the Corps to develop water 

resources projects that directly address risks of extreme weather.  

 

The bill also authorizes the Corps to do significant work to mitigate the impact of repetitive 

drought conditions and conserve water supplies. 

 

The House Transportation and Infrastructure Committee released their own version of the Water 

Resources Development Act in May, marking up the legislation on Wednesday, May 18. Similar 

to the Senate version of the legislation, the House advanced their version of the bill by voice 

vote.  

 



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 
 

IFS Monthly Report 3 | P a g e  

 

The House’s bill authorizes the construction of 16 pending Corps Chief’s Reports received since 

the enactment of WRDA 2020 and 72 feasibility studies for water resources development 

projects, including those identified through the public review process established by section 7001 

of the Water Resources Reform and Development Act of 2014. 

 

The Legislation directs the Corps to expedite the completion of 15 feasibility studies currently 

underway. It also authorizes critical water and wastewater infrastructure assistance for 

community driven projects carried out by the Corps throughout the nation.  

 

Both the House and Senate are expected to consider their versions of the legislation during the 

coming months. Once both chambers have passed their respective bills, the legislation will be 

conferenced and a final conference report will be sent to both chambers for adoption. Congress 

has successfully enacted four consecutive WRDA bills on a biennial basis going back to 2014.  

 

 

COVID Aid Funding Deal Needs to be Reworked after Funding Spent 

Lawmakers will have to renegotiate a Covid-19 therapeutics and vaccine funding deal because 

billions of dollars designated as offsets have already been spent, key senators said. 

 

Senators struck a bipartisan deal in April to spend $10 billion on Covid resources, and to offset 

its cost by rescinding previously appropriated funds. 

 

Now, some of the key authors of the initial deal, Sens. Mitt Romney (R-UT) and Roy Blunt (R-

MO), said lawmakers will have to resume negotiations on the offsets when they eventually 

decide to take up a Covid bill. Between $2 billion and $4 billion of the $10 billion in funds 

designated as offsets have already been spent.  

 

Blunt added that the previous agreement to spend $10 billion overall may also need to change. 

The needs have increased over nearly two months, he said. 

 

White House officials have repeatedly asked for more than $20 billion in Covid aid. 

 

The development adds another challenge to the process of agreeing to a Covid bill, which has 

been delayed due to fights over offsets, immigration, international aid, and a general lack of 

motivation among lawmakers. 

 

Romney said lawmakers will have to renegotiate the offsets, but that it won’t happen until Senate 

Majority Leader Chuck Schumer (D-NY) looks to take up a bill. He said he thinks lawmakers 

will be able to find enough new offsets when they’re motivated. 

 

“We’ll probably need to update the pay-fors, but so far Leader Schumer has not been willing to 

put the bill on the floor,” Romney said. “Until he does, it’s kind of moot.” 

 

 



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 
 

IFS Monthly Report 4 | P a g e  

 

DHS Secretary Faces Congressional Border Pushback  

Department of Homeland Security Secretary Alejandro Mayorkas faced tough questions from 

House and Senate lawmakers this month about how his department is handling the crisis at the 

border. Secretary Mayorkas appeared Wednesday before two Senate Committees, following 

three House hearings during the prior week.  

 

Lawmakers from both parties argued the Department of Homeland Security isn’t prepared for an 

impending increase in migrant arrivals the agency expects when pandemic-related Title 42 

border restrictions end. 

 

“I remain concerned about the department’s ability to get additional, much-needed resources to 

the border,” said Sen. Maggie Hassan (D-NH), one of several Senate Democrats who’ve raised 

concerns about ending the public health authority.  

 

Bipartisan concern over the planned termination derailed a vote last month on a Covid-19 aid 

package continued to complicate the Senate’s effort to advance both Covid and Ukraine aid 

legislation. Title 42 has allowed border officials to immediately expel asylum-seekers and other 

migrants since 2020. The Biden administration has wanted to lift the policy this month, though 

court challenges may delay the timeline. 

 

Sen. Kyrsten Sinema (D-AZ), who co-sponsored a bill to keep Title 42 in place, argued DHS 

lacks capacity to handle an increase in migrant arrivals. The agency has modeled scenarios of up 

to 18,000 migrants arriving a day after the policy ends, up from about 7,000 a day at the southern 

border in March. 

 

Mayorkas told lawmakers on the Senate Homeland Security and Governmental Affairs 

Committee and the Appropriations Homeland Security Subcommittee that DHS has already 

surged personnel to the border and would try to move money within the agency to address 

growing needs at the southern border. Sen. Shelley Moore Capito (R-WV), the top Republican 

on the subcommittee, raised concerns about leaving other parts of DHS’s mission under-funded. 

 

Secretary Mayorkas said he would request supplemental funding from Congress if needed, a 

prospect that has already raised some skepticism in the House. He also repeatedly pressed 

lawmakers to pass legislation to improve the immigration system and relieve stress on the 

border. 

 

Mayorkas tried to put to rest at least one border-related complaint, telling the appropriations 

panel the Department of Veterans Affairs would not divert resources to help with southern 

border management. Republicans seized on the prospect earlier in the month and introduced 

legislation to block the VA from spending money on border assistance. 

 

Outrage over the border was partially overshadowed during the Senate hearings by DHS’s latest 

politically volatile move: the creation of a disinformation board that Republicans have compared 

to an Orwellian “Ministry of Truth.” Mayorkas tried to ease concerns by stressing that the 

initiative simply aims to establish standards and best practices for DHS’s longstanding efforts to 

fight disinformation that threatens homeland security. 



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 
 

IFS Monthly Report 5 | P a g e  

 

 

Note that the White House has been blocked from rescinding the Title 42 policy by a federal 

judge. On Friday, May 20, a federal judge out of Louisiana blocked the Biden administration 

from wining down the pandemic-related border restriction that allows for the immediate 

expulsion of asylum-seekers and other migrants. 

 

The preliminary injunction, issued by the US District Court for the Western District of 

Louisiana, provides a more permanent stop to the administration’s plans while the lawsuit led by 

a multi-state coalition of Republican attorneys general plays out. 

  

Judge Robert R. Summerhays granted a temporary restraining order April 27 that prevented the 

Department of Homeland Security from phasing out Title 42 ahead of its planned end date. 

  

The controversy surrounding Title 42 had been holding up COVID-relief legislation. Despite the 

court’s ruling, Republicans are not expected to drop demands for a floor vote on a Title 42 

related amendment as part of considering additional coronavirus relief. 

 

 

EPA to Keep Obama-era Smog Standards 

This month, the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) suggested it will keep an Obama-era 

rule on ground-level ozone pollution. 

 

The draft assessment is the first step in officially keeping the standard in place. In June, the 

EPA’s Clean Air Scientific Advisory Committee will meet to make a decision. EPA 

Administrator Michael Regan must then sign off. 

 

However, some environmentalists and anti-air pollution groups expressed concern as the rule 

affirms a final decision made by the Trump EPA in December 2020.  

 

The 2015 standards established a maximum of 70 parts per billion for the ozone – the primary 

component of smog. Environmentalists have pushed to have this reduced to 60.  

 

The Sierra Club’s Senior Director of Energy Campaigns said, “Suggesting the EPA uphold the 

grossly outdated standards for smog pollution that have resulted in most Americans facing 

unhealthy summer air quality just as families and communities are hoping to spend more time 

outdoors, is not only wrong, it’s dangerous. Climate change is making summertime smog 

pollution even worse, further burdening communities across the country – in particular Black and 

Brown communities – that have lived under the constant weight of dangerous pollutants driving 

respiratory illness and asthma rates. We urge the Biden Administration to apply a more sound 

scientific approach.” 

 

 

Five GOP Lawmakers Subpoenaed by January 6 Panel  

The House Select Committee to Investigate the January 6th 2021 Attack on the Capitol issued 

subpoenas for five sitting Republican Members of Congress. Those subpoenaed include: 

Minority Leader Kevin McCarthy (R-CA), Representative Scott Perry (R-PA), Representative 



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 
 

IFS Monthly Report 6 | P a g e  

 

Jim Jordan (R-OH), Representative Andy Biggs (R-AZ), and Representative Mo Brookes (R-

AL).  

 

This is the first time the Select Committee has sent subpoenas to their own colleagues in the 

House. 

 

Representative Bennie Thompson (D-MS), the chairman of the panel, said that the committee 

decided to send them after the Republican members refused to speak voluntarily.  

 

“The Select Committee has learned that several of our colleagues have information relevant to 

our investigation into the attack on January 6th and the events leading up to it,” Thompson said 

in a statement. “Before we hold our hearings next month, we wished to provide members the 

opportunity to discuss these matters with the committee voluntarily,” Thompson said of the 

upcoming June public hearings.  

 

Thompson noted that the Committee had previously asked these members for their voluntary 

cooperation, but noted that they refused to comply with that request and said the committee was 

“forced to take this step to help ensure the committee uncovers facts concerning January 6th.”  

 

The Committee stated that Leader McCarthy was in communication with the White House 

before and after the Capitol attack.  

 

The panel went on to say that Representative McCarthy, “…claimed to have had a discussion 

with the President in the immediate aftermath of the attack during which President Trump 

admitted some culpability for the attack.” 

 

This is likely a reference to an interview in which McCarthy said, “I say [President Trump] has 

responsibility. He told me personally that he does have some responsibility. I think a lot of 

people do.” 

 

Prior, the panel has focused its subpoenas on non-lawmakers like members of the Trump 

administration. It is rare for Committees, outside the House Ethics Committee, to subpoena 

sitting Members of Congress.   

 

Several of the lawmakers subpoenaed, including McCarthy have already indicated they will 

challenge them in court as other witnesses have done. If the lawmakers refuse to cooperate, the 

Committee could refer their non-compliance to the House Ethics Committee, which has an equal 

number of Republicans and Democrats. Given the makeup of the Ethics Committee, the Select 

Committee could also seek to have the House hold those Members in contempt, but it is unclear 

if the Department of Justice or Federal Courts would want to get involved in a Legislative 

Branch dispute.  

 

 

Department of Interior Announces 46 Water Infrastructure Projects Will Be Funded  

The Department of Interior announced they will be allocating funding to prove water 

infrastructure in 46 projects across 11 states.  



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 
 

IFS Monthly Report 7 | P a g e  

 

 

The funding will be around $240.4 million from the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law and will 

include projects such as canal lining repairs and upgrades and replacements to water pipelines. 

Of the projects there will be canal repair projects in Arizona, California, Idaho, Nevada, and 

Wyoming and pipeline repairs in Nebraska.  

 

Interior Secretary Deb Haaland said in a statement, “President Biden’s Bipartisan Infrastructure 

Law is making a historic investment in drought resilience and water infrastructure. As western 

communities face growing challenges accessing water in the wake of record drought, these 

investments in our aging water infrastructure will safeguard community water supplies and 

revitalize water delivery systems.” 

 

David Palumbo, the Bureau of Reclamation’s Acting Commissioner added, “The Bureau of 

Reclamation, in partnership with states and local water districts receiving municipal water and 

irrigation water from federally-owned projects, is responsible for much of the water 

infrastructure in the West. These water systems work because of this federal to non-federal 

partnership, and this funding will help to complete necessary extraordinary maintenance keeping 

projects viable and partnerships strong.” 

 

 

President Biden Signs Bill into Law to Expedite Ukrainian Military Aid  

On May 9, the President signed a bill to expedite the process for the U.S. to send military 

equipment to Ukraine amidst the ongoing Russian invasion. 

 

The Ukraine Democracy Defense Lend-Lease Act of 2022 passed Congress with bipartisan 

support. The bill was originally introduced by Senator John Cornyn (R-TX) and Senator Ben 

Cardin (D-MD) and allows the United States to lend or lease military equipment to Ukraine and 

other allies in Eastern Europe while making it easier to do so. The bill revives a World War II-

era policy that was put in place to counter Nazi Germany.  

 

After signing, President Biden stated, “Every day Ukrainians pay with their lives. The cost of the 

fight is not cheap but caving to aggression is even more costly. That’s why we’re staying in 

this.” 

 

The bill’s passage was met with enthusiastic support from Ukrainian President Zelensky who 

tweeted, “Today’s signing of the law on Lend-Lease is a historic step. I am convinced that we 

will win together again. And we will defend democracy in Ukraine. And in Europe. Like 77 

years ago.”  

 

President Biden also announced he plans to send another $150 million in military aid to Ukraine.  

 

Congress also approved the Additional Ukraine Supplemental Appropriations Act, 2022, which 

President Biden signed into law on May 21, 2022. That legislation will provide Ukraine with an 

additional $40 billion in security, economic, and humanitarian assistance.  

 

 



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 
 

IFS Monthly Report 8 | P a g e  

 

House Passes Gasoline Price-Gouging Bill  

The House passed, H.R.7688, the Democrats’ bill aimed at combating “price gouging on 

gasoline” on May 19, 2022.  

 

The bill passed 217-207, with 4 Democrats joining all Republicans in opposition. The legislation 

is unlikely to gain traction in the Senate where it would need support from ten Republicans to 

advance. Despite headwinds in the Senate, House Democrats view it as part of a major 

messaging push to blame the oil industry for skyrocketing prices. 

 

Democrats claims of price gouging have been met with some skepticism from analysts, who 

continue to blame market forces for high gasoline prices. Still, Democrats point to record profits 

posted by major oil companies as evidence.  

 

If this legislation were to become law, it would outlaw the selling of fuel at an “excessive” price 

during an energy emergency, though it does not detail any particular price threshold. This 

legislation would also empower the Federal Trade Commission (FTC) to pursue legal action if 

instances of price gouging were discovered.  

 

Gas prices hit new highs averaging $4.59/gallon and market analysts repeatedly suggest they are 

being primarily driven by Russia’s invasion of Ukraine, as well as pandemic recovery. Others 

have pointed to factors including refiners shifting toward other, more profitable fuels.  

 

 

House, Senate Work on Formula Shortage Legislation  

The House and Senate have been working on multiple pieces of legislation aimed to assist 

families dealing with a shortage of infant formula.  

 

Recently, both the House and Senate passed H.R.7791, the Access to Baby Formula Act of 2022. 

This legislation authorizes the Department of Agriculture (USDA) to take actions to address 

emergencies, disasters, and supply chain disruptions that impact participants of the Special 

Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and Children (WIC).  

 

The bill directs USDA to require each infant formula cost containment contract to include 

remedies in the event of an infant formula recall, including how an infant formula manufacturer 

would protect against disruption to WIC participants in the state. It also authorizes USDA to 

waive or modify any WIC qualified administrative requirement during emergencies, disasters, 

and supply chain disruptions. 

 

The legislation passed the House on May 18 by a vote of 414-9 and by unanimous consent in the 

Senate on May 19. President Biden signed the legislation into law on May 21, 2022.  

 

The House also passed H.R.7790, a supplemental appropriations bill to provide $28 million in 

emergency funding that aims to give the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) the 

resources it needs to address the urgent infant formula shortage. This legislation may face 

opposition in the Senate, as Republicans have indicated the three-page bill will likely do little to 

directly assist in the middle of the crisis.   



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 
 

IFS Monthly Report 9 | P a g e  

 

 

A group of Senate Democrats introduced a bill to protect families who rely on infant formula and 

other essential sources of nutrition (ESN) from future shortages.  

 

The Protect Infants from Formula Shortages Act would also safeguard the availability of these 

products by requiring manufacturers to notify the FDA of potential supply disruptions, giving the 

agency time to prevent or mitigate potential shortages. The proposed bill would also direct 

formula manufacturers to develop risk management plans for the supply of their products and 

increase the FDA’s inspection authority.  

 

Senators Bob Casey (PA), Sherrod Brown (OH), Elizabeth Warren (MA), Tammy Duckworth 

(IL), and Kristen Gillibrand (NY) introduced the legislation. 

 

In a statement, Casey said Congress has the “responsibility” to tackle this issue, adding they 

must do everything to ensure that parents have formulas on the shelves. 

 

Recently, 32 Senate Democrats sent a letter to President Biden requesting he appoint a White 

House coordinator to address the ongoing issue. Senators Tammy Baldwin (WI) and John 

Hoeven (ND) also wrote to FDA Commissioner Dr. Robert Califf on Thursday pressing his 

agency to provide information about its actions leading up to the shortage and what steps they 

are taking to prevent another one. 

 

The White House has also taken steps independently to address the formula shortage, including 

by invoking the Defense Production Act for the materials used to manufacture and supply 

formula. The administration has also worked with foreign countries to acquire formula and has 

used government resources to airlift supplies to the United States.  

 

However, the head of the FDA recently told Senators the nations infant formula shortage likely 

won’t be fully resolved until late July.  

 

 

Speaker Pelosi Believes Congress Could Pass COMPETES Act Before July 4 

House Speaker Pelosi told reporters that Congress could pass the “transformational” America 

COMPETES Act before July 4, saying they hope to celebrate is passage before the holiday. 

Negotiators on the conference committee from the House and Senate are actively working to 

negotiate a compromise that can pass both chambers.   

 

The America COMPETES Act of 2022 would approve billions of dollars for programs to 

accelerate U.S. manufacturing of critical supplies and goods such as semiconductor chips, 

strengthening the U.S. in sectors dominated largely by China. The bill is also intended to address 

the supply chain disruptions still plaguing the nation, which has increased inflation. 

 

The bill is more than 2,000 pages long and will authorize a wide array of services, investments 

and programs intended to increase American-made goods and address supply chain woes that 

shook the economy during the pandemic. Specifically, the bill will create a $52 billion fund via 

the Chips for America Act to invest in U.S. produced semiconductor chips; authorize $45 billion 



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 
 

IFS Monthly Report 10 | P a g e  

 

to bolster American supply chains; and create new programs and research centers to help 

advance scientific research into cutting edge technologies.  

 

Supply chain disruptions — including a massive semiconductor chip shortage — caused by the 

pandemic are one reason for inflation reaching a 40-year high in April. High inflation and 

economic concerns are the largest concern for American voters ahead of the midterm elections, 

according to polls. 

 

The America COMPETES Act first passed the House in February before the Senate used the bill 

to pass their own version of the legislation that had already passed the chamber in 2021. 

 

 

21 Democratic AG’s File Motion to Intervene in California Emissions Lawsuit 

Democratic attorneys general from 20 states and the District of Columbia filed a motion on May 

19 to intervene in a lawsuit from Republican attorneys general against the EPA over California’s 

vehicle emissions standards. 

 

The Democrats, led by California Attorney General Rob Bonta, filed the motion in defense of the 

state’s standards which are stricter than federal standards. 

 

The Trump administration had revoked a 2013 waiver in 2019 that allowed California to impose 

more stringent standards than the federal government, but EPA Administrator Michael Regan 

reversed the revocation in March after announcing in 2021 the EPA would review the decision.  

 

“California’s standards are some of the best tools we have to reduce emissions, fight climate 

change, and protect public health. But unfortunately, there are some who continue to ignore these 

benefits, choosing inexplicably to defend outdated, pollution-generating vehicles even as 

technologies enabling emissions reductions and cost savings continue to advance,” Bonta said in 

a statement. 

 

Bonta filed the motion in the U.S. Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit. He was joined by the 

attorney general for Colorado, Connecticut, Delaware, Hawaii, Illinois, Maine, Maryland, 

Massachusetts, Minnesota, Nevada, New Jersey, New Mexico, New York, North Carolina, 

Oregon, Pennsylvania, Rhode Island, Vermont and Washington, as well as the District of 

Columbia and the cities of New York and Los Angeles. 

 

17 Republican attorneys general, led by Ohio’s Dave Yost, also announced a lawsuit against the 

EPA over the restoration of the waiver, claiming that allowing the state to set its own standards 

under the Clean Air Act violated the doctrine equal sovereignty. 

 

 

President Biden to Visit Uvalde on Sunday in Wake of School Shooting 

President Biden will travel to Uvalde, Texas to meet with community members and families in 

the aftermath of a school shooting that left 21 people dead, including 19 children. 

 



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 
 

IFS Monthly Report 11 | P a g e  

 

Biden will be accompanied by first lady Jill Biden, the White House said. The two will “grieve 

with the community that lost twenty-one lives in the horrific elementary school shooting.” Both 

the president and first lady had previously indicated they would travel to Uvalde to mourn the 

shooting. 

 

In the days since the shooting at Robb Elementary School, the president has expressed outrage 

over inaction on gun laws by Congress and frustration over the cycle of gun violence in the 

country. The Uvalde massacre came less than two weeks after a gunman killed 10 people inside 

a grocery store in Buffalo, N.Y. 

 

The Texas massacre marked the deadliest school shooting since a 2012 attack on Sandy Hook 

Elementary School in Newtown, Conn., which left 26 people dead, including 20 children.  

 

Much of the scrutiny in Uvalde is centering on the actions of law enforcement on the scene. 

Authorities originally said an officer engaged the shooter as he approached the school, but on 

Thursday police clarified nobody confronted the gunman before he entered the building. 

 

 

Biden Signs Policing Order 

President Biden issued an executive order to revise use-of-force policies for federal law 

enforcement on May 25’s two-year anniversary of the death of George Floyd at the hands of 

Minneapolis police. 

 

The order restricts no-knock warrants and ban chokeholds by federal law enforcement agencies. 

It will also offer guidance on responding to mental health crises and create a central database for 

officer misconduct records.  

 

Floyd’s death, and the deaths of several other people of color at the hands of law enforcement, 

sparked nationwide protests against racial injustice and police brutality. House Democrats passed 

a sweeping law-enforcement revamp named after Floyd in March 2021, but bipartisan 

negotiations in the Senate collapsed in September. 

 

Biden’s executive order, which White House officials have been working on for months, 

includes several elements of the lawmakers’ efforts.  



Bill Number  Sponsors  Title and/or Summary  Summary/Status  Latest Action 

Not Yet 
Introduced 

Various  FY23 Appropriations Bills 

The House and Senate Appropriations 
Committee Deadlines have all passed 
as of the end of May for lawmakers to 
submit programmatic, language, and 
Community Project Funding / 
Congressionally Directed Spending 
Requests.  

The House Appropriations Committee 
is scheduled to markup all twelve of its 
FY23 Appropriations bills during the 
month of June. Subcommittee markups 
will be held during the weeks of June 
12 and June 20. Full Committee 
markups will be held the week of June 
20 and 27.  
 
The Senate Appropriations Committee 
has not yet scheduled markups, though 
the Professional Staff expect markups 
to begin in late July.  

H.R.5376 
President Joe Biden / 

Congressional Democrats 
Build Back Better Act 

The Build Back Better Act proposes 
spending nearly $2 trillion over a 10‐
year period, with certain programs 
expiring after only a year or two to 
keep the total cost of the bill down.   

Congressional Democrats hope to use 
the budget reconciliation process to 
pass elements of the administration’s 
American Families Plan.  
 
Efforts to pass the legislation in 2021 
were unsuccessful even after the 
House passed a modified version of the 
legislation.  
 
Senator Joe Manchin came out in 
opposition to the legislation in late‐
2021, though he has recently expressed 
a willingness to pass a scaled‐back 
version of the legislation that is paid for 
through tax increases. He has indicated 
that the scope of the legislation would 
need to be limited to do a few things 
permanently rather than create several 
new programs for a short period of 
time.  
 
There is no current timeline or 
legislative language for a package that 
may be considered in the Senate.   



S. 29 / H.R. 
2008 

Sen. Amy Klobuchar (D‐
MN) / Rep. Angie Craig 

(D‐MN) 
Local Water Protection Act 

A bill to amend the 
Federal Water Pollution Control Act 
to reauthorize certain programs 
relating to nonpoint source 
management, and for other 
purposes. 

The Senate legislation was introduced 
on January 22, 2021 and referred to the 
Committee on Environment and Public 
Works. 
 
The legislation in the House was 
introduced on March 18, 2021 and 
passed the House under suspension of 
the rules on June 15.  

H.R 1563  Rep. Mike Garcia (R‐CA) 

To extend the authorities under the 
Water Infrastructure 

Improvements for the Nation Act of 
2016 providing operational 

flexibility, drought relief, and other 
benefits to 

the State of California 

The legislation would extend the 
authorities under the Water 
Infrastructure Improvements for the 
Nation Act of 2016 providing 
operational flexibility, drought relief, 
and other benefits to the State of 
California. The legislation would 
extend 4007 authorities through 
January 1, 2028. 

Introduced on March 3, 2021 and was 
referred to the House Committees on 
Natural Resources and Science, Space, 
and Technology. 

S.984 / 
H.R.2238 

Sen. Jeff Merkley (D‐OR) / 
Rep. Alan Lowenthal (D‐

CA) 

Break Free from Plastic Pollutions 
Act 

The comprehensive legislation would 
require corporations to take 
responsibility for pollution, 
incentivize corporations to make 
reusable products and items that can 
be recycled, create a nationwide 
beverage container refund program, 
and other items to promote recycling 
and other investments in U.S. 
domestic recycling. 

Introduced on March 25, 2021 and 
referred to the House Committees on 
Energy and Commerce, Ways and 
Means, Transportation, and Foreign 
Affairs. 

H.R 866  Rep. Ken Calvert (R‐CA)  FISH Act 

This bill gives the Fish and Wildlife 
Service (FWS) the sole authority to 
protect endangered or threatened 
species that are anadromous species 
(species of fish that spawn in fresh or 
estuarine waters and that migrate to 
ocean waters) or catadromous 
species (species of fish that spawn in 
ocean waters and migrate to fresh 
waters). Currently, the FWS shares 
this authority with the National 
Marine Fisheries Service. 

Introduced on February 5, 2021 and 
referred to the House Committee on 
Natural Resources. 



H.R.1881 
Rep. John Garamendi (D‐

CA) 

To amend the Federal Water 
Pollution Control Act with respect to 

permitting terms, and for other 
purposes. 

The legislation would extend permit 
terms for publicly owned water 
infrastructure projects under the 
National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) from 5 
years to a maximum of 10 years.  

Introduced on March 12, 2021 and 
referred to the Committee on 
Transportation and Infrastructure.  

H.R. 1015 

Rep. Grace Napolitano 
(D‐CA) 

Water Recycling Investment and 
Improvement Act 

This bill makes permanent, and 
otherwise revises, the Bureau of 
Reclamation's grant program for the 
funding of water recycling and reuse 
projects. Specifically, the bill removes 
priority under the program for 
projects in areas that, in the 
preceding four‐year period, have 
been (1) identified as experiencing 
severe, extreme, or exceptional 
drought; or (2) designated as a 
disaster area by a state. Additionally, 
the bill increases through FY2025 the 
authorization of appropriations for 
the program and otherwise revises 
provisions related to program 
funding. 

Introduced on February 11, 2021 and 
referred to the House Committee on 
Natural Resources.  

S.4231 

Sens. Dianne Feinstein 
(D‐CA), Mark Kelly (D‐AZ), 
and Krysten Sinema (D‐

AZ) 

Support To Rehydrate the 
Environment, Agriculture, and 

Municipalities Act or “STREAM” Act 

This legislation would authorize 
additional funding for water 
infrastructure; expedites recycling, 
desalination and non‐federal storage 
projects with less than $250 million in 
federal funding by allowing Interior to 
approve projects; eliminates the WIIN 
Act requirement that the 
Appropriations Committee must not 
only appropriate storage, recycling, 
and desal funding but approve 
funding awards for specific projects; 
and expedites future federal storage 
projects where Reclamation notifies 
Congress of completed feasibility 
studies each year to set up an orderly 
process to authorize projects.  

Sens. Feinstein, Kelly, and Sinema 
introduced the legislation on May 17, 
2022.  
 
The Senate Energy and Natural 
Resources Subcommittee on Water & 
Power held a hearing on the legislation 
on Wednesday, May 25.  



H.R. 737 

Rep. David Valadao (R‐
CA) 

RENEW WIIN Act 

Extends the authorities under the 
WIIN Act of 2016 providing 
operational flexibility, drought relief, 
and other benefits to the State of 
California. 

Introduced on February 2, 2021 and 
referred the House Committee on 
Natural Resources. 10 members of the 
CA delegation have cosponsored the 
legislation. 

H.R. 2515  Rep. Garret Graves (R‐LA) 
Building U.S. Infrastructure through 
Limited Delays and Efficient Reviews 

(BUILDER) Act 

The legislation modernizes the 
National Environmental Policy Act 
(NEPA) and aims to make 
infrastructure project reviews more 
efficient, reduce project costs, and 
spur economic recovery. 

Introduced on April 14, 2021 and was 
referred to the House Committee on 
Natural Resources.  
 
The legislation's 46 cosponsors are all 
Republican, including members of GOP 
leadership. 

H.R. 939  Rep. Doug LaMalfa (R‐CA) 
Combustion Avoidance along Rural 

Roads (CARR) Act 

The bill exempts wildfire mitigation 
activities conducted within 300 feet 
of a road from all laws governing 
environmental review of proposed 
agency actions or protection of 
endangered or threatened species.  

Introduced on February 8, 2021 and 
was referred to the House Committees 
on Natural Resources and Agriculture. 

H.R.3267 

Rep. Brendan Boyle (D‐
PA) 

Protect Drinking Water from PFAS 
Act 

The bill amends the Safe Drinking 
Water Act to require the 
Administrator of the Environmental 
Protection Agency to publish a 
maximum contaminant level goal and 
promulgate a national primary 
drinking water regulation for total 
per‐ and polyfluoroalkyl substances. 

The legislation was introduced on May 
17, 2021 and referred to the House 
Committee on Energy and Commerce. 

H.R.3293 
Rep.  Lisa Blunt Rochester 

(D‐DE) 
Low‐Income Water Customer 

Assistance Programs Act 

The legislation would amend the Safe 
Drinking Water Act and the Federal 
Water Pollution Control Act to 
establish programs to assist low‐
income households in maintaining 
access to drinking water and 
wastewater services. 

The legislation was introduced on May 
18, 2021 and referred to the relevant 
committees. The legislation has passed 
out of the House Energy and 
Commerce Committee by a vote of 32‐
24 and now moves on to consideration 
on the House floor. 



S. 953   Sen. Ron Wyden (D‐OR) 
Water for Conservation and Farming 

Act 

The legislation would create a  
Reclamation fund of $300M to 
support water recycling projects, 
water‐use efficiency projects and 
dam safety projects; the 
WaterSMART program to increase 
water supply reliability by funding 
infrastructure and conservation 
projects; establishes a grant program 
for any Reclamation States, Tribes, 
nonprofit conservation organizations, 
irrigation or water districts, and 
regional and local authorities to 
complete habitat restoration projects 
that improve watershed health and 
mitigate climate change; among 
other actions. 

Introduced on March 24, 2021 and 
referred to the Committee on Energy 
and Natural Resources. 

H.R. 3286  Rep. Raul Ruiz (D‐CA) 
Emergency Order Assurance, Safety, 
and Inspection of water Systems 

(Emergency OASIS Act) 

The legislation would require the EPA 
to establish regulations to flush a 
drinking water system if 
contaminants were present in the 
system for longer than six months, or 
if water stood motionless in the 
system for longer than six months.   

Introduced on May 17, 2021 and 
referred to the House Committee on 
Energy and Commerce. 

H.R. 3622 / 
S. 1907 

Rep. Chris Pappas (D‐NH) 
/ Sen. Kirsten Gillibrand 

(D‐NY) 
Clean Water Standards for PFAS Act 

The legislation would require the 
Administrator of the Environmental 
Protection Agency to develop effluent 
limitations guidelines and standards 
and water quality criteria for PFAS 
under the Federal Water Pollution 
Control Act, to provide Federal grants 
to publicly owned treatment works to 
implement such guidelines and 
standards 

Introduced in the House on May 28, 
2021, and in the Senate on May 27, 
2021. 
 
The legislation in the House is 
bipartisan.  



S. 2168 / 
S.2567 

Sen. Mike Braun (R‐IN) / 
Sen. Shelley Moore 

Capito (R‐WV) 

Define WOTUS Act / Navigable 
Waters Protection Act of 2021 

The legislation would amend the 
Federal Water Pollution Control Act 
to modify the definition of navigable 
waters, and to make the definition of 
the "waters of the United States" 
permanent. 

These bills were introduced in June and 
July of 2021 in response to the EPA's 
announcement earlier in June of its 
intent to rewrite the Navigable Waters 
Protection rule.  

H.R. 3814 / 
S. 717 

Rep. Liz Cheney (R‐WY) / 
Sen. Mike Lee (R‐UT) 

Undoing NEPA’s Substantial Harm by 
Advancing Concepts that Kickstart 
the Liberation of the Economy Act 

(UNSHACKLE Act) 

The legislation combines the 
following five stand‐alone NEPA 
reform bills on agency process, state 
expansion, legal changes, and data 
reporting into one comprehensive 
text.  
‐ NEPA Agency Process Accountability 
Act 
‐ NEPA Accountability and 
Enforcement Act 
‐ NEPA State Assignment Expansion 
Act 
‐ NEPA Legal Reform Act 
‐ NEPA Data Transparency Act 

The Senate legislation was introduced 
on March 11, 2021 and referred to the 
Committee on Environment and Public 
Works. 
 
The House legislation was introduced 
on June 11, 2021 and referred to the 
House Committees on Natural 
Resources; Judiciary; Transportation 
and Infrastructure; and Energy and 
Commerce. 

H.R. 4647 / 
S. 2430 

Rep. Jared Huffman (D‐
CA) / Sen. Dianne 
Feinstein (D‐CA) 

Water Conservation Rebate Tax 
Parity Act 

The legislation would amend federal 
tax law so that homeowners wouldn’t 
pay income tax on rebates from 
water utilities for water conservation 
and water runoff management 
improvements 

The House legislation was introduced 
on July 22, 2021 and referred to the 
House Committee on Ways and Means.  
The legislation in the Senate was 
introduced on July 22, 2021 and 
referred to the Senate Committee on 
Finance. 

S.2454  Sen. Alex Padilla (D‐CA)  Water Reuse and Resiliency Act 

The legislation would authorize $1 
billion over five years for the EPA’s 
Pilot Program for Alternative Water 
Source Projects grants program. This 
is an increase from the $125 million 
over five years authorized for the 
program in the Drinking Water and 
Wastewater Infrastructure Act passed 
by the Senate in April. 

The legislation was introduced on July 
22, 2021 and referred to the Senate 
Committee on Environment and Public 
Works. 



H.R. 1352 

Rep. Brenda Lawrence (D‐
MI) 

Water Affordability, Transparency, 
Equity, and Reliability Act of 2021 

The bill would create a trust fund to 
support drinking water and clean 
water infrastructure. Additionally, the 
bill provides $34.85 billion a year to 
drinking water and wastewater 
improvements; creates a water trust 
fund; creates up to nearly 1 million 
jobs across the economy and protect 
American workers; prioritizes 
disadvantaged communities with 
grants and additional support; 
expands funding for technical 
assistance to small, rural, and 
indigenous communities; funds 
projects to address water 
contamination from PFAS; requires 
US EPA to study water affordability, 
shutoffs, discrimination, and civil 
rights violations by water providers; 
upgrades household wells and septic 
systems; helps homeowners replace 
lead service lines; and provides more 
than $1 billion a year to update water 
infrastructure in public schools. 

The legislation was introduced on 
February 25, 2021 and was referred to 
the relevant committees.  
 
The legislation has 86 cosponsors, 
including 14 members of the California 
delegation. 

H.R.4915 
Rep. Tom McClintock (R‐

CA) 
Water Supply Permitting 

Coordination Act 

The legislation would authorize the 
Secretary of the Interior to 
coordinate Federal and State 
permitting processes related to the 
construction of new surface water 
storage projects on lands under the 
jurisdiction of the Secretary of the 
Interior and the Secretary of 
Agriculture and to designate the 
Bureau of Reclamation as the lead 
agency for permit processing.  

The legislation was introduced on 
August 3, 2021 and referred to the 
House Committee on Natural 
Resources. 

H.R. 4976  Rep. Elissa Slotkin (D‐MI) 
Ensuring PFAS Cleanup Meets or 
Exceeds Stringent Standards Act 

The legislation directs the Secretary 
of Defense to ensure that removal 
and remedial actions relating to PFAS 
contamination result in levels 
meeting or exceeding certain 
standards. 

The legislation was introduced in the 
House on August 6, 2021 and was 
referred to the House Committees on 
Armed Services, Transportation and 
Infrastructure, and Energy and 
Commerce. 



S.2372 / 
H.R.2773 

Sen. Heinrich, Martin (D‐
NM) / Representative 
Debbie Dingell (D‐MI)  

Recovering America’s Wildlife Act of 
2021 

The legislation would fund 
conservation efforts for more than 
12,000 species of wildlife and plants 
in need of assistance by providing 
$1.3 billion in dedicated annual 
funding for proactive, on‐the‐ground 
efforts across the country, ensure 
wildlife recovery efforts will be 
guided by the Congressionally‐
mandated State Wildlife Action Plans, 
which identify specific strategies to 
restore the populations of species of 
greatest conservation need, 
accelerate the recovery of 1,600 U.S. 
species already listed as threatened 
or endangered under the Endangered 
Species Act, and include 
improvements to ensure funds are 
appropriately targeted to the areas of 
greatest need and facilitate additional 
investments in protecting at‐risk 
plant species. 

In the Senate, RAWA also directs fees 
and penalties assessed for 
environmental violations to help fund 
RAWA, using fee and penalty 
amounts that aren’t already targeted 
for existing environmental funds. 

The legislation was introduced on July 
15, 2021 and referred to the 
Committee on Environment and Public 
Works. It was reported favorably out of 
Committee on April 27 and placed on 
the Senate calendar.  
 
The House bill was introduced on April 
22. The House Natural Resources 
Subcommittee on Water, Oceans, and 
Wildlife held a hearing on the 
legislation on July 29, 2021. On January 
19, the legislation passed out of the 
House Natural Resources Committee by 
a vote of 29‐15 and now moves on to 
consideration on the House floor. 

H.R.4602 / 
S.3956 

Rep. Alan Lowenthal (D‐
CA) / Rep. Lisa McClain 
(R‐MI) and Sen. Jeff 
Merkley (D‐OR) / Sen. 
Susan Collins (R‐ME) 

WIPPES Act 

The legislation would direct the 
Federal Trade Commission to issue 
regulations requiring certain products 
to have “Do Not Flush” labeling 

The legislation was introduced on July 
21, 2021 and referred to the 
Committee on Energy and Commerce.  
 
Rep. Lowenthal introduced the stand‐
alone bill after introducing a similar 
amendment to the House’s 
infrastructure bill.  
 
The Senate bill was introduced on 
March 30, 2022.  



H.R.6591 
Rep. Lisa McClain (R‐MI) / 
Rep. Alan Lowenthal (D‐

CA) 
PIPES Act 

The legislation would require the 
Administrator of the Environmental 
Protection Agency to publish a rule 
that establishes standards for the 
flushability of disposable nonwoven 
wipes.  

The legislation was introduced on 
February 3, 2022 and was referred to 
the House Committee on Energy and 
Commerce.  

S. 2806 / 
H.R. 3534 

Sen. Dianne Feinstein (D‐
CA) / Rep. Jimmy Panetta 

(D‐CA) 
Wildfire Emergency Act of 2021 

Amongst other things, the legislation 
authorizes $250 million over 5 years 
for up to 20 Forest Service projects of 
100,000 acres or greater; Establish a 
new $100 million grant program to 
assist critical facilities like hospitals 
and police stations become more 
energy efficient and better adapted 
to function during power shutoffs; 
Establishes one or more Prescribed 
Fire Centers to coordinate research 
and training of foresters and forest 
managers in the western United 
States in the latest methods and 
innovations in prescribed fire 
(controlled burns) practices.  

The Senate legislation was introduced 
on September 22, 2021 and referred to 
the Committee on Energy and Natural 
Resources.  
 
The House bill was introduced on May 
25, 2021 and was referred to the 
Subcommittee on Conservation and 
Forestry. 

S. 3011 / 
H.R. 5735 

Sen. John Cornyn (R‐TX) / 
Rep. Dusty Johnson (R‐

SD) 

State, Local, Tribal, and Territorial 
Fiscal Recovery, Infrastructure, and 

Disaster Relief Flexibility Act 

The legislation provides additional 
flexibility for States, Tribes, and units 
of local government to spend their 
allocations of the COVID Relief Funds 
on certain infrastructure projects, 
including water, wastewater, and 
broadband infrastructure projects. 
The bill also allows these funds to be 
used to provide emergency relief 
from natural disasters. There is a 
cap—the greater of $10 million or 
30% of the funds—on how much of 
the COVID money can be spent on 
these new purposes.   

The legislation was introduced on 
October 19, 2021 and passed the 
Senate by unanimous consent that day. 
 
Senator Alex Padilla (D‐CA) is an 
original cosponsor of the legislation. 
 
The act was introduced in the House on 
October 26 and referred to the House 
Committee on Oversight and Reform.  



H.R. 6461 / 
S. 3531 

Rep. Scott Peters (D‐CA) / 
Sen. Chris Coons (D‐DE) 

National Climate Adaptation and 
Resilience Strategy Act 

The legislation creates a Chief 
Resilience Officer, among other 
positions, that will assist the 
President to streamline the federal 
response to climate hazards that 
threaten human health, safety, and 
critical infrastructure.  

The act also calls for a Climate 
Adaptation and Resilience Strategy 
that outlines the federal 
government’s response to climate 
hazards such as sea level rise, 
drought, biodiversity loss, and coastal 
bank erosion.  

The legislation was introduced in the 
House on January 20, 2022 and 
referred to the Committee on Energy 
and Commerce.  
 
The legislation was introduced in the 
Senate on January 20, 2022, read twice, 
and referred to the Committee on 
Homeland Security and Government 
Affairs.  

H.R. 6396 
Rep. Earl Blumenauer (D‐

OR) 
Climate RESILIENCE Act 

The act amends FEMA's disaster 
definition to include extreme 
temperature events, like heat waves 
and freezes; changes FEMA's 
definitions and cost share eligibility 
requirements for disadvantaged 
communities and underserved 
communities; includes a focus on 
resiliency planning and investments; 
provides both financial and non‐
financial technical assistance for 
hazard mitigation planning, as well as 
for grant applications for small 
impoverished and disadvantaged 
communities; and expands Pre‐
Disaster Mitigation Assistance 
funding to address FEMA’s 
oversubscription issues. 

The legislation was introduced in the 
House on January 13, 2022 and 
referred to the Committee on 
Transportation and Infrastructure.  
 
The legislation has 32 cosponsors, 
including 8 members of the California 
delegation. 



H.R.6492 
Rep. Pramila Jayapal (D‐

WA) 
Climate Resilience Workforce Act 

The bill establishes a climate 
resilience workforce in communities 
most affected by the climate crisis. It 
also funds the development of 
regional, state, local, and community‐
based climate resilience action plans. 

The legislation creates an Office of 
Climate Resilience within the White 
House, starts new workforce 
development programs, and removes 
barriers to employment in climate 
resilience jobs based on immigration 
status and prior involvement with the 
criminal justice system.   

The legislation was introduced in the 
House on January 25, 2022 and 
referred to the Subcommittee on 
Conservation and Forestry.  
 
The legislation has 38 cosponsors, 
including 9 members of the California 
delegation. 

H.R. 6989   Rep. Ted Lieu (D‐CA)  Housing for All Act of 2022 

This legislation would address critical 
affordable housing shortages in 
California and across the country by 
investing in hotel and motel 
conversions to permanent supportive 
housing with supportive services; 
investing in the Eviction Protection 
Grant Program; investing in mobile 
crisis intervention teams to help 
those with medical or psychological 
needs avoid the criminal justice 
system; investing in libraries that 
support people experiencing 
homelessness; investing in programs 
that offer a safe place to park 
overnight and facilitate access to 
rehousing services and essential 
services; and investing in inclusive, 
transit‐oriented development and 
infill development 

The legislation was introduced in the 
House on March 8, 2022 and referred 
to the Subcommittee on Highways and 
Transit.  
 
The legislation has 14 cosponsors, 
including 12 members of the California 
delegation. 

S. 623  Sen. Marco Rubio (R‐FL)  Sunshine Protection Act of 2021 

This bill makes daylight saving time 
the new, permanent standard time, 
effective November 5, 2023. 

The legislation passed the Senate on 
March 15, 2022 and sent to the House.  



S. 4081 
Sen. Tammy Baldwin (D‐

WI) 
Healthy H2O Act 

 
The bill provides grants for water 
testing and treatment technology 
directly to individuals, non‐profits and 
local governments in rural 
communities. Grants, provided by the 
USDA, would allow the purchase and 
installation of point‐of‐use or point‐
of‐entry water quality improvement 
systems that remove or significantly 
reduce contaminants from drinking 
water. 
 

The legislation was introduced in the 
Senate on April 26, 2022 and referred 
to the Senate Committee on 
Agriculture, Nutrition, and Forestry.  

H.R. 7696 / 
s. 4161 

Rep. Chris Pappas (D‐NH) 
/ Sen. Kirsten Gillibrand 

(D‐NY) 

Clean Water Standards for PFAS 2.0 
Act of 2022 

 
The bill would further regulate PFAS 
by setting deadlines for the EPA to 
develop water quality criteria and 
limits on industrial PFAS discharges 
into water and to water treatment 
plants. The bill would also authorize 
$200 million per year in grants to 
assist Publicly Owned Treatment 
Works with program implementation, 
which would be appropriated through 
Fiscal Years 2022‐2026. 
 

The legislation was introduced in the 
House on May 10, 2022 and referred to 
the Subcommittee on Water Resources 
and Environment.  
 
The legislation was introduced in the 
Senate on May 9, 2022 and referred to 
the Committee on Environment and 
Public Works.  

S.1179 / 
H.R.2552 

Sen. Dianne Feinstein (D‐
CA) 

Canal Conveyance Capacity 
Restoration Act  

This bill authorizes the Bureau of 
Reclamation to provide financial 
assistance for various projects in 
California to mitigate the sinking or 
settling of the ground (i.e., 
subsidence mitigation), specifically 
for projects related to the Friant‐Kern 
Canal, the Delta‐Mendota Canal, and 
certain parts of the San Luis 
Canal/California Aqueduct. 

This legislation was introduced on April 
15, 2021 in the Senate. The House 
Companion bill was introduced the 
same day.  
 
The Senate Energy and Natural 
Resources Subcommittee on Water & 
Power held a hearing on the legislation 
on Wednesday, May 25. 
 
The House Natural Resources 
Committee has not yet considered the 
legislation.  

 



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

3J 



May 27, 2022 

To: Inland Empire Utilities Agency 

From:  Michael Boccadoro 

Beth Olhasso 

RE: May Report 

Overview: 

With June just days away, and record temperatures for May in the books, water managers and 

regulators are taking steps and outlining possible next steps to combat the drought. Lake Oroville is at 

just 55 percent capacity and San Luis Reservoir is at 46 percent capacity. With the snowpack down to 

10 percent of normal, there isn’t hope for additional snowmelt to replenish supplies.  

The State Water Resources Control Board recently passed regulations implementing the Governor’s 

Executive Order on drought. The regulations focus on prohibiting the use of potable water to irrigate 

non-functional turf. The Governor has recently said that if he doesn’t see any significant increase in 

voluntary conservation, he will consider more drastic actions later in the summer. 

In other State Board action, a recent workshop was held to discuss the impacts the water-use efficiency 

standards may impact local wastewater management. Staff spent significant time presenting the 

approach they are using to assess indoor water use trends throughout the state. The data they presented 

suggests that for the first part of 2022, the statewide average indoor GPCD is under 40 GPCD. 

The California Air Resources Board is getting closer to finalizing their Advanced Clean Fleets rule. 

The current proposal would require half of the vehicles government agencies purchase to be zero-

emission starting in 2024. 

The Governor released his May Revision budget, adding more funding for drought relief—bringing his 

total 2022-23 proposal to just about $2 billion. In contrast, the Senate Democratic proposal is 

requesting $7.5 billion for drought relief. The Legislature, leadership and the Governor will now work 

to iron out differences and come up with a compromise to vote on ahead of the June 15 deadline.  

The Legislature has been working on the two thousand bills that were introduced for the second year of 

this two-year session. The deadline for bills to pass out of their house of origin was May 27. With 

more water-related bills this year legislative water discussions have been robust and extensive. 

ACWA’s legislation to provide for a tax exemption for turf removal rebates has moved to the Senate. 

CASA’s bill to require products containing PFAS to register their products on a publicly accessible 

database struggled with significant opposition from manufactures but was able to pass out of the 

Assembly with just enough votes. MWD’s legislation to allow for alternative project delivery methods 

for several of their projects recently also moved out of the Assembly, while similar legislation (SB 

991, Newman) to allow for alternative project delivery for projects over $5 million also easily passed 

out of the Senate. Policy committees will again start to work feverishly ahead of the July summer 

recess. 



 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency 

Status Report – May 2022 

 

 

Water Supply Conditions 

Summer is rolling into California and with it, any hope of measurable precipitation vanishes until the 

fall. Once at 103 percent of normal, the Sierra snowpack it is down to just 10 percent of normal. Lake 

Oroville is sitting at 69 percent of historical average and 55 percent capacity.  San Luis Reservoir, the 

main south-of-Delta storage facility for the State Water Project, is at just 63 percent of average for this 

time of the year and 46 percent capacity.  

 

SWRCB Approves Emergency Conservation Regulation  

In response to the Governor’s March Executive Order on drought, the SWRCB has approved their 

proposal to implement the order. The highlights include: 

• Requires urban water suppliers to implement, at a minimum, all demand reduction actions 

identified in Level 2 of their locally adopted Water Shortage Contingency Plans. 

• Requires urban water suppliers to submit a preliminary water supply and demand assessment to 

the Department of Water Resources by June 1, 2022. 

• Prohibits irrigation of non-functional turf with potable water in the commercial, industrial, and 

institutional sector. The ban on irrigation would include non-residential grass areas that are 

considered ornamental and not otherwise used for recreation or other community purposes. 

 

The regulation is expected to go into effect June 6.  

 

Notably, when the Governor was meeting with water leaders recently, he warned that if voluntary 

conservation numbers don’t soon improve, he is prepared to issue mandatory conservation orders 

“sometime this summer.”  

 

SWRCB Workshop on Efficiency Standards 

The State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) recently held a workshop to discuss how water-

use efficiency standards may impact local wastewater management. While the presentation wasn’t 

terribly robust when talking about specific POTW impacts, they did spend significant time trying to 

quantify current indoor water use by analyzing flume sensor data throughout the state. It is important 

to understand what data regulators are looking at as they move to implement the urban water use 

objective. Throughout the presentation, it was clear that staff believe 35 GPCD is attainable. They did 

not recommend a 35 GPCD, but using the number as a scenario signals they believe more extreme 

indoor conservation is achievable in CA. 

 



 
 

 
 

Advanced Clean Fleets Proposal Released 

The California Air Resources Board recently released a revised regulatory proposal and held a 

workshop on the state’s Advanced Clean Fleets rule. The primary requirement under the proposed 

rules is for state and local government fleets to purchase half of vehicles they purchase starting in 2024 

to be zero-emission and all additions to be ZEV starting in 2027. There are several exemptions 

including a “ZEV or NZEV Unavailability Exemption.” 

 

 



“May Revise” Released 

As is custom, the Governor released his May Revision of his proposed 2022-23 state budget. The 

Revise reflects the financial status of the state after April 15 tax filings. The state is flush with cash 

with a $96 billion surplus, but there are concerns for the next few years. The Legislative Analyst’s 

Office (LAO) has noted that the “May Revision sets up a fiscal cliff for 2023-23.” The LAO estimates 

that 2023-24 could have a $25 billion deficit, resulting in a significant budget problem, which would 

require reductions to programs.  

 

Included in the May Revise is an additional $1.5 billion for drought response and resilience- bringing 

his 2022-23 total to about $2 billion. In addition to the drought package, the Governor proposes $500 

million in FY 2025-26 for Prop 1 Water Storage Investment Program projects.  

 

 
 



In addition to the May Revise, Senate Democrats also released their “Budget Blueprint” which 

proposed to invest significantly more funds in water and drought. Specifically, the Senate proposes  

$7.5 billion in state and federal funds to build a climate resilient water system. Priorities include: 

• $2 billion to rebalance state water supply and water rights 

o $1.5 billion for new CA Water Trust to acquire lands with senior water rights from 

willing sellers. 

o $500 million to acquire and repurpose lands to implement SGMA 

• $1.5 billion for safe drinking water 

• $1.5 billion for improving watershed climate resilience regionally. 

• $1.5 billion for Drought Resilient Water Supply grants to assist with recycling, stormwater 

capture and groundwater cleanup. 

• $1 billion for flood management and dam safety  

Both the Senate and Assembly Budget Sub Committees on Resources have discussed the drought 

proposal. No vote was taken yet as the two houses and the Governor move into a period of negotiation. 

The budget is required to be passed by June 15, however as in the past years, budget amendments will 

continue to be made during the legislative session.   

  

Legislative Update 

Legislators have been working feverishly to shepherd their bills through their house of origin. The 

deadline for bills to get out of their first house was May 27. Policy committees will now resume 

hearings the first week of June and work through the month before the July summer recess.    

 

Updates on priority bills: 

 

AB 2142 (Gabriel): This bill would provide an income tax exemption for rebates from a turf removal 

program. Sponsored by ACWA. The bill passed out of the Revenue and Taxation Committee and 

moved off the Assembly floor onto the Senate.  

 

AB 1845 (Calderon): MWD sponsored bill to allow for alternative project delivery methods for 

specific MWD projects. The bill was heard in the Assembly Local Government Committee and Water, 

Parks and Wildlife Committees and passed out unanimously and passed off the Assembly floor 70-0 

 

SB 991 (Newman): This bill is similar to MWD’s AB 1845 but it would allow for progressive design 

build to be used on any project over $5 million. The bill is already over in the Assembly and will be 

heard in the Local Government Committee in June. 

 

AB 2247 (Bloom): CASA sponsored bill would require products sold in CA that contain PFAS to 

register the product on a publicly accessible reporting platform. The bill was recently amended to 

remove some of the enforcement language, which should remove some of the opposition. The bill was 

heard in the Environmental Safety & Toxic Materials Committee where manufacturing community 

voiced their opposition. The bill passed out 7-2, with Republicans voting no. The bill passed out of the 

Assembly with just enough votes and will move onto the Senate. 

 

AB 2787 (Quirk): An extension of the original microbeads bill, this legislation would ban the sale or 

distribution of products that contain intentionally added microplastics. The bill passed out of both 

Natural Resources and Environmental Safety and Toxic Materials Committee. Dr. Quirk decided to 

hold the bill in the Assembly and it will not move this year. 

 



AB 2811 (Bennett): Would require newly constructed large commercial buildings to be dual plumbed 

for recycled water and also require large commercial buildings to install onsite reuse systems. The bill 

could not overcome the concerns of the water and labor community and was not ever considered by the 

Environmental Safety and Toxic Materials Committee. 

 

SB 1157 (Hertzberg): This legislation is identical to AB 1434 (Friedman) from 2021. The bill would 

implement the indoor GPCD targets outlined in the DWR/SWRCB draft report to the Legislature for 

47 GPCD by 2025 and 42 GPCD by 2030. The bill passed out of Natural Resources and Water 

Committee despite significant concerns from Senator Ben Hueso (D-San Diego). The bill was quickly 

moved to the floor of the Senate where it passed 28-9. Throughout the whole process, the author has 

committed to working with the opposition, so there is still a possibility that the amendments the water 

community is looking for will be amended into the bill. The amendments, if taken, would require 

DWR and the SWRCB to study the effects 2030 target would have on wastewater flows before 

instituting the 42 GPCD requirement.   



IEUA BILLS— BILLS WITH POSITIONS- 2022 Session May 27, 2022 
Bill 

Number 

Author/Sponsor Title and/or 

Summary 

Summary IEUA Position/ Bill 

Location 

Positions Taken by 

Associations & 

Regional Agencies 

AB 

1845 

Calderon 

 

 

 

MWD 

Sponsored 

Metropolitan 

Water District of 

Southern 

California: 

alternative 

project delivery 

methods 

Would authorize the Metropolitan Water District of Southern 

California to use the design-build procurement process for certain 

regional recycled water projects or other water infrastructure 

projects. The bill would define "design-build" to mean a project 

delivery process in which both the design and construction of a 

project are procured from a single entity. The bill would require 

the district, if using this procurement process, to follow certain 

procedures, including preparing and issuing a request for 

qualifications, preparing a request for proposals including the 

scope and needs of the project or contract, and awarding projects 

based on certain criteria for projects utilizing either lowest 

responsible bidder or best value selection criteria. 

 

SUPPORT 

 

Passed out of 

Assembly 

 

 

In Senate 

 

 

MWD, ACWA, 

WRCA in 

support 

AB 

2142 

Gabriel Income taxes: 

exclusion: turf 

replacement 

water 

conservation 

program 

This bill would, for taxable years beginning on or after January 1, 

2022, and before January 1, 2027, under both of these laws, 

provide an exclusion from gross income for any amount received 

as a rebate, voucher, or other financial incentive issued by a local 

water agency or supplier for participation in a turf replacement 

water conservation program. 

 

SUPPORT 

 

Passed out of 

Assembly 

 

 

In Senate 

 

 

ACWA, MWD 

in Support 

AB 

2247 

Bloom 

 

CASA 

Sponsored 

PFAS products: 

disclosure: 

publicly 

accessible 

reporting 

platform 

This bill would require the Department of Toxic Substances 

Control to work with the Interstate Chemicals Clearinghouse to 

establish, on or before January 1, 2024, a publicly accessible 

reporting platform to collect information about PFAS and 

products or product components containing regulated PFAS, as 

defined, being sold, offered for sale, distributed, or offered for 

promotional purposes in, or imported into, the state. The bill 

would require, on or before March 1, 2024, and annually 

thereafter, a manufacturer, as defined, of PFAS or a product or a 

product component containing regulated PFAS that is sold, 

offered for sale, distributed, or offered for promotional purposes 

in, or imported into, the state to register the PFAS or the product 

or product component containing regulated PFAS, and specified 

other information, on the publicly accessible reporting platform. 

 

SUPPORT 

 

Passed out of 

Assembly 

 

 

In Senate 

 

 

CASA, WRCA, 

ACWA in 

support 



AB 

2449 

Rubio 

 

Three Valleys  

Open meetings: 

local agencies: 

teleconferences 

 This bill would authorize a local agency to use teleconferencing 

without complying with those specified teleconferencing 

requirements if at least a quorum of the members of the 

legislative body participates in person from a singular location 

clearly identified on the agenda that is open to the public and 

situated within the local agency’s jurisdiction. The bill would 

impose prescribed requirements for this exception relating to 

notice, agendas, the means and manner of access, and procedures 

for disruptions. The bill would require the legislative body to 

implement a procedure for receiving and swiftly resolving 

requests for reasonable accommodation for individuals with 

disabilities, consistent with federal law. 

SUPPORT 

 

Passed out of 

Assembly 

 

 

In Senate 

ACWA & 

MWD Support 

AB 

2787 

Quirk Microplastics in 

products 

The Microbeads Nuisance Prevention Law prohibits a person 

from selling or offering for promotional purposes in the state any 

personal care products containing plastic microbeads that are 

used to exfoliate or cleanse in a rinse-off product, including, but 

not limited to, toothpaste. This bill would, on and after specified 

dates that vary based on the product, ban the sale, distribution in 

commerce, or offering for promotional purposes in the state of 

designated products, such as leave-in cosmetics products and 

waxes and polishes, if the products contain intentionally added 

microplastics, as defined. The bill would exclude from this ban 

products consisting, in whole or in part, of specified substances 

or mixtures containing microplastics. The bill would make a 

violator liable for a civil penalty not to exceed $2,500 per day for 

each violation. 

SUPPORT 

 

 

Held in 

Assembly---  

 

NOT MOVING 

FORWARD IN 

2022 

 

 

CASA in support 

AB 

2811 

Bennett 

 

 

Plumbers 

Union 

California 

Building 

Standards 

Commission: 

recycled water: 

nonpotable 

water systems 

Would require, commencing January 1, 2024, all newly 

constructed nonresidential buildings be constructed with dual 

plumbing to allow the use of recycled water for all applicable 

nonpotable water demands, as defined, if that building is located 

within an existing or planned recycled water service area, as 

specified. 

Oppose 

 

Env. Safety & 

Toxic Materials 

Comm--- no 

hearing 

 

Bill not moving 

forward this 

year.  

CASA & WRCA 

oppose unless 

amended. ACWA 

& CMUA 

Oppose 

SB 

222 

Sen. Dodd Water 

Affordability 

Would establish the Water Affordability Assistance Fund in the 

State Treasury to help provide water affordability assistance, for 

 

 

Opposed by 

ACWA 



Assistance 

Program 

both drinking water and wastewater services, to low-income 

ratepayers and ratepayers experiencing economic hardship in 

California. The bill would make moneys in the fund available 

upon appropriation by the Legislature to the state board to 

provide, as part of the Water Affordability Assistance Program 

established by the bill, direct water bill assistance, water bill 

credits, water crisis assistance, affordability assistance, and short-

term assistance to public water systems to administer program 

components. 

Two-Year Bill 

 

Assembly Floor 

SB 

230 

Portantino/ 

CMUA & 

MWD 

State Water 

Resources 

Control Board: 

Constituents of 

Emerging 

Concern 

Would require the State Water Resources Control Board to 

establish, maintain, and direct an ongoing, dedicated program 

called the Constituents of Emerging Concern Program to assess 

the state of information and recommend areas for further study 

on, among other things, the occurrence of constituents of 

emerging concern (CEC) in drinking water sources and treated 

drinking water. The bill would require the state board to convene, 

by an unspecified date, the Science Advisory Panel to review and 

provide recommendations to the state board on CEC for further 

action, among other duties. The bill would require the state board 

to provide an annual report to the Legislature on the ongoing 

work conducted by the panel. 

SUPPORT 

 

 

Assembly 

waiting for 

committee 

assignment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Favor by 

ACWA 

SB 

991 

Newman 

 

 

Water 

Collaborative 

Delivery 

Association 

(formerly the 

Water 

Design-Build 

Council) 

Public contracts: 

progressive 

design-build: 

local agencies 

Current law, until January 1, 2025, authorizes local agencies, as 

defined, to use the design-build procurement process for specified 

public works with prescribed cost thresholds. Current law 

requires specified information submitted by a design-build entity 

in the design-build procurement process to be certified under 

penalty of perjury. This bill, until January 1, 2033, authorizes 

local agencies, defined as any city, county, city and county, or 

special district authorized by law to provide for the production, 

storage, supply, treatment, or distribution of any water from any 

source, to use the progressive design-build process for public 

works projects in excess of $5,000,000, similar to the progressive 

design-build process authorized for use by the Director of 

SUPPORT 

 

Passed out of 

Senate 

 

 

Assembly Local 

Gov Comm. 

WRCA Support 



General Services. The bill would require specified information to 

be verified under penalty of perjury. 

SB 

1157 

Hertzberg Urban water use 

objectives: 

indoor 

residential water 

use 

Current law requires the Department of Water Resources, in 

coordination with the State Water Resources Control Board, and 

including collaboration with and input from stakeholders, to 

conduct necessary studies and investigations and authorizes the 

department and the board to jointly recommend to the Legislature 

a standard for indoor residential water use. Current law, until 

January 1, 2025, establishes 55 gallons per capita daily as the 

standard for indoor residential water use. Existing law 

establishes, beginning January 1, 2025, the greater of 52.5 gallons 

per capita daily or a standard recommended by the department 

and the board as the standard for indoor residential water use, and 

beginning January 1, 2030, establishes the greater of 50 gallons 

per capita daily or a standard recommended by the department 

and the board as the standard for indoor residential water use. 

This bill would eliminate the option of using the greater of 52.5 

gallons per capita daily and the greater of 50 gallons per capita 

daily, as applicable, or a standard recommended by the 

department and the board as the standard for indoor residential 

water use. 

Passed out of 

Senate 

 

 

 

Assembly Water, 

Parks & Wildlife 

Committee 

Oppose unless 

amended by 

WateReuse & 

ACWA, CASA 

& CMUA 

 



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

3K 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

June 15, 2022

Public Outreach and Communication

• June 5, World Environment Day
• June 7, IERCA Celebration, 12645 6th Street, Rancho Cucamonga, 10:00 a.m. – 11:00 a.m.
• June 8, World Oceans Day
• June 23, Intl. Women in Engineering Day
• June 30, World Social Media Day

Staff is working with MWD and customer agencies to enhance and implement drought
messaging and collateral across the region. The Agency's campaign strategy and messaging have
led to the development of "The Time is Now" brand for drought awareness. IEUA has partnered
with customer agencies for feature campaign ads.

The Agency recognized May as Water Awareness Month through a social media giveaway. The
public was encouraged to share their water-wise tips and techniques to qualify for different
giveaways throughout the month. Social media messaging and emails were accepted
for participation.

This is an informational item for the Board of Directors to receive and file.

06/08/22Community & Legislative Affairs

Shivaji Deshmukh, General Manager

Y Y

Executive Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

IEUA is committed to providing a reliable and cost-effective water supply and promoting
sustainable water use throughout the region.

IEUA is committed to enhancing and promoting environmental sustainability and the
preservation of the region's heritage.

N/A

Attachment 1 - Background

Not Applicable

22145



        Page 1 of 3 
 
 
 

Background 
Subject:  Public Outreach and Communication 
  
 
June 

 June 5, World Environment Day 
 June 7, IERCA Celebration Event, 12645 6th Street, Rancho Cucamonga, 10:00 a.m. – 

11:00 a.m. 
 June 8, World Oceans Day 
 June 21, First Day of Summer 
 June 23, Intl. Women in Engineering Day 
 June 30, World Social Media Day 

 
July 

 July 20, IEUA Employee Appreciation Summer Picnic, HQA Grass Area, 11:00 a.m. – 
3:00 p.m. 

 
 
Media and Outreach 

 Staff continues to utilize the Pledge to Save Water QR code campaign. Once scanned, the 
QR code takes readers to the IEUA Take the Pledge webpage where they can learn more 
about the Agency, current drought conditions, water-wise tips, and participate by taking 
the pledge to save water.  

 IEUA and its customer agencies launched a new drought tagline and campaign collateral, 
The Time is Now, which features real photos, facts, and people to encourage the public to 
know the facts, change their habits, and step up their efforts. The collateral still utilizes 
the #StepItUpIE message and follows the campaign plan framework that was developed 
by the Inland Empire Clean Water Partnership as well as adopts a serious tone to convey 
the severity of the State’s current situation. A toolkit has been made available to all 
customer agencies for their use. Staff continues to meet with representatives from each of 
its customer agencies for further support regarding outreach and/or collaboration 
opportunities (i.e., partnership ads) for this campaign and makes regular updates to the 
toolkit based on feedback. New backgrounds with The Time is Now branding have been 
uploaded to the network and are available for use on Teams.  

 The Agency recognized May as Water Awareness Month through a social media 
giveaway. The public was encouraged to share their water-wise tips and techniques to 
qualify for different prizes throughout the month. Members of the public without a social 
media account were also invited to participate by sending an email sharing their water-
wise tips.   

 Staff recognized International Compost Awareness Week throughout the first week of 
May. Information on IERCA’s awards, milestones, and a partnered compost giveaway 
with the City of Chino were shared to IEUA’s social media channels. 



Page 2 of 3 
 

 The Agency recognized May as Internal Audit Awareness Month. Staff features of the 
IEUA Internal Audit team were shared on social media. 

 Staff issued a joint press release on May 24 with the Chino Basin Water Conservation 
District highlighting the partnership grant from MWD for the Stormwater for Recharge 
Pilot Program. 

 The Agency continues to publish content on LinkedIn and has gained 77 followers since 
April, with 467 page views in the last 30 days.  

 May: 33 posts were published to the IEUA Facebook page, 35 tweets were sent on the 
@IEUAWater Twitter handle, 33 posts were published to IEUA’s Instagram grid, and 19 
posts were published to the IEUA LinkedIn page. 

o The top three Facebook posts, based on reach and engagement, in the month of  
May were:  
 5/5 International Compost Awareness Week- IERCA Spotlight 
 5/12 IEUA Board President Elie Elected to NWRI Board of Directors  
 5/22 Intl. Day for Biological Diversity  

o The top three Twitter tweets, based on reach and engagement, in the month of  
May were: 
 5/12 IEUA Board President Elie Elected to NWRI Board of Directors  
 5/5 International Compost Awareness Week- IERCA Spotlight  
 5/2 IEUA and Monte Vista Water District RP-5 Tour  

o The top three Instagram posts, based on reach and engagement, in the month of 
May were: 
 5/9 The Time is Now  
 5/5 International Compost Awareness Week- IERCA Spotlight 
 5/2 IE Landscape Contest Promotion 

o The top three LinkedIn posts, based on impressions and reactions, in the month of 
May were: 
 5/12 IEUA Board President Elie Elected to NWRI Board of Directors 
 5/2 IEUA and Monte Vista Water District RP-5 Tour  
 5/11 IEUA Change Management Workshop 
 

 A “Water-Wise Education” ad ran on April 22 in the Inland Empire Magazine. 
 A “Water-Wise Education” spadea ran on May 22 in the Daily Bulletin. 
 A “Water-Wise Education” ad ran on May 2 in La Opinion. 
 A partnership ad with the city of Chino, Chino Hills, and Monte Vista Water District as 

well as an advertorial ran in the Champion Newspaper’s Progress Edition on May 28. 
 An article featuring IEUA, written by IEUA Board President Steve Elie, was featured in 

the Champion Newspaper’s Progress Edition on May 28. 
 
For the month of May, there were 11,412 searches for a park in IEUA’s service area on Yelp, 
where Chino Creek Wetlands and Educational Park was viewed 765 times.  
 
Education and Outreach Updates 

 Three high schools within IEUA’s service area competed in MWD’s Solar Cup 2022: 
Colony High School – Ontario, Chino Hills High School – Chino Hills and Upland High 
School – Upland. All teams were recognized during MWD’s Virtual Awards Ceremony 
on May 12, with the three schools winning a total of 16 awards for the Inland Empire 



Page 3 of 3 

region. Staff is working with team advisors, captains, and their respective cities to 
coordinate further recognition at upcoming Board and City Council meetings throughout 
the following month.  

 Staff hosted the US Army Corps of Engineers on May 16. The day began with a welcome
from General Manager Deshmukh and followed with a discussion on Engineering with
Nature featuring San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District CEO/General Manager
Heather Dyer and Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority General Manager Jeff Mosher.
The event concluded with a tour of the Chino Creek Wetlands and Educational Park led
by External Affairs staff.

 Chino Basin Water Conservation District (CBWCD) has completed the garden design
and install and is collaborating on planting days for Our Loving Savior School in Chino
Hills for the Garden in Every School® (GIES) program. Staff is working with Randall
Pepper Elementary in Fontana and CBWCD to proceed with their garden install. Both
gardens are scheduled to be completed by mid-June.

Agency-Wide Membership Updates 
• Randy Lee, Director of Operations and Maintenance, attended the California Water 

Environment Association (CWEA) Awards Luncheon on April 14.
• Richard Lao, Senior Environmental Resources Planner, attended the Southern California 

Alliance of Publicly Owned Treatment Works (SCAP) Air Quality Committee Meeting 
on April 19.

• Richard Lao, Senior Environmental Resources Planner, attended the California 
Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) Regulatory Workgroup Meeting on April 21.

• Randy Lee, Director of Operations, attended the Southern California Water Coalition 
Quarterly Luncheon (SCWC) on April 22.

• Richard Lao, Senior Environmental Resources Planner, attended the California 
Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) Air Quality, Climate Change, & Energy 
Workgroup Meeting on April 28.

• Randy Lee, Director of Operations, attended the Southern California Alliance of Publicly 
Owned Treatment Works (SCAP) Board Strategic Planning Session on April 28. 



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

3L 



Recycled Water Groundwater Recharge 
Update

Andy Campbell, PG, CHG
Groundwater Recharge Supervisor

June 2022



2

Annual Recharge Monthly Accumulation

Recycled WaterStormwater



3

Groundwater Recharge Annual History

Through
April



4

Groundwater Recharge Deliveries
Past 12 Months

September 2021, January 2022, February 2022
Record Monthly RW Recharge



55

Recycled Water (RW) Deliveries

Through
March



6

Contractor conducted a condition 
assessment at all Rubber Dams

April 2022 - Rubber Dam Inspections

Split Fin 
Turner

Fold Cracking
RP3 and Turner 

Bracket Corrosion
Hickory 

FOLD 

Fin Repair Method



7

• Spring Maintenance Activities 
—Infiltration restoration work at RP3, Brooks, and Banana Basins 
—Vegetation/debris removal by CalFire at San Sevaine 3, Ely, and Banana Basins
—State Street storm drain inlet to Brooks Basin repair

Upcoming Recharge Site Maintenance

April 25, 2022 - Pumping RP3 Basin 
to prepare for infiltration restoration projectBasin Sites with Upcoming Work



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

3M  



SARS-CoV-2 Wastewater Sampling

Scott Lening
Manager of Operations

June 15, 2022



Background

 Participation with Verily Life Sciences 
WastewaterSCAN  PCR Technology

 National testing services

 Study Requirements

RP-1 
Primary 
Clarifiers

Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 1 (RP-1)

2



Sampling

3



IEUA Sampling Results

PublicHealth.Verily.com

4



Los Angeles Results

5



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

3N 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

June 15, 2022

Annual Report of the Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Committee

The 2021 Annual Report of the Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Committee for Water Year
2021 was prepared on behalf of the Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Committee (PBHSC),
pursuant to the mitigation monitoring and reporting requirements of the Peace II Subsequent
Environmental Impact Report (SEIR). This report is an annual requirement for the re-operation
and expansion of the Chino Basin Desalters to monitor potential environmental impacts that
could result from attaining hydraulic control of groundwater outflow from the Chino Basin to
the Santa Ana River. The Annual Report was published in May 2022; the monitoring and
analyses indicate the quality of the riparian habitat vegetation remained stable for about half of
the Prado Basin, and decreased in small and large patches along the creeks and the Santa Ana
River from 2020 to 2021. The Groundwater production has increased by nearly 10,000 AFY due
to an increase in the Chino Desalter pumping. There is no trend in degradation of the riparian
habitat that is contemporaneous with decreasing groundwater levels; therefore, no mitigation
measures are proposed at this time. Based on the analyses, a recommended scope and budget for
the next annual report has been prepared to monitor the extent and quality of the riparian habitat
and factors that can influence it, including augmented monitoring and analysis in three areas to
track the notable changes observed.

The 2021 Annual Report is an information item for the Board of Directors to receive and file.

EN18021: Prado Basin AMP. The project is a cost-share at 50/50 between IEUA and CBWM.

No impact.

06/08/22Engineering, Operations & Water Resources

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

N N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The 2021 Annual Report of the Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Committee is consistent with
the Agency's Business Goal of Environmental Stewardship by being committed to the
responsible use and protection of the environment through conservation and sustainable
practices.

On June 16, 2021, the Board of Directors received and filed the 2020 Annual Report of the
Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Committee.

On June 17, 2020 the Board of Directors received and filed the 2019 Annual Report of the
Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Committee.

The Annual Report for Water Year 2021 of the Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Committee is
a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program requirement of the 2010 Peace II Subsequent
Environmental Impact Report.

Attachment 1 Link - 2021 Annual Report of the Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Committee

Program Environmental Impact Report (Finding of Consistency)

22139

https://www.dropbox.com/s/3on1e1inn0t44lp/20220505%20Annual%20Report%20of
%20the%20PBHSC%20Water%20Year%202021%20%28Final%29.pdf?dl=0

https://www.dropbox.com/s/3on1e1inn0t44lp/20220505%20Annual%20Report%20of%20the%20PBHSC%20Water%20Year%202021%20%28Final%29.pdf?dl=0


INFORMATIN 
ITEM 

3O 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

June 15, 2022

Regional Water Use Efficiency Business Plan Update

The Regional Water Use Efficiency Business Plan Update (The Plan) is the outcome of a
collaborative process undertaken by IEUA and the Customer Agencies. The Plan is intended to
position agencies for regulatory compliance, drought response, and water supply reliability. In
addition, the Plan delivers an array of cost-effective, flexible water use efficiency programming.

IEUA has incorporated a two-phase approach to the WUE Business Planning process. Phase 1
as described addressed fiscal year 2021/22, and Phase 2 addresses fiscal years 2022/23 and
2023/24. Phase 2 transitions the Agency to focus on longer term strategies that align with
regional priorities, such as: evolving state regulations; equitable Customer Agency program
contributions, cost-effective water savings; drought response and potential extraordinary
conservation.

The Customer Agencies and IEUA will continue to work collaboratively to develop
accountability metrics for activities funded by the MEU Rate that assist in meeting state
regulatory requirements, including Assembly Bill 1668 and Senate Bill 606 (2018).

It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file the Regional Water Use
Efficiency Business Plan.

WR20026 - WUE Business Plan Update - 2020

Programs that are identified in the WUE Business Plan for regional implementation are included
or will be included as part of the water conservation budget in the Water Fund for FY 2022/23
and subsequent years. Several programs are also eligible for partial reimbursement to IEUA
under MWD's Conservation Credits Program and Proposition 1 under the DWR.

06/08/22Engineering, Operations & Water Resources 

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

N N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The project is consistent with IEUAs Business Goal of increasing Water Reliability by
promoting water use efficiency and education to enhance water supplies within the region; and
meeting the regions need to develop reliable and diverse local water resources in order to reduce
dependence on imported water supplies.

On May 18, 2016, the IEUA Board of Directors adopted the 2015-2020 Regional Water Use
Efficiency Busines Plan Update.

On September 15, 2010, the IEUA Board of Directors adopted the 2010-2015 Regional Water
Use Efficiency Business Plan.

Attachment 1 - PowerPoint
Attachment 2 - Regional Water Use Efficiency Business Plan Update
 Link: https://www.dropbox.com/s/6w7a2sqf8sk6gnl/22137%20Regional%20Water%
20Use%20Efficiency%20Business%20Plan%20Update.pdf?dl=0

Not Applicable

22137

https://www.dropbox.com/s/6w7a2sqf8sk6gnl/22137%20Regional%20Water%20Use%20Efficiency%20Business%20Plan%20Update.pdf?dl=0


Presented by Christopher Garcia, 
Environmental Resources Planner I & 

Maureen Erbeznik, Consultant



Purpose of WUE Business Plan

Successful 
Regional 

WUE 
Program

=

Communication Tool with Customer Agencies

Map out Needed Activities for Supply Reliability 
& Regulatory Compliance

Measure Water Savings Results

Estimate Budget

Evaluate Program Performance

2



WUE Business Plan Evolution

2007 Need for a Business Plan Identified

2009 Interim Business Plan

2010 2010-2015  WUE Business Plan

In line with UMWP

2015 2015-2020 Business Plan

2021* 2021-2025 Spilt into Two Phase

Phase 1 Status Quo

2022 Phase 2 Business Plan Developed
Assessed in One Year 

3



4

Planning Approach Selected
Core plus Flex Business Model 

Resulting in 81% of the WUE Regional Program Budget based on MEU Revenue Contribution

Core Programs are Cost-effective and Provide Regional Benefits
• 70% of Budget

• 73% of Core Programs are Allocated

Flex Programs offer Customer Agencies Ability to Select Programs 
Beneficial to Their Service Area
• 30% of Budget



5

FY 2022/23 
Program Activity



6

Plan Overview
FY 2022 - 2023

Annual Water Savings

Core Programs 599 AF
Flex Programs 197 AF

Total 796 AF
Lifetime Water Savings

Core Programs 4,069 AF
Flex Programs 1,317 AF
Total Lifetime 5,386 AF

Budget

Annual Budget $2.5 M
Cost Effectiveness

Cost per Acre-foot 
IEUA Only

$352/AF

Cost per Acre-foot 
IEUA, MWD, & Grants Combined

$718/AF

Avoided Costs
Imported Water Purchases

$4.6 M

Water Savings Program Costs



• In Development
— Kennedy Jenks and IEUA IT

— IEUA WUE and Customer Agency Representatives

• Track and Visualize Metrics

7

New WUE Dashboard

Phase 1 – Internal IEUA
- Prototype by July 1, 2022 

Phase 2 – Access for Customer Agencies
- Data security focused

- Allows agency to access their own data6att

Phase 3 – Automation and More



Questions?

8

The project is consistent with IEUAs Business Goal of increasing Water Reliability by promoting water use 
efficiency and education to enhance water supplies within the region; and meeting the regions need to develop 

reliable and diverse local water resources in order to reduce dependence on imported water supplies. 



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

3P 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

June 15, 2022

FY 2022/23 Adopted Budget for the Inland Empire Regional Composting Authority

The Inland Empire Regional Composting Authority (IERCA) is a Joint Power Authority (JPA)
formed between IEUA and the Los Angeles County Sanitation Districts (LACSD) as a 50/50
partnership with a shared goal to developed sustainable biosolids management program. The FY
2022/23 budget for IERCA includes $11.5 million in revenue, $9.3 million of operating budget,
$2.3 million of capital improvement plan, and a dollar increase to the tipping fee rate from $58
to $59 per wet ton. Also included is a capital call of $2 million to be shared equally by IEUA
and LACSD to support capital improvement projects, as needed.

The FY 2022/23 budget and tipping fee rate were approved and adopted by the IERCA Board on
June 6, 2022.

The FY 2022/23 Adopted Budget for the Inland Empire Regional Composting Authority is
submitted as an informational item for the Board to review and file.

None

06/08/22Finance & Administration

Javier Chagoyen-Lazaro, Acting Assistant General Manager

N N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The proposed FY 2022/23 Adopted Budget for the Inland Empire Regional Composting
Authority is consistent with the IEUA Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility and
Environmental Stewardship.

The FY 2021/22 budget and tipping fee rate were approved and adopted by the IERCA Board
on May 3, 2021 and IEUA Board on May 19, 2021.

Attachment 1 - IERCA FY 2022/23 Budget Board Letter
Attachment 2 - IERCA FY 2022/23 Budget Schedules A, B and C
Attachment 3 - IERCA FY 2022/23 Budget Presentation

Not Applicable

22136



Revenues

O&M Expenses



Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) 



















FY 2022/23
Proposed Budget



Key Assumptions

$59 per wet Ton –
Tipping Fees 
($1 increase)

$2 Million
Capital Call

25 FTE Staffing 
Level Maintained

Timely Upkeep of 
Assets to Support 
Level of Service

2



FY 2022/23 Proposed Budget
($ in thousand) FY 2021/22 

Amended Budget
FY 2022/23 

Proposed Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)

Tipping fee per wet ton $58 $59 $1
Wet tons 145,000 148,500 3,500
Operating Revenues $9,030 $9,491 $461

Operating Expenses 9,122 9,285 163

Net Operating Increase/(Decrease) ($92) $206 $298

Other Funding Sources1 $2,035 $2,064 $29

Other Uses of Funds2 1,545 2,275 730

Net Non-Operating Increase/(Decrease) $490 ($211) ($701)

Total Net Change $398 ($5) ($403)
1 Includes proposed capital call, interest income, and other non-operating revenues
2 Includes planned capital project costs

3



Capital Improvement Plan
Project Description
($ in thousand)

FY 2021/22 
Amended Budget

FY 2022/23 
Proposed Budget

Increase/
(Decrease)

Capital Replacement & Rehabilitation (R&R) $419 $500 $81

Front End Loader Replacement 1,045 1,200 155

Active Hopper Replacement - 200 200

South MCC HVAC Upgrades - 175 175

Column Repair 81 - (81)

Fire Sprinkler Upgrades - 200 200

Total Capital Improvement Plan $1,545 $2,275 $730

4



Revenues
Increase due to tipping fee and tonnage increases

*Other Income include interest income and credits

 $-

 $2,000

 $4,000

 $6,000

 $8,000

 $10,000

 $12,000

2021/22

Amended

2022/23

Proposed

Th
ou

sa
nd

s

Biosolids Recycling Compost Sales/Delivery Contributed Capital Other Revenue*

5



Expenses
Increase due to increased capital an operating costs

*Operating costs include operating fees, biofilter replacement, materials & supplies
**Other expenses include lease & rentals, financial expenses

 $-
 $2,000
 $4,000
 $6,000
 $8,000

 $10,000
 $12,000
 $14,000

2021/22

Amended

2022/23

Proposed

Th
ou

sa
nd

s

Labor Office & Adm./Insurance Professional Fees & Services
Utilities Operating Costs* Other Expenses**
Capital Projects

6



Fund Balance
Meets Reserve Policy Minimum Reserve Levels

 $-

 $2,000

 $4,000

 $6,000

2020/21

Actual

2021/22

Amended

2022/23

Proposed

Th
ou

sa
nd

s

Operating Contingency Biofilter Replacement Insurance Capital Replacement & Improvements

7



Questions?

8



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

3Q 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

June 15, 2022

Fiscal Year 2021/22 Third Quarter Budget Variance, Performance Updates, and Budget
Transfers

The budget variance report presents the Agency's financial performance through the third
quarter ended March 31, 2022 and various analyses are provided in the attachments.

The Agency's total revenues and other funding sources were $207.2 million, or 93.5 percent of
the fiscal year to date amended budget of $221.6 million.

The Agency's total expenses and other uses of funds were $242.4 million, or 64.6 percent of the
fiscal year to date amended budget of $375.3 million. Lower than budgeted administrative and
operating expenses and timing of capital project execution account for the favorable variance.

The net change of the unaudited total revenues and other funding sources over the total expenses
and other uses of funds for the quarter ended March 31, 2022 is an estimated decrease of $35.2
million.

The Fiscal Year (FY) 2021/22 third quarter budget variance, performance goal updates, and
budget transfers is an informational item for the Board of Directors to receive and file.

The net change of the total revenues and other funding sources over total expenses and other
uses of funds is a decrease of $35.2 million for the quarter ended March 31, 2022.

06/08/22Finance & Administration

Javier Chagoyen-Lazaro, Acting Assistant General Manager

N N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The quarterly budget variance report is consistent with the Agency's business goal of fiscal
responsibility to demonstrate the Agency has appropriately funded operational, maintenance,
and capital costs.

On March 16, 2022 the Board of Directors received the Fiscal Year 2021/22 Second Quarter
Budget Variance, Performance Goal Updates, and Budget Transfers.

Attachment 1 - Background
Exhibit A - Q3 Budget Variance Summary and Detail Report
Exhibit B - Business Goals Status Updates by Department
Exhibit C-1 - Summary of Annual Budget Transfers through the First Quarter
Exhibit C-2 - Summary of the GM Contingency Account Activity
Exhibit D - Project Budget Transfers for Capital and Non-Capital Projects

Attachment 2 - Power Point

Not Applicable

22140



User Charges

Recycled Water Sales 

MWD Water Sales 

Connection Fees

Property Taxes 



Grants & Loans

Cost Reimbursements 

Employment – 

Office and Administration – 



Professional Fees & Services – 

O&M (Non-capital) and Reimbursable Projects

Operating Fees

MWD Water Purchases 

Utilities 

Capital Projects – 

Financial Expenses - 



                   +/- difference due to rounding 

Intra-fund O&M 



General Manager (GM) Contingency Account

Inter-fund Capital and O&M project



I.  Actual vs. Budget Summary:

Quarter Ended March 31, 2022

 % of the Year       
Elapsed:75% 

 Amended Budget
Budget 

Year to Date (YTD)
Actual 

Year to Date (YTD)
Budget YTD 
vs. Actual

 % of Budget
 Used YTD

Operating Revenues $168,838,846 $126,629,135 $126,432,851 ($196,284) 99.8%

Non-Operating (Other Sources of Fund) 126,665,339 94,999,004 80,724,887 (14,274,117) 85.0%

TOTAL FUNDING SOURCES 295,504,185 221,628,139 207,157,738 (14,470,401) 93.5%

Administrative & Operating Expense (193,515,365) (145,136,524) (112,455,561) 32,680,963 77.5%

Capital Improvement Project Expense (286,993,585) (215,245,189) (110,276,311) 104,968,878 51.2%

Debt Service and All Other Expenses (19,943,834) (14,957,875) (19,658,914) (4,701,039) 131.4%

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS (500,452,784) (375,339,588) (242,390,786) 132,948,802 64.6%

Surplus/(Deficit) ($204,948,599) ($153,711,449) ($35,233,048) $118,478,401 

Actual vs. Budget YTD
For the Quarter

EndedMarch 31, 2022



2. Actual Revenue vs. Budget:

Quarter Ended March 31, 2022

 % of the Year       
Elapsed:75% 

 Amended Budget
Budget 

Year to Date (YTD)
Actual 

Year to Date (YTD)
Budget YTD 
vs. Actual

 % of Budget
 Used YTD

Operating Revenues:

  User Charges $93,769,323 $70,326,992 $71,955,744 $1,628,752 102.32%

17,290,000 12,967,500 14,681,862 $1,714,362 113.22%

  MWD Water Sales 47,412,000 35,559,000 34,161,022 ($1,397,978) 96.07%

  Cost Reimbursement 6,987,687 5,240,765 4,587,867 ($652,898) 87.54%

  Interest 3,379,836 2,534,877 1,046,356 ($1,488,521) 41.28%

168,838,846 126,629,134 126,432,851 (196,283) 99.8%

Non-Operating Revenues:

  Property Tax - Debt,  Capital, Reserves $57,486,000 $43,114,500 $43,529,714 $415,214 101.0%

  Connection Fees 37,913,139 28,434,854 30,341,874 $1,907,020 106.7%

  Grants & Loans 29,618,503 22,213,877 4,982,135 ($17,231,742) 22.4%

  Other Revenue 1,647,697 1,235,774 1,871,164 $635,390 151.4%

NON-OPERATING REVENUES 126,665,339 94,999,005 80,724,887 (14,274,118) 85.0%

Total Revenues $295,504,185 $221,628,139 $207,157,738 ($14,470,401) 93.5%

User Charges, 102.3%

Property Tax/ 
AdValorem, 101%

Recycled Water Sales, 
113.2%

Interest Income, 41.3%

MWD Water Sales, 96.1%

Connection Fees, 106.7%

  Recycled Water Sales

OPERATING REVENUES

Total Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD) pass-through imported water revenue was $34.2 million or 96.1 percent of the 
year to date budget. Imported water deliveries were 35,662 AF compared to the annual budgeted quantity of 60,000 AF. Additional Dry Year Yield 
Conjunctive Use totaled 18,000 AF.  Steady demands through the third  quarter can be attributed to due to continued dry weather conditions. 

Total connection fee receipts of $30.3 million or 106.7 percent of the year to date budget. Receipts include $23.8 million for new regional 
wastewater system connections and $6.5 million for new water connections. The number of new wastewater connections reported for through 
March were 3,234 equivalent dwellings unit (EDU) compared to the annual budget of 4,000. The total number of new water connections were 
3,485 meter equivalent dwelling units (MEU) compared to the budgeted 4,700.

User charges were $71.9 million, or 102.3 percent of the year to date budget. The category includes $56.8 million monthly sewer charges based 
on equivalent dwelling units (EDU), $8.9 million non-reclaimable wastewater fees paid by industrial and commercial users connected to the brine 
line system and sale of initial capacity charge and rights for disposal of non-reclaimable and industrial wastewater; and $6.2 million of monthly 
meter equivalent unit charges (MEU) imposed on all potable water connections; and Readiness-to-Serve Ten Year Rolling Average (RTS TYRA) 
charges to meet our Readiness-to-Serve obligation to Metropolitan Water District (MWD).

Property tax receipts through the third quarter totaled $43.5 million. General ad-valorem property tax receipts from the San Bernardino County 
Tax Assessor were $27.5 million and former redevelopment agencies (RDA) pass through tax receipts were $16.0 million through March.  The third 
payment of "pass through" of incremental Redevelopment Agencies (RDA) taxes are due from the county in June. Property tax receipts are 
budgeted based on valuation projected by the county, increased home sales, and anticipated adjustments in property tax distribution due to the 
dissolution of the redevelopment agencies.

Recycled water direct sales were $7.2 million for 13,971 acre feet (AF) and groundwater recharge sales were $7.5 million for 13,043 acre feet 
(AF), for a combined total of $14.7 million and 27,014 AF. Total deliveries of 32,000 AF (17,000 AF Direct and 15,000 AF Recharge) were budgeted 
for the  fiscal year.  Demand for direct use and groundwater recharge varies depending on weather patterns, water use conservation efforts, 
reuse supply, and basin availability.

Interest Income was $1.0 million or 41.3 percent of the year to date budget.  The Agency earns interest income by investing funds not 
immediately required for daily operations. The Agency's average portfolio yield for March 2022 was 0.86%. The budgeted interest rate assumption 
for FY 2021/22 is 1.75% based on the Agency's overall fund balance which is higher than that of the agency's investment portfolio.



Grants and Loans, 22.4%

Cost Reimbursements 
JPA, 87.5%

Other Revenues, 151.4%

3. Actual Operating and Capital Expense vs. Budget:

 % of the Year       
Elapsed:75% 

 Amended Budget
Budget 

Year to Date (YTD)
Actual 

Year to Date (YTD)
Budget YTD 
vs. Actual

 % of Budget
 Used YTD

Operating Expenses:

  Employment $63,225,828 $47,419,371 $36,766,783 $10,652,588 77.5%

  Admin & Operating 82,877,537 62,158,152 41,527,756 $20,630,396 66.8%

  MWD Water Purchases 47,412,000 35,559,000 34,161,022 $1,397,978 96.1%

OPERATING EXPENSES $193,515,365 $145,136,523 $112,455,561 $32,680,962 77.5%

  Capital 286,993,585 215,245,189 110,276,311 $104,968,877 51.2%

  Debt Service and All Other Expenses 19,943,834 14,957,876 19,658,913 ($4,701,037) 131.4%

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES $306,937,419 $230,203,065 $129,935,224 $100,267,840 56.4%

     Total Expenses $500,452,784 $375,339,588 $242,390,785 $132,948,802 64.6%

Total other revenues and project reimbursements were $1.9 million, or 151.4 percent of the year to date budget. Actual receipts include of $0.4 
million from Chino Basin Waster Master(CBWM) for their share of the 2020A bond debt service and fixed project costs, $0.4 million of 
miscellaneous revenues for Non-Reclaimable Wastewater leased capacity units, $0.5 gain on investments, and $0.6 million of other fees and 
miscellaneous reimbursements.

Employment expenses were $36.8 million or 77.5 percent of the year to date budget.  At the end of the third quarter, total filled regular 
positions were 262 and 10 limited term positions compared to the 312 authorized positions (302 FTE and 10 LT positions). Current recruitment 
efforts to fill key positions have resulted in increased internal promotional opportunities for staff creating  vacancies for the positions they have 
left behind. Continued recruitment of key positions from Agency’s succession plan is expected to net a lower vacancy factor going forward. The 
budget includes $7.5 million of payment towards unfunded retirement liabilities with actuals of $5.9 million through March.

Total expenses were $5.6 million, or 47.5 percent through the end of third quarter. Some professional services are anticipated to ramp up in the 
final quarter such as; planned maintenance of the recycled water distribution system control valves, recharge water basin infiltration 
restoration, and consultant support for project management and administrative services. 

Total expenses through the third quarter were $0.7 million or 39.1 percent. The favorable variance was due to non-essential staff continuing to 
work remotely and not fully utilizing office supplies, meeting expense, and travel budget.  Also contributing the variance is the inclusion of $250 
thousand of GM contingency budget that serves as a funding source for unexpected operating expense.

Professional Fees & Services, 47.5%

Non-Operating Expenses:

Grant and loan receipts received through the third quarter totaled $5.0 million. Grant receipts included $3.8 million for the Chino Basin Program 
and other Water Conservation grant receipts, $0.8 million of receipts for the Recharge Master Plan Update (RMPU) and other projects in the 
Recharge Water program, with the remaining receipts for the Plume clean-up and recycled water projects. There were no SRF loan receipts 
through the third quarter. Grants and loan receipts are primarily reimbursable in nature and as such are dependent upon related capital project 
expenditures.  
Annual budgeted grants of $15.5 million include $9.5 million for Recharge Master Plan Update (RMPU) projects in the Recharge Water fund, $5.8 
million for Plume Cleanup project in the Regional Wastewater Operations fund, $0.2 million for various water conservation and drought relief 
projects in the Water Resources fund.  
State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan proceeds annual budget of $8.0 million are for Recharge Master Plan Update projects in the Recharge Water 
Fund.

Total cost reimbursements of $4.6 million or 87.5 percent of the year to date budget were received through the third quarter.  Actuals include 
reimbursements of $2.7 million from the Inland Empire Regional Composting Authority (IERCA) and $1.0 million from Chino Basin Desalter 
Authority CDA) for the Agency's operation & maintenance of the IERCA Composter and CDA Desalter facilities respectively. Also included is $0.9 
million for operations & maintenance costs related to the groundwater recharge basins, net of the Agency's pro-rata share for the recycled water 
recharge costs. 

Employment, 77.5%Employment Expenses 
net of allocation to 
projects

Administrative & 
Operating Expenses

Office and Administrative, 39.1%



Financial Expenses

Other Expenses

Capital Expenses

Total expenses were $8.6 million or 88.5 percent of the year to date budget. A major part of this category are the "pass-through" fees  from Los 
Angeles County Sanitation District (LACSD) and Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority (SAWPA) for the Agency's non-reclaimable wastewater 
system (NRWS).

Expenses through the of the third quarter were $2.1 million or 76.1 percent of year to date budget. The favorable variance was primarily due to 
staff's effort to monitor operational equipment usage to ensure maximum use from supplies, replacement parts, and consumables used by 
treatment plants.

Other Expenses, 152.6%

Financial Expense, 130.9%
Total financial expenses were $19.1 million or 130.9 percent through the end of the third quarter. Actual costs include $8.1 million of principal
payments for the 2017A Revenue bonds and State Revolving Fund loans. Total interest and financial administration fees were $11.0 million. 

Materials & Supplies/Leases/Contribution, 76.1%

The combined O&M and reimbursable project costs were $7.1 million or 42.5 percent of the combined year to date budget. The favorable budget
is mainly due to lower spending for conservation projects, emergency, and other miscellaneous on call projects. Project scope changes, timeline
extensions, and field coordination delays also contributed to the positive variance.

Operating Fees, 88.5%

Total utilities expenses were $9.2 million or 97.7 percent of the year to date budget. This category includes the purchase of electricity from 
Southern California Edison (SCE), natural gas, and purchase of renewable energy generated on site from solar and wind.  Through the third 
quarter, the average rate for imported electricity ranged between $0.147/kWh - $0.170/kWh compared to the budgeted rate of $0.140/kWh.  

Total Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD) pass-through imported water purchased was $34.2 million or 96.1 percent of the 
year to date budget. Imported water deliveries were 35,661 AF compared to the annual budgeted quantity of 60,000 AF.   Additional Dry Year 
Yield Conjunctive Use totaled 18,000 AF. Steady demand through the third quarter can be attributed to dry weather conditions. 

Utilities, 97.7%

Chemicals, 85.6%

Chemical expenses were $4.5 million, or 85.6 percent of the year to date budget. Chemicals are essential in meeting regulatory requirements, 
treatment process performance goals, and sustainment of high quality recycled water. The positive variance is due in part to continued tertiary 
process improvements at RP-4. However, due to increasing chemical costs the majority of the budget is projected to be utilized by fiscal year 
end. 

O&M and Reimbursable Projects, 42.7% and 40.4%

Biosolids expenses through the end of the third quarter were $2.9 million or 77.6 percent of the year to date budget. The biosolids budget 
includes costs for hauling and disposal of biosolids and non-biological materials. Year to date tonnage of the Agency's biosolids generated from all 
its water recycling facilities. Total shipped to IERCA was 49,741 tons with a hauling rate of $58 per ton. 

MWD Water Purchases, 96.1%

Biosolids Recycling, 77.6%

Total other expenses were $0.6 million or 152.6 percent of the year to date budget. The category expense includes the annual contribution-in-
aid to the Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority and other miscellaneous expense. 

Total capital project expenditures year to date were $110.3 million or 51.2 percent of the year to date budget. The favorable variance can be 
attributed to operational constraints while taking equipment out of service for condition assessments, design and construction delays to utility 
conflicts, and equipment procurement delays.  Capital project budget related to the Regional Wastewater program was $220.4 million, or 84 
percent of the $264.0 million of the annual project budget. 

Capital Costs, 51.2%



Capital Projects Annual Budget Actual YTD  % of Budget
 Used YTD

EN19006 105,001,185              36,746,668                35.0%

EN19001 72,126,460                32,644,175                45.3%

EN23002 15,000,000                138,554                     0.9%

EN22044 12,000,000                1,248,440                  10.4%

RW15003 11,350,000                5,441,048                  47.9%

O&M & Reimbursable Projects Annual Budget Actual YTD  % of Budget
 Used YTD

EN19024 2,541,262                  1,259,779                  49.6%

PA17006 2,500,000                  1,440,763                  57.6%

EN16021 542,042                     520,478                     96.0%

EN19023 500,976                     76,821                       15.3%

Per the approved 2013 Amendment to the 2010 Recharge Master Plan Update (RMPU), IEUA and CBWM agreed to implement the seven (7)
recommended new projects which have been selected by the RMPU Steering Committee to enhance stormwater yield for nine (9) groundwater
recharge basins. The basins considered for yield enhancement are: SCI, Wineville, Jurupa, RP3, Victoria, Turner, Ely, and Montclair basins. The
Victoria basin in complete, Wineville, Jurupa, and RP3 improvements are in construction with a scheduled completion of May 30, 2023. Montclair
is scheduled for construction bid in June 2022 and construction completion of August 31, 2023. 

Agency-Wide Aeration

Replacement of aeration panels for each aeration basins/trains at the RP1, RP4, CCWRF, and RP5.
The current construction contract is to replace the aeration diffuser membranes at RP-1, the last facility that will be rehabilitated as part of this
project.  The project is projected to be complete before end of the fourth quarter 2022.  

Philadelphia Lift Station
Replace the force mains, as well as provide inspection manholes for future condition assessment on the entire length along Philadelphia. The
proposed pipeline alignment has been coordinated and approved with the City of Ontario and is in the final design. Construction to begin
sometime in the 4th quarter.

RP-1 Thickening Building
The project is currently completing the 30% Design phase. Design activities are anticipated to run through June 2023, with construction
beginning in late 2023 or early 2024. Project expenditures through then will be largely limited to professional fees associated with design and
review activities. The major exception will be the purchase of a sludge thickening unit, anticipated to be submitted for approval with the June
Board Meeting.

Recharge Master Plan

IEUA will contribute funding and administer the project, which will strengthen CDA's groundwater supply infrastructure while also acting as a
remedial solution to the South Archibald TCE plume. Construction of the project is completed. IEUA and CDA are coordinating on the next steps
to meet ongoing progress reports for Prop 68 & Prop 1 funding. Also, IEUA and CDA are evaluating the need of addition monitoring wells. IEUA is
working with West Yost to perform a particle analysis to model groundwater flows to determine the need of constructing additional monitoring
wells. This task is scheduled to be completed by March 2024.

RP-5 Solids Handling Facility
Design of the offsite pump stations and Radio Tower is still ongoing. Received AQMD submitted permit to construct to EPA for review, anticipated
final permit issuance in May 2020. Second lift of all digester walls nearly complete. Thickening Building first floor complete, continuing
construction of second floor walls. Dewatering Building first floor complete, continuing construction of columns and mezzanine level. 

RP-5 Expansion to 30 mgd
Improvements at RP-5 are expected to increase the treatment capacity of RP-5 from 15 to 30 MGD. The relocation of the RP-2 Solids Treatment
Facility to RP-5 is required due to the facility being located on United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) property, which is located in a
future flood plain upon completion of USACE project to raise the Prado Dam Spillway. Design of the offsite pump stations and Radio Tower is still
ongoing. Received AQMD submitted permit to construct to EPA for review, anticipated final permit issuance in May 2020. Influent Pump Station
walls nearly complete. Membrane Bioreactor Phase 1 concrete structure nearly complete.  

TCE Plume Cleanup

The project when complete will provide IEUA with an optimized asset management plan for managing future cleaning, inspection, and sewer 
repairs of the Regional System. CDM Smith and its sub-contractor, Northwest Pipe Service, are finalizing their condition assessment of IEUA’s 
siphon systems for the Regional Sewer System. The field work is being extended to September 2022 to address additional efforts in bypassing 
flows, implementing extensive traffic control requirements, and removing larger volumes of debris within the pipeline. 

 Summary of major capital and non-capital project expenses and status as of March 31, 2022

Asset Management Plan
Program content and components for Strategic Asset Management Plan (SAMP) have been identified, from the roadmap, before task order to be
issued for consultant support. The low budget utilization for Q3 is due to delays from consultant in providing the required proposal for the Agency
to initiate a task order. 



OPERATING REVENUES

NON-OPERATING REVENUES

TOTAL REVENUES

ADMINISTRATIVE and OPERATING EXPENSES

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Fiscal Year 2021/22



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Fiscal Year 2021/22

and OPERATING EXPENSES

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

TOTAL EXPENSES

Totals may not add up due to rounding

















































INFORMATION 
ITEM 

3R 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

June 15, 2022

Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

The Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the month ended April 30, 2022 is submitted in a
format consistent with the State requirements.

For the month of April 2022, total cash, investments, and restricted deposits of $516,224,168
reflects an increase of $11,731,781 compared to the total of $504,492,387 reported for March
2022. The increase was primarily due to $14 million of San Bernardino County property tax
receipts. As a result, the average days cash on hand increased from 194 days to 217 days for the
month of April 2022.

The unrestricted Agency investment portfolio yield in April 2022 was 0.842 percent, a slight
decrease of 0.019 percent compared to the March 2022 yield of 0.861 percent. The change in
yield is mainly attributed to a higher balance in the Citizens Business Bank repurchase account
with a lower earnings yield.

The Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the month ended April 30, 2022 is an
information item for the Board of Director's review.

Interest earned on the Agency's investment portfolio increases the Agency's overall reserves.

06/08/22Finance & Administration

Javier Chagoyen-Lazaro, Acting Assistant General Manager

N N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs is consistent with the Agency's Business Goal of
Fiscal Responsibility in providing financial reporting that accounts for cash and investment
activities to fund operating requirements and to optimize investment earnings.

On May 18, 2022 the Board of Directors received the Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for
the month ended March 31, 2022.

Attachment 1 - Background
Attachment 2 - PowerPoint
Attachment 3 - Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

Not Applicable

22138





https://www.ieua.org/read-our-reports/cash-and-investment/




https://www.ieua.org/read-our-reports/cash-and-investment/








INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

April March Variance

Investments
Agency Managed

Total Agency Managed Investments

PFMManaged

Total PFMManaged Investments

Total Investments

Total Cash and Investments Available to the Agency

Restricted Deposits

Total Restricted Deposits

Total Cash, Investments, and Restricted Deposits $516,224,168 $504,492,387 $11,731,781
**Total reported as of March 2022 net of capital call receipts

Cash, Bank Deposits, and Bank Investment Accounts

1



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Cash, Bank Deposits, and Bank Investment Accounts

Other Cash and Bank Accounts

US Bank Pre Investment Money Market Account

Total Cash and Bank Accounts $914,902

Unrestricted Investments

CBB Repurchase (Sweep) Investments

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

California Asset Management Program (CAMP)

Subtotal Agency Managed Investment Accounts $102,853,522

Brokered Certificates of Deposit

Supra National Agency Bonds

2



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Unrestricted Investments Continued

Municipal Bonds

Medium Term Notes

U.S. Treasury Notes

U.S. Government Sponsored Entities

Subtotal PFMManaged Investment Accounts $113,543,211

Total Investments $216,396,733

Restricted Deposits

Investment Pool Accounts

Bond and Note Accounts

3



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Restricted Deposits Continued

2020B Construction Project Accounts

CCRA Deposits Held by Member Agencies

CalPERS

Escrow Deposits

Total Restricted Deposits

Total Cash, Investments, and Restricted Deposits as of April 30, 2022 $516,224,168

Total Monthly Increase (Decrease)

**Total reported as of March 2022 net of capital call receipts

4



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Cash, Bank Deposits, and Bank Investment Accounts

Citizens Business Bank (CBB)

US Bank (USB)
(Investment Mgmt.)
(Debt Service)

Petty Cash

Total Cash, Bank Deposits and
Bank Investment Accounts $914,902 $933,746 $914,902 $914,902

Investments
CBB Daily Repurchase (Sweep) Accounts

LAIF Accounts

CAMP Accounts

Subtotal Agency Managed Investment Accounts $102,853,522 $102,853,522 $102,853,522 0.38% $102,853,522

Brokered Certificates of Deposit (CDs)

5



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Investments (continued)

US Treasury Note

6



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Investments (continued)

U.S. Government Sponsored Entities

Supra National Agency Bond

7



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Investments (continued)
Municipal Bonds

Medium Term Notes

Subtotal PFMManaged Investment Accounts $113,783,000 $113,569,965 $113,543,211 1.25% $109,018,645

Total Investments $216,636,522 $216,423,487 $216,396,733 $211,872,167
(Source of Investment Amortized Cost: PFM)

8



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Restricted Deposits

Investment Pool Accounts

Total Investment Pool Accounts

Bond and Note Accounts

Total Bond and Note Accounts

2020B Construction Project Account

Total 2020B Construction Project Accts $129,701,816 $129,701,816 $129,701,816 0.521% $129,701,816

CCRA Deposits Held by Member Agencies

Subtotal CCRA Deposits Held by Member Agencies**
**Total reported as of March 2022 net of capital call receipts

CalPERS Deposits

Escrow Deposits

Total Restricted Deposits $293,701,799 $293,701,799 $298,912,533 $298,912,533

$511,253,223 $511,059,032 $516,224,168 $511,699,602
Total Cash, Investments, and Restricted Deposits
as of April 30, 2022

9



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Directed Investment Category Amount Invested Yield

Total Investment Portfolio $216,396,733
Investment Portfolio Rate of Return 0.842%

Restricted/Transitory/Other Accounts Amount Invested Yield

Total Restricted/Transitory/Other Accounts $299,827,435
Average Yield of Other Accounts 0.511%

Total Agency Directed Deposits $516,224,168

*Petty Cash

10



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

April Purchases

Total Purchases 2,335,000$

April Investment Maturities, Calls & Sales

Total Maturities, Calls & Sales 2,205,000$

11



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

$509,890,711

12



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

$216,396,733

13



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

$29,066,500

14



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Agency Investment Portfolio Maturity Distribution (Unrestricted)
$216,396,733

15



16



        AGENCY  
REPRESENTATIVES’ 

      REPORTS 

   4A 



S A W P A 
 
 

 
PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF AB 361, THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED VIRTUALLY WITH 

THE OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT.  ALL VOTES TAKEN WILL BE CONDUCTED BY ORAL 
ROLL CALL. 

This meeting will be accessible as follows: 
 

Meeting Access Via Computer (Zoom)*: Meeting Access Via Telephone*: 
• https://sawpa.zoom.us/j/85434714159 • 1 (669) 900-6833 
• Meeting ID: 854 3471 4159 • Meeting ID: 854 3471 4159 

*Participation in the meeting via the Zoom app (a free download) is strongly encouraged 
 

 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
TUESDAY, JUNE 7, 2022 – 9:30 A.M. 

 

AGENDA 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER | PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (Marco Tule, Chair)  
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Members of the public may address the Commission on items within the jurisdiction of the Commission; however, 
no action may be taken on an item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is otherwise authorized by 
Government Code §54954.2(b). 

 
4. ITEMS TO BE ADDED OR DELETED 
 
5. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and non-controversial and will be acted upon by 
the Commission by one motion as listed below. 

A. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES:  MAY 17, 2022 
Recommendation:  Approve as posted. 

 
B. TREASURER’S REPORT:  APRIL 2022 

Recommendation:  Approve as posted. 
 

6. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. ARUNDO HEADWATERS PROJECT OPPORTUNITY WITH INLAND EMPIRE 
RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT (CM#2022.34) 
Presenter:  Ian Achimore 
Recommendation:  Receive and file. 
 

  

          SANTA  ANA  WATERSHED  PROJECT AUTHORITY 
             11615 Sterling Avenue, Riverside, California 92503 •  (951) 354-4220 

 

https://sawpa.zoom.us/j/85434714159


SAWPA Commission 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

June 7, 2022 
Page 2 

 

 

 
B. DISADVANTAGED COMMUNITIES INVOLVEMENT PROGRAM: RESOLUTION 

REGARDING 2021 URBAN AND MULTIBENEFIT DROUGHT RELIEF GRANT 
PROGRAM SET-ASIDE FUNDING (CM#2022.35) 
Presenter:  Rick Whetsel 
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution No. 2022-10, to authorize the application for a grant 
under the 2021 Urban and Multibenefit Drought Relief Grant Program for Disadvantaged 
Community Involvement Set-Aside Funding that designates a representative to sign the 
application, and in the event of an award of grant funds, a representative to execute the 
funding agreement and all necessary documentation. 

 
C. SANTA ANA RIVER WATERSHED WEATHER MODIFICATION PILOT PROGRAM 

OPERATIONS REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (CM#2022.36) 
Presenter:  Mark Norton 
Recommendation:  Authorize issuance of a Request for Proposals for the Santa Ana River 
Watershed Weather Modification Pilot Program Operations services. 

 
7. INFORMATIONAL REPORTS 

Recommendation:  Receive for information. 
 

A. CHAIR’S COMMENTS/REPORT 
 

B. COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS 
 

C. COMMISSIONERS’ REQUEST FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
8. CLOSED SESSION 
 

There were no Closed Session items anticipated at the time of the posting of this agenda. 
 

9. ADJOURNMENT 
 
PLEASE NOTE: 
Americans with Disabilities Act:  If you require any special disability related accommodations to participate in this meeting, call 
(951) 354-4220 or email svilla@sawpa.org.  48-hour notification prior to the meeting will enable staff to make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility for this meeting.  Requests should specify the nature of the disability and the type of 
accommodation requested. 
Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Commission after distribution of the agenda packet are available 
for public inspection during normal business hours at the SAWPA office, 11615 Sterling Avenue, Riverside, and available at 
www.sawpa.org, subject to staff’s ability to post documents prior to the meeting. 
 
 
 

Declaration of Posting 
I, Sara Villa, Clerk of the Board of the Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority declare that on June 2, 2022, a copy of this agenda has been 
uploaded to the SAWPA website at www.sawpa.org and posted at SAWPA’s office, 11615 Sterling Avenue, Riverside, California. 
 
 

  

http://www.sawpa.org/
http://www.sawpa.org/


SAWPA Commission 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

June 7, 2022 
Page 3 

 

 

 
 

2022 SAWPA Commission Meetings/Events 
First and Third Tuesday of the Month 

(NOTE:  All meetings begin at 9:30 a.m., unless otherwise noticed, and are held at SAWPA.) 
 

January 
1/4/22 Commission Workshop [cancelled] 
1/18/22 Regular Commission Meeting 

February 
2/1/22 Commission Workshop 
2/15/22 Regular Commission Meeting 

March 
3/1/22 Commission Workshop 
3/15/22 Regular Commission Meeting 

April 
4/5/22 Commission Workshop 
4/19/22 Regular Commission Meeting 

May 
5/3/22 Commission Workshop [cancelled] 
5/17/22 Regular Commission Meeting 
5/3 – 5/6/22 ACWA Spring Conference, Sacramento, CA 

June 
6/7/22 Commission Workshop 
6/21/22 Regular Commission Meeting 

July 
7/5/22 Commission Workshop 
7/19/22 Regular Commission Meeting 

August 
8/2/22 Commission Workshop 
8/16/22 Regular Commission Meeting 

September 
9/6/22 Commission Workshop 
9/20/22 Regular Commission Meeting 

October 
10/4/22 Commission Workshop 
10/18/22 Regular Commission Meeting 

November 
11/1/22 Commission Workshop 
11/15/22 Regular Commission Meeting 
 

December 
12/6/22 Commission Workshop 
12/20/22 Regular Commission Meeting  
11/29 – 12/2/22 ACWA Fall Conference, Indian Wells, CA 

 

 



        AGENCY  
REPRESENTATIVES’ 

      REPORTS 

   4B 



Tuesday, June 14, 2022
Meeting Schedule

Regular Board of Directors Meeting

June 14, 2022

12:00 PM

09:30 am - OP&T
10:30 am - L&C
11:30 am - Break
12:00 pm - BOD

Teleconference meetings will continue until further notice. Live streaming is 
available for all board and committee meetings on mwdh2o.com (Click Here) 

A listen only phone line is also available at 1-877-853-5257; enter meeting ID: 831 
5177 2466. Members of the public may present their comments to the Board on 
matters within their jurisdiction as listed on the agenda via teleconference only. To 
participate call (833) 548-0276 and enter meeting ID: 815 2066 4276.

MWD Headquarters Building - 700 N. Alameda Street - Los Angeles, CA 90012

1. Call to Order

a. Invocation:  Tyler Grossheim, Associate Engineer, Engineering Services Group

b. Pledge of Allegiance: Director Dennis Erdman, Municipal Water District of 
Orange County

2. Roll Call

3. Determination of a Quorum

4. Opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on 
matters within the Board's jurisdiction.  (As required by Gov. Code § 
54954.3(a))

5. OTHER MATTERS AND REPORTS

A. 21-1184Report on Directors' Events Attended at Metropolitan's Expense

06142022 BOD 5A ReportAttachments:

B. 21-1185Chairwoman's Monthly Activity Report

C. 21-1186General Manager's summary of activities

Zoom Online

https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2276
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5bc83c67-8d83-48f5-87c5-0f2c754c8579.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2277
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2278


Board of Directors June 14, 2022

Page 2 

D. 21-1187General Counsel's summary of activities

06142022 BOD 5D ReportAttachments:

E. 21-1188Interim General Auditor's summary of activities

F. 21-1189Ethic's Officer's summary of activities

** CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS -- ACTION **

6. CONSENT CALENDAR OTHER ITEMS - ACTION

A. 21-1190Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Meeting for May 10, 2022 
and the Special Board Meeting for May 24, 2022 (Copies have 
been submitted to each Director) (Any additions, corrections, or 
omissions)

B. 21-1191Adopt resolution to continue remote teleconference meetings 
pursuant to the Brown Act Section 54953(e) for meetings of 
Metropolitan’s legislative bodies for a period of 30 days; the 
General Manager has determined that the proposed action is 
exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA

C. 21-1256Authorize preparation of Commendatory Resolution for Gerald C. 
Riss for his service and leadership during his term as General  
Auditor of The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California

D. Approve Committee Assignments

7. CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS - ACTION

7-1 21-1210Authorize five-year agreement with Electric & Gas Industries 
Association to administer Metropolitan’s Consumer Incentive 
Programs; the General Manager has determined that the proposed 
action is exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA.  [REVISED 
SUBJECT] (OWC)

05242022 OWC 7-1 B-L

05242022 OWC 7-1 Presentation

Attachments:

Zoom Online

http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2279
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9fddc0b3-59f3-495f-bae3-f0c7227dbb86.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2280
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2281
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2282
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2283
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2348
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2302
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3b64dd04-ed87-4685-8a42-5bd702b32441.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b350b8a5-0fc1-49ac-8044-976c46c5cc57.pdf


Board of Directors June 14, 2022

Page 3 

7-2 21-1177Approve the job description for the General Auditor and approve 
the hiring process for the General Auditor; the General Manager 
has determined that the proposed action is exempt or otherwise 
not subject to CEQA (AE)

05242022 AE 7-2 B-L

05242022 AE 7-2 Presentation

Attachments:

7-3 21-1193Approve up to $1.954 million to purchase insurance coverage for 
Metropolitan’s Property and Casualty Insurance Program for fiscal 
year 2022/23; the General Manager has determined that the 
proposed action is exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA. 
[POSTING SEPARATELY] (FI)

7-4 21-1194Approve Metropolitan's Statement of Investment Policy for fiscal 
year 2022/23, delegate authority to the Treasurer to invest 
Metropolitan's funds for fiscal year 2022/23; the General Manager 
has determined that the proposed actions are exempt or otherwise 
not subject to CEQA. [POSTING SEPARATELY] (FI)

7-5 21-1195Authorize three-year agreements with Power-Tech Engineers, Inc., 
HDR, Inc., Mangan, Inc., and Burns & McDonnell Engineering 
Company, Inc., each in a not-to-exceed amount of $2,250,000, for 
specialized technical services to enhance arc flash protection at 
Metropolitan facilities; the General Manager has determined that 
this proposed action is exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA 
(EO)

06142022 EO 7-5 B-LAttachments:

7-6 21-1196Adopt the CEQA determination that the proposed action was 
previously addressed in the certified 2022 Final Program EIR and 
related CEQA documents; and award a $6,176,521 contract to 
Siemens Industry, Inc. for the construction of battery energy 
storage systems at the F. E. Weymouth Water Treatment Plant; 
and authorize an increase of $300,000 to an agreement with 
Stantec Inc. for construction support for a new not-to-exceed total 
of $1,750,000 (EO)

06142022 EO 7-6 B-LAttachments:

Zoom Online

http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2269
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=695d306c-aeaf-4535-9dc0-e2e831552800.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6341c4d5-17f9-42c0-979a-62278b54a3c6.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2285
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2286
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2287
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=42f448df-43bd-4891-93f1-ecce1a3e7185.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2288
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4b37b3ef-8aaf-4a85-bc50-a46054909cda.pdf


Board of Directors June 14, 2022

Page 4 

7-7 21-1197Award a $2,257,897 contract to Leed Electric, Inc. for replacement 
of ozone power supply units at the Joseph Jensen Water 
Treatment Plant; the General Manager has determined that the 
proposed action is exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA (EO)

06142022 EO 7-7 B-LAttachments:

7-8 21-1198Legislative Placeholder on SB 480 (Stern): Metropolitan Water 
District of Southern California: rules: inappropriate conduct; the 
General Manager has determined that the proposed action is 
exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA. [POSTING 
SEPARATELY] (CL)

7-9 21-1199Authorize an increase in the maximum amount payable under 
contract with Johnson Services Group by $22,000.00 to an amount 
not-to-exceed $271,000 for on-call temporary skilled labor; the 
General Manager has determined that the proposed action is 
exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA. [POSTING 
SEPARATELY] (OPT)

7-10 21-1200Amend Section 1106 and Section 6226 of the Metropolitan Water 
District Administrative Code regarding Holidays and Annual Leave 
to ensure benefits parity by adding Juneteenth and an 
across-the-board standard for payments of excess accumulated 
annual leave; the General Manager has determined that the 
proposed action is exempt of otherwise not subject to CEQA. 
[POSTING SEPARATELY] (OPT)

7-11 21-1201Review and consider the U.S. Bureau of Land Management’s Final 
Environmental Impact Statement certified to satisfy CEQA and take 
related CEQA actions, and authorize the General Manager to grant 
a permanent easement for transmission line purposes to Delaney 
Colorado River Transmission, LLC on Metropolitan-owned property 
near Blythe, California in the county of Riverside (RPAM)

06142022 RPAM 7-11 B-LAttachments:

7-12 21-1202Review and consider the Lead Agency’s adopted Mitigated 
Negative Declaration and take related CEQA actions, and adopt a 
resolution for Calleguas Municipal Water District Annexation No. 
104 to Calleguas and Metropolitan (RPAM)

06142022 RPAM 7-12 B-LAttachments:

Zoom Online

http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2289
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8755da10-44d1-449d-b730-00be847110c4.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2290
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2291
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2292
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2293
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ec8ba98d-a385-4e24-a0c5-75d336cc01a8.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2294
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=39cdd997-b6e7-4744-a58c-9dd3083f0b40.pdf


Board of Directors June 14, 2022

Page 5 

7-13 21-1203Adopt resolution for Calleguas Annexation No. 106 to Calleguas 
Municipal Water District and Metropolitan; the General Manager 
has determined that the proposed action is exempt or otherwise 
not subject to CEQA (RPAM)

06142022 RPAM 7-13 B-LAttachments:

7-14 21-1204By a two-thirds vote, authorize the General Manager to make 
payment of up to $871,680 for support of the Colorado River Board 
and Six Agency Committee for FY 2022/23; the General Manager 
has determined that the proposed action is exempt or otherwise 
not subject to CEQA. [POSTING SEPARATELY] (WPS)

** END OF CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS **

8. OTHER BOARD ITEMS - ACTION

NONE

9. BOARD INFORMATION ITEMS

9-1 21-1205Report on Conservation

10. OTHER MATTERS

10-1 21-1211Update on Upcoming Department Head Performance Evaluations 
Process

11. FOLLOW-UP ITEMS

NONE

12. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

13. ADJOURNMENT

NOTE:

Each agenda item with a committee designation will be considered and a recommendation may be made by one or 
more committees prior to consideration and final action by the full Board of Directors.  The committee designation 
appears in parenthesis at the end of the description of the agenda item e.g.  (E&O, BF&I).  Committee agendas may 
be obtained from the Executive Secretary. 

Requests for a disability related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to 
attend or participate in a meeting should be made to the Executive Secretary in advance of the meeting to ensure 
availability of the requested service or accommodation.

Zoom Online

http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2295
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c7a844ff-afc5-42b6-b89f-35b85c75248a.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2296
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2297
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2303


        AGENCY  
REPRESENTATIVES’ 

      REPORTS 

   4C 



 

 

 
Regional Sewerage Program  

Policy Committee Meeting 
 

AGENDA 
Thursday, June 2, 2022 

3:30 p.m. 
Teleconference Call 

 
 

In an effort to prevent the spread of COVID-19, the Regional Sewerage Program Policy Committee 
Meeting will be held remotely by teleconference. 

 
 

Teams Conference Link: https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-

join/19%3ameeting_NWU1NzA2NDktM2VjMC00NDU1LTkxMmUtMjYyMjA2YWM3YWU4%40thread.v

2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%224c0c1e57-30f3-4048-9bd2-

cd58917dcf07%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22329ec40e-eb94-4218-9621-6bfa0baa9697%22%7d 

Teleconference: 1-415-856-9169/Conference ID: 552 973 583# 

This meeting is being conducted virtually by video and audio conferencing. There will be no public 

location available to attend the meeting; however, the public may participate and provide public 

comment during the meeting by calling the number provided above.  Alternatively, you may email your 

public comments to the Recording Secretary Sally Lee at shlee@ieua.org no later than 24 hours prior to 

the scheduled meeting time. Your comments will then be read into the record during the meeting. 

 

   

 
Call to Order/Flag Salute  
 
Roll Call  

 
Public Comment 
 

 
Members of the public may address the Committee on any item that is within the jurisdiction of the 
Committee; however, no action may be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the 
action is otherwise authorized by Subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2 of the Government Code.  
Comments will be limited to three minutes per speaker. 
 

 
 
 

(Continued) 

 
 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NWU1NzA2NDktM2VjMC00NDU1LTkxMmUtMjYyMjA2YWM3YWU4%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%224c0c1e57-30f3-4048-9bd2-cd58917dcf07%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22329ec40e-eb94-4218-9621-6bfa0baa9697%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NWU1NzA2NDktM2VjMC00NDU1LTkxMmUtMjYyMjA2YWM3YWU4%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%224c0c1e57-30f3-4048-9bd2-cd58917dcf07%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22329ec40e-eb94-4218-9621-6bfa0baa9697%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NWU1NzA2NDktM2VjMC00NDU1LTkxMmUtMjYyMjA2YWM3YWU4%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%224c0c1e57-30f3-4048-9bd2-cd58917dcf07%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22329ec40e-eb94-4218-9621-6bfa0baa9697%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NWU1NzA2NDktM2VjMC00NDU1LTkxMmUtMjYyMjA2YWM3YWU4%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%224c0c1e57-30f3-4048-9bd2-cd58917dcf07%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22329ec40e-eb94-4218-9621-6bfa0baa9697%22%7d
mailto:shlee@ieua.org


Regional Sewerage Program Policy Committee Meeting Agenda 
June 2, 2022 
Page 2 of 2 

Additions to the Agenda 

In accordance with Section 54954.2 of the Government Code (Brown Act), additions to the agenda require 

two-thirds vote of the legislative body, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a 

unanimous vote of those members present, that there is a need to take immediate action and that the 

need for action came to the attention of the local agency subsequent to the agenda being posted. 

1. Technical Committee Report (Oral)

2. Action Item
A. Approval of May 5, 2022 Policy Committee Meeting Minutes
B. FY 2022/23 Proposed Budget Amendment for the Regional Wastewater

Programs
C. FY 2022/23 – 2031/32 Ten-Year Forecast

3. Informational Items
A. Regional Contract Negotiation Update (Oral)
B. Rotation of Chair for Monthly Regional Sewerage Program Committee

Meetings

4. Receive and File
A. Building Activity Report
B. Recycled Water Distribution – Operations Summary

5. Other Business
A. IEUA General Manager’s Update
B. Committee Member Requested Agenda Items for Next Meeting
C. Committee Member Comments
D. Next Meeting – July 7, 2022

Adjourn 

DECLARATION OF POSTING 
I, Sally Lee, Executive Assistant of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, a Municipal Water District, hereby certify that, 

per Government Code Section 54954.2, a copy of this agenda has been posted at the Agency’s main office, 6075 

Kimball Avenue, Building A, Chino, CA and on the Agency’s website at www.ieua.org at least seventy-two (72) hours 

prior to the meeting date and time above.  

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this 

meeting, please contact Sally Lee at (909) 993-1926 or shlee@ieua.org 48 hours prior to the scheduled 

meeting so that IEUA can make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility. 

http://www.ieua.org/
mailto:shlee@ieua.org


        AGENCY  
REPRESENTATIVES’ 

      REPORTS 

   4D 



 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
WATERMASTER BOARD MEETING 

11:00 a.m. – May 26, 2022 
Mr. Jim Curatalo, Chair 

Mr. Jeff Pierson, Vice-Chair 
At The Offices Of 

Chino Basin Watermaster 
9641 San Bernardino Road 

Rancho Cucamonga, CA  91730 

 

AGENDA 
 
 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
AGENDA – ADDITIONS/REORDER 
 
I. CONSENT CALENDAR 

Note:  All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and non-
controversial and will be acted upon by one motion in the form listed below.   There will be no 
separate discussion on these items prior to voting unless any members, staff, or the public 
requests specific items be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Calendar for separate 
action.  
 
A. MINUTES 

Approve as presented: 
1. Minutes of the Watermaster Board Special Meeting (Workshop No. 1) held April 26, 2022  

(Page 1) 
2.  Minutes of the Watermaster Board Meeting held April 28, 2022 (Page 83) 

 
B. FINANCIAL REPORTS 

Receive and file as presented: 
1. Cash Disbursements for the month of March 2022 (Page 89) 
2. Watermaster VISA Check Detail for the month of March 2022 (Page 103)  
3. Combining Schedule for the Period July 1, 2021 through March 31, 2022 (Page 106)  
4. Treasurer’s Report of Financial Affairs for the Period March 1, 2022 through  

March 31, 2022 (Page 109)  
5. Budget vs. Actual Report for the Period July 1, 2021 through March 31, 2022 (Page 113)  
6. Cash Disbursements for April 2022 (Information Only) (Page 139)  
 

C. APPLICATION:  WATER TRANSACTION (Page 147) 
Approve the proposed transaction:  
The Purchase of 7,500 acre-feet of water from Cucamonga Valley Water District by Fontana Water 
Company. This purchase is made from Cucamonga Valley Water District’s Annual Production Rights. 
Date of Application: April 4, 2022. 

 
 II. BUSINESS ITEMS  

 A.  WATERMASTER FISCAL YEAR 2022/23 APPROVED BUDGET (Page 155) 
Adopt the Watermaster Fiscal Year 2022/23 Approved Budget as presented.  



Agenda Watermaster Board Meeting                                                                      May 26, 2022 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
III. REPORTS/UPDATES 

A. LEGAL COUNSEL  
1. San Bernardino Superior Court Emergency Order  
2. April 22, 2022 Hearing 
3. Governor’s Executive Order N-7-22  
4. Kaiser Permanente Lawsuit 

 
B. ENGINEER  

1. Safe Yield Data Collection and Evaluation Report  
2. Safe Yield Reset Methodology Update 
3. Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Committee Annual Report 

 
C. CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

None 
 

D. GENERAL MANAGER 
1. Regional Supply/Drought Update 
2. Data Portal Status 
3. May 26, 2022 Special Board Meeting (Workshop No. 2) 
4. Upcoming Training Opportunity: Roberts Rules of Order  
5. Other 

 
IV. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 

 
V. OTHER BUSINESS 

 
VI. CONFIDENTIAL SESSION – POSSIBLE ACTION 

Pursuant to Article II, Section 2.6, of the Watermaster Rules & Regulations, a Confidential Session may 
be held during the Watermaster Board meeting for the purpose of discussion and possible action. 

 
1. General Manager Performance Evaluation 

 
VII. FUTURE MEETINGS AT WATERMASTER 

 05/24/22  Tue      9:00 a.m.  Groundwater Recharge Coordinating Committee (GRCC) 
  05/26/22 Thu 9:30 a.m.      Watermaster Board – Special Meeting (Workshop No. 2) 
 05/26/22     Thu    11:00 a.m.  Watermaster Board 
 06/09/22      Thu      9:00 a.m.    Appropriative Pool Committee  
  06/09/22      Thu    11:00 a.m.    Non-Agricultural Pool Committee  
  06/09/22      Thu      1:30 p.m.    Agricultural Pool Committee 
 06/16/22 Thu      9:00 a.m.  Advisory Committee  
 06/23/22     Thu    11:00 a.m.  Watermaster Board 

 
ADJOURNMENT 



        AGENCY  
REPRESENTATIVES’ 

      REPORTS 

   4E 



��������	
�����������
������	
����
��������
�������
�	������������������
��������������������������������
���������������� !!�"#$%&'()*�+,+-!+.!'�/#0�1%.!-$�0',-'2�+0'�#(�/-!'�2-)3�)3'� %)3#0-)45*�6'$0')+04�!#$+)'"�+)�7889�:;�<3-!+"'!13-+�6)0'')=�6%-)'�>?9=�@()+0-#=�A ��B>?C>�DEEFGHIJK�LF�LMN�HIGNELIONP�QGFR�LMN�STUIQFGJIT�VNWTGLRNJL�FQ�XYZUIE�[NTULM�TJH�\]NEYLION�̂GHNG�_̀ab̀cd�IPPYNH�Ze�fFONGJFG�fTOIJ�_NgPFRh�RNRZNGP�FQ�LMN�WYZUIE�TGN�IJOILNH�LF�WTGLIEIWTLN�OIT�OIHNF�FG�LNUNEFJQNGNJEN���i�jik��l�m�ni�o�p��n�����������VITÙIJ�qr� �sttuv�uaa�tbww�� xFFR�yNNLIJK�zVr�bdw�{ca{�udad����������������XTPPEFHNr�wba{{|��i�jik��}k~�i�ni�o�p��n�����SUIE��FJ�UIJ�r���FIJ�xFFR�yNNLIJK�Ĝ�EFWe����r��MLLWPr��YPacgNZ��FFR�YP���bdw{ca{udad�WgH�yadŶ \�LN��S�J�exaL���]GZdM[H�au�Ĝ�KF�LF�� MLLWPr���FFR�YP���� xFFR�yNNLIJK�zVr�bdw�{ca{�udad����������������XTPPEFHNr�wba{{|��������
�
������
����������	�����
�����'&.'0*�#/�)3'�1%.!-$�&+4�+""0'**�)3'��#+0"�#/��-0'$)#0*�#(�+(4�-)'&�)3+)�-*�2-)3-(�)3'��%0-*"-$)-#(�#/�)3'�A3-(#��+*-(��'*+!)'0� %)3#0-)4��3#2','0=�(#�+$)-#(�&+4�.'�)+�'(�#(�+(4�-)'&�(#)�+11'+0-(��#(�)3'�+�'("+�%(!'**�)3'�+$)-#(�-*�#)3'02-*'�+%)3#0-�'"�.4�6%."-,-*-#(��.��#/�6'$)-#(�8�B8�;��#/�)3'��#,'0(&'()�A#"';����("'0�)3'�10#,-*-#(*�#/�)3'��0#2(� $)=�)3'�A� ��#+0"�-*�10#3-.-)'"�/0#&�)+�-(��+$)-#(�#(�(#(�+�'("-�'"�&+))'0*;���#2','0=��#+0"��'&.'0*�&+4�0'*1#("�.0-'/!4�#0�0'/'0�)3'�$#&&%(-$+)-#(�)#�*)+//;���3'�A� ��#+0"�&+4�+!*#�0'�%'*)�)3'�6'$0')+04�)#�$+!'("+0�+(�-)'&�0'!+)'"�)#�4#%0�$#&&%(-$+)-#(�+)�+�/%)%0'�A� ��#+0"�&'')-(�;�������
����
������������ (�+$$#0"+($'�2-)3�6'$)-#(�8�B8�;��#/�)3'��#,'0(&'()�A#"'���0#2(� $)�=�+""-)-#(*�)#�)3'�+�'("+�0'�%-0'�)2#�)3-0"*�,#)'�#/�)3'�!'�-*!+)-,'�.#"4=�#0=�-/�!'**�)3+(�)2#�)3-0"*�#/�)3'�&'&.'0*�+0'�10'*'()=�+�%(+(-&#%*�,#)'�#/�)3#*'�&'&.'0*�10'*'()=�)3+)�)3'0'�-*�+�(''"�)#�)+�'�-&&'"-+)'�+$)-#(�+("�)3+)�)3'�(''"�/#0�+$)-#(�$+&'�)#�)3'�+))'()-#(�#/�)3'�!#$+!�+�'($4�*%.*'�%'()�)#�)3'�+�'("+�.'-(��1#*)'";��
��������������������A#(*'()�A+!'("+0�-)'&*�+0'�'¡1'$)'"�)#�.'�0#%)-('�+("�(#(�$#()0#,'0*-+!�)#�.'�+$)'"�%1#(�.4�)3'��#+0"�+)�#('�)-&'�2-)3#%)�"-*$%**-#(;�� /�+(4��#+0"�&'&.'0=�*)+//�&'&.'0=�#0�-()'0'*)'"�1'0*#(�0'�%'*)*�)3+)�+(�-)'&�.'�0'&#,'"�/0#&�)3'�A#(*'()�A+!'("+0=�-)�2-!!�.'�&#,'"�)#�)3'�/-0*)�-)'&�#(�)3'� $)-#(� )'&*�¢����������
�����¢����������������	
������������



�������������	�
����������������������������������������������� ��������������������������

 !��"#$%&'()%*� + ,-,.�/"%0&1)2)*3�1�&%01&�#2#"3#*045�"1()64)*3�(7#�/"%0&121()%*�%6�1�$(1(#�%6�#2#"3#*04�84�#9#0'():#�%";#"$�*- .- +5�*- <- +�1*;�*-=.- +5�1*;�1'(7%")>)*3�"#2%(#�(#&#0%*6#"#*0#�2##()*3$�6%"�1�(7)"(4�?=+@�;14�/#")%;�/'"$'1*(�(%�8"%A*�10(�/"%:)$)%*$�$BCDD�"EFGHHEIJCBKGIL��MN������O��P������������MQMR��������S������������S���������������������������S��������������������S��������T��UV����O��W������XQ�RQ����XQ�YQ�������XQZRQ��������������[�����S�������������������S�������������������\Z�]��������������������������̂ ���������O�����=!��12#*;2#*(� �(%�_)*3�&##�(#07*%&%3)#$�0%*("10(�6%"�$'//&4�%6�8)%0);#�P��������̀�a��S���WbX���������c��������������d�UW�$BCDD�"EFGHHEIJCBKGIL�MN������O���S���S��������������������������
���������������̂���e���f���a�����������g���������Q��Q�V������S��������h�R���������ij�����d�ZN���N�������[������c��������������d�UW��������[�������V�����������S���S�������������O��������h�R�������������[����V���������N�k!��12#*;2#*(� �(%�12#")01*�A1(#"�07#2)01&$�0%*("10(�6%"�$'//&4�%6�0&#1*�)*�/&10#�07#2)01&$��P��������̀�a��S���WbX���������c��������������d�UW�$BCDD�"EFGHHEIJCBKGIL�MN������O���S���S��������������������������
��������������������������S�����̂����S������l��������S��������������Q��Q�V������S��������hm����������ij�����d�Zn�������N�������[������c��������������d�UW��������[�������V�����������S���S�������������O���������hm��������������[����V���������N�.!��12#*;2#*(�,�(%�71>#*�o�$1A4#"�/"%6#$$)%*1&�$#":)0#$�13"##2#*(�6%"�%*-01&&�#*3)*##")*3�$'//%"(�$#":)0#$���P��������̀�a��S���WbX���������c��������������d�UW�$BCDD�"EFGHHEIJCBKGIL�MN������O���S���S����M��������������������
��O���������S����̂���p�[���q�
�̂ �������������Q��Q�V������S��������hRM�������������������������������O��������ij�����d�Zn������N�������[������c��������������d�UW��������[�������V�����������S���S�������������O��������[����V���������N����

10()%*�)(#2$�rstus�vu�wxvtuy�uz�v{|�}~���tywyx|�}u��tvv||��wy���|��|s�uz�v{|�w��t|yx|��t���{w�|�v{|�u��usv�ytv��vu�w��s|���v{|�}~���uws��uy�wy��tv|���t�v|��uy�v{|�w�|y�w��tyx���ty��v{u�|�uy�wy��xuy�|yv�xw�|y�ws���r�|w�|�����tv�w�xu��|yv�xws��vu�v{|��|xs|vws���tv{�v{|�w�|y�w�tv|��y���|s�yuv|����



�������������	�
����������������������������������������������� ������������������������ �

!"��#$%&'$%&(�)�(*�#++*�%&,-&%%.%'�/0/(%$/1�-&+"�$#-&(%&#&+%�/%.2-+%/�#,.%%$%&(�3*.��42#+�5.%2%&(-2%�$#-&(%&#&+%�#&'�.%5#-.�6��������7�8��9���:;<���������=��������������>�?:�/@ABB�.CDEFFCGHA@IEGJ�KL������M���9���9���� �������������9��������NO������M���M�����������������6�����
��M����P������:�?���������
����9���Q��L����������R��R�S������9��������TKU����������VW�����>��L��L�������X������=��������������>�?:��������X�������S�����������9���9�������������M��������TKU��������������X����S���������L�Y"��5.*3%//-*&#Z�/%.2-+%/�#,.%%$%&(�[-(4�#\]#/0/(%+�3*.�/+#'#�5.*,.#$$-&,�#&'�$#-&(%&#&+%�/%.2-+%/�3*.�+4-&*�--�'%/#Z(%.��6��������7�8��9���:;<���������=��������������>�?:�/@ABB�.CDEFFCGHA@IEGJ�KL������M����������������
��M���������9����P����̂�������������������R��R�S������9��������TK�����������
�����
�������
��M����������������QQ��������������VW�����>��_������L�������X������=��������������>�?:��������X�������S���������������9�������������M��������TK���������������X����S���������L�"̀��5.*3%//-*&#Z�/%.2-+%/�#,.%%$%&(�[-(4�+#.*ZZ*�%&,-&%%./1�-&+"�3*.�*&a+#ZZ�/]55*.(�/%.2-+%/�3*.�+*&+%&(.#(%�.%']+(-*&�3#+-Z-(0�*5%.#(-*&/���6��������7�8��9���:;<���������=��������������>�?:�/@ABB�.CDEFFCGHA@IEGJ�KL������M����������������
��M���������9����P�����������?���������Q��L�����������R��R�S������9��������TK������������������������������������������������������������M��������VW�����>��_������L�������X������=��������������>�?:��������X�������S���������������9�������������M��������TK���������������X����S���������L�b"��5.*3%//-*&#Z�/%.2-+%/�#,.%%$%&(�[-(4�%].*3-&/�%#(*&�#&#Z0(-+#Z�3*.�53*/c53*#�/#$5Z-&,�#&#Z0/-/�6��������7�8��9���:;<���������=��������������>�?:�/@ABB�.CDEFFCGHA@IEGJ�KL������M��������������
��M���������9����P���?�������?��������������������V:
>�V:����9�����������������VW�����>������������R��R�S������9��������TK������L��L�������X������=��������������>�?:��������X�������S���������������9�������������M��������X����S���������������������R��R�S��������������TK������L�de"��%$%.,%&+0�/%.2-+%/�(*��5%.3*.$�5-5%Z-&%�.%5#-./�#(�+4-&*�-�'%/#Z(%.�6��������7�8��9���:;<���������=��������������>�?:�/@ABB�.CDEFFCGHA@IEGJ�KL�8�������������������������M���������������������������_�����f"�6���������g���������������������������������������R��9����M���������9��������9�����������M�������������9��������������L��



�������������	�
����������������������������������������������� ��������������������������

  !��"#"$%"&'(�)"$*+'")�,-�#./"�$"0.+$)�,-�,1"�)"2"$�3+&"�.,�,1"�'1+&-�++�4").3,"$�5��������6�7��8���9:;���������<��������������=�>9�)?@AA�$BCDEEBFG@?HDFI� !�7�������������������������J�����������������������K��������������������������LL���������M������!�5���������N���������������������������������������O��8����J���������8��������8�����������J�������8�P���8������������������������K�������������������LL���������!�+&Q-$#.,+-&�+,"#)�RST��"#"$%"&'(�)"$*+'")�,-�0"$Q-$#�'3".&U0�-Q�'1+&-�++��'-&'"&,$.,"�$"4U',+-&�Q.'+3+,(�'3.$+Q+"$�)0+33�5��������6�7��8���9:;���������<��������������=�>9�),.QQ�'-##"&,)�!� �����������<�����������������������������!������V9=7�����������������������!�����<��������������=�>9��7��8���9:;����'3-)"4�)"))+-&�WXY�Z[\X]̂_\̀�ab̀�bcd][̂e�\]�b�fg]hYc�iYhh_]e�\]�j]eh_cŶ�g_\_kb\_]e�ab\\Ŷhl�mŶh]eeYg�ab\\Ŷhl�]̂�]\XŶ�ab\\Ŷh�bh�m̂]n_cYc�o]̂�_e�\XY�pbgmX�qr�ŝ]te�Zj\�uiYj\_]e�vwxvy�Y\�hYzrl�]o�\XY�{]nŶeaYe\�f]cY|r�R}T�'-&Q"$"&'"�2+,1�3"%.3�'-U&)"3�~�.&,+'+0.,"4�3+,+%.,+-&I�'-&)+4"$.,+-&�-Q�+&+,+.,+-&�-Q�3+,+%.,+-&�0U$)U.&,�,-�%-*"$&#"&,�'-4"�)"',+-&������T��4������-&"�0-,"&,+.3�'.)"��R�T�'-&Q"$"&'"�2+,1�3"%.3�'-U&)"3�~�.&,+'+0.,"4�3+,+%.,+-&I�)+%&+Q+'.&,�"�0-)U$"�,-�3+,+%.,+-&�0U$)U.&,�,-�%-*"$&#"&,�'-4"�)"',+-&������T��4��S������ �-&"�0-,"&,+.3�'.)"��4+$"',-$�'-##"&,)�.4�-U$&������������������������
�l�fbhỲ�f]h\bl���Yj[\_nY�Zhh_h\be\�\]�\XY�fX_e]�sbh_e��Yhbg\Ŷ�Z[\X]̂_\̀l�XŶY�̀�jŶ\_ò�\Xb\�b�j]m̀�]o�\X_h�bkYecb�Xbh��YYe�m]h\Yc��̀���yy�mrar�b\�\XY�fX_e]�sbh_e��Yhbg\Ŷ�Z[\X]̂_\̀�h�ab_e�]oo_jYl��vvy��X_gbcYgmX_b�i\̂YY\l�i[_\Y�� yl�¡e\b̂_]l�fZ�]e�qb̀�� l��y��r�¢¢¢¢¢¢¢¢¢¢¢¢¢¢¢¢¢¢¢¢¢¢¢¢¢¢¢¢¢¢¢¢¢¢¢¢¢�fbhỲ�f]h\bl���Yj[\_nY�Zhh_h\be\� ��
�����������K��������N����K�����£���������88�����������������������������������8����������������P����8���������������������J�����8��������������������>¤����J��������������������������¥¦�¦§�� ̈O©ª©�������������̈�������������������8�����������������8�P������£��������������N���O��������8����������������88������!����������88���������£������K���N�����������K��������������J����������N�������J����������������������������������J���������������8N����K���������������������������8����N�������������������������8���N���N���������8��������������������������������©««�������������
�������
���� ª���9����������¦ ª¬ !�



        AGENCY  
REPRESENTATIVES’ 

      REPORTS 

  4F 
 

 



1 

AGENDA 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
MONDAY, June 06, 2022 

10:00 A.M.  
(Teleconference Meeting) 

Telecon:  
www.ierca.org/calendar 

+1 415-856-9169   United States, San Francisco (Toll)

Conference ID: 253 638 095# 

PURSUANT TO AB 361, IERCA BOARD MEETINGS WILL CONTINUE TO BE CONDUCTED THROUGH 

TELECONFERENCE IN AN EFFORT TO PROTECT PUBLIC HEALTH AND PREVENT THE SPREAD OF COVID-

19. THERE WILL BE NO PUBLIC LOCATION AVAILABLE FOR ATTENDING THE MEETING IN PERSON.

TELECONFERENCE ACCESSIBILITY FOR THE GENERAL PUBLIC: 
In all efforts to prevent the spread of COVID-19, until further notice, the Inland Empire Regional 

Composting Authority will be holding all Board meetings by teleconferencing. 
The meeting will be accessible at: (415) 856-9169 / Conf Code: 253 638 095# 

The public may participate and provide public comment during the meeting by calling into the number 
provided above. Public comments may also be submitted to the Recording Secretary at 
afernandez@ieua.org no later than 24 hours prior to the scheduled meeting time. Comments will be 
distributed to the Board of Directors. 

CALL TO ORDER 
OF THE INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL COMPOSTING AUTHORITY BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS MEETING 

FLAG SALUTE 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Members of the public may address the Board on any item that is within the jurisdiction of the Board; 
however, no action may be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is otherwise 
authorized by Subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2 of the Government Code.  Those persons wishing to 
address the Board on any matter, whether or not it appears on the agenda, are requested to complete 
and submit to the Board Secretary a “Request to Speak” form which are available on the table in the 
Board Room.  Comments will be limited to five minutes per speaker.  Thank you. 



 

 2 

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 

 
In accordance with Section 54954.2 of the Government Code (Brown Act), additions to the agenda require 
two-thirds vote of the legislative body, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a 
unanimous vote of those members present, that there is a need to take immediate action and that the 
need for action came to the attention of the local agency subsequent to the agenda being posted. 

 

 
INTRODUCTIONS 

INTRODUCTION OF INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL COMPOSTING 
AUTHORITY’S NEW ELECTRICAL AND INSTRUMENTATION 
TECHNICIAN II, JUAN BARAJAS 

 
1. CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
A. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2022-06-02 

A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Regional 
Composting Authority, making certain findings and determinations 
regarding special rules for conducting meetings through teleconference. 
 

B. MINUTES 
The Board will be asked to approve the minutes from the May 2, 2022, 
regular meeting. 

 
C. INVESTMENT AND DISBURSEMENT REPORT  

It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve for the months of 
January 2022 - March 2022: 
 
1. Total disbursements in the amount of $1,481,537.66.  

 
2. There were no new investments during January 1, 2022 – March 31, 
2022. 
  

2. ACTION ITEMS 
 

A. ADOPTION OF BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022/23 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors; 

 
1. Adopt the Inland Empire Regional Composting Authority (IERCA) 
 budget for fiscal year 2022/23;  
 
2. Increase the tipping fee from $58 to $59 per wet ton; and 

 
3. Approve a capital call of $2 million to be shared equally by the Inland 

Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) and Los Angeles County Sanitation 
Districts (LACSD) to support capital improvement project costs and 
meet the minimum reserve balance, as needed. 



 

 3 

 
 

B. ANNUAL MANAGEMENT PLAN 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve the Fiscal Year 
2022/23 Annual Management Plan. 
 

C. MASTER SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH RDO EQUIPMENT COMPANY 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 

 
1. Approve a Master Service Agreement with RDO Equipment Company 

(RDO) to provide parts, service, and equipment rental in support of the 
IERCF mobile equipment fleet and stationery trommel screens from an 
annual not-to-exceed aggregate value of $1,500,000; and  
 

2. Authorize the IEUA Manager of Contracts and Procurement to finalize 
and execute the purchase agreement. 

 
D. ADOPTION OF THE INVESTMENT POLICY FOR FY 2022/23 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt Resolution No.       
2022-06-01, approving the Authority’s Investment Policy for FY 2022/23.  
 

E. WHEEL LOADER PURCHASE 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 
 
1. Approve the purchase of two Liebherr L-566 wheel loaders with high 

capacity buckets and cab filtration systems for approximately 
$610,000 each including taxes, delivery, and extended warranty; and 

 
2. Authorize the IEUA Manager of Contracts and Procurement to 

finalize and execute the agreement. 
 

3. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

A. PROJECT MANAGER’S REPORT  
 

B. TREASURER’S REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS FOR THE QUARTER 
ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 

 
C. ASSET MANAGEMENT UPDATE  

 
D. COMPLIANCE UPDATE 

 
4. DIRECTOR COMMENTS 

 
Next regular meeting is scheduled for Monday, August 1, 2022, at 10:00 a.m. 

 



 

 4 

5. ADJOURN 
 
 

 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this 
meeting, please contact the Recording Secretary (909-993-1744), 48 hours prior to the scheduled meeting so 
that the Authority can make reasonable arrangements. 

 
 

 

 
Declaration of Posting 
 
I, Adrianne Fernandez, Recording Secretary to the Inland Empire Regional Composting Authority, hereby certify that a 
copy of this agenda has been posted by 5:30 p.m. at the Los Angeles County Sanitation District 1955 Workman Mill 
Road, Whittier, CA and at the IERCA’s Administrative Building, 12645 Sixth Street, Rancho Cucamonga, CA and at 
the IEUA’s main office, 6075 Kimball Ave., Chino, CA on Wednesday, June 01, 2022. 
 
________________________________________ 
Adrianne Fernandez, Recording Secretary 



   GENERAL 
 MANAGER’S 
       REPORT 

    
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.ieua.org/new-paid-internship-and-apprenticeship-opportunities-created-through-inland-empire-utilities-agency-partnership-with-ieworks/
https://www.governmentjobs.com/careers/ieua/jobs/3140070/internship-trades-program
https://www.dropbox.com/s/9xgvqf325wmln6s/22150%20June%20GM%20Report%20-%20Attachment%201.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/9xgvqf325wmln6s/22150%20June%20GM%20Report%20-%20Attachment%201.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/xrqb090qpyz6m69/22150%20June%20GM%20Report%20-%20Attachment%202.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/xrqb090qpyz6m69/22150%20June%20GM%20Report%20-%20Attachment%202.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/2uxxpgn1z9h2atw/22150%20June%20GM%20Report%20-%20Attachment%203.pdf?dl=0


 
 

   
 

 
 

 Bid and Award Look Ahead Schedule 

  Project Name 
Projected  

Bid Opening 
Date 

Projected 
Bid Award 

Date 

  Aug‐22     

1  EN0000000066  Preserve Lift Station Improvements  7/5/2022  8/17/2022 

2  RW15003.03  Montclair Basin Improvements  7/6/2022  8/17/2022 

  Sep‐22     

3  EN21051.00  Ely Monitoring Well  7/1/2022  9/21/2022 

4  EN20064.00  NSNT Sewer Siphon Replacement  7/21/2022  9/21/2022 

  Oct‐22     

5  EN17042.00  Digester 6 and 7 Roof Repairs  7/28/2022  10/19/2022 

6  EN22041.00  RP‐1 Aeration Basins Utility Water System Improvement  9/5/2022  10/19/2022 

  Nov‐22     

7  EN23002.00  Philadelphia Lift Station Force Main Improvements  9/29/2022  11/16/2022 

  Dec‐22     

8  EN13016.05  SCADA Enterprise System ‐ (Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 1)  10/7/2022  12/21/2022 

9  EN17006.00  CCWRF Asset Management and Improvements  10/14/2022  12/21/2022 

  Jan‐23     

10  EN21056.00 RP‐1 Evaporative Cooling for Aeration Blower Building  11/30/2022  1/18/2023 

  Mar‐23     

11  EN21053.00  RP‐1 Old Effluent Structure Rehabilitation  1/27/2023  3/15/2023 

Bid and Award Look Ahead Schedule 



 
 

    

   

  

Agency‐Wide  

No.  Project ID  Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 
thru 5/31 

($) 

Total Project  
Budget 
($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status  Schedule Recovery Plan 

1 

EN20034.03  Solids Handling Facility Evaluation             262,406                228,865   On‐Time  Consultant 
Contract 
Award 

  

2  EN22040.00  NFPA 70E Arc Flash Labels                  76,371                 210,000   On‐Time  Pre‐Design    

3  EN19024.00  Regional System Asset Management (Assessment Only)          2,624,488              3,590,419   On‐Time  Pre‐Design    

4  EN19023.00  Asset Management Planning Document               576,784                 977,036   On‐Time  Pre‐Design    

5  PA22003.00  Agency Wide Paving                  51,970             3,735,000   On‐Time  Design    

6  EN20038.00  Agency Wide Pavement Management Study               192,541                300,000   On‐Time  Design    

7  EN19051.00  RW Hydraulic Modeling               117,090                 235,537   On‐Time  Design    

8  FM21005.01  Structural Agency Wide Roofing Phase III              192,294            2,600,000   On‐Time  Construction    

9 
EN22043.00  Agency Wide Chemical Containment Area Rehabilitation Phase 2              198,893                385,000   On‐Time 

Construction 
  

10 
EN21036.01  CB‐11 Turnout Cabinet Repairs                 51,322                 100,000   Behind 

Schedule 
Construction 

Project requires SCE to pull back cables prior to the contractor removing SCE and IEUA electrical cabinets 
and demolish concrete pad. Project was delayed due to response time from SCE. Recovery is not possible. 

11  EN19030.00  WC Asset Management (Assessment Only)                 66,815                  313,747   On‐Time  Construction    

12  EN22045.00  New Regional Project PDR's                          ‐               2,500,000   N/A  Not Started    

      Sub Total         4,410,974           15,175,604     

   

63%

3%

34%

Design Schedule Performance

On‐Time Recovery in Progress Behind Schedule

69%0%

31%

Construction Schedule Performance

On‐Time Recovery in Progress Behind Schedule

Active Capital Improvement Project Status 



 
 

Carbon Canyon  

No.  Project ID  Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 
thru 5/31 

($) 

Total Project  
Budget 
($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status  Schedule Recovery Plan 

13 
EN17006.00  CCWRF Asset Management and Improvements          4,235,638           26,103,299  

Recovery in 
Progress 

Design 
The project's bid and award is delayed due to the pending approval of funding from WIFIA, the addition of 
the ammonia control design, and the issuance of the AQMD Permits. The project will be rebaselined at 
the start of construction.  

14 
EN22054.01  CCWRF Fire Hydrant Repairs                    5,776                  90,000  

Behind 
Schedule 

Design 
After several delays during design and an understanding of a scope of work with operations, project is 
now out to bid. With an award date in June 2022, project will be re‐baselined upon construction contract 
award. 

15 
EN17006.01  CCWRF 12kV Backup Generator Control Circuit Improvements                   6,574                700,000  

Behind 
Schedule 

Bid & Award 
The project closed bids on April 19. The bid was higher than the engineer’s estimate. The project team is 
holding award to evaluate bid. Award is now scheduled for June 2022. The project will be re‐baselined 
upon construction contract award. 

16  EN22055.02  CCWRF Vault Rehab and Pavement Repair                      820                  60,000   On‐Time  Construction    

      Sub Total        4,248,808        26,953,299     

Chino Desalter Authority (CDA) 

No.  Project ID  Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 
thru 5/31 

($) 

Total Project  
Budget 
($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status  Schedule Recovery Plan 

 
 

None to report at this time.  0  0      

      Sub Total                        ‐                            ‐             

Collections 

No.  Project ID  Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 
thru 5/31 

($) 

Total Project  
Budget 
($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status  Schedule Recovery Plan 

17  EN21058.00  Regional Sewer‐Hydraulic Modeling                86,042                 100,000   On‐Time  Pre‐Design    

18 
EN20064.00  NSNT Odor Complaints Mitigation              882,074             2,837,200  

Behind 
Schedule 

Bid & Award 
Due to the current market the Engineer’s estimate is now over $2M and a Request for Qualifications is 
being sent out to pre‐qualify contractors prior to the bid and ward phase.  The project will be re‐baselined 
at construction contract award. 

19 

EN22015.00  Collection System Upgrades FY 21/22               165,003                500,000  

Behind 
Schedule 

Construction 

Construction completion is a result of City of Chino permit issuance delay. Construction is scheduled to be 
completed in June 2022.  Recovery is not possible.  

20 

EN22014.00  NRWS Manhole Upgrades FY 21/22               107,981                200,000  
Behind 
Schedule 

Construction 

Construction completion is a result of City of Chino permit issuance delay.  Construction is scheduled to be 
completed in June 2022.  Recovery is not possible. 

21 

EN19025.00  Regional Force Main Improvements           1,592,026            4,800,000  
Behind 
Schedule 

Construction 

To avoid bypassing the San Bernardino Lift station during the rainy season, construction was scheduled to 
resume on May 16th, 2022.  Contractor will mobilize once all traffic control is approved by the County.  
Construction is estimated to resume early August.  Project will be re‐baselined once traffic control is 
approved, and Contractor can mobilize. 

22  EN19028.00  NRW Manhole and Pipeline Condition Assessment               615,313                 915,000   On‐Time  Construction    

23  EN22059.00  Prado Basin Assets Retrofit‐NRWS                    2,251                 150,000   On‐Time  Construction    

24 
EN19027.00  NRW Pipeline Relining Along Cucamonga Creek            1,819,503            2,330,000   On‐Time  Project 

Acceptance 
  

25 
EN22002.00  NRW East End Flowmeter Replacement          3,436,607            3,600,000   On‐Time  Project 

Acceptance 

  

26  EN22039.00  RP‐4 SCADA Performance Improvement                       791              1,012,000   N/A  Not Started    

27  EN22046.00  New NRW Project PDR's                          ‐                  500,000   N/A  Not Started    

      Sub Total         8,707,593         16,944,200           

   



 
 

Groundwater Recharge 

No.  Project ID  Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 
thru 5/31 

($) 

Total Project  
Budget 
($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status  Schedule Recovery Plan 

28 
EN21057.00  Recharge Basin Clean‐up of Illegally Dumped Materials                  11,633                 245,538   On‐Time  Project 

Evaluation 

  

29  EN21051.00  Ely Monitoring Well               111,786                684,999   On‐Time  Design    

30 
RW15003.03  Montclair Basin Improvements               352,371               1,788,100   Behind 

Schedule 
Construction 

The project is still finalizing permits with CDFW. The project will continue to award construction contract 
in August 2022. The project will be rebaselined as the start of the construction. 

31 
RW15003.05  RP‐3 Basin Improvements (RMPU PID 21)            1,562,312              1,819,300  

Behind 
Schedule 

Construction 
Due to unforeseen field conditions, additional work with the contractor is extending the project 
completion to July 30, 2022. The contractor is relocating a utility conflict which was not identified in the 
plan set. 

32  RW15003.06  Wineville/Jurupa/Force Main Improvements             7,141,924          20,220,952   On‐Time  Construction    

33 
RW15004.00  Lower Day Basin Improvements           3,964,514            4,008,000   On‐Time  Project 

Acceptance 

  

34  EN22050.00  GWR Basin PLC Upgrades                          ‐                  900,000   N/A  Not Started    

35  EN22051.00  Jurupa Basin VFD Upgrades                          ‐                  300,000   N/A  Not Started    

36  EN22049.00  GWR‐RW OIT Upgrades                          ‐                      56,100   N/A  Not Started    

      Sub Total          13,144,540          30,022,989           

Headquarters 

No.  Project ID  Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 
thru 5/31 

($) 

Total Project  
Budget 
($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status  Schedule Recovery Plan 

37 
EN20008.00  HQ Parking Lot FY19/20               529,377                590,000   Behind 

Schedule 
Construction 

Schedule delay is a result of City of Chino permit issuance delay and minor weather delay.  Construction is 
scheduled to be completed 6/23/22.  Schedule recovery not possible.   

38 
EN20040.00  HQ Driveway Improvements              277,822                   571,213   Behind 

Schedule 
Construction 

Schedule delay is a result of City of Chino permit issuance delay and minor weather delay.  Construction is 
scheduled to be completed 6/23/22.  Schedule recovery not possible.   

      Sub Total               807,199                1,161,213           

Lift Stations 

No.  Project ID  Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 
thru 5/31 

($) 

Total Project  
Budget 
($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status  Schedule Recovery Plan 

39  EN22020.00  Philadelphia Lift Station Pump Upgrades                43,245             2,500,000   On‐Time  Pre‐Design    

40 
EN22037.00  Prado De‐Chlorination Station Inundation Protection      

105,977  
             380,000   On‐Time 

Pre‐Design 
  

41 
EN0000000066  Preserve Lift Station Improvements      

153,913  
                         ‐    

Behind 
Schedule 

Design 
After delays during the RFP process and drafting a reimbursement agreement between IEUA and Chino, 
there were additional delays due to unforeseen complications with the HVAC design. Project is in final 
design and will be re‐baselined upon construction contract award. 

42 
EN23002.00  Philadelphia Lift Station Force Main Improvements            1,354,419           19,094,788  

Behind 
Schedule 

Design 
The delays to the schedule are attributed to addressing the City of Ontario’s comments in addition to 
awaiting the WIFIA funding approval and availability. The project will be re‐baselined at construction 
contract award. 

43  FM21005.02  Prado Dechlor Roofing Assessment                    1,473                   50,000   On‐Time  Design    

44  EN22048.00  PLS Generator Control Panel Retrofit/Modernization                  8,662                  110,000   On‐Time  Construction    

      Sub Total         1,667,689         22,134,788           

   



 
 

Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 1 (RP‐1) 

No.  Project ID  Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 
thru 5/31 

($) 

Total Project  
Budget 
($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status  Schedule Recovery Plan 

45 
EN22022.00  RP‐1 Air Compressor Upgrades                45,869              1,750,000   Behind 

Schedule 
Pre‐Design 

The Consultant is currently addressing IEUA Stakeholder comments for the Preliminary Design Report. The 
project will be re‐baselined after PDR is finalized and approved. 

46 
EN22027.00  RP‐1 Repurpose Lab                92,749              1,847,400  

On‐Time  Pre‐Design 
  

47  EN22031.00  RP‐1 Influent Pump Station Electrical Improvements               103,852            3,000,000   On‐Time  Pre‐Design    

48 
EN22032.00  RP‐1 TP‐1 Stormwater Drainage Upgrades                  19,813                  155,000   On‐Time 

Pre‐Design 
  

49 

EN21053.00  RP‐1 Old Effluent Structure Rehabilitation              140,322              1,480,507  

Behind 
Schedule 

Pre‐Design 

This project is one of the five predesign projects that were combined as a pilot approach for more 
efficient project execution and delivery. Delays during the predesign phase were caused by extensive 
coordination with stakeholders, third party condition assessment and reporting, and multiple predesign 
reviews to ensure compliance and reliability. Recovery is not possible. Project charter has been approved. 
Request for Proposal for Consulting Services for the project was solicited in April 2022. The project will re‐
baselined upon consultant contract award. 

50 
EN21056.00  RP‐1 Evaporative Cooling for Aeration Blower Building                 55,060                450,000   Behind 

Schedule 
Pre‐Design 

The Preliminary Design Report had to be revised to address comments from IEUA Stakeholders. The 
project will be re‐baselined after PDR is finalized and approved. 

51  EN20051.00  RP‐1 MCB and Old Lab Building Rehab               176,509              2,646,161   On‐Time  Pre‐Design    

52  EN22041.00  RP‐1 Aeration Basins Utility Water System Improvement                 63,371                  141,000   On‐Time  Design    

53  EN22044.00  RP‐1 Thickening Building & Acid Phase Digester            1,524,001        100,000,000   On‐Time  Design    

54 
EN22021.00  RP‐1 Digester Area Utility Water (UW) Line Replacement                   5,080                 100,000  

Behind 
Schedule 

Design 
Scope of work understanding with Operations was delayed due to staff availability. Scope of work is 
expected to be finalized soon, with the project going out to bid June 2022. Project will be re‐baselined 
upon construction contract award. 

55 
EN13016.05  SCADA Enterprise System ‐ (Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 1)           3,687,037            3,800,000  

Behind 
Schedule 

Bid & Award 
The project is behind schedule because the RP‐4 SCADA migration was re‐sequenced and completed 
before RP‐1.  The project will be re‐baselined once the construction contract is awarded for RP‐1.  The 
project is being expedited as much as possible; schedule recovery is not possible. 

56 
EN22034.00  RP‐1 Generator Control Panel Retrofit/Modernization      

11,875  
             240,000   Behind 

Schedule 
Construction 

No bids were received so project was re‐advertised and awarded in May 2022.  The project will be 
rebaselined upon approval of contractor’s schedule.  

57  EN11039.00  RP‐1 Disinfection Pump Improvements            1,511,526           12,997,043   On‐Time  Construction    

58 
EN21042.00  RP‐1 East Influent Gate Replacement              133,902                625,000  

On‐Time  Construction 
  

59 

EN18006.00  RP‐1 Flare Improvements            7,000,512            9,200,000  

Behind 
Schedule 

Construction 

Due to conflict with numerous underground utilities, part of the original design such as equipment 
foundations and mechanical gas piping could not be constructed. Also flare control panels and PLC 
upgrades were initiated by IEUA. Redesign of multiple systems resulted in schedule delays, change orders 
and overhead cost claimed by the Contractor. Project completion is now anticipated in August 2022.  
Schedule recovery is not possible. 

60 

EN17042.00  Digester 6 and 7 Roof Repairs            5,441,789             7,828,439  
Behind 
Schedule 

Construction 

Digester 7 condition assessment and predesign effort were delayed waiting for Digester 6 to be put back 
in full operation. Digester 6 delayed the project due to issues with the coating subcontractor and multiple 
operational constraints. Digester 7 90% Detailed Design Phase is currently being reviewed. Recovery is not 
possible. The Project will re‐baselined after construction contract award. 

61 
EN22057.00  Prado Basin Assets Retrofit‐SEWER                  2,608                   50,000   On‐Time 

Construction 
  

62  EN22053.07  RP‐1 Single Line Diagrams                      882                            ‐     0.00%  Construction    

64 
EN20065.00  RP‐1 Solids Hot Water Loop Valves            1,746,813              1,770,000   On‐Time  Project 

Acceptance 

  

65 
EN19043.00  RP‐1 Centrifuge Foul Air Line              368,655                445,000   On‐Time  Project 

Acceptance 

  

66 
EN17082.00  Mechanical Restoration and Upgrades          9,650,228            10,146,000   On‐Time  Project 

Acceptance 

  

67 
EN20041.00  RP‐1 TP‐1 Bleach Mixing Repairs              650,428                 755,000   On‐Time  Project 

Acceptance 

  

68  EN22025.00  RP‐1 Dump Station                       126               2,121,100   N/A  Not Started    

69  EN19009.00  RP‐1 Energy Recovery                      408             4,425,000   N/A  Not Started    

70  EN22030.00  Replace Anoxic Mixers with More Energy Efficient System                          ‐                  840,000   N/A  Not Started    

      Sub Total      32,433,416        166,812,650           

   



 
 

Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 4 (RP‐4) 

No.  Project ID  Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 
thru 5/31 

($) 

Total Project  
Budget 
($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status  Schedule Recovery Plan 

71 
EN21041.00  RP‐4 Contact Basin Cover & Wet Well Passive Overflow 

Replacement 
           233,642            4,334,000  

On‐Time  Pre‐Design 
  

72  EN22042.00  RP‐4 Ammonia Analyzer and Support System               253,138                620,000   On‐Time  Construction    

73 
EN17110.00  RP‐4 Process Improvements          12,608,011             13,180,691   Behind 

Schedule 
Construction 

This project’s contract was extended 100 days due to the addition of the new aeration blowers. Also 
delayed due to procurement delays related to COVID. Recovery is not possible. 

74 
EN17110.03  RP‐4 Aeration Basin Wall Repair           5,005,833             5,052,448   On‐Time  Project 

Acceptance 
  

75 
EN17043.00  RP4 Primary Clarifier Rehab          4,730,399              7,046,136   On‐Time  Project 

Acceptance 
  

      Sub Total      22,831,022         30,233,275           

Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 5 (RP‐5) 

No.  Project ID  Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 
thru 5/31 

($) 

Total Project  
Budget 
($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status  Schedule Recovery Plan 

76 
EN22033.00  RP‐5 Emergency Generator Load Bank Installation      

11,271  
              145,000   On‐Time 

Construction 
  

77  EN19001.00  RP‐5 Expansion to 30 mgd          84,541,138        245,000,000   On‐Time  Construction    

78 
EN19006.00  RP‐5 Biosolids Facility      

93,131,156  
     205,000,000   On‐Time 

Construction 
  

      Sub Total     177,683,566       450,145,000           

Recycled Water 

No.  Project ID  Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 
thru 5/31 

($) 

Total Project  
Budget 
($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status  Schedule Recovery Plan 

79 

EN15002.00  1158 Reservoir Site Cleanup               180,189               1,215,000  
Behind 
Schedule 

Project 
Evaluation 

The Consultant completed the revised Soil Management Plan which was approved by the Department of 
Toxic Substances Control (DTSC). The 25‐yard excavation was completed, and the Consultant has 
prepared a Risk Memo for DTSC’s approval and recommendation of backfilling the excavation. Recovery is 
not possible. 

80  EN21045.00  Montclair Force Main Improvements               256,818            6,800,000   On‐Time  Pre‐Design    

81  EN22058.00  Prado Basin Assets Retrofit‐RW                   2,285                 140,000   On‐Time  Construction    

82 
EN20022.00  1299 Reservoir Paint/Coating Repairs and Upgrades              206,685                300,000   On‐Time  Project 

Acceptance 

  

      Sub Total             645,977           8,455,000           

      Overall Totals    266,580,785       768,038,018           

 

   



 
 

 

FY21/22 Emergency Projects 
   Project ID  Contractor  Task Order Description   Location  TO #  Original Not‐to‐Exceed /Estimate  Actual Cost thru 5/31  Date of Award  Status 

Agency Wide 

1  EN22016.01  Mike Bubalo Construction   Bon View Ave  Agencywide  TO‐005  35,700  37,423  10/25/2021  Completed 

Sub Totals  35,700  37,423       

RP‐1 

1  EN22017.03  Mike Bubalo Construction  Recycled Water Line Repair for RP‐1  RP‐1  TO‐0004  21,710  16,684  8/10/2021  Completed 

2  EN22017.04  W.A. Rasic Construction  PL Leak Investigation & Repair at RP‐1  RP‐2     46,000  1,424  8/11/2021  Completed 

3  EN22019.01  W.A. Rasic Construction Co., Inc.  RP1 Scum Valve Replacement  RP‐1  TO‐0030  16,475  14,061  8/19/2021  Completed 

4  EN22019.02  Custom Conveyor/Schwing Bioset Inc  Vertical Conveyor Repairs at the RP1 Dewatering Bldg.  RP‐1  N/A  75,000  34,969  11/30/2021  Completed 

5  EN22019.03  W.A. Rasic Construction  PL Leak Investigation & Repair at RP‐1  RP‐1  TO‐31  46,000  137  12/1/2021  Completed 

             Sub Totals  205,185  67,275       

CCWRF 

6  EN22017.01  W.A. Rasic Construction Co., Inc.  CCWRF Secondary Clarifier and Headworks Leak Repair  CCWRF  TO‐0028  15,888  15,103  7/22/2021  Completed 

             Sub Totals  15,888  15,103       

Recycled Water 

7  EN22017.02  W.A. Rasic Construction Co., Inc.  42" 1158 RW Leak  RW  TO‐0029   236,000  0  7/22/2021  Completed 

             Sub Totals  236,000  0       

            Grand Total  492,773  119,801       

 

May Emergency Project(s) 

Contractor 
Task Order 
Description  

Details of the Circumstances/Cause of Emergency  Scope of Repair  Location 
Date of Call 
Out 

Not‐to‐Exceed /Estimate 

  
N/A 

           
  

 

Emergency Projects 


	Agenda 1
	Agenda 2
	Agenda 3
	Agenda 4
	Agenda 5
	Agenda 6
	Consent Item 1A
	Consent Item 1B
	Consent Item 1C
	Consent Item 1D
	Consent Item 1E
	Consent Item 1F
	Consent Item 1G
	Consent Item 1H
	Consent Item 1I
	Consent Item 1J
	Consent Item 1K
	Action Item 2A
	Action Item 2B
	Information Item 3B
	Information Item 3C
	Information Item 3D
	Information Item 3E
	Information Item 3F
	Information Item 3G
	Information Item 3H
	Information Item 3I
	Information Item 3J
	Information Item 3K
	Information Item 3L
	Information Item 3M
	Information Item 3N
	Information Item 3O
	Information Item 3P
	Information Item 3Q
	Information Item 3R
	Agency Representatives' Reports 4A
	Agency Representatives' Reports 4B
	Agency Representatives' Reports 4C
	Agency Representatives' Reports 4D
	Agency Representatives' Reports 4E
	Agency Representatives' Reports 4F
	General Manager's Report



